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IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROX Y MATERIALS FOR THE
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 23 , 2012

This proxy statement and related materials are
available at www.envisionreports.com/ctl

All references in this proxy statement or relatemtenials to “we, “us,” “our” or “CenturyLink” refer to CenturyLink, Inc. In addition,
each reference to (i) our “executives” or “execwgiofficers” refers to our eight executive officéisted in the tables beginning on page 6 of
this proxy statement, (ii) “meeting” refers to tB612 annual meeting of our shareholders describethér herein, (iii) “named officers” or
“named executive officers” refers to the five examuofficers listed in the Summary Compensationlé appearing on page 48 of this proxy
statement, (iv) “Embarq” refers to Embarqg Corpomati, which we acquired on July 1, 2009, (v) “Qwesfers to Qwest Communications
International Inc., which we acquired on April QP1, (vi)“Savvis” refers to SAVVIS, Inc., which we acquidJuly 15, 2011, and

(vii) “SEC” refers to the U.S. Securities and Excdgae Commission. Unless otherwise provided, allrin&dion is presented as of the date of
this proxy statemen
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TIME AND DATE
PLACE

ITEMS OF BUSINESS

RECORD DATE
PROXY VOTING

April 10, 2012

CenturyLink, Inc.
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders

10:00 a.m. local time on May 23, 20

Corporate Conference Room
CenturyLink Headquarters
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisian:

(1) Approve charter amendments to:
(@) Declassify our board of directors
(b) Increase our authorized shares

(2) Elect as directors the four nominees namete
accompanying proxy statement on the terms and tiondi
specified therein

(3) Ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as oudépendent
auditor for 2012

(4) Conduct a non-binding advisory vote regagdinr executive
compensation

(5) Act upon three separate shareholder propdfsptoperly
presented at the meeting

(6) Transact such other business as may propenhe before tt
meeting and any adjournme

You can vote if you were a shareholder of record\pril 4, 2012.

Shareholders are invited to attend the meeting in
person. Even if you expect to attend, it is impatrta
that you vote by telephone or the Internet, or by
completing and returning a proxy or voting
instruction card

/’!{L‘J&Wﬂ{
Stacey W. Go
Secretar
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CenturyLink, Inc.
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203

PROXY STATEMENT
April 10, 2012

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING

Why am | receiving these proxy materials?

Our Board of Directors is soliciting your proxyvote at our 2012 annual meeting of shareholderausscyou owned shares of our
stock at the close of business on April 4, 2018 rdcord date for the meeting, and are entitlagte those shares at the meeting. Our proxy
materials are being made available to you on thexriet beginning on or about April 11, 2012. Thisqy statement summarizes information
regarding matters to be considered at the meetiog.do not need to attend the meeting to vote gbares.

Will I receive a full paper set of proxy materials?

Most shareholders will receive only a written netaf how to access our proxy materials, and witlnegeive printed copies of the prc
materials unless requested. If you would like tweree a paper copy of our proxy materials, you shéallow the instructions for requesting
the materials in the notice.

What do our materials include?
The full set of our materials include:
» the notice and proxy statement for the meel
e aproxy or voting instruction card, a

e our 2011 annual report furnished in the followimgtparts: (1) our 2011 Financial Report, which ¢itatesAppendix Bo this
proxy statement, and (2) our 2011 Review and 's Message, prepared as a separate bo

Our 2011 annual report is not a part of our pradicting materials.

When and where will the meeting be held?

The meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. local tinme\Wednesday, May 23, 2012, in the corporate coné&reoom at our corporate
headquarters, 100 CenturyLink Drive, Monroe, Lauisi. If you would like directions to the meetintggse see our website,
http://ir.centurylink.com.
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What matters will be considered at the meeting?
Shareholders will vote on the following mattersreg meeting:

Board Voting

Matter Recommendatio Page Referen:

» amendments to our charter
» declassify our board of directors (Item 1( For 3
» increase our authorized shares (Item 1 For 4

« election of the four director nominees named hefiéédm 2) For each noming 5

« ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as andependent auditor for 2012 (Item For 19

» non-binding advisory vote regarding our exegittompensation For 21
(Item 4)

 the three shareholder proposals describeddrptioxy statement if each is properly Against each 22

presented at the meeting (Items 5(a), 5(b) and

How many votes may | cast?

You may cast one vote for every share of our comstock or Series L preferred stock that you ownethe record date. Our common
stock and Series L preferred stock vote togetharsisgle class on all matters. In this proxy steet, we refer to these shares as our
“Common Shares” and “Preferred Shares,” respegtiwld as our “Voting Shares,” collectively. Astbé record date, we had 621,235,448
Common Shares and 9,434 Preferred Shares outsgandin

What is the difference between holding shares asshareholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

If shares are registered in your name with oursfiemagent, Computershare Investor Services L.lydli,are the “shareholder of record
of those shares and you may directly vote theseshtogether with any shares credited to yourwatcid you are a participant in our
automatic dividend reinvestment and stock purclsaseice or our employee stock purchase plans.

If your shares are held on your behalf in a stadkérage account or by a bank or other nominee gyeuhe “beneficial owner” of
shares held in “street name.” We have requestedathigroxy materials be made available to you tyryoroker, bank or nominee who is
considered the shareholder of record of those share

If | am a shareholder of record, how do | vote?
If you are a shareholder of record, you may votedrson at the meeting or by proxy in any of tHe¥ang three ways:
» call 1-80(-652-8683 and follow the instructions provide
* log on to the Internet at www.envisionreports.cdhdnd follow the instructions at that site;
* request a paper copy of our proxy materials arithviing receipt thereof, mark, sign and date yourxy card and return it to
Computershare

Please note that you may not vote by telephonkeointernet after 1:00 a.m. Central Time on MayZZB.2. You may revoke or change
your proxy at any time before it is voted at theetiteg by giving a written revocation notice to @acretary, by delivering timely a pro
bearing a later date or by voting in person amntleeting.

If  am a beneficial owner of shares held in streehame, how do | vote?

As the beneficial owner, you have the right torinst your broker, bank or nominee how to vote yshares by using any voting
instruction card supplied by them or by followirngir instructions for voting by telephone, the tnt, or in person.

2
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If | am a benefit plan participant, how do | vote?
Please see “Additional Information About the Megtir Voting by Participants in Our Benefit Plans’hajaring below.

Do | need identification to attend the meeting in prson?

Yes. Please bring proper identification, togethighthe Notice Regarding Availability of Proxy Maiteds mailed to you, which will
serve as your admission ticket. If your sharedate in street name, please bring acceptable miomfvnership, such as a letter from your
broker or an account statement stating or showiagyou beneficially owned Voting Shares on therddate.

Where can | find additional information about the conduct of the meeting, voting requirements, and otr similar matters relating to
the meeting?

Please see “Additional Information About the Megtiappearing below.

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
(Items 1(a) and (b) on Proxy or Voting InstructionCard)

At the meeting, we will seek shareholder appro¥amendments to our restated articles of incorpamab declassify our Board of
Directors and increase our authorized common s¥ekrefer to these respectively as the “declaggifio charter amendments” and the
“authorized stock charter amendment,” and colletyias the “charter amendments.”

Declassification of the Board (Item 1(a))

General. Our restated articles of incorporation currentlgyide that our Board of Directors is divided intwee classes, with each class
being elected every three years. In February 26 2he recommendation of its Nominating and Congo€&overnance Committee, the Board
of Directors unanimously adopted resolutions apipgamendments to the articles to provide for theual election of directors.

If the declassification charter amendments are@mat by the shareholders at the meeting, the ductassified board will be
declassified over a two-year period, as follows:

« current Class lll directors will be elected forre-year term, and will stand for-election at our 2013 shareholder meet

» current Class | directors previously elected in@@4ll serve out their current three-year termg] atand for election to a one-year
term at our 2013 shareholder meeti

« current Class Il directors previously elected i1 2vill serve out their current three-year termmg] atand for election to a oyea
term at our 2014 shareholder meeting,

» any other director appointed after the meetingh@yBoard will be appointed for an initial term exkpg at the next annual
shareholder meetin

If adopted, this proposal would not change:
» the present number of directo
» the Boar/s authority to change that number and to fill amgancies or new-created directorships,

* provisions in our articles stating that at all tsrdirectors are elected to serve for their resped¢tirms and until their successors
have been elected and qualifi
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Article IV of our restated articles of incorporaticontains the provisions which will be amendeithig proposal is adopted at the
meeting Appendix Ao this Proxy Statement shows the changes contéecpiby the proposed amendments. If adopted, thedments to oL
articles will become effective upon the filing ahanded and restated articles of incorporation thighSecretary of State of the State of
Louisiana, which we intend to do promptly afterreelder approval is obtained. In connection witkldssifying the Board in the manner
provided above, we also propose to remove fromchriV(A) a provision which presumptively fixes the&ze of our board at 14, which we
believe is no longer necessary or accurate.

Background of Proposal The proposal is a result of ongoing review of coap® governance matters by the Nominating and Gatpo
Governance Committee of the Board. The Committesidered the advantages and disadvantages of mnaigtéhe classified board
structure.

The Committee considered the view of some sharemldho believe that classified boards have thecetif reducing the
accountability of directors to shareholders becalessified boards limit the ability of sharehoklér evaluate and elect all directors on an
annual basis. The Committee in its evaluation gavesiderable weight to the approval at the 201Liahmeeting of a shareholder proposal
urging the Board to take the necessary steps tb @ilectors annually.

The Committee also considered benefits of retaittiegclassified board structure, which has a lastpty in corporate law. Proponents
of a classified structure believe it provides couity and stability in the management of the bussrend affairs of a company because a
majority of directors always has prior experiensal@mectors of the company. Proponents also ags#rtlassified boards promote long-range
planning and independence, and may enhance shdeeivallue by forcing an entity seeking control ¢hayet company to initiate arnisagth
discussions with the board of a target companyusecthe entity is unable to replace the entiredoaa single election.

Upon the recommendation of the Nominating and CarjgoGovernance Committee, the Board approvedugsoes adopting the
declassification charter amendments and recommernlat shareholders adopt these amendments taderémi the annual election of
directors.

Vote Required The affirmative vote of the holders of a majonfiythe outstanding Voting Shares is required tssphis proposal. If the
declassification charter amendments are not apdrdkie Board will remain classified, and directelscted at the meeting will remain Class
[l directors with three-year terms expiring at @15 shareholder meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR thisposal.
Increase in Authorized Shares (Item 1(b))

General. The Board of Directors has adopted, subject éoediolder approval, an amendment to our restatetiearof incorporation to
provide for an increase in the number of shareofmon stock authorized for issuance from 800, {6 1,600,000,000. As of the record
date, CenturyLink had 621,235,448 Common Sharegdsand outstanding, and approximately 45,763,af@rGon Shares reserved for
issuance.

Reasons for the Proposed Amendmemtithough our management currently has no defiaifilans for the issuance of any additional
authorized shares, the authorization of additishakes would permit the issuance of shares fordugtock dividends, stock splits, possible
acquisitions, stock incentive plans, and other appate corporate purposes.

Possible Effects of the Proposed Amendmelftthe amendment is approved, no further shadgraipproval would be required prior to
the issuance of the additional Common Shares d@a#tbby the amendment, except as otherwise reqhbiréaw or the rules of any national
securities exchange or association on which owr#tggs are then traded. While adoption of the asneent would not have any immediate
dilutive effect on the
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voting power or other rights of our existing sharelers, any future issuances could have a dilffect on the equity interests of current
shareholders and could potentially have a negafifeet on the market price of our Common Shares.

Under some circumstances, it is possible to usesurtd shares of common stock for anti-takeovergse but we have no present
intention to take any such actions. The additi@@ainmon Shares authorized by this amendment wilbeatntitled to preemptive rights nor
will existing shareholders have any preemptivetrighacquire any of those shares when issued.

If adopted, the amendment to our articles will beeceffective upon the filing of amended and restaigicles of incorporation with the
Secretary of State of the State of Louisiana, whietintend to do promptly after shareholder apprs/abtained.

Vote Required The affirmative vote of the holders of tloirds of the Voting Shares present or represeatidide meeting is required
pass this proposal.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR thisgosal.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Item 2 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

The Board of Directors has nominated four cand&léde election as directors for a opear term expiring at the 2013 annual meetin
shareholders, based on the assumption that thetsiiders will approve the declassification chaastmendments described in Item 1(a) ab:

Currently, our board is divided into three clasted serve staggered three-year terms. If the slgifilzation charter amendments
described above are not approved by the requisteeaf shareholders, then the directors electélaes?012 annual meeting of shareholders
will be elected for a three-year term ending at2B25 annual meeting of shareholders. In all cabesjirectors will be elected to serve
through the end of their respective terms and timtilr successors have been elected and qualified.

Unless authority is withheld, all votes attributalkd the shares represented by each duly execntededivered proxy will be cast for tl
election of each of these below-named nomineesetoar bylaw nominating procedures, these nomiaezshe only individuals who may
be elected at the meeting. For additional infororatin our nomination process, see “Corporate Gavex@ — Director Nomination Process.”
If for any reason any such nominee should declirteecome unable to stand for election as a dirgatbich we do not anticipate, votes will
be cast instead for another candidate designatélgebgoard, without resoliciting proxies.

As discussed further under “Additional Informati@hout the Meeting — Vote Required to Elect Direstoeach of the four nominees
must receive a majority of the votes cast to betetbat the meeting.

In connection with acquiring Qwest on April 1, 20 expanded the size of our Board to 16 diredctoexzcommodate the addition of
four new directors who had previously served as §w&ectors. In early 2012, the Board discussedi#isirability of reducing the number of
directors. As a result of these discussions, Charldiggs and James A. Unruh, both former Qwestatiors, each agreed not to stand for re-
election as a CenturyLink director upon the lapSei®current term expiring at the meeting on M8y 2012. In addition, Edward A. Mueller,
Qwest’s former chairman and chief executive offiters announced his intention to resign from tharBoeffective as of the date of the
meeting. As a result of these changes, the sipaoBoard will be reduced from 16 to 13, effectaseof the date of the meeting.

The following tables provide certain informationtivrespect to each nominee, each other directos@/term will continue after the
meeting, and our executive officers. As discussethér elsewhere herein, four of our below-listé@ators formerly served as directors of
Embarg and one of our other below-listed directorserly served as a director of Qwest, in eacle gair to our acquisitions of those
companies.
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Former Class Ill Directors (for a term expiring in 2013, assuming the adoption of Item 1(a)):

Fred R. Nichols,age 65; has served as a director since 2003;ddtmen Cox Communications, Inc. in Febru
2000, where he served as Executive Vice PresiddDperations since August 1999; held various exeeut
positions at TCA Cable TV, Inc. (which was publittpded between 1982 and its sale to Cox in 199 f
1980 to 1999, most notably serving as Chairmarsiéeat and Chief Executive Officer from 1997 to 22thd
President and Chief Operating Officer from 1989%87; also served on the executive boards of éi)\ational
Cable Television Association and the Cable Telecaminations Association, both cable industry trade
associations, (ii) Telesynergy, a cable televigiomgramming consortium, and (iii) C-SPAN, a calglievision
network; prior to joining TCA in 1980, worked ag@ammercial banker for nine years and as a certffidalic
accountant with Peat, Marwick & Mitchell for thrgears.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Executive experience in the communications stigu
» Experience as a former chief executive of diplybheld company

» Former experience as a certified public accourdadtcommercial banki
Harvey P. Perry, age 67; a director since 1990; non-executive Whairman of the Board of Directors of
CenturyLink since January 1, 2004; retired from @eylink in December 2003; joined CenturyLink in84)
serving as Secretary and General Counsel for appataly 20 years and Executive Vice President anigfC
Administrative Officer for almost five years; pritw then, worked as an attorney in private pradtocel5 years.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Prior executive experience with, and historlaawledge of, our company
» Legal experience representing telecommunicatammpanies

Laurie A. Siegel.age 56; a director since July 1, 2009; Senior Wiesident of Human Resources and Internal
Communications for Tyco International Ltd., a dsiéed manufacturing and service company, sinceidan
2003; held various positions with Honeywell Intdraaal Inc. from September 1994 to December 2002,
including Vice President of Human Resources — pgcMaterials; prior to then, was director of gibb
compensation at Avon Products and a principal it&gic Compensation Associates; a director of Empeor
to July 1, 2009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Executive experience with a multi-national cemp

» Human relations and executive compensation exp

6
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Joseph R. Zimme) age 58; a director since 2003; a business aaddial consultant since November 2002;
Advisory Director of the Goldman Sachs Group froecBmber 2001 to November 2002; Managing Director of
the Communications, Media & Entertainment Grouptfer Americas in the investment banking division of
Goldman, Sachs & Co. from 1999 to 2001, after gctis Managing Director and a co-head of the groum f
1992 to 1999; Managing Director in the mergers arglisitions department of Goldman, Sachs & Canfro
1988 to 1992; currently a director of FactSet Rede&ystems Inc. and formerly a director of Digitias. within
the past five years.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Advisory experience in the communications irtdus
» Investment banking expertise
* Qualifies as an “audit committee financial entpe
» Director of other publicl-owned companie

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR eaclhafse nominees

Class | Directors (term expires in 2013):

W. Bruce Hanks, age 57; a director since 1992; a consultant Gitstham, Bordelon and Co., Inc., an
investment management and financial planning compgince December 1, 2005; Athletic Director of the
University of Louisiana at Monroe from March 20@1June 2004; held various executive positions at
CenturyLink from August 1980 through March 2001,stneotably Chief Operating Officer, Senior Vice
President — Corporate Development and StrategyefCimancial Officer, Senior Vice President — Raves
and External Affairs, and President — Telecommuiooa Services; worked as a certified public actann
with Peat, Marwick & Mitchell for three years pritwr then; currently an advisory director of Ibersai&
Corporation; also served in the past on the exeeltbards of several telecommunications industsp@ations
and the boards of other publicly-owned companies.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Prior executive experience with, and historlaawledge of, our company
» Former experience as a certified public accanint
* Qualifies as an “audit committee financial entpe
» Prior experience as a director of other pub-owned companie

C. G. Melville, Jr.,age 71; a director since 1968; retired in 1992r a&fteving as President of Melville
Equipment, Inc., a family-owned distributor of meiand industrial equipment, for nearly 30 yeatseC
Executive Officer of a family-owned telephone comypé#or six years prior to its sale to CenturyLimk1i968.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Experience owning and managing telecommuninatmmpanies
» Experience as a former chief executive of fsgmilvned privately-held companies
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William A. Owens,age 71; a director since July 1, 2009; non-exeeufilairman of the Board of CenturyLink
since July 1, 2009; Managing Director and ChairmBAEA Investors Asia, a private equity companycs
April 2006; Vice Chairman, President and Chief BExee Officer of Nortel Networks Corporation, a bl
supplier of communications equipment, from 2002@65; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Telsid
LLC, a satellite communications company, from 1892003; served in the U.S. military from 1962 896
holding various key leadership positions, includifige Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff; cutigra
director of AEA Investors LLC, Polycom, Inc., Wipkémited, and Intelius Inc.; formerly a director Blow
Mobile, Unifrax Corporation, and Amerilink withithé past five years; Chairman of the Board of EmIpaiay
to July 1, 2009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Executive experience in the communications stigu
» Experience as a former chief executive of mplheld companies
» Government relations expertise
 International business experience
» Director of other domestic and international pulg-held companie

Glen F. Post, lll, age 59; a director since 1985; Chief Executivedeffiof CenturyLink since 1992, and
President since July 1, 2009 (and from 1990 to 200Rairman of the Board of CenturyLink betweenel@00z
and June 2009; Vice Chairman of the Board of Cghink between 1993 and 2002; held various otheitjoos
at CenturyLink between 1976 and 1993; most not@bdasurer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Opieigt
Officer.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Executive experience in the telecommunicatimnsiness
» Experience as our chief executive
» Former experience as a certified public accour

Class Il Directors (term expires in 2014):

Virginia Boulet , age 58; a director since 1995; Special Counsktlatms and Reese LLP, a law firm, since
March 2002; prior to then, practiced as a corposatd securities attorney for Phelps Dunbar, L.frém March
1992 to March 2002 and Jones, Walker, Waechtete¥Rait, Carrére & Denegre L.L.P. from May 1983 to
March 1992; currently a director of W&T Offshoregl

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Legal experience representing telecommunicattmmpanies
» Director of another publicly-held company
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Peter C. Browr, age 53; a director since July 1, 2009; ChairnfaBrassmere Partners, LLC, a private
investment firm, since July 2009; held several etge level positions, including Chairman of thedBd,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Chiefdficial Officer, with AMC Entertainment Inc., a #tecal
exhibition company, from 1991 until his retiremémtebruary 2009; founded Entertainment Propeffiest, a
NYSE-listed real estate investment trust, in 1997 amdexd as its Chairman of the Board of Trusteed 2003;
currently a director of Entertainment Propertieastiand Cinedigm Digital Cinema Corporation; foriyer
director of National CineMedia, Inc. and Midway Gasninc. within the past five years and a direofdEmbart
prior to July 1, 2009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Experience as a former chief executive of diplybheld company
* Qualifies as an “audit committee financial entpe
» Director of other publicl-held companie

Richard A. Gephardtage 71; a director since July 1, 2009; PresidedtGinief Executive Officer of Gephardt
Group, a multi-disciplined consulting firm, sincnilary 2005; consultant to Goldman Sachs & Coesinc
January 2005; strategic advisor in the governmifaira practice group of DLA Piper between June28ad
December 2009; senior advisor to FTI Consultingveen January 2007 and December 2009; member of the
U.S. House of Representatives from 1976 to 20@Besenting Missouri’s Third District and holdingyke
leadership positions, including House Minority Legdcurrently a director of Centene CorporatiormdAdotor
Company, Spirit Aerosystems Holdings, Inc. and etitates Steel Corporation; formerly a directddaiha
Holding Company within the past five years, andraalor of Embarq prior to July 1, 2009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Government and labor relations expertise
 Director of other publicl-held companie

Gregory J. McCray, age 49; a director since 2005; Chairman and Ghietutive Officer of Antenova Limited,
a British company which develops and markets waelgomponents, since January 2003; Chairman ara Chi
Executive Officer of PipingHot Networks, a wireletart-up, from November 2000 to November 2002j@en
Vice President, Customer Operations, at Lucent eldgies from June 1997 to October 2000; Sales Vice
President, U.S. Eastern Region, at Lucent Techmsdgom January 1994 to May 1997; held engineering
product management and other managerial roles &fTAand IBM from May 1984 to December 1993.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Executive experience in the communicationstaetinology industries
» Experience as a chief executive of privatelidlempanies
» Engineering expertise
* International business experier
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Michael J. Robertsage 61; a director since April 1, 2011; Chief ExaeiOfficer and founder of Westside
Holdings LLC, a marketing and brand developmentgany; served as President and Chief Operating €féi
McDonald’s Corporation, a foodservice retailernfir@004 to 2006; served as Chief Executive Offider o
McDonald’s USA during 2004 and as President of Ma&ld’s USA from 2001 to 2004; currently a direcbér
W.W. Grainger, Inc. and Standard Parking Corpomatimd a director of Qwest prior to April 1, 2011.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Experience as a chief executive
» Marketing and branding expertise

 Director of other publicly-held companies
» Qualifies as al*audit committee financial exp”

Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors:

Listed below is information on each of our execaitdfficers who are not directors. Unless otheninsicated, each person has been
engaged in the principal occupation shown for ntbaa the past five yeat
William E. Cheek, age 56; President — Wholesale Operations sincel]l#909; President — Wholesale
Markets for Embarg from May 2006 until July 2008need in this role at the local telecommunicatidivésion
of Sprint Nextel Corporation from August 2005 uiMidy 2006 and as Assistant Vice President, Stratggles
and Account Management, in Sprint Business Solatfoom January 2004 until July 2005.

David D. Coleage 54; Senior Vice President — Controller and @gpans Support; served as Senior Vice
President — Operations Support since 1999, andag@ler since April 1, 2011.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.age 60; Executive Vice President and Chief Findr@fficer.
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| Stacey W. Gof, age 46; Executive Vice President, General CownsglSecretary since July 1, 2009; Senior
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary fwitiren.

Dennis G. Huberage 52; Executive Vice President — Network Servgiase July 1, 2009 (excluding the four-
month period between May 2010 and September 20@&0);various executive positions at Embarq and its
predecessor companies from January 2003 throughl,J@2D09, most notably Chief Technology Officedan
Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President — @ate Strategy and Development and Senior Viceid@es
of Product Development.

James E. Ousleyage 66; Chief Executive Officer, Savvis Operatigisce July 15, 2011 and President —
Enterprise Markets Group since March 22, 2012;extas chief executive officer of Savvis from Jagu010
to July 2011, as chairman of the board of SavamfMay 2006 to July 2011 and as a director of Safram
April 2002 to July 2011.

Karen A. Puckettage 51; Executive Vice President and Chief Opegdfifficer since July 2009; President and
Chief Operating Officer from September 2002 unily2009.

\
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Guidelines

Our Board has adopted corporate governance guéehhich it reviews at least annually. For infotimra on how you can obtain a
complete copy of our guidelines, see “— Accessforimation” below.

Among other things, our corporate governance gindglprovide as follows:

Director Qualifications

The Board of Directors will have a majority of inmdent directors. The Nominating and Corporatee@mnce Committee is
responsible for reviewing with the Board, on anwairbasis, the requisite skills and characterisifasew Board members as well
as the composition of the Board as a wh

The Board expects directors who change the jolespansibility they held when they were electechtoBoard to volunteer to
resign from the Boar¢

On the terms and subject to the conditions spekifieour bylaws, directors will be elected by a onéty vote of the shareholders
and any incumbent director failing to receive aarigy of votes cast must promptly tender his or fesignation to the Boar

No director may serve on more than two other uhaiéid public company boards, unless this prolihiis waived by the Boar

No director may be appointed or nominated to a teem if he or she would be age 75 or older atithe bf the election ¢
appointment

Annually, the Board will determine affirmatively wah of our directors are independent for purposemplying with our
corporate governance guidelines and the listingdstads of the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE.ir&etor will not be
independent for these purposes unless the Bodrthafively determines that the director does nibhee directly or indirectly
through the director’s affiliates or associatesieha material commercial, banking, consulting, legecounting, charitable,
familial or other relationship with the Companyitsraffiliates, other than as a direct

Director Responsibilities

The Board periodically reviews our Ic-term strategic plans, and annually holds a -day strategic planning sessit

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, when@agement director retires or ceases to be an amtiygoyee for any other
reason, that director will be considered to hasigreed concurrently from the Boau

Chairman; Lead Outside Director

The Board elects a Chairman from among its membBées. Chairman may be a director who also has execrgsponsibilities,
including the CEO (an executive chair), or may he of the Company’s independent directors (a n@uatkve chair). The Board
believes it is in the best interests of the Compfanyhe Board to remain flexible with respect thether to elect an executive ct
or a non-executive chair so that the Board mayigefor succession planning and respond effectit@lshanges in
circumstances

The non-management directors meet in executivésseasleast quarterly. The lead outside directected by the independent
directors may call additional meetings of the noaragement directors at any time. At all times duvimich the Chairman is a
non-executive chair, all of the functions and reehilities of the lead outside director shall kefprmed by the non-executive
chair.
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CEO Evaluation and Management Succession

e The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitbeeucts an annual review of the CEO’s performamecepaovides a report
of its findings to the Boarc

« The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commi#iperts periodically to the Board on successionrptan

Recoupment of Compensation

» If the Board or any committee of the Board detemmithat any bonus, incentive payment, commissiguifyeaward or other
compensation awarded to or received by an execaffieer was based on any financial or operatirgulethat was impacted by
the executive officer's knowing or intentional faulent or illegal conduct, the Board or a Board outtee may recover from the
executive officer the compensation it considersappate under the circumstanc

Stock Ownership Guidelines

* We require our executive officers to beneficiallyroCenturyLink stock equal in market value to sfiedimultiples of their annu
base salary. All executive officers have three géianm the date they first become subject to aqadar ownership level to attain
that target

* We require our outside directors to beneficiallyno@enturyLink stock equal in market value to fiirads their annual cash
retainer. Outside directors have five years frogirthlection or appointment date to attain thajea

» For any year during which an executive or diredkmes not meet his or her ownership target, thewtixecor director is expected
to hold a specified percentage of the CenturyLioklsthat the executive or director acquires thtoagr equity compensation
programs, excluding shares sold to pay taxes agsdcwith the acquisition there«

» The Compensation Committee administers the guidgliand may modify their terms and grant hardskgegtions in its
discretion.

* See “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Stoskédship Guidelines” for information on the exeeatownership
multiples and the holding percentages currentlgfiact.

Standards of Business Conduct and Ethics

» All of our directors, officers and employees arguieed to abide by our long-standing ethics andm@nce policies and
programs, which include standards of business atin

* Any waiver of our policies, principles or guidelgeelating to business conduct or ethics for exeewfficers or directors may be
made only by the Board or one of its duly authatizemmittees

Other
» Directors have full access to our officers and ayppés.

» Like most other NYSE-listed companies, (i) all bétBoard’s standing committees are comprised sofdlydependent directors,
(i) we provide orientation for new directors, Jiwe maintain a continuing education program far divectors, and (iv) the Board
and each committee conducts annualreviews.

Independence

Based on the information made available to it,Bbard of Directors has affirmatively determinedttbach of the directors, with the
exception of Mr. Post and Mr. Gephardt, qualifissaa independent director under the standardseefés above under “— Governance
Guidelines.” In making these determinations, tharmpwith
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assistance from counsel, evaluated responsesuestiannaire completed by each director regardéhationships and possible conflicts of
interest. In its review of director independente, Board considered all known commercial, bankiogsulting, legal, accounting, charitable,
familial or other relationships any director mayaavith us.

Some of our directors are employed by or affiliatéth companies with which we do business in ttdir@ary course, either as a service
provider, a customer or both. As required undeMNN&E listing standards and our Corporate Goverad@haidelines, our Board examined
amount spent by us with those companies and by thesmpanies with us. Because in all cases the anspent fell far below the threshold
established in the NYSE listing standards and inGarporate Governance Guidelines, our Board catedithat the amounts spent did not
create a material relationship with us that wouléiifere with the exercise of independent judgnbgrany of these directors.

Committees of the Board
During 2011, the Board of Directors held four reguheetings, six special meetings, and a threesttategic planning session.

During 2011, the Board’s Audit Committee held nineetings. The Audit Committee is currently composgfive independent
directors, all of whom the Board has determinebdg@udit committee financial experts, as definedleuthe federal securities laws. The Al
Committee’s functions are described further belodar “Audit Committee Report.”

The Board’s Compensation Committee met nine timesmd 2011. The Compensation Committee is curresdipposed of five
directors, all of whom qualify as “non-employeeetitors” under Rule 16B8-promulgated under the Securities Exchange A&B8# and all ¢
whom, other than Harvey P. Perry, qualify as “algdiirectors” under Section 162(m) of the IntefRavenue Code. The Compensation
Committee is described further below under “Compéna Discussion and Analysis.”

The Board’s Nominating and Corporate Governance i@itt®e (which we refer to below as the “Nominatgmmittee”) met four
times during 2011. The Nominating Committee is agsgible for, among other things, (i) recommendm¢hie Board nominees to serve as
directors and officers, (ii) monitoring the compasi and size of the Board and its committee9, §iéiriodically reassessing our corporate
governance guidelines described above, (iv) leatfindBoard in its annual review of the Board’s perfance, and (v) reviewing annually the
Chief Executive Officer's performance, reportinghe Board on succession planning for senior exexafficers and appointing an interim
CEO if the Board does not make such an appointmighin 72 hours of the CEO dying or becoming digablFor information on the director
nomination process, see “— Director Nomination Res¢ below.

The Board also maintains a Risk Evaluation Commjttehich met five times during 2011. The Commiitedescribed further below
under the heading “— Risk Oversight.”

Each of the committees listed above is composezlysof independent directors under the standar@ésresl to above under “—
Governance Guidelines.”
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The table below lists the Board’s standing comraegtand their membership:

Nominating and

Corporate
Compensation Governance Risk Evaluation
Audit Committee Committee Committee Committee

Outside Director V) Member Member () Member Member
Charles L. Bigg® a
Virginia Boulet a Chair
Peter C. Browr U U
W. Bruce Hank: Chair a
Gregory J. McCra U u
C. G. Melville, Jr. U Chair
Edward A.Muellei® U
Fred R. Nichols U U
William A. Owens U u
Harvey P. Perr u
Michael J. Robert U
Laurie A. Siege Chair
James A. Unrul® U
Joseph R. Zimme u

(1) Except as noted below, Glen F. Post, Il dostsserve on any board committees. Richard A. Gefiltares not serve on any board
committees

(2) The Compensation Committee maintains an Ineerftiwards Subcommittee comprised of Ms. Boulet, Nichols, Mr. Owens and
Ms. Siegel.

(3) Term will end at the meeting. S*Election of Director”

The Board has also established a Special Pricimgriitiee that has authority to approve the termsadfeding prices of any
CenturyLink securities sold pursuant to our outstag shelf registration statement. Thid hoccommittee is comprised of Peter C. Brown,
W. Bruce Hanks, Glen F. Post, Ill and Joseph R.nZén

If you would like additional information on the mmsibilities of the committees listed above, pteafer to the committees’ respective
charters, which can be obtained in the manner ibestbelow under “— Access to Information.”

During 2011, all of our directors attended at | of the aggregate number of all meetings obtherd and all meetings of the
committees on which they served. In addition, ezEabur directors then in office attended the 20atwal shareholders’ meeting, other than
one director who was unable to attend due to apisting scheduling conflict.

Director Nomination Process

Nominations for the election of directors at ounaal shareholders’ meetings may be made by thedBo@on the receipt of
recommendations of the Nominating Committee) oaby shareholder of record who complies with ouatsd. Under our bylaws, any
shareholder of record interested in making a notiinayenerally must deliver written notice to ther@pany’s secretary not more than 180
days and not less than 90 days in advance oft$teafiniversary of the preceding year’'s annualedi@ders meeting. For the meeting this
year, the Board has nominated the four nomineteliabove unde‘Election of Directors” to stand for election aseatitors, and no
shareholders submitted any nominations. For fuitifermation on deadlines for submitting nominatidar our 2013 annual shareholders
meeting, see “Other Matters — Shareholder Nominatand Proposals.”
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The written notice required to be sent by any natig shareholder must include (i) the name, agsinless address and residential
address of the nominating shareholder and any p#rson acting in concert with such shareholdBra (iepresentation that the nominating
shareholder is a record holder of Voting Shared,iarends to make his nomination in person, (iidescription of all agreements among the
nominating shareholder, any person acting in cdvegh him, each proposed nominee and any othesgpepursuant to which the nomination
or nominations are to be made and (iv) varioustaiphical information about each proposed nomineduding principal occupation,
holdings of Voting Shares and other informationuieed to be disclosed in our proxy statement. Téteca must also be accompanied by the
written consent of each proposed nominee to sexeedirector if elected, and an affidavit certifyithat each proposed nominee meets the
qualifications for service specified in the bylaarsed summarized below. We may require a proposednsanto furnish other reasonable
information or certifications. Shareholders intéeelsin bringing before a shareholders’ meeting mayter other than a director nomination
should consult our bylaws for additional procedugegerning such requests. We may disregard anymaiiman or submission of any other
matter that fails to comply with these bylaw process.

The Nominating Committee will consider candidateminated by shareholders in accordance with ouavayl Upon receipt of any st
nominations, the Committee will review the submissior compliance with our bylaws, including detaring if the proposed nominee meets
the bylaw qualifications for service as a direcidiese provisions disqualify any person who failseispond satisfactorily to any inquiry for
information to enable us to make certificationsuieed by the Federal Communications Commission utfdeAnti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988,
or who has been arrested or convicted of certadeifpd drug offenses or engaged in actions thaloclead to such an arrest or conviction.

In the past, the Nominating Committee has consildnector candidates suggested by Committee mesnbtrer directors, senior
management and shareholders. In connection witdulyrl, 2009 merger with Embarq, we added to aarB seven directors who
previously served as directors of Embarq, four bbm continue to serve. Similarly, in connectionhndur April 1, 2011 merger with Qwest,
we added to our Board four directors who previosglgved as directors of Qwest, one of whom is exgeio continue to serve following the
meeting. During the several years preceding thedqimerger, the Nominating Committee retained,roastneeded basis and at our
expense, national search firms to help identifyeptial director candidates, including three direstadded to the Board between 2003 and
2005. With respect to this year's meeting, alllef hominees are incumbent directors with seveiisyef prior service on our Board or the
boards of Embarg or Qwest. The Nominating Committeg retain search firms from time to time in th&ufe to help identify potential
director candidates.

Under our corporate governance guidelines, the Natimig Committee assesses director candidates bastaeir independence,
diversity, character, skills and experience indbptext of the needs of the Board. Although thalglines permit the Nominating Committee
to adopt additional selection guidelines or créeii has chosen not to do so. Instead, the Nomgp&ommittee periodically assesses skills
and characteristics then required by the Boarddasdts membership and needs at the time of thesament. In evaluating the needs of the
Board, the Nominating Committee considers the fjoation of incumbent directors and consults withey members of the Board and senior
management. In addition, the Nominating Commiteseks candidates committed to representing theeisiteof all shareholders and not any
particular constituency. The Nominating Committedidves this flexible approach enables it to resiptonchanges caused by director
retirements and industry developments.

In connection with assessing the needs of the BolaedCommittee has sought individuals who posskiisand experience in a diverse
range of fields. The Committee also has soughtaahindividuals from inside and outside of the eommications industry. The table above
listing biographical data about our directors iigs a listing of the key qualifications, experienaad skills that the Committee and Board
reviewed in connection with nominating or re-nontimg them for service on the Board.
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In connection with determining the current comgosibf the Board, the Nominating Committee assefisedliverse range of skills and
experience of our directors outlined above, coupléll the judgment that each has exhibited anckitmevledge of our operations that each
has acquired in connection with their service anBloard. Although it does not have a formal diwgrgblicy, the Nominating Committee
believes that our directors possess a diverse rafrigeckgrounds, perspectives, skills and expeegnc

Although we do not have a history of receiving dicg nominations from shareholders, the Nomina@egnmittee envisions that it
would evaluate any such candidate on the same tesrother proposed nominees, but would place aati premium on retaining
incumbent directors who are familiar with our mag@gnt, operations, business, industry, strategie€ampetitive position, and who have
previously demonstrated a proven ability to prowd&iable contributions to the Board and CenturiLin

Compensation Setting Process

The Compensation Committee hires consulting fironassist it in setting executive and director conspdion. In late 2010, the
Committee retained Hay Group, following a nationsvigearch to replace PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE&hwddvised the Committee for the
previous six years. For additional information ba processes used by the Committee to set exe@atimpensation, see “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis.”

Risk Oversight

Our Board oversees our company’s risk managemaeuotiin, which is a coordinated effort among ouribess units, our internal audit
department and our risk management personnel. GardBprovides this oversight primarily throughRisk Evaluation Committee, which is
responsible for assisting management to identifynitor, and manage risks to our business, propeatiel employees. The Risk Evaluation
Committee is also responsible for overseeing duicgetand compliance program. In addition to recgjuieports from the Risk Evaluation
Committee, the Board monitors risk in connectiothvaverseeing our corporate strategies and opesa#ind by receiving reports from the
other committees of the Board, particularly the A@bmmittee with respect to financial, tax andaatting risks and the Compensation
Committee with respect to compensation risks. Fdisaussion of the Compensation Committee’s risMyais, see “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis — Our Compensation Decislaking Process — Risk Assessment.”

Top Leadership Positions and Structure

Admiral William A. Owens serves as our Chairman &eatl outside director. As explained further onwabsite, you may contact Ad
Owens by writing a letter to the Chairman and L@adside Director, c/o Post Office Box 5061, Monrbeuisiana 71211 or by sending an
email to_boardinquiries@centurylink.cams indicated above, the non-management direcheet in executive session at least quarterly.

Adm. Owens was appointed as our Chairman and letside director on July 1, 2009, in accordance withOctober 26, 2008 merger
agreement with Embarg. Prior to July 1, 2009, A@wens served as chairman of Embarq, and, pridra &s the chief executive of a
communications equipment provider and a satelitagany. We believe Adm. Owens’ service as our @ieir has facilitated the posterge
integration of the management and operations ofi@ghink and Embarq.

The Board believes that the separation of the Gtemirand CEO positions has functioned effectivelgrdkie past couple of years.
Separating these positions allows our CEO to hawveapy responsibility for the operational leadepsaind strategic direction of our business,
while allowing our Chairman to lead the Board mfitndamental role of providing guidance to ancepehdent oversight of management.
While our by-laws and corporate governance guidslitio not require our Chairman and CEO positioteteeparate, the Board believes that
delegating responsibilities between Adm. Owen<;lagirman, and Mr. Post, as CEOQ, is the appropléatgership structure for our company
at this time. Our Board, however, periodically mws its
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leadership structure and may make such changés ifuture as it deems appropriate. The Board bedi¢hvat its programs for overseeing risk
would be effective under a variety of top leadgrsdtructures, and, accordingly, this factor hasmaterially affected its current choice of
structure.

Waivers of Governance Requirements

Members of our Board are subject to our Corporateg@ance Guidelines, which, among other thingshipit a director from serving
on more than two additional unaffiliated public quany boards. In addition to serving on our Boaidh&d A. Gephardt and William A.
Owens serve on the board of directors of more thvarunaffiliated public companies. In connectiothwappointing both of them to the
Board, the Board waived compliance by each sucivithehl with the above-described service limitatisabject to the understanding that this
waiver permits such individuals to serve only om ltloards of the unaffiliated companies on whicly tere then serving, unless and until the
individual is permitted to accept a new directopsimder our Corporate Governance Guidelines theff@tt due to any future reductions in
the number of the individual’s directorships, aafufe changes in such guidelines, or any futurdtiaddl waivers granted by the Board.

Access to Information
The following documents are posted on our websitevav.centurylink.com
» Restated articles of incorporati
* Bylaws
e Corporate governance guidelir
» Charters of our Board committe
e Corporate ethics and compliance program documerddsiding the CenturyLink Code of Condu
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RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF THE INDEPENDENT AU DITOR
(Item 3 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

The Audit Committee of the Board has appointed KPM® as our independent auditor for the fiscal yaating December 31, 2012,
and we are submitting that appointment to our $iwders for ratification on an advisory basis & theeting. Although shareholder
ratification of KPMG$S appointment is not legally required, we are sttiimgi this matter to the shareholders, as in tret, @s a matter of goc
corporate practice.

If the shareholders fail to vote on an advisoryidasfavor of the appointment, the Audit Committedl reconsider whether to retain
KPMG LLP, and may appoint that firm or another weith re-submitting the matter to the shareholdeventf the shareholders ratify the
appointment, the Audit Committee may, in its disiorg, select a different independent auditor at@mg during the year if it determines that
such a change would be in the Company’s best stterlln connection with selecting the independenitar, the Audit Committee reviews
the auditor’s qualifications, control proceduresste proposed staffing, prior performance and othlevant factors.

In connection with the audit of the 2012 finangtdtements, we entered into an engagement letledtdMG LLP which sets forth the
terms by which KPMG will provide audit servicesus. Any future disputes between KPMG and us urtarléetter will be subject to certain
specified alternative dispute resolution procedures

The following table lists the aggregate fees arstxbilled to us by KPMG and its affiliates for ta@10 and 2011 services identified
below:

Amount Billed

2010 2011
Audit Fees? $4,469,00! $ 9,782,52
Audit-Related Fee® 162,57( 654,54t
Tax Fee® 732,47 626,62¢
Other® 27,80( 0
Total Fees $5,391,84 $11,063,706)

(1) Includes the cost of (i) services renderedonnection with auditing our annual consolidatedificial statements, (ii) auditing our
internal control over financial reporting in accante with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@Q82, (iii) reviewing our quarterly
financial statements, (iv) auditing the financitements of several of our telephone subsidiaaied,(v) services rendered in
connection with reviewing our registration statetseand issuing related comfort lette

(2) Includes the cost of auditing our benefit plans gaderal accounting consulting servic

(3) Includes costs associated with (i) assistang@eparing income tax returns and related magtengch were approximately $257,000 in

2010 and $234,000 in 2011), (ii) assistance wittious tax audits (which were approximately $69,002010 and $0 in 2011),
(iii) assistance with our acquisition of Embarq {ghhwere approximately $81,000 in 2010 and $0 ih130(iv) assistance with our
acquisition of Qwest (which were $0 in 2010 andragpnately $67,000 in 2011), and (v) general teanpiing, consultation and
compliance (which were approximately $325,000 ithi2010 and 2011

(4) Reflects assistance with the Qwest acquisi

(5) Reflects the higher costs associated with audditayger company following our acquisitions of Qtwasd Savvis during 201

The Audit Committee maintains written procedureat tiequire it to annually review and pre-approwesbope of all services to be
performed by our independent auditor. This revieglides an evaluation of whether the provisionaf-audit services by our independent
auditor is compatible with maintaining the audisoindependence in providing audit and audit-relatdices. The Committee’s procedures
prohibit the independent auditor from providing amon-audit services unless the service is permitteter applicable law and is pagprovec
by the Audit Committee or its Chairman. The Chainnsauthorized to pre-approve projects
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expected to cost no more than $75,000, providedbtiaé cost of all projects pre-approved by the i@han during any fiscal quarter does not
exceed $125,000. The Audit Committee has pre-aggrtive Company’s independent auditor to provideou§r’5,000 per quarter of
miscellaneous permitted tax services that do nostitoite discrete and separate projects. The Giefncial Officer is required periodically
advise the full Committee of the scope and coseofices not pre-approved by the full Committeg¢h@ligh applicable regulations waive
these pre-approval requirements in certain limgiecumstances, the Audit Committee did not useglvesiver provisions in either 2010 or
2011.

KPMG has advised us that one or more of its pastnéli be present at the meeting. We understanithiese representatives will be
available to respond to appropriate questions atdhawve an opportunity to make a statement if tHegire to do so.

Ratification of KPMG's appointment as our indepemidguditor for 2012 will require the affirmative teoof at least a majority of the
voting power present or represented at the meeting.

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR thisposal.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Management is responsible for our internal contaold the financial reporting process. Our indepehdaditor is responsible for
performing an independent audit of our consolidéiteahcial statements and the effectiveness ofrdarnal control over financial reporting,
and to issue reports thereon. The Committee’s respility is to monitor and oversee these processmed to appoint the independent auditor.

In this context, the Committee has met and heldugisions with management and our internal audéodsindependent auditor for 20
KPMG LLP. Management represented to the Committaedur consolidated financial statements weregrezpin accordance with generally
accepted U.S. accounting principles. The Commiigereviewed and discussed with management and KidllGonsolidated financial
statements, and management’s report and KPMG’strapd attestation on internal control over finahceporting in accordance with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Chenmittee also discussed with KPMG matters requivdae discussed by Statement on
Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended.

KPMG also provided to the Committee the writtercttisures required by the applicable requiremente@Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board regarding the indepehdeditor's communications with audit committees@erning independence. The
Committee discussed with KPMG that firm’s indepemsie and considered the effects that the provisiaron-audit services may have on
KPMG's independence.

Based on and in reliance upon the reviews and stons referred to above, and subject to the ltinita on the role and responsibilit
of the Committee referred to in its charter, theBattee recommended that the Board of Directorkidethe audited consolidated financial
statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K ferykar ended December 31, 2011.

On April 1, 2011, Charles L. Biggs and Michael dberts, each of whom formerly served as directb@veest, replaced William A.
Owens and Fred R. Nichols as members of the Audlini@ittee.

If you would like additional information on the pemsibilities of the Audit Committee, please rdfeits charter, which you can obtain
in the manner described above under “Corporate Banee — Access to Information.”

Submitted by the Audit Committee of the Board céddrs.

W. Bruce Hanks (Chail Charles L. Bigg:
Peter C. Browr Michael J. Robert
Joseph R. Zimmu
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ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
(Item 4 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

As required by the federal securities laws, wepaoriding you with the opportunity to vote on a Aeinding, advisory resolution to
approve the compensation of our named executiveen$f as disclosed in this proxy statement pursteatite rules of the SEC.

As described in detail below under the heading “@ensation Discussion and Analysis”, our executiv@gensation programs are
designed to provide compensation that is competitiith our peer companies and is necessary toikeéggt and strengthen our leadership
team. Under these programs, our named executiicerdfare rewarded for achieving specific annudllang-term goals, as well as increased
shareholder value. We believe this structure alejesutive pay with our financial performance amel ¢reation of sustainable shareholder
value. The Compensation Committee of our Boardinaatly reviews our executive compensation progrémmsnsure they achieve the goals
of aligning our compensation with current marketqtices and your interests as shareholders. Faticadd information on our executive
compensation, we urge you to read the “Compensé&tiscussion and Analysis” and “Executive Compemsgtsections of this proxy
statement.

We ask you to indicate your support for the comp&or of our named executive officers as describetis proxy statement. This
proposal, commonly known as a “say-on-pay” propagiaks you the opportunity to express your vieWss advisory vote is not intended to
address any specific item of compensation, butratie overall compensation policies and practiciéis respect to our named executive
officers as described in this proxy statement. Adicmly, we intend to submit the following resotutifor an advisory shareholder vote at the
meeting:

“RESOLVED, that the shareholders of CenturyLink;.lapprove, on an advisory basis, the overall corsgtiion of CenturyLink’s
named executive officers, as described in Centuykiproxy statement for this annual shareholdegting, including the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the summampensation table and the other related tableslsatbsures.”

While this “say-on-pay” vote is advisory and withtrbe binding on our Company or the Board, it witbvide valuable information to
our Compensation Committee regarding sharehold#insent about our executive compensation. Followregadvisory votes on
compensation cast at our 2011 annual shareholdsetng, our Board elected to hold “say-on-pagtes at each annual meeting until the |
required advisory vote of our shareholders regarttie frequency of such votes. We invite sharehslddno wish to communicate with our
Board on executive compensation or any other ngattecontact us as provided under “Corporate Garexe — Top Leadership Positions
and Structure.”

Approval of this proposal will require the affirnag vote of at least a majority of the voting poweesent or represented at the mee

The Board recommends that you vote to approve therall compensation of our named executive
officers by voting FOR this resolution.
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SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS
(Items 5(a), 5(b) and 5(c) on Proxy or Voting Instaction Card)

We periodically receive suggestions from our shaladrs, some as formal shareholder proposals. Weagireful consideration to all
suggestions, and assess whether they promote shéohg-term interests of CenturyLink and its shatders.

We expect Items 5(a), 5(b) and 5(c) to be presdmyezhareholders at the meeting. Following SECsiuke are reprinting the proposals
and supporting statements as they were submitted, tother than minor formatting changes. We takessponsibility for them. On request
the Secretary at the address listed under “Othétekéa— Annual Financial Report,” we will provideformation about the sponsors’
shareholdings, as well as the names, addresseshareholdings of any co-sponsors. Adoption of edi¢hese three proposals requires the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least a mi#yoof the Voting Shares present or representeétdeatneeting.

The Board recommends that you vote AGAINST Itengg,3(b) and 5(c) for the reasons we give afteh eae.

Bonus Deferral Proposal (Item 5(a))

The following proposal was submitted by the Commations Workers of America Members’ General Furtd, Bhird Street, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20001-2797, which urges you t@ Vot this proposal.

“RESOLVED, Stockholders of CenturyLink, Inc. (thEdmpany”) urge the Compensation Committee to atepfollowing bonus
deferral policy for senior executives in order torpote a more long-term perspective:

1. Any discretionary bonus and any payment undeidmpany’s Annual Incentive Bonus Plans (a “Botisit is based on financial
measurements (a “Financial Metric”) whose perforogameasurement period is one year or shorter sbiabie paid in full for a period of
three years (a “Deferral Period”) following the esfdhe performance measurement period;

2. The Compensation Committee shall develop a ndetbgy for (a) determining what proportion of a Bershould be paid
immediately, (b) adjusting the remainder of the B®over the Deferral Period to reflect performaoghe Financial Metric(s) during the
Deferral Period and (c) paying out the remaindaghefBonus, adjusted if required, during and atethe of the Deferral Period; and

3. The adjustment(s) described above should noiregchievement of new performance goals but shfmgus on the quality and
sustainability of the performance on the Finank®latric(s) during the Deferral Period.

The policy should be implemented so as not to téodmy existing contractual obligation of the Compar the terms of any
compensation or benefit plan currently in effecsHould not have the effect of reducing amountarded or earned before the adoption of
policy.

Supporting Statement: As long-term stockholdersswgport executive compensation policies that ptertige creation of sustainable
value. We are concerned that short-term incentivepensation plans can encourage senior executiveanage for the short-term and take
on excessive risk. The recent Wall Street finanmigis illustrates what can happen when executivesewarded for short-term performance
without any effort to ensure that the performarscsustainable.

In 2010, Company CEO and President Glen F. Pastedeived more than $1.88 million under the Anrneentive Bonus Plans. This
bonus amount is nearly double his base salary & &illion. Indeed, the six named
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officers in the 2010 Proxy Statement received ntioa@ $5.48 million under the Annual Incentive Boflans. This amount contrasts with
$3.92 million in base salary for the six executivd& believe that such large, short-term bonuselectively equal to 139% of base
salaries — should not be paid over such a limitarizon.

This proposal urges that the Compensation Commaitept a bonus deferral policy to encourage a lotegen orientation for senior
executives. Specifically, the proposal asks thatGbmpensation Committee develop a system for ihgldack some portion of each bonus
based on short-term financial metrics for a peabthree years and adjusting the unpaid portioactmount for performance during that three-
year period. The Compensation Committee would liiseretion to set the precise terms and mechanitgsoproces?

The Board recommends that you vote AGAINST this prposal for the following reasons:

We believe this proposal essentially proposesitoighte our annual incentive bonus program, whiehbslieve is not in your or the
Company'’s best interests. We believe our curreatetive compensation program, consisting of a legdmix of annual cash bonuses and
long-term equity awards, achieves the central gb#ie proponent’s objective to encourage the mpaif sustainable shareholder value.
Additionally, we believe our negative discretiordartawback policies further achieve the benefitsgbt by this proposal. Finally, we believe
that compensation paid in accordance with this gsapmay not be tax deductible under the IntermaidRue Code.

Our balanced mix of annual and long-term programeslzetter suited to attain our goals and retain executives We agree with the
proponent that our compensation programs shoulchgt® creating “sustainable value,” but believe @urent mix of annual and long-term
programs is a more effective means of attaining gloal than the proponent’s suggestion of using onllti-year programs. Our
complementary mix of cash and equity compensatamieen established by the Compensation Commuitigevie annual results, while
ensuring our executives also remain focused onteng sustainable financial performance. The curséncture rewards executives for
consistently achieving strong operating performanarrent and future years. Our peers similadg annual and long-term pay programs,
and any failure to offer both could reduce the cetitipeness of our overall compensation programianckase the risk of competitors hiring
our officers. As more thoroughly described undeoritpensation Discussion and Analysis,” we pay atsmtigl portion of our executive
compensation in the form of long-term equity grafitse Committee, which is composed solely of indejemt directors, believes these equity
grants effectively accomplish the proposal’s kejeotive because the ultimate value of the equitarale will be reduced if our performance
declines. Rather than requiring us, in essenagjrfonate our current annual bonus program, weelelit is in your and the Company’s best
interests to retain our current balanced approacevearding executives for attaining both annual lomg-term goals.

Our policies further achieve the proponent’s godal® further promote long-term growth and redueepbtential for excessive risk
taking and misconduct, the Committee has adoptéutegative discretion and clawback policies. Wébpect to negative discretion, the
Committee retains the right to unilaterally redtltoe amount of annual bonuses if the Committee bedi¢or any reason that it is unwarranted
to pay such amount to any or all of the executifé® Committee has also implemented clawback gdithat provide safeguards against
inappropriate behavior. We were among the eardidgbcates of receiving contractual commitments foamexecutives to forfeit their
incentive compensation if they engage in a broadeaf specified behaviors that are detrimentaisto/Ne believe these policies, which are
further described below under the heading “Comp@s®iscussion and Analysis,” help maintain ex@ifocus on stable and sustainable
corporate growth.

Our current programs are more tax efficier®ur annual bonuses are designed to comply wétp#rformance-based exemption for
deduction of compensation in excess of $1 milliader Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code bélieve it would be difficult to
design an annual incentive plan that complies Withexemption in 162(m) but also delays paymerit cettain additional performance
targets are achieved in the
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future (after the original performance period hadezl and the annual performance targets have beeand certified by the Committee). T
loss of the exemption under 162(m) by implementirig proposal would be costly to you and the Comgpan

In short, the Board believes that our complemenpaficies of issuing tax-deductible annual inceatbonuses and long-term equity
incentive compensation, together with its negatiigeretion and clawback policies, adequately addiies concerns of this proposal and are
better suited to advancing your and the Compangss imterests.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Proposal (Item(B))

The following proposal was submitted by Hazel Aoyel, 4660 Newton Street, Denver, Colorado 80211 urges you to vote for this
proposal.

“RESOLVED, the stockholders of CenturyLink herelrgaithe Board to adopt a policy whereby future tgra long-term incentive
awards to senior executive officers in the forniPefformanceBased Restricted Shares will vest and become payaty if Total Sharehold:
Return equals or exceeds the median performantteeafompany peer index selected by the Board.

Supporting Statement: While we commend the Boardyfog a substantial portion of long-term equitmgpensation to the relative
performance of CenturyLink’s stock, we believe peeformance bar is set unreasonably low.

What CenturyLink calls “performance-based” equityihat golfers call a “gimme,” in our view.

Large payouts for share price performance as lothe@bottom 2% percentile among the companies of the S&P 500 dotadequatel
align pay with performance, or with shareholdeeiigsts, in our view.

Each year the Company’s named executive officansive restricted stock awards with a potential paypetween four and eight times
base salary. These equity grants are divided ggoeativeen “time-based” and “performance-based'imetl shares and vest over a thyeet
performance cycle.

The problem is that the performance-based shasesyiaat 50% of Target for relative total shareleolceturn (TSR) as low as the
bottom 25th percentile among S&P 500 companiesghvisi the peer index selected by the Board.

For example, CEO Glen Post's Target Award for t8&®2013 performance share cycle was 63,200 slaaksed at $2.2 million).
Mr. Post will receive 50% of Target even if the Gmny’s TSR is outperformed by 75% of the compaimebhe S&P 500 — which is bottom
quartile performance. At the high end, Mr. Postldaaceive 200% of Target (126,400 shares) if Csfitnk ranks among the top 125 (abc
75th percentile) at the end of each performancéecyc

Performance-Based Restricted Shares should nobwesty out, we believe, unless CenturyLink’s tatadreholder return is at least
equal to or above the median relative to the S&P (60 other peer index selected by the Board).

A 50% payout for performance at or near the bottprartile seems particularly unjustified, in ourwjéecause senior executives
receive the other half of their long-term “incemti;ompensation” in time-based restricted stocks Téstricted stock vests after three years
regardless of performance. Although justified astantion incentive, time-based restricted shaagsout even if the executive retires, dies, or
terminates without cause or for “good reason” wittwvo years after a change in control (in the edseEO Post).
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We believe the structure of CenturyLink’s long-tezguity compensation is indicative of the Compamgy practices. For example, in
the event of termination after a change in controfddition to the waiver of the performance cdods on both time-based and performance-
based restricted shares, the CEO receives a “pepai@chute” granting three years additional agksanvice credit (2011 proxy, page 81).
This is all in addition to a lump sum payout equathree times his base salary and bonus.”

The Board recommends that you vote AGAINST this prposal for the following reasons:

We believe implementation of this proposal coulgéae our ability to furnish competitive compensafiackages, encourage
detrimental behavior, and interfere with the apitit our independent directors to adopt well-baéahand flexible compensation programs.

Implementation of this proposal would reduce theapetitiveness of our pay packagd¥ased on consultations with our independent
compensation consultant, we believe that the vgstiresholds of our performance-based restricteckstonform to prevailing market
practices. Our long-term incentive program is deséyto award superior pay for superior performanmelian pay for median performance
and below median pay for below median performalaair stock price performance is below thet50 patite among S&P companies, our
executives will receive payouts under our perforogabased restricted stock lower than their peaid, iibelow the 2% percentile, no
payouts at all. We believe this approach is fad eampetitive with other companies’ pay practices.the other hand, under the proponent’s
proposal, our executives would receive no perfoigegrayouts even if we achieved shareholder retusmsall fraction below the mean of ¢
peers. This would make our compensation prograsssdtiractive than those of our peers, and incitbasesk of competitors successfully
recruiting our executives.

This proposal could encourage detrimental behavidnder this proposal, if we attain the 25Best shareholder returns compared tc
S&P 500 companies, our executives will receive 1@%heir targeted incentive compensation, whikeytkvould receive none if we only
attained the 25% best rating. As such, the progtesign suggested by this proposal could signiflgantrease the incentives to engage in
excessively risky behavior to increase total shaldedr return at the end of an award cycle, leattngnintended and undesirable results.

This proposal restricts our ability to create bataud and flexible pay packageshe Compensation Committee believes that ouradiver
compensation program is well-designed to achiegetijectives of aligning the interests of our shalgers and executives, promoting both
short-term and long-term growth and attractinggirehg and motivating high-performing executivehisTproposal, on the other hand,
promotes the perpetual use of a single metric éofopmance-based restricted stock. We believelithiting the Committee’s discretion to
structure the terms of our long-term incentive cengation, as this proposal suggests, would uneustyict the Committee’s ability to design
and administer a competitive compensation progteahis in your and the Company’s best interest.

In short, the Board believes that the existing cengation opportunities afforded our executivegpanelent and competitive with our
peer companies, and result in the payment of lengrincentive compensation that is commensurate et performance.

Political Contributions Proposal (Item 5(c))
The following proposal was submitted by Trilliumget Management, LLC, 711 Atlantic Avenue, Bostomsshchusetts, 02111-2809.

“Resolved, that the shareholders of CenturyLinkofttbany”) hereby request that the Company providspart, updated semiannually,
disclosing the Company’s:

1. Policies and procedures for political contributi@msl expenditures (both direct and indirect) maidle @orporate funds
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2. Monetary and non-monetary contributions and egjieres (direct and indirect) used to participaténtervene in any political
campaign on behalf of (or in opposition to) anydidate for public office, and used in any attengpinfluence the general public,
or segments thereof, with respect to electiongfarenda. The report shall incluc

a. An accounting through an itemized report thalides the identity of the recipient as well asah®unt paid to each
recipient of the Compar's funds that are used for political contributiong&rpenditures as described above;
b. The title(s) of the person(s) in the Companyoesible for the decision(s) to make the politimahtributions or

expenditures
The report shall be presented to the board of @ireor relevant board oversight committee andgzbeh the Company’s website.

Supporting Statement: As long-term shareholdefGesfturyLink, we support transparency and accoulitiabi corporate spending on
political activities. These include any activitieensidered intervention in any political campaigwler the Internal Revenue Code, such as
direct and indirect political contributions to césates, political parties, or political organizatsy independent expenditures; or electioneering
communications on behalf of federal, state or leealdidates.

Disclosure is consistent with public policy, in thest interest of the company and its shareholdedscritical for compliance with
federal ethics laws. Moreover, the Supreme Co@itizens Unitediecision recognized the importance of politicalrgfieg disclosure for
shareholders when it said “[D]isclosure permiti&zeits and shareholders to react to the speectrpbiade entities in a proper way. This
transparency enables the electorate to make infbdwaeisions and give proper weight to differentades and messages.” Gaps in
transparency and accountability may expose the aognfo reputational and business risks that cdulkebten long-term shareholder value.

CenturyLink contributed at least $1.3 million inrporate funds since the 2006 election cycle. (CQ:
http://moneyline.cq.com/pmi/home.dnd National Institute on Money in State Politiekp://www.followthemoncy.org/index.phtml.)

However, relying on publicly available data does provide a complete picture of the Company’s jrditspending. For example, the
Companys payments to trade associations used for poliictvities are undisclosed and unknown. In sonsegaeven management does
know how trade associations use their company’sapgolitically. The proposal asks the Company szidise all of its political spending,
including payments to trade associations and déheexempt organizations used for political purgodéis would bring our Company in line
with a growing number of leading companies, inahgdExelon, Merck and Microsoft that support poétidisclosure and accountability and
present this information on their websites.

The Company’s Board and its shareholders need @irepsive disclosure to be able to fully evaluagepblitical use of corporate
assets. We urge your support for this critical gnaace reform.”

The Board recommends that you vote AGAINST this prposal for the following reasons:

For the second consecutive year, you are beinglaskeote on a proposal on this same topic. Atyasi's annual meeting of
shareholders, holders of only 29.7% of the voteteshsupported a nearly identical proposal. Forghsons discussed below, we continue to
believe that adopting this proposal is unnecessadyunwarranted.
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We are subject to extensive federal, state and tegalation. Consequently, the actions of natipstdte and local officials significantly
affect many aspects of our operations that direaffigct our profitability and competitiveness. ek to be an effective participant in this
political process by making prudent political cdmiitions to advance our business objectives and imberests, and are fully committed to
complying with all laws governing these contribuiso Historically, we have not contributed more t§ar000 annually to any particular
candidate.

The contributions of our political action commitsegre subject to comprehensive regulation by tterfd government, including the
obligation to file detailed periodic reports tha¢ aublicly available from the Federal Election Goission. Additional information on our
political contributions is publicly available undapplicable state law. We believe that federal state disclosures provide significant
information about our political contributions.

We also patrticipate in industry trade associatfonpurposes that include enhancing the public ienafgour industry, promoting its
competitiveness, and developing best practicestamtlards. Disclosure of our contributions to ttessmciations and other entities we
support could be misleading, as in many cases thiggmizations’ political activities are incidentalunrelated to the reasons we support
them.

The amount of our expenditures on corporate palitontributions igle minimiscompared to our total expenditures, and we beliege
adoption of this proposal would result in an unisseey and unproductive use of our time and ressuf@er limited corporate political
contributions are approved by the Senior Vice ierdi, Public Policy & Government Relations in cdtedion with the appropriate members
of the Company’s senior management. Our Generah§&#yrovides periodic updates to the Board of &@ines on our political contributions.

Moreover, we believe these proposed added burdenklwput us at a competitive disadvantage relatveur industry peers. We
welcome transparency, but believe any expandedtiegaequirements should apply equally to all jggpaints in the political process, not |
us.

In short, we already provide extensive public répof our relatively modest contributions in fullrapliance with the law, and believe
that requesting us to do more is unwarranted, wss2cy and counterproductive.
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OWNERSHIP OF OUR SECURITIES

Principal Shareholders

The following table sets forth information regamgliownership of our Common Shares by the personwkito us to have beneficially

owned more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stoaré&ecember 31, 2011.

1)

()
(3)

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial Percent of
Ownership of Outstanding
Name and Address Common Shareg?) Common Shares?)
Blackrock, Inc. 48,639,97@ 7.%

40 East 52nd Street
New York, NY 10022

State Street Corporation 34,289,301 5.€%
State Street Financial Center

One Lincoln Street

Boston, Massachusetts 021

Determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of SIEC based upon information furnished by the pessgersons listed. In addition to
Common Shares, we have outstanding Preferred Stieategote together with the Common Shares asgesatass on all matters. One
or more persons beneficially own more than 5% efRheferred Shares; however, the percentage ¢f/tatiag power held by such
persons is immaterial. For additional informatiegarding the Preferred Shares, see “Questions asdiés About the Meeting -How
many votes may | ca¢

Based on information contained in a Schedulg/A3Report dated as of February 13, 2012 thatitivisstor filed with the SEC. In this
report, the investor indicated that, as of Decen3e2011, it held sole voting and dispositive powith respect to all of these shar
Based on information contained in a Schedul@ R&port dated as of February 9, 2012 that thisstor filed with the SEC. In this
report, the investor indicated that, as of Decen®ie011, it held shared voting power with respe@8,831,778 shares and shared
dispositive power with respect to all of the sha
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Executive Officers and Directors

(1)

()

(3)
(4)

The following table sets forth information, as leétrecord date, regarding the beneficial ownershipommon Shares by our executive
officers and directors. Except as otherwise na#idyeneficially owned shares are held with soléngand investment power and are not
pledged to third parties.

Name

Current Executive Officers

Glen F. Post, Il
Karen A. Pucket®
R. Stewart Ewing, J
Stacey W. Gof
Dennis G. Hube
William E. Cheek
James E. Ousle
David D. Cole®

Current Outside Directors:

Charles L. Bigg™
Virginia Boulet®)
Peter C. Browr
Richard A. Gepharc
W. Bruce Hank:
Gregory J. McCral
C.G. Melville, Jr.®
Edward A. Muelleil®
Fred R. Nichol¢
William A. Owens
Harvey P. Perr
Michael J. Robert
Laurie A. Siege
James A. Unrulmao;
Joseph R. Zimme)

All directors and executive officers as a group (28sons(2)

Components of Total Shares Owned

Options or
Unrestricted Rights Total

Shares Unvested Exercisable Shares

Beneficially Restricted Within 60 Beneficiall

Owned (V) Stock (2) Days (3 Owned 4
386,12- 502,03: 200,00( 1,088,15!
154,45: 155,42: 75,00( 384,87¢
86,03 124,25: 145,60( 355,88
26,357 88,91¢ 40,50( 155,77
44,01: — 20,75¢ 64,76¢
47,00« 41,06! 11,43( 99,49¢
366,10° 304,07¢ 10,26: 680,44
105,77 89,28’ 40,50( 235,56:
20,84¢ 4,55¢ 14,97¢ 40,38
14,78 5,58¢ — 20,37:
12,65: 5,41¢€ — 18,06¢
2,03¢ 5,41¢ — 7,452
14,48¢ 5,58¢ — 20,07
— 5,58¢ — 5,58¢
1,584 5,58¢ — 7,172
33,88! 2,39¢ 465,52¢ 501,80¢
6,412 5,58¢ — 12,00(
— 10,20¢ — 10,20¢
61,64: 5,58¢ — 67,23(
8,12¢ 4,55¢ — 12,68¢
12,65: 5,41¢ — 18,06¢
26,05! 4,55¢ 16,307 46,917
19,48¢ 5,58¢ 13,66 38,74«
1,450,50 1,386,69. 1,054,52! 3,891,72.

This column includes the following number ofeds allocated to the individual’'s account under ohour qualified 401 (k) plans:
117,531 — Mr. Post; 3,254 — Ms. Puckett; 21,511 + EWwing; 4,469 — Mr. Goff; 764 — Mr. Cheek; 25,385 Mr. Cole; and
4,408 — Mr. Mueller. Participants in these plans antitled to direct the voting of their plan sisar@s described in greater detail

elsewhere hereil

Reflects (i) for all shares listed, unvestedrsk of Restricted Stock over which the personshstde voting power but no investment
power, and (ii) with respect to our performanceeaaestricted stock granted in 2010 and 2011, timeber of shares that will vest if we

attain target levels of performant

Reflects shares that the person has the gitquire within 60 days of the record date purst@moptions granted under our incentive
compensation plans; does not include shares thgttroe issued under restricted stock units if arfggmance exceeds target levi
None of the persons named in the table beneficiallys more than 1% of the outstanding Common Shatesshares beneficial
owned by all directors and executive officers ggaup constituted .6% of tt
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outstanding Common Shares as of the record ddtzu(@ged in accordance with rules of the SEC asagrthat all options listed in the
table have been exercised for Common Shares rdthinthe recipient)

(5) Includes 202 shares held by Ms. Puckett as custddiahe benefit of her childre

(6) Includes 6,773 plan shares beneficially heldvlsy Cole’s wife, one of our former employees, &rlaccounts under our qualified 401(k)
plan, as to which Mr. Cole disclaims beneficial anghip.

(7) Term will end at the meeting. S*Election of Director”

(8) Includes 955 shares held by Ms. Boulet as custddiatihe benefit of her childre:

(9) Includes 7,445 shares subject to being pledgedasisy under a margin accou

(10) Includes 330 shares held in a revocable trus asich Mr. Unruh has voting and investment pov

(11) Includes 5,000 shares held by a private charit@hiedation, as to which Mr. Zimmel is a trust

(12) Includes (i) 6,773 shares held beneficiallythg spouse of one of these individuals, as to kvhaneficial ownership is disclaimed,
(i) 1,157 shares held as custodian for the beoéfitildren of such individuals, and (iii) 5,300ases held in either a revocable trust or
foundation, all as described further in the notesve.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In this CD&A, we first summarize our Compensatioon@nittee’s recent actions, as well as its genemalpensation philosophy, its
commitment to “pay for performance” compensatiord &s compensation and benchmarking practicestiéte describe our various
elements of compensation in detail. Finally, weedss in detail our compensation decision-makinggse and various other compensation-
related matters.

2011 Executive Compensation Highlights

On July 15, 2011, we completed the last of thramdformative mergers that increased our revenuesdry600% in just over two yea
Over the past year, the Compensation Committeesémton adapting our executive compensation progtaittiee far larger and more
complex organization resulting from these mergéfile the Committee determined that it was not appate to make major compensation
changes in 2011, the Committee did adopt a newgreep, broadened the compasyonus targets and took the other steps outlinkohto
adjust to the company’s rapid growth.

As explained further below:

» Notwithstanding our management te's active engagement in integrating Embarg intoaparations and acquiring Qwest and
Savvis, our revenue growth, cash flow growth, EBAT@owth and return on investment over the past and three-year periods
substantially exceeded those of our peers, assfisdufurther below und“— Pay for Performanc”

» During 2011, upon the recommendation of managementeft executive salaries unchanged from 2

« Upon the recommendation of management, we lefegacutives’ 2011 target annual incentive bonus dppdies unchanged
from 2010, and broadened the scope of our perfacmtargets to better match our strategic gt

e With respect to our executives’ 2011 long-term gginicentive compensation, we (i) granted awardé ¥air values unchanged
from 2010, (ii) deferred the payment of all asstemadividends until the underlying award is earagd (iii)) capped the maximum
payment at 100% of target levels in certain circiamees

» Effective January 1, 2011, we restructured our ghaf control agreements to (i) prospectively redcash severance benefits,
(i) eliminate tax “gross-up” payments and (iii)bstiantially narrow the circumstances and time fraomader which benefits are
payable
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» During 2011, we continued to link the substantiajanity of our executive compensation to our perfance.

Our Compensation Philosophy
We compensate our senior management through afrppograms designed to be market-competitive asahfly-responsible.

Our executive compensation programs are designed to
» provide performanc-based reward opportunities that support growthiandvation without encouraging excessive r

» reinforce our business objectives and our creatfdang-term shareholder value by making substhati@ounts of our executives’
compensation dependent upon attaining these ¢

« align the interests of executives and shareholoferoviding a majority of our executive compensatin the form of long-term
equity grants

e attract, retain and motivate key executives by jgliog competitive compensation with an appropriaig of fixed and variable
compensation, sh-term and lon-term incentives, and cash and eg-based pay

* recognize and support outstanding contributionsrasdits,
e manage cost and share dilution, i

» whenever possible, promote internal equity by affgthe same compensation to executives whom weatxp make roughly
equivalent contribution:

In the next two sections, we further explain (iy cammitment to pay for performance compensatiagmams and (ii) other practices
we use to achieve our above-referenced compengaials.

Pay for Performance

We believe that a significant portion of our exéees’ compensation should be payable only whenteehy our performance.
Currently, all of our executives’ annual bonus cemgation and half of their long-term equity inceattompensation is payable only if we
attain certain specified goals, thereby placinglazstantial portion of executive compensation &t fi$1e other half of our executives’ long-
term equity incentive compensation is currenthdpaitime-vested restricted stock, the value ofclihis dependent on our performance over
an extended vesting period designed to createiadditincentives for our executives to focus ontansble, long-term growth.

As part of the Compensation Committee’s assessaofighe executives’ performance, it requested ittependent consultant to measure
CenturyLink’s performance against its peer growgerassed below based on eight separate metricstfgmowevenues, cash flow, EBITDA
and diluted earnings per share; return on equityestment and capital; and total shareholder rturer one and three-year periods.
Reviewing data on these metrics, the consultamroghed that CenturyLink:

» scored at or near the 100th percentile of this giauevenue growth, cash flow growth, EBITDA growand return on investme
over the on- and thre-year periods, an

* in addition, ou-performed the 5thpercentile of this group in a fifth metric (totddegeholder return) over the th-year period

The Committee also noted that:

e CenturyLink’s acquisition of Embarg, Qwest and Savvis betwegnl] 2009 and July 15, 2011 increased our reve&puer 600%
in just over two years, as noted abc

» CenturyLink out-performed its strategic revenugedused as one of the performance goals to sedgearent’s 2011 annual
bonuses, as discussed further below,

* We accomplished this strong operational performahwcang a year in which our management team wasehgtengaged in
integrating Embarq into our operations and acqgi@west and Sawvi:
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For further information on the performance goaleced by our Compensation Committee, see belowARrrual Incentive Bonuses”
and “— Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation.t Rwore information on our recent financial performoe, sed\ppendix Bo this proxy
statement.

Our Compensation Practices

To assist us in achieving our broad compensatiatsgave apply the following practices (many of whare described further elsewhere

below):

We weigh variable compensation for our senior ettees heavily towards long-term incentives to al@gmpensation with
sustained shareholder retur

Incentive awards are contingent on achieving tartjett are established and approved by the Comi@m§&zommittee at the
beginning of the applicable performance period.aiards are assigned thresholds that define a mimitavel of achievement
before they are paid, and all award payments grpezhat 200% of targe

The Compensation Committee is comprised solelpadépendent directors. The Committee’s independamidtant, Hay Group,
provides no other services to us and has no plationship with any of our named executive off&

The peer group of companies used to benchmarkx@maouéve compensation levels is carefully reviewetbast annually by the
Compensation Committee with input from its indepamtcconsultant. Changes to the peer group requinepgénsation Committee
approval.

To help us assess the competitiveness of our @fipes, we benchmark each element of compensagiainst the 50th percent
of compensation paid to peer executi

The Compensation Committee annually reviews oucétkee and broad-based compensation programs éordiele whether they
encourage behaviors that are excessively r

In connection with determining the amounts of ocerfprmance-based incentive compensation, we seedototor the
reasonableness of these programs by comparinggtivegate amount of compensation potentially paydidreunder to the total
amount of shareholder return or value created tiyeviof attaining targeted levels of performar

We require our officers and directors to retaingaificant investment in our shares under stock ewhip guidelines described
further below.

We structure awards to be subject to the risk déefture if the executive quits or engages in deg¢mtal activity, and we separat
maintain an expansive policy to recoup compensa@ned as a result of fraudulent or illegal comc

Under our insider trading policy, all employees prehibited from speculating in our securities ngaging in transactions
designed to hedge their ownership intere

During the past several years, we have also:

eliminated tax gro«-up payments to our outside directors under our@ierphysical progran
eliminated tax gro«-up payments on our sf-dollar insurance policies for executivi

eliminated the payment of dividends on unvestettioésd stock

eliminated our practice of making separate casimeays in lieu of providing prior perquisites, ¢

discontinued our supplemental executive retirenpéart, and froze benefit accruals under our deflmerkfit plans for non-
represented employee
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Use of Market Data

We strive to provide total compensation, when tegéevels of performance are achieved, approxipatehe median of pay levels
provided by a designated group of peer companiestsel by our Compensation Committee. We belieaethying executive compensation
at competitive levels allows us to attract andiretalented executives, while also enabling us &ntain a competitive cost base with respect
to compensation expense.

Based on input from its compensation consultaetGbmpensation Committee used the following tao011 to benchmark the
compensation of our executives against individudde work in similarly-situated positions at compgaeacompanies:

» survey data compiled by the compensation consuttamtiaining compensation information about a bn@axdje of public
companies generally similar in size to us,

» compensation data publicly disclosed by the folluyvi4-company peer grou

DirecTV Group Inc Time Warner Cable In

Sprint Nextel Corp Dish Network Corp

Liberty Global Inc. Cablevision Systems Cor
Comcast Corg Telephone & Data Systems Ir
Level 3 Communications In US Cellular Corp
Windstream Corf Metropcs Communications In
Global Crossing Ltd Frontier Communications Cor

This 14-company peer group is the same as thegpeep we used in 2010, except that we replaced Qdch we purchased) with
Sprint Nextel and Charter Communications (which pteted a bankruptcy reorganization in 2009) withrCast.

In 2010, the Compensation Committee took initiapstto construct a new peer group that would betteespond to our size,
complexity and prospects following the recent mesg€he new peer group, which was formally adojgethe Committee in November
2011, replaced five of the above-listed peer congsawith six new companies. Although during ea 2 the Committee primarily used the
above-listed 14-company peer group, it also tasadedegree benchmarked the compensation of ooutexes against the new 15-company
peer group.

For additional information about how we set payelsysee “— Our Compensation Decision-Making Preces

Elements of Compensation
Our executive compensation for 2011 had four keyneints:
» annual cash sala
» annual cash bont
» long-term incentive awards, consisting of t-vested and performar-based restricted stou
» benefits under employee or executive benefit progr

With respect to each component of compensatiorgemerally seek to pay compensation at the 50thepéle of compensation paid to
comparable employees at other companies withirpeer group and as compared to broader survey data.
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The following table illustrates how our named exaeuofficers’ 2011 target compensation was alledaamong the three main
components of recurring compensation.

Equity
Cash Compensatic Compensatiol
% from
% from Short- % from Long-
Title Salary Term Incentive Term Incentive
CEO 15% 19% 66%
Other Named Officer® 22% 18% 60%

@ Reflects only named officers employed throughouit12

2011 Target Compensation
100%
90%
80%
70% LT1,66% LTI, 60%
6%
50%
40%
30% ST1,18%
S 5T1,19%
4
CED Other Named Officers

Each element of our 2011 compensation is discusstter under the headings below. In each casee inéormation on how we
determined specific pay levels is located undehteding “— Our Compensation Decision-Making Preces

Salary

In early 2011 the Committee determined that theethees’ then-prevailing salaries remained gengiiallalignment with their targeted
50th percentile salary levels based on data comhpieits compensation consultant. The Committeepted management’s recommendation
to maintain the salaries of each of our executffieers without change.

In February 2012, the Committee determined thaegweeutives’ salaries were lower, and in certasesasignificantly lower, than the
50th percentile salary levels of peer executivasell on data that reflected our recent growthsBweral reasons, management recommende
that executive salaries should nonetheless remrmahainged. The Committee accepted this recommemngéaiin believes it will need to
eliminate these shortfalls in compensation levathinthe next couple of years to ensure that then@any’s executive compensation levels
are commensurate with the executives’ heightenggbresibilities to manage a far larger and more dexgpompany.

Annual Incentive Bonuses

General. We award annual cash bonuses to key employees basperformance objectives that, if attained,reasonably be expected
to (i) promote our business objectives, (i) maim®@r increase our long-term
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shareholder value and (iii) correspond to thosd pasimilarly-situated executives at comparablepanies. We currently offer annual
incentive bonuses to approximately 12,650, or 28%6ur employees.

The 2011 bonuses paid to our named executive dffiwere calculated as follows:

Actual
Award
2011 Bonus Corporate as %o
Named Officel Salary x  Target¥ x  Performance %) = Bonus(®) Salary
Glen F. Post, llI
Chief Executive Officer and Preside $1,020,80! 125% 96% $1,224,96! 12(%

Karen A. Puckett

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating

Officer 663,90( 85% 96% 541,72 82%
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer 598,80( 85% 96% 488,59: 82%
James E. Ousley

Chief Executive Officer, SAVVIS Operations, and

President— Enterprise Markets Grou 550,00( 11(% 92% 257,70'® 47%
David D. Cole

Senior Vice President — Controller and

Operations Suppoil 435,40( 65% 96% 271,67 62%

(1) Calculated as discussed below un“— Corporate Target Percentg”

(2) The Committee has discretion to reduce the annpayable to the executive officers in accordamitle this calculation, but choose not
to with respect to these 2011 bonut

(3) Asdiscussed further below, this amount (i)a&tk the incentive bonus paid by CenturyLink ta Rusley with respect to Savvis’
performance between July 16, 2011 and Decembe&t(31l,, (ii) includes a downward adjustment to rdftee fact that Mr. Ousley
served CenturyLink for only 46.3% of the year, &iiijiexcludes bonus payments relating to serviazpding the Savvis merger on
July 15, 2011. For more information, see the Sumrtaimpensation Table appearing bel

These bonus amounts are reflected in the Summanp€asation Table appearing below under the coludun~Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation.”

Bonus Target PercentageDuring the first half of 2011, the Compensatiaon@nittee sought to coordinate the annual bonusrprog
for incumbent CenturyLink officers and incumbent €atvofficers who continued to serve following therihl, 2011 merger of CenturyLink
and Qwest. To this end, the Committee deferredbsiténg bonus targets until the second quart&0dfl to enable it to grant all 2011 bonus
awards to incumbent CenturyLink and Qwest offiaegstg the same parameters. In connection with ksitéig target bonus opportunities
2011 (expressed as a percentage of salary), thenitea used the same target percentages used int®0CenturyLink with respect to its
incumbent officers and by Qwest with respect tantaimbent officers. Subject to differences in shidtorical target percentages, the
Committee also attempted to promote internal ecauity teamwork by applying the same target bonusepéage to groups of executives with
similar responsibility levels.

During 2011, the Compensation Committee determihatlit was necessary to broaden the scope ofritneah bonus performance
targets to more closely align them with our strededpjectives and the growing scale and complesdtgur business. Following several
months of discussion, in early June 2011, the Carsgation Committee elected to base 90% of the sefficers’ 2011 annual incentive
bonuses on whether we obtained
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“minimum,” “target” or “maximum” threshold levelsf the following financial goals for the period coranting April 1, 2011 (the date we
acquired Qwest) and ending on December 31, 2011:

Performance Level®) (in millions)

Corporate Goe Minimum Target Maximumr
Operating Cash Flow $5,42¢ $5,7150) $ 6,00(
Legacy Revenu® 6,32 6,55( 6,77¢
Strategic Revenu® 5,027 5,21( 5,392

@ For the period commencing on April 1, 2011 and egdin December 31, 201

@ Represents operating income plus depreciation arudtization expense

®  Represents the midpoint of a target that ranges $56,686 million to $5,743 millior

@ Represents revenue generated from local voice sitioes, long distance and other services as regamtour publicly-filed financial
statements; excludes switched access reve

®) Represents revenue from providing the following/mes: high speed internet, internet protocol tisien (IPTV), data hosting, cloud
computing, private line/special access, Etherndtipratocol label switching (MPLS), satellite videmd voice over internet protocol
(VolP), all as reported in our publi-filed financial statement:

With respect to our operating cash flow targegiathent of less than 95% of the target amount‘fihisimum” performance level) was
designed to result in no bonus payment, and atemiof more than 105% of the target amount (thextimam” performance level) was
designed to result in twice the bonus payable fairsng the target level of performance. With espto each of our revenue targets,
attainment of less than 96.5% (the “minimum” penfance level) of the target amount was designedsoltin no bonus payment, and
attainment of more than 103.5% of the target am@het“maximum”performance level) was designed to result in twheebonus payable f
attaining the target level of performance. In abes, we adjusted these amounts to eliminate fiset®bf extraordinary or non-recurring
transactions in accordance with procedures fudiescribed below.

For purposes of calculating the aggregate bonuspat; the following goals were weighted as follows:

e Operating Cash Flo 50%
* Legacy Revenu 20%
» Strategic Revenu 20%
» Integration Achievemer 10%

Bonuses payable with respect to “integration admeent” were based on the Compensation Committebjective assessment of our
success in attaining conversion, synergy and atitegration milestones established by managemertdnnection with combining the
operations of Embarg, Qwest and Savvis into ouraimns. Although the Committee generally preferbase bonuses on objective
performance goals, it determined to utilize suldjecassessments of these integration milestongauiggoses of the 2011 bonuses principally
because measuring success was too dependent omduents and too complex to apply fixed objectjoals.

The Committee selected these 2011 metrics bechegebrrelate strongly with our strategic objectiver the following reasons:

» Strong operating cash flow enables us to, amongr dttings, fund capital initiatives to expand ousimess opportunities, to pay
attractive dividend, and to meet our debt obligai

e Maximizing our legacy revenues permits us to resgime and financial resources as we explore o#ivenue source

» Strategic revenue growth promotes our strategieatbje of identifying new or growing revenue sogrdesigned to offset
anticipated decreases in our legacy rever

» Successfully implementing the integration of reeatquired companies into our operations is @itto our ability to fully realiz
the benefits of these merge
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Following our acquisition of Savvis on July 15, 20bur Compensation Committee separately award&tt.t@usley the opportunity to
earn a bonus with respect to the period betwegnl#yl2011 and December 31, 2011. The Compensatommittee elected to base 60% of
this bonus on Savvis’ revenues over this period,40%0 on Savvisadjusted net EBITDA over this period, defined aome from continuin
operations before depreciation, amortization, dmmeand equity-based compensation, excluding atipn and integration costs and certain
other non-recurring items. These metrics are theesas those used prior to the Savvis merger byiSamdependent compensation
committee to establish bonuses for Savvis’ exeestiincluding the bonus paid by Savvis to Mr. Ouéte the portion of 2011 preceding the
merger.

Corporate Target Percentagdn February 2012, the Compensation Committeeeve®d management’s assessment of the company’s
performance during the last nine months of 201domspared to the targets established in June 20thlrespect to each of our executive
officers other than James E. Ousley. Based omtioisess, the Committee determined that the aggregte of attaining these goals (referred
to in the table below as the “Corporate Performdheeentage”) was 96%, calculated as follows:

Corporate
Performanc

Percentage Payc Weighting
Percentage
Relating to Goa X Factor = Component
Operating Cash Flow 72.0% 50% 36.0%
Legacy Revenu 80.0% 20% 16.0%
Strategic Revenu 145.0% 20% 29.0%
Integration Achievemer 150.0% 10% 15.0%

Corporate Performance Percent 96.(%

In March 2012, the Committee also reviewed manage€massessment of Savvjgrformance for the period between July 16, 20
December 31, 2011, as compared to the targetsishtbfollowing the Savvis merger. The Committegedmined that Savvis had attained
98% of its revenue target of $542.9 million (wekgdhtat 60%) and 97% of its adjusted net EBITDA taodé148.6 million (weighted at 409
which, based on Savvis’ payout formulas, resulted Corporate Performance Percentage of 92% apfdita Mr. Ousley’s bonus for the
second half of 2011.

Negative Discretion Each year, the Committee retains the right téatemially reduce, without forfeiting favorable taeatment of our
bonus payments, the amount of the executives’ lEncalculated using the processes described abtheeCommittee believes for any
reason that it is unwarranted to pay such amouanyoor all of the executives. With respect to20&1 bonus payments, the Committee
determined that there was no basis for effectingsaich reductions.

Non-Executive BonusesCompared to our executive officers, the remairderur senior officers have more diverse and iittliglized
sets of performance goals. When an officer or manhgs responsibility for a particular businesg,wdivision or region, the performance
goals are typically heavily weighted toward the rgpienal performance of those units or areas. Qtfdividuals may receive individual
performance goals. Depending on the level of sépjdhese individuals may also receive a portibtheir bonus based on overall corporate
performance. As discussed below under the headin@ur Compensation Decision-Making Process,” th®©Gpproves the performance
goals of substantially all of the non-executiveadfs under the general supervision of the CompgEms€ommittee.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation

General. Our shareholder-approved long-term incentive camsption programs authorize the Compensation Cdeertid grant stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock units @arious other stock-based incentives to keyqguersl. We believe stock incentive awards
(i) encourage key personnel to focus on our lomgrgeerformance, (ii) strengthen the relationshipwleen compensation and growth in the
market price of the Common Shares and thereby atigmagement’s financial interests with those ofsth@reholders and (iii) help attract and
retain talented personnel. During the first halR6f.2, we intend to offer long-term equity inceetoompensation awards to approximately
615, or 1%, of our employees.
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Typically we grant equity awards in the first qearof each year. In 2011, we deferred our execwipgty grants until May 2011, whi
enabled us to make grants pursuant to our new EQuity Incentive Plan authorized the previous wieglour shareholders.

2011 Executive Grantsin May 2011, the Committee granted the followmgnber of restricted shares to our named execaoffieers:

No. of
No. of Time- Performanc
Vested Based
Restricted Restricted Total Fair
Named Officei®) Shares Fair Value(® Share<(3) Fair Value (2 Value @)
Glen F. Post, llI 52,70 $2,200,00! 52,70 $2,200,00! $4,400,00!
Karen A. Pucket 22,99¢ 960,00( 23,00( 960,00( 1,920,00!
R. Stewart Ewing, J 17,82 744,00( 17,82¢ 744,00( 1,488,00!
David D. Cole 13,22¢ 552,00( 13,22t 552,00( 1,104,00!

@ For information on grants to James E. Ousley, witeld us as an executive officer on July 15, 2@ldase see the paragraph below
table.

@ For purposes of this chart, we value both timea@sind performance-based restricted shares bypiyirtj the number of shares
granted to the executive by the 15-day volume-weigjlaverage closing price of our Common Shares fwithe grant date. In the
Summary Compensation Table, however, our perforerased restricted shares are valued as of thedpsnbased on probable
outcomes as required by SEC rules. See footnaidtetSummary Compensation Table for more inforoma

@ Based on the number of restricted shares grantsthjin2011. As discussed further below, the actuatiper of shares that vests in the
future may be lower or highe

On October 7, 2011, the Committee granted to J&mexrisley the following number of shares of timstee restricted stock for the
following purposes:

Timl\(le?vgfsted
Type of Grani Restricted Shar: Fair Value(t)
Normal Annual Incentive Grai® 81,30 $2,665,99:
Retention Gran® 33,54 1,100,00:!
114,85: $3,765,99

@ Based on the closing trading price of $32.79 of@ammon stock on October 7, 20:

@ Represents an amount of shares equal in value tettricted stock granted to Mr. Ousley by Sairvisarly 2011 prior to it being
acquired by CenturyLinl

@) Represents a grant under the retention progranideddelow unde“— Retention Grant”

To further incentivize the Savvis executives to aamemployed with us during the integration of Saveperations into ours, we elec
to accelerate the granting of the Savvis executivegnal 2012 incentive grants from early 2012 wt@ber 2011. As such, we do not intend
to issue any additional equity grants to Mr. Ouslaying 2012.

For more information on these grants, please sleavlf&xecutive Compensation — Incentive Compensatiad Other Awards.”

Amount of Awards. Each year, the Committee generally determinesitteeof equity grants, expressed in dollars, basetthe
recipient’s responsibilities, performance and dytand on information furnished by the Committemmpensation consultant regarding
equity incentive practices among comparable congsani

In determining the size of each officer’'s 2011 gréime Committee reviewed market data regarding-igmm incentive compensation
paid to comparable executives at companies inclid#te benchmarking data compiled by the independensultant. Based on this data,
Committee elected to grant long-term equity awavitls a total fair value equal to the total fair walof our 2010 long-term incentive awards.
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In establishing equity award levels, we review¢leity ownership levels of the recipients and paards, primarily to determine if
our executives continue to retain adequate egudgritives to remain employed with us and to mayénoiar future performance. We further
believe each annual grant of long-term compensatiauld match prevailing market practices in ofdeiour compensation packages to
remain competitive from year to year, and to miegthe risk of competitors offering compensationkaayes to our executives that have
superior long-term incentives.

Types of Awards We strive to pay equity compensation in formg traate appropriate incentives to optimize peréoroe at
reasonable cost, that minimize enterprise risk,thatlare competitive with incentives offered blgatcompanies. Since 2008, the Committee
has elected to issue all of our long-term equitypensation grants in the form of restricted stawkaf variety of reasons, including the
Committee’s recognition of the growing use of riesdd stock by our peers and its desire to minirtizedilution associated with our rewards.
The Committee also considered the retentive vaiwestricted stock under varying market conditicarsd the loss of accounting advantages
formerly associated with stock options. In an dfforincrease the link between our performanceex@ttutive compensation, since 2010 the
Committee has issued half of the value of the etkeesi long-term awards in the form of performarigesed restricted stock, with the other
half being in the form of time-vested restricteoicht

For information on the vesting terms of our eqaityards, see “Executive Compensation — Incentive @orsation and Other Awards
— Outstanding Awards.”

Dividends. In 2011, the Committee determined that all diwidie paid with respect to restricted stock awardsishbe paid to the
recipient only upon the vesting of the award. liopyears, some or all of these dividends were paidently.

Retention Grants

Qwest Merger. As contemplated under our merger agreement wite<p) we implemented in mid-2010 a retention progdesigned to
ensure that over 200 of our top officers and marsalgad adequate incentives to remain employedusitthrough completion of the Qwest
acquisition and the critical period of integratihrereafter. In August 2010, the Committee made dsvander this plan to our executives. Of
the total grant date value of these awards, 106%hé case of the CEO) or 75% (in the case ofth#roexecutives) was composed of equity
grants, which are reflected as 2010 compensationirsummary Compensation Table.

Other than our CEO, our executives received 25%@frant date fair value of their 2010 retenticengs in the form of a deferred cash
award. Recipients of deferred cash awards recdiaébf their cash payment on April 1, 2011, thesthg date of the Qwest acquisition, and
the other half on April 1, 2012, provided they rémeal employed by us on such dates. See our Sum@unpensation Table for more
information.

Sawvis Merger. As described further below under the heading “theDBenefits — Retention Programs,” Savvis essalelil retention
programs for its key personnel and executives imeation with the Savvis merger. As part of Saveigcutive retention program, in late
2011 James E. Ousley received (i) a grant of 33shéires of restricted stock, as described furtheveaunder the heading “— Long-Term
Equity Incentive Compensation — 2011 Executive &'arand (ii) a deferred cash award of $825,000¢ctviwill be paid in a lump sum on
December 31, 2012 if he remains employed through date (subject to accelerated payment in cesfaggified circumstances).

Mr. Ousley’s restricted stock awards are refleete@011 compensation in our Summary Compensatible Tdnder the SEC'’s rules,
Mr. Qusley’s deferred cash payment is not repoetalsl compensation in our Summary Compensation Taltdss and until paid in 2012.

Other Benefits

As a final component of executive compensationpvexzide a broad array of benefits designed to lepatitive, in the aggregate, with
similar benefits provided by our peers. We sumnesttiese additional benefits below.
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Retirement Plans We maintain one or more traditional qualifiedidefl benefit retirement plans for most of our ergpks who have
completed at least five years of service, plusammore traditional qualified defined contributid@1 (k) plans for a similar group of our
employees. With respect to these qualified plarsmaintain nonqualified plans that permit our af&to receive or defer supplemental
amounts in excess of federally-imposed caps that the amount of benefits highly-compensated eyg#s are entitled to receive under
qualified plans. When we assess overall compenstgiels for our senior management, we review #meehits expected to be received under
these retirement plans, but primarily focus onldisthing compensation programs that are competitite our peers. Additional information
regarding our retirement plans is provided in #idds and accompanying discussion included belaeutihe heading “Executive
Compensation.”

Effective January 1, 2011, we changed the retir¢menefits that we offer to our employees as plaoiuo ongoing process to align
overall benefits for our legacy Embarg and Centiglemployees. In addition to changes to the bé&neffered under certain of our 401(k)
plans, we froze benefit accruals under our deflmekfit pension plans for non-represented emploge@s December 31, 2010. These
changes align our retirement benefits closer tsetaifered by our competitors, many of whom hawwipusly effected similar changes over
the past several years.

Change of Control ArrangementsAs described in more detail under “Executive Cengation — Potential Termination Payments —
Payments Made Upon a Change of Control,” in 200@mtered into agreements under which we agreerbtoede cash and other severance
benefits to each of our executive officers whaisrtinated under certain specified circumstancdsviig a change of control of
CenturyLink.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Compensation Comamitestructured these predecessor agreementssfeeptively reduce benefits to
more closely align them with current market praedidf triggered, benefits under the restructuigr@@ments include payment of (i) a lump
sum cash severance payment equal to a multipleeddfficer's annual cash compensation, (ii) théceffs annual bonus, based on actual
performance and the portion of the year servedi@hdertain continued welfare benefits for a ited period.

We believe these benefits enhance shareholder bakmuse:

e prior to a takeover, these protections help ugtouit and retain talented officers and to helpntzan the productivity of our
workforce by alleviating concerns over economiausiég, and

e during or after a takeover, these protectionsdlplour personnel, when evaluating a possible lessicombination, to focus on
best interest of CenturyLink and its shareholdans (ii) reduce the risk that personnel will acgeptoffers from competitors
during takeover discussior

Under our restructured agreements, change of ddmnefits are payable to our executive officengithin a certain specified period
following a change in control (referred to as tpeotected period”) the officer is terminated withcause or resigns with “good reason,”
which is defined to include a diminution of respibiigies, an assignment of inappropriate duties] a transfer of the officer exceeding 50
miles. We have filed with the SEC copies of outnegured change of control agreements.

The table below shows, both for the original agreets and the restructured agreements, (i) theHesfghe “protected period” afforded
to officers following a change of control and (lie multiple of salary and bonus payment and yefweelfare benefits to which officers will
be entitled if change of control benefits becomgabée under such agreements and related policies:

Original Arrangement Restructured Arrangemer
Multiple of Years of Multiple of Years of
Protected Annual Cash Welfare Protected Annual Cash Welfare
Period Compensatio Benefits Period Compensatio Benefits
CEO 3 year: 3 times 3 year: 2 year: 3time: 3 year
Other Executive 3 year 3 times 3 year 1.5 year 2times  2year
Other Officers 1-2 year® 1-2 time@®  1-2 year® 1yea 1 time 1yea

(1) The original arrangements provided two yeardWo times) for our most senior non-executive adfis, 1.5 years (or 1.5 times) for the
next level of senior officers, and one year (or time) for all other officers
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The recent restructured agreements also prosphctive
» eliminated the prior right of executives to be reinsed for taxes imposed as a result of receivieg thange of control benefi

» eliminated the prior right of executives to unilatéy request full payment of their severance biseliuring “window periods”
arising one year after a change of control, regasdbf whether the executive had been adverselgatag by the transaction, a

» narrowed the rights of executives to claim thaythave“good reasc” to resign with full severance benefi

Completion of the Embarq merger constituted a chafgontrol of CenturyLink, as defined under otggecessor change of control
agreements. In connection with the Embarg merdjesf &enturyLink’s named executive officers agrdedvaive some, but not all, of their
rights under their predecessor change of contn@eagents, which continue to govern their rightdhwéspect to the change of control
resulting from the Embarg merger. Our directors &lgaived certain rights to accelerated vestindhefrtoutstanding equity awards in
connection with the Embarq closing. For more infation on these waivers and certain benefit plannaiments implemented in connection
with the Embarq acquisition, please see our Apr2@BLO proxy statement.

Completion of the Savvis merger constituted a cbharfgcontrol of Savvis, as defined under SavvigaKive compensation
arrangements. Under his amended employment agréeimt=ad September 2, 2011, James E. Ousley iseeltit continue to receive his
salary for 18 months if we terminate him withoutisa or he resigns with “good reason.” Under thé@seimstances, Mr. Ousley will also be
entitled to receive accelerated vesting of histantiing equity awards, accelerated payment ofdsh cetention award described above under
the heading “— Retention Grants — Savvis Merged ampro-rated portion of his annual bonus, caleddty extrapolating Savvis’ full year
performance based upon performance through theofi&@emination. In addition, the amended agreereetitles Mr. Ousley to receive tax
“gross-up” payments designed to reimburse him llagxaise and income taxes arising out of paymanter his prior or amended agreement
in connection with a change of control occurringppto December 31, 2011.

For more information on our change of control agements, see “Executive Compensation — Potentiahif@ation Payments —
Payments Made Upon a Change of Control.”

Severance BenefitsHistorically, we have paid severance benefitsan-union full-time employees who are terminatedannection
with a reduction in force. The amount of any apdble severance payment was based on the termieriigidyee’s tenure with us and
willingness to waive claims, and could range frovo to 52 weeks of the terminated employee’s bakseysar wages. During 2011, we
considered the possibility of adopting a replacensemerance plan that would provide severance lignefour officers who are terminated
the absence of a change of control transactionnB@012, we expect to continue considering thepidn of a replacement plan that aligns
our severance benefits closer to those of our peers

Under his amended employment agreement, JamesdieyOs entitled to receive the severance benddiseribed above “— Change of
Control Arrangements” if we terminate him withoatuse or he resigns with “good reason.”

In early 2012, we adopted a policy requiring usdek shareholder approval of any future seniorigkerseverance agreements
providing for cash payments, perquisites and acatdd health or welfare benefits with a value gretitan 2.99 times the sum of the
executive's base salary plus target bonus.

Retention Programs In connection with the Embarq merger, CenturylLamd Embarqg both adopted retention programs thatash
awards to various employees who agree to remaitogreqh for certain specified periods to assist whith post-closing integration of the
companies. Executive officers did not participat¢hiese programs.
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For similar reasons, both CenturyLink and Qwesipéelb retention plans after entering into the Qwestger agreement. As noted
above, our executive officers received awards igust 2010 under the retention plan we implementambnnection with the Qwest
acquisition.

In connection with being acquired by us, Savvisped a broad-based retention program in which lkeeggnnel (excluding Savvis’
executive officers) received a combination of castl restricted stock awards that vested over tBhertly after the Savvis merger, six of
Sawvis’ executives, including James E. Ousley,ivececash and restricted stock awards under a@gpaxecutive retention program. For
additional information about Mr. Ousley’s retentiawards, see “— Retention Grants.”

Perquisites. Officers are entitled to be reimbursed for thetad an annual physical examination, plus relatadel expenses.

Under our aircraft usage policy, the CEO may ugeadrgraft for personal travel without reimbursiag, and each other executive offi
may use our aircraft for up to $10,000 per yegrdrsonal travel without reimbursing us. In all sgelses, personal travel is permitted only if
aircraft is available and not needed for superggdirsiness purposes. For purposes of valuing graitiieg the use of our aircraft, we
determine the incremental cost of aircraft usagarmhourly basis, calculated in accordance witHiegiple guidelines of the SEC. The
incremental cost of this usage, which may be sukiatly different than the cost as determined uraltarnative calculation methodologies, is
reported in the Summary Compensation Table appghsiow. Each year the Compensation Committeevesei report on the personal use
of aircraft by senior management, and determinesthvgr or not to alter our aircraft usage policainy way. In early 2012, the Committee
elected to retain our aircraft usage policy. Inreetion with making this election, the Committeéedmined that the policy was (i) providing
valuable and cost-effective benefits to our exeestiresiding in a small city with limited commeiadline service and (ii) enabling our
executives to travel in a manner that we believaadse expeditious than commercial airline service.

In 2006, the Compensation Committee approved retstred insurance arrangements with our executifreen$ that obligate us to pay
premiums on the executive officers’ respective seqental life insurance policies sufficient to pide/the same death benefits available
under predecessor agreements, and entitle theteseofficers to purchase additional post-retiretnsoverage at their cost. In mid-2010, we
eliminated the right of executives to receive itatax “gross-up” cash payments in amounts equiktdaxes incurred as a result of our
premium payments.

Most years, we organize one of our regular boardtimgs and related committee meetings as a “bedrdat” scheduled over a long
weekend, typically in an area where we conductatpers. The spouses of our directors and execuffieers are invited to attend, and we
typically schedule recreational activities for taagho are able and willing to participate.

We maintain a pool of several corporate apartmi@ntéonroe, Louisiana for use by our employees basedher states who are requi
regularly or periodically to work in our headquasteffices in Monroe. These apartments have beae cust-effective for us than lodging
these individuals in hotel rooms during their \&sit

In addition, in connection with our merger with 8&sy we amended and restated Mr. Oudeyployment agreement, which, in bott
original and current form, commits us to reimbuvée Ousley for work-related expenses associatel eoimmuting from his home in
Sedona, Arizona, plus tax gross-ups to the exterstet costs were taxable to him.

For more information on the items under this hegdé®e the Summary Compensation Table appearinogrbel

Other Employee BenefitsWe maintain a stock purchase plan that enablest ai@ur employees to purchase Common Shares on
attractive terms. We also maintain certain broasedeemployee welfare benefit
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plans in which the executive officers are genernpdlymitted to participate on terms that are eithdastantially similar to those provided to all
other participants or which provide our executiwéth enhanced benefits upon their death or diggbMWe also maintain a supplemental
disability plan designed to ensure disability pagptedo our officers in the event payments are uitava from our disability insurer.

Our Compensation Decision-Making Process

Role of Compensation Committeé’he Compensation Committee of our Board estaddisimplements, administers and monitors our
executive compensation programs, subject to thed®aversight. Specifically, the Committee (orubsommittee thereof) approves the
compensation payable to each executive officewedsas any other “senior officer” as defined ie tBommittee’s charter.

As described further below, the Compensation Coteriis compensation decisiomaking process requires a careful balancing ofde
range of factors, including:
» the group and individual performance and respoliti#isi of our executives
» the competitive compensation practices of otherpames
» the performance of our company in relation to ceerg and our internal goa
» the risk characteristics of our compensation pnaograanc
e our strategic and financial imperativi
Except with respect to variable compensation, tam@ittee has not historically used quantitativerfolas to determine compensation
or assign weights to the various factors considered

The Compensation Committee also establishes, imgrigsnadministers and monitors our director cashegpuity compensation
programs.

Since acquiring Embarq, Qwest and Savvis over #st ouple of years, the Committee has focusedrgnen comprehensively
reviewing our compensation philosophy, strategieticies and practices to ensure they:
» are appropriate for the larger combined comp
« further link our pay to company performan
« further reflect prevailin¢“best practice” and
» reduce differences in the prior pay practices efgtedecessor compani

Role of Compensation ConsultantsSThe Committee engages the services of a compensamsultant to assist in the design and re
of executive compensation programs, to determinethdr the Committee’s philosophy and practicege@asonable and compatible with
prevailing practices, and to provide guidance at#g compensation levels based on industry tremdspractices.

The Committee has used Hay Group as its compensatiosultant since September 2010. Throughout 204y Group actively
participated in the design and development of aecetive compensation programs, and attended #leo€ommittees meetings. Hay Grot
provides no other services to us, and has no mlationship with any of our named executive office

Review ProcessEach year, the Committee and its consultant esetimarking data to determine median amounts afygsannual
bonuses and equity compensation paid to executiv@parable to ours. In determining how much to cemsate each officer, the Committee
also extensively reviews a wide range of otherdiagttypically including:

» the office’'s individual performance, industry experience aadigular set of skills
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» the anticipated degree of difficulty of replacifg tofficer with someone of comparable experiencbsill,

» the role the officer plays in maintaining a cohesimanagement team and improving the performanothefs,

» the role the officer may have played in any re@ttaordinary corporate achievemel

» the office’'s pay and performance relative to other officexs employees

» the officel's prior compensation in recent years and, to adunilegree, his or her accumulated wealth undepmgrams
» the financial communif's assessment of managen's performance, ar

» the recent and loi-term performance of CenturyLin

In assessing our performance, we typically review karious measures of our financial performantsedo amounts previously
projected by us or market participants, as wethagesults of peer telecommunications companiesaldb assess operational benchmarks,
such as our access line losses or customer grow#iation to our competitors. Although we asseshefficer’s individual performance in
connection with establishing all components of cengation, we typically weigh this factor more héafor salary determinations and less
heavily for incentive compensation, which tend ¢odtiocated among the officers primarily on theibatheir level of responsibility and pay
grade.

Each year, we compile lists of compensation dd#ding to each of our executives. These “tally s&feimclude the executive’s salary,
annual cash incentive award, equity-based compensaerquisites, pension benefit accruals andratbmpensation. These tally sheets also
show the executives’ holdings of our Common Sharesaccumulated unrealized gains under prior edpsied compensation awards. The
Compensation Committee uses these tally sheeisreview the total annual compensation of the atige officers, (ii) assess the executive
officers’ wealth accumulation from our compensatmwagrams and (iii) assure that the Committee hamgprehensive understanding of our
compensation programs.

Annual Bonus Procedures With the assistance of management and its comagiensconsultant, the Compensation Committee sets
bonus targets annually, and, under special circamests, more frequently than annually. For severals; the Committee has administerec
annual bonus program substantially in the manngined above under “— Annual Incentive Bonuses.€T@ommittee is responsible for
approving for each year (i) the performance objesti (i) the “minimum,” “target” and “maximum” thshold levels of performance, (iii) the
weighing of the performance objectives, (iv) theoamt of bonus payable if the “target” level of merhance is attained and (v) the finally
determined amount of the bonus payments. Upon aatioplof the fiscal year, our actual operating tssare adjusted in accordance with the
Committee’s long-standing written procedures dessitjto eliminate the effects of extraordinary or-neourring transactions that were not
known, anticipated or quantifiable on the dategbdormance goals were established. Then the spboifus payments are calculated for
fiscal year using the formulas approved the praanby the Committee. These determinations andiledions are provided in writing to the
Committee for its review and approval. Since 2@, Internal Audit Department has reviewed thegerdeinations and calculations.

We generally seek to base our executives’ anndil itecentive compensation principally upon our campwide performance. Office
and managers with lower levels of responsibilifyi¢glly receive incentive compensation that placgseater emphasis on individual,
departmental or divisional goals.

Under our annual bonus programs, the Committeepagythe annual bonuses in cash or stock. Since, 00@ommittee has paid
these bonuses entirely in cash, principally to diif our compensation mix and prevent us from eredying on equity grants.
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Annual Equity Grant Procedures As explained further above, annual grants ofksawards to executives are typically made durirg
first quarter after we publicly release our earsin@rants of stock awards to newly hired executifieers who are eligible to receive them
are made at the next regularly scheduled Commitieeting following their hire date. Although we a@ currently granting options, we
maintain policies controlling when and how opticekeise prices are determined. These policieswarargrized in our prior proxy
statements. We award our executives with a gr@atgrortion of their total compensation in the foofrequity grants compared to more jur
officers.

Role of CEO and Management in Compensation Decisiol\lthough the Compensation Committee is respoadii all executive
compensation decisions, each year it receives H@®@ €recommendations, particularly with respeattecutive salaries. The Committee, in
particular, values the CEO’s input and judgmenardmng:

» the relative strengths and weakness of the otherwgives and their recent performar

» the role these executives play in achieving ourapenal and strategic goa

» internal equity issues that could impact cohegieamwork or the overall viability of the executigeoup, anc
» the relative vulnerability of executives to jobisithtions from competitor:

The Committee considers the CEO’s recommendatismsa of the many factors it uses to establish emsgtion levels for each
executive.

The CEO is also responsible for approving the ahsaiaries and bonuses of our non-executive offidecluding approval of
appropriate annual performance goals for sucheficThe CEO also approves all equity compensativards to the non-executive officers,
acting under authority delegated by the Compensa&@immmittee in accordance with our long-term ins@nplans. The Committee oversees
these processes and receives an annual reportie@EQ.

The CEO and the executive management team recomio¢he Compensation Committee and its consultasiness goals used in
establishing incentive compensation performanagetar In addition, our Senior Vice President, HuRasources, works closely with the
Committee and its consultant to ensure that ther@ittee is provided with appropriate informationdischarge its responsibilities.

Assessment of “Say on Pay” Voting Resultky May 2011, approximately 84% of the votes dnsbur shareholders with respect to our
“say on pay” proposal were favorable. Based on ewsations with our shareholders and proxy advifams, we believe some of the
negative votes were attributable to dissatisfactith (i) our large severance payments during 2@1f@rmer Embarqg executives under
binding contracts we assumed in connection withBimarq merger and (ii) our August 2010 retentitants, which our Compensation
Committee determined were necessary to providewsdedncentives for our key personnel to remainleysga with us through the
challenging and critical period of completing thev€3t merger, while at the same time integrating &pls operations into ours and
developing new strategic products in a challengingronment. We believe these severance paymemeslegally required, and these
retention payments were carefully designed to sefejus against the risk of key personnel losge2011, we paid substantial amounts of
cash and stock compensation to retain key exeautiv€avvis, who manage a growth business withhwiiie have limited experience. We
also remain subject to incumbent Qwest and Sawyrsements that entitle certain of their executiea®ceive severance payments if they
terminate their current employment with us undetade circumstances. We intend to minimize the am®wof these future payments to the
extent possible, and intend to continue our ongdiatpg with our shareholders to assist us in $tireg compensation programs with broad
support.
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Risk AssessmentAs part of its duties, the Compensation Committegesses risks arising out of our employee comfiengolicies
and practices. Based on its most recent assessiime@pmmittee does not believe that the risksrarisom our compensation policies and
practices are reasonably likely to materially adedr affect us. In reaching this determination,hage taken into account the risk exposures
of our operations and the following design elemefitsur compensation programs and policies:

e our balance of annual and Ic-term compensation elements at the executive andgeament levels

» our use of a diverse mix of performance metric$ theate incentives for management to attain gealsaligned with the
shareholde’ interests

» the multi-year vesting of equity awards, which potes focus on our long-term performance and mig#te risk of undue focus
on our sho-term results

» “claw-bacl” policies and award caps that provide safeguardsstgaappropriate behavior, a

» bonus arrangements that are generally subjecettnigative discretion” of either the Committeer @xecutive officers) or senior
management (for other key employe«

We believe these features, as well as the stocleship requirements for our executive officersulteig a compensation program that
aligns our executives’ interests with those of shareholders and does not promote excessive lgkgtan the part of our executives or other
employees.

Forfeiture of Prior Compensation

For over 10 years, all recipients of our equity pemsation grants have been required to contragtagtee to forfeit certain of their
awards (and to return to us any cash, securitieshar assets received by them upon the sale oh@mnShares they acquired through certain
prior equity awards) if at any time during their@oyment with us or within 18 months after terminatof employment they engage in
activity contrary or harmful to our interests. TBempensation Committee is authorized to waive tf@s$eiture provisions if it determines in
its sole discretion that such action is in our hetgrests. We have filed with the SEC copies afform of equity incentive agreements
containing these forfeiture provisions. Our 201@é&ixive Officers Short-Term Incentive Plan contanbstantially similar forfeiture
provisions.

In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelingb@nze the Board to recover compensation fromyatetive officer if the Board
determines that any bonus, incentive payment, yquard or other compensation received by the @ikecwas based on any financial or
operating result that was impacted by the execstimeowing or intentional fraudulent or illegal aturct. In addition, certain laws enacted in
2002 would require our CEO and CFO to reimburstugcentive compensation paid or trading prodigsned following the release of
financial statements that are subsequently resthtedo material noncompliance with SEC reporteguirements caused by misconduct.
Additional laws enacted in 2010, which are expetteldecome effective in 2012, will require all afraccurrent or former executive officers to
make similar reimbursement payments in connectiibin @ertain financial statement restatements, ieetive of whether such executives
were involved with the mistake that caused theatestent.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Under our current stock ownership guidelines, tBGs required to beneficially own CenturyLink dtamual in market value to at
least six times his annual base salary, and adiraRkecutive officers are required to beneficiallyn CenturyLink stock valued at least three
times their annual base salary. Each executiveaffias three years to attain these targets.

Under our director stock ownership guidelines, eadside director must beneficially own CenturyLstkck equal in market value to
five times the annual cash retainer payable toideidirectors. Each outside director has five y&ans the date they are elected or appointed
to attain this target.
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For any year during which an executive or outsideador does not meet his or her ownership tathetexecutive or director is expec
to hold 65% of the CenturyLink stock that he or akbquires through our equity compensation prograxduding shares sold to pay related
taxes.

For additional information on our stock ownershipdglines, see “Governance Guidelines.”

Use of Employment Agreements

We have a long-standing practice of not providingpyment agreements to our officers, and nonaiofang-standing executives has
been granted an employment agreement. In connesttbrour recent mergers, however, we have assigeeeral employment agreements
formerly granted by Embarqg, Qwest or Savvis tafficers. In certain instances, we were obligatechtike severance payments to certain of
those officers when they terminated employment wghAs a condition of re-employing one of Embarigrmer executives, we entered in
short-term employment agreement with him in Sep&m2010.

Tax Gross-ups

We eliminated the use of tax “gross-up” benefitsim executives’ change of control agreements aliddollar insurance policies in
2010, and in our outside directors’ executive ptgisprogram in early 2012. Consequently, we comtittuprovide these tax benefits only to a
limited number of our officers under legacy empl&yrhagreements that are expected to lapse oveettiecouple of years. Under a legacy
agreement with James E. Ousley expiring on DeceBibe2012, we made during the second half of 2Q1iof-recurring tax “gross-up”
payments relating to accelerated change of coh&oéfits and (i) tax “gross-up” payments relatiodravel expense reimbursements, all of
which are explained further in the Summary Comptmsd able below. We do not intend to provide taasg-up benefits in any new
compensation programs.

Anti-Hedging Policy
Under our insider trading policy, our employees dindctors may not:
e purchase or sell sh-term options with respect to CenturyLink sha
e engage ir“short sale” of CenturyLink shares, ¢

* engage in hedging transactions involving Centurklshares which allow employees to fix the valu¢heir CenturyLink
shareholdings without all the risks of ownershigause them to no longer have the same interesigjectives as our other
shareholders

Other Compensation Matters

To the extent that it is practicable and consistétit our executive compensation objectives, wk $eeomply with Section 162(m) of
the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations addpereunder in order to preserve the tax dedlitstiof performancebased compensati
in excess of $1 million per taxable year to eachwfofficers. However, if compliance with Sectib®2(m) conflicts with our compensation
objectives or is contrary to the best interestthefshareholders, we will pursue those objectiragmrdless of the attendant tax implication:
each of the last several years, we granted timeegesstricted stock that did not qualify as perfance-based compensation under
Section 162(m). As described further above, we péd a small portion of our 2011 annual incenbeauses on terms that did not comply
with Section 162(m).
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and disdusith management the report included above uiigeineading Compensatio
Discussion and Analysis.” Based on this review disdussion, the Compensation Committee recommetadie Board that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis report beuded in this proxy statement and incorporated @guioAnnual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee of thedBafdDirectors.

Laurie A. Siegel (Chair Virginia Boulet
Fred R. Nichols William A. Owen:
Harvey P. Perry

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Overview

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding the compensation of (i) our principal@xere and financial officers and
(i) each of our three most highly compensated etree officers other than our principal executiveldinancial officers. Following this table
is additional information regarding incentive compation, pension benefits, deferred compensatidrpatential termination payments
pertaining to the named officers. For addition&imation on the compensation summarized belowadher benefits, see “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis.”

Summary Compensation Table

Restricted Non-Equity Change in

Name and Principal Stock Incentive Plan Pension All Other
Position Year Salary Awards (1) Compensation(?) Value 3 Compensation (4) Total
Glen F. Post, llI 2011 $1,020,801 $4,706,73" $ 1,224,996/ $383,28: $ 1,218,550 $ 8,554,28
Chief Executive Officer 201( 1,020,801 9,590,82: 1,888,48! 661,93t 1,414,40: 14,576,44.
and President 200¢ 1,009,441 3,817,76. 891,61¢ 389,37 1,358,80! 7,467,000
Karen A. Puckett 2011 663,87 2,053,85! 772,02: 210,95 425,26« 4,125,97!
Executive Vice Preside 201C 663,87 3,562,35! 835,15 300,08( 469,69¢ 5,831,151
and Chief Operating Office 200¢ 654,02: 1,431,78! 488,95’ 219,61: 476,59 3,270,97!
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 2011 598,76 1,591,73. 696,30t 259,68! 433,13: 3,579,61!
Executive Vict 201( 598,76:- 2,936,20: 753,24! 378,54 658,39( 5,325,14!
President and Chief Financial Offic  200¢ 588,23 1,193,10! 359,89! 270,16: 466,06t 2,877,46!
James E. Ousle® 2011 252,08: 3,765,99 257,70¢ — 1,641,48 5,917,261
Chief Executive
Officer, SAVVIS
Operations, and President —
Enterprise Markets Grou
David D. Cole 2011 435,38( 1,180,95. 406,38 202,59: 254,72( 2,480,03.
Senior Vice Preside— 201 435,38( 2,062,04 418,83! 257,59¢ 301,70 3,475,56'
Controller and 200¢ 424,85: 773,20( 260,07 195,60 288,98: 1,942,71.

Operations Suppo

(1) The amounts shown in this column reflect the faiue of (i) awards of restricted stock made inyea@11, 2010 and 2009 in connect
with our program of making annual long-term inceattompensation grants and (ii) additional awafdsstricted stock made in
August 2010 in connection with a retention progidesignec
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to incentivize and retain our top personnel throtighcompletion date of the Qwest acquisition dvedinitial integration period
thereafter. In all such instances, the fair valtihe award has been determined as of the dateaof gnder FASB ASC Topic 718
(formerly SFAS 123(R)). Subject to limited exceptpwe value time-vested restricted shares usitfgt@day volume-weighted average
price. In 2010 and 2011, a portion of the sharegsificted stock granted to each named executihe than Mr. Ousley) were
performance-based restricted shares, which aredals of the grant date based on probable outcemg Monte Carlo simulations.
The aggregate value of the restricted stock awgnaisted to these named executive in 2011, measwsretithe grant date using a day
volume-weighted average price and assuming maxipeniormance of his or her performance-based réstrishares, would be as
follows: Mr. Post, $6,600,000, Ms. Puckett, $2,880, Mr. Ewing, $2,232,000, and Mr. Cole, $1,656,08ee footnote 9 titled “Share-
based Compensation” of the notes to our auditezhiial statements included Appendix Bor an explanation of material assumptions
that we used to calculate the fair value of théseksawards

(2) The amounts shown in this column reflect (8lt@ayments made under our annual incentive bdans for actual performance in the
respective years and (ii) the portion of Ms. PutkeMr. Ewing’s and Mr. Cole’s August 2010 defadreash award that was paid during
2011. For additional information on the most redsomius payments, see “— Incentive CompensatiorCihdr Awards — 2011
Awards” below.

(3) Reflects the net change during each of thesyesdlected in the present value of the executimesumulated benefits under the defined
benefit plans discussed un¢‘— Pension Benefit”

(4) The amounts shown in this column are comprafdd the payment of cash in lieu of previouslyffesed perquisites for the six months
ended June 30, 2009, when these cash paymentdemmiaated, (ii) reimbursements for the cost ohanual physical examination,

(iii) personal use of our aircraft, (iv) contribotis or other allocations to our defined contribudans, (v) the payment of premiums on
life insurance policies, (vi) cash payments to cengate the executives for any taxes incurred ugogipt of such life insurance
premium payments (which is a benefit that was teateid as of January 1, 2011), (vii) the value oidginds paid on the executives’
unvested restricted stock (which is a benefit tias fully phased out by the end of 2011), and)(triéivel expenses pertaining to
Mr. Qusley, in each case for and on behalf of tw@ed officers as follow:
Life
Insuranct
Tax
Physica  Aircraft  Contribution:  Premium:  Reimbursemel .
Restrictec
Cash Stock Travel
Name Year  Allowance Exam Use to Plans Paid Payment: Dividends  Expense Total
Mr. Post 2011 $ —  $3200 $2084¢ $ 102,020 $19159¢ $ — $9000,83% $ —  $1,218,50
201¢ — 3,26¢ 6,94( 74,92¢ 191,59 129,60  1,008,07: — 1,414,40:
200¢ 18,76: 2,290 11,50( 76,52¢  213,31¢ 144,29 892,11 — 1,358,80!
Ms. Pucket 2011 — 3,46¢ — 51,57 71,301 — 298,92 — 425,26
201¢ — — 2,42( 3,06¢ 42,531 28,77( 392,91 — 469,69t
200¢ 15,28( 2,891 3,52t 45,93 44,25¢ 29,93¢ 334,77 — 476,59
Mr. Ewing 2011 — — — 47,43¢ 131,34 — 254,35! — 433,13
201¢ — — — 37,428 175,65! 118,82 326,48 — 658,39
200¢ 15,28 3,12¢ 4,35( 38,21 75,30¢ 50,93¢ 278,85! — 466,06t

Mr. Ousley 2011 — — — 8,25( 3,81( 1,329,88 274,37¢ 2516  1,641,48

Mr. Cole 2011 — — — 29,98 56,82¢ — 167,91 — 254,72(

201¢ — — — 27,14 33,89¢ 22,92 217,73 — 301,70

200¢ 15,28( — 5,40( 27,54; 35,531 24,03 181,18t — 288,98
The amounts shown in the chart above do filetcteany benefits associated with participatingdoreational activities scheduled during
board retreats. For additional information, “Compensation Discussion and Analy— Other Benefit— Perquisite¢”

(5) James E. Ousley was named as Chief Executiffee@fSavvis Operations, on July 15, 2011 in catioa with the closing of the Savvis

merger. Prior to such date, Mr. Ousley served a<liief executive officer of Savvis. Except as othge expressly provided herein to
the contrary, the tables above and the accompanjsatpsures below reflect only compensation pgicknturyLink to Mr. Ousley
since July 15, 2011. The amount reported in “NomiBncentive Plan Compensation” reflects the athonus paid to Mr. Ousley
under the CenturyLink annual incentive bonus ptarfize and a half months in 2011 during which hesva CenturyLink officer. In
addition, following the merger, we paid Mr. Ouskl,311,411 of tax “gross-ugfayments designed to reimburse him for taxes teat
triggered by the partial acceleration of his outdiag equity awards i
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connection with the merger, which is included undr Other Compensation.” Under his employmentegmnent, we reimburse

Mr. Qusley for his work-related expenses associaitid commuting from his home in Sedona, Arizona] also reimburse his tax
liability for those costs. During the five and dflrmonths of 2011 when Mr. Ousley was a CenturyLafiicer, those travel costs were
$25,162 (plus a $18,469 tax gross-up), all of wiachreflected under “All Other Compensation.” Bwemmary Compensation Table
excludes certain amounts paid to Mr. Ousley aftemherger with respect to compensation awardedrt@Msley before the merger,
including the payment of $482,998 for his bonusedrduring the first six and a half months of 20htler Savvis’ annual incentive
plan.

Incentive Compensation and Other Awards

2011 Awards The table and discussion below summarizes:

. the range of potential payouts under incentive bawards that (i) were granted to each named offiter than James E.
Ousley in June 2011 with respect to performanceduhe last nine months of 2011 and (ii) were ggdrio Mr. Ousley in
September 2011 with respect to performance duhiedast five and a half months of 2011,

. grants of (i) time-vested restricted stock andriveye of potential payouts under grants of perfogeabased restricted
stock, in each case made to each named officer titae James E. Ousley during 2011 as long-terenitive
compensation, and (ii) tir-vested restricted stock made to Mr. Ousley in Oet@®11 as lor-term compensatiot

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

All other
Range of Payouts Under 2011 Non- Estimated Future Share Payouts Under Grant
Equity Incentive Plan Awards (2 Equity Incentive Plan Awards (3) StOCk_ Date
Awards: Fair
Threshold Maximum  Threshold Unvestec Value
of Stock
Type of Award Target Target Maximum Shares Awards
Name and Grant Date () $) $) $) #) (#) #) #) @ ($) ®
Glen F. Post, llI Annual Bonus $ 638,00 $1,276,000 $2,552,00! — — — — $ —
T-V Grant (5/31/11 — — — — — — 52,707 2,199,99
F-B Grant (5/31/11 — — — 26,354 52,70 105,41 — 2,506,74!
Karen A. Pucket Annual Bonus 282,14¢ 564,29: 1,128,58: — — — — —
T-V Grant (5/31/11 — — — — — — 22,99¢ 959,97¢
F-B Grant (5/31/11 — — — 11,50( 23,00( 46,00( — 1,093,88!
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji Annual Bonus 254,47" 508,94¢ 1,017,89! — — — — —
T-V Grant (5/31/11 — — — — — — 17,82« 743,97:
F-B Grant (5/31/11 — — — 8,91: 17,82¢ 35,65( — 847,75
James E. Ousley
Annual Bonus 140,05¢ 280,11 560,23( — — — — —
T-V Grant (10/7/11 — — — — — — 114,85 3,765,99
David D. Cole Annual Bonus 141,49¢ 282,99° 565,99: — — — — —
T-V Grant (5/31/11 — — — — — — 13,22« 551,97(
P-B Grant (5/31/11 — — — 6,612 13,22¢ 26,45( — 628,98

(1)
()

(3)

(4)
()

“T-V” means‘Time-Veste("” and“P-B” means*Performanc-Basec”

These columns provide information on the pagdiionus payouts approved with respect to 201fopeance. For information on the
actual amounts paid based on 2011 performanceiarisee the column of the Summary CompensatioteTabeled “Non-Equity
Incentive Plan Compensation.” As described furthedow, the failure to meet the “minimum” threshéggels of performance would
result in no annual bonus payme

Represents performance-based shares of regtgtdck granted on May 31, 2011 to each namedigxemther than Mr. Ousley, as
described in greater detail belc

Represents tin-vested shares of restricted stock granted duridg 28s described in greater detail bel

Calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topi8 {tbrmerly SFAS 123 (R)). During 2011, we valuedtricted shares using (i) a 15-
day volume-weighted average price of our stoclkafbtime-vested shares issued to our named officerar than Mr. Ousley, (ii) the
closing price of our stock on the grant date foretivested shares issued to Mr. Ousley and (iiesberived based on probable
outcomes using Monte Carlo simulations for all perfance-based restricted shares issued to our neffiegts. See Note 1 to the
Summary Compensation Table above for more infoiona
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Terms of 2011 Restricted Stock Awards.

May 31, 2011 Awards to Executiv@$ie restricted stock issued to our executive ofian May 31, 2011 consisted of awards of time-
vested restricted stock and performance-basedatestistock.

For each named officer, the shares of time-vesstlicted stock will vest in three equal installiseon May 31 of 2012, 2013, and
2014, subject to the named officer’s continued @yplent with us.

For each named officer, the performance-basedatestrshares will, subject to the named officedatnued employment, vest on
May 31, 2014, based on our three-year total shédeheoeturn for 2011, 2012 and 2013, as measurabhsigtotal shareholder return of the
S&P 500 companies for the same three-year period.

In addition to the vesting described above, atheke time-vested restricted shares and performizamed restricted shares also vest
upon the death or disability of the named offiegrd some or all of these shares may under celitaimestances vest or remain subject to
future vesting upon the retirement of the nameiteffat his or her early or normal retirement dgeaddition, upon certain terminations of
employment following a change of control of the Qmamy, the time-vested restricted shares will vadtthe performance-based restricted
shares will remain subject to future vesting, aldascribed in greater detail under “— Potentiahiieration Payments.”

In the preceding “Grants of Plan-Based Awards’d@atile number of performance-based restricted sliated under the “target”
column for each named executive officer represtmsmumber of shares actually granted to thatefféad that will vest if we perform at the
targeted performance level, which is attainingltskereholder return over the three-year perforrageesiod equal to the S€percentile of the
total shareholder return of the companies commitie S&P 500 Index for the same three-year peEadh named executive officer has the
opportunity to receive a greater or lesser numbshares depending on our total shareholder réturaelation to that of the S&P 500
companies, as illustrated further below:

Payout as % o

Performance Level Company'’s Percentile Rank Target Award
Maximum > 75t percentile 200%
Target 50t percentile 100%
Threshold 25t percentile 50%
Below Thresholc < 25thpercentile 0%

Amounts will be prorated if our rank is betweenti¢ threshold and the target amounts or (ii) #ngdt and the maximum amounts. In no

event, however, will more than 100% of the shaet if our total shareholder return for the thyeer period is negative. Any contingent ri
of a named executive officer to receive more ttennumber of shares actually granted are treatets lag restricted stock units under the
terms of the CenturyLink 2011 Equity Incentive Plan

October 7, 2011 Awards to Mr. Ousl&he restricted stock issued to Mr. Ousley on Oat@h@011 consisted of time-vested restricted
stock. Mr. Ousley’s shares of time-vested resttic®ck will vest on December 31, 2012, subjedltoOusley’s continued employment with
us. Mr. Ousley’s time-vested restricted sharesaldb vest upon his death or disability, and athefse shares may under certain
circumstances vest upon his retirement. In additipon certain terminations of employment followanghange of control of the Company,
all such shares will vest, as described in greddéail under “— Potential Termination Payments”.

Other Terms of Award#ll dividends related to the above-described tinested and performance-based restricted sharebenilaid to
the holder only upon the vesting of such shareseddrand until forfeited, these shares may be Vioyettie named executive officers.

All of these above-described restricted sharesalogect to forfeiture if the officer competes with or engages in certain other activities
harmful to us, all as specified further in the ferof incentive agreements that we have filed Wwith$EC. See “— Potential Termination
Payments.”
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Outstanding Awards The table below summarizes information on stquioms and unvested restricted stock outstanding at

December 31, 2011.

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 201®

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Securities Underlying Equity Incentive Plan
Unexercised Options Awards (3) All Other Stock Awards
: Market

E?(F(Jatrlgge Market Value of
Option Value of Unvested Shares that

Expiration Unvested Unvested Shares (# Have Not

Name Exercisable (# Unexercisable (#f2  Price ($) Date Shares (# Shares ($) “ Vested
Glen F. Post, Il 200,00( — $45.9C 2/26/201° — $ = 11,70C $ 435,24(
— — 50,95¢ 1,895,56.
— — 48,83 1,816,58!
63,20( 2,351,041 42,13¢ 1,567,38!
— — 127,31 4,736,19:
52,70 1,960, 70! 52,70 1,960, 70!
Karen A. Pucket 75,00( — 4590 2/26/201 — 4,40( 163,68(
— — 19,11( 710,89:
— — 18,31 681,28:
27,57¢ 1,025,93 18,38¢ 683,95¢
— 38,29¢ 1,424,611
22,99¢ 855,56 22,99¢ 855,56
R. Stewart Ewing, J 22,50(®) — 28.3¢  2/25/201: — — 3,66( 136,15:
62,10(® — 33.4C 2/17/201! — — 15,92/ 592,37:
62,50( — 35.41 2/20/201t — — 15,26: 530,06
62,50( — 45.9C 2/26/201°  21,37: 795,07t 14,24¢ 530,06
— — 34,54 1,284,92!
17,82« 663,05: 17,82¢ 663,09(
James E. Ousle 5,131 — 30.41 5/14/201: — — 189,22¢ 7,039,24.
5,131 — 28.3¢  5/30/201¢ — — 81,30¢ 3,024,541
246,97 — 16.1¢ 3/8/202( — — 33,54% 1,247,94:
David D. Cole 40,50( — 45.9C 2/26/201 — — 2,40( 89,28(
— — 10,32( 383,90:
— — 9,89( 367,90¢
15,85¢ 589,91 10,57: 393,27¢
— — 22,40( 833,28
13,22¢ 491,97( 13,22¢ 493,08t
(1) Allinformation on exercisability, vesting amtarket value is solely as of December 31, 2011.6ohthe options or restricted stock

()

(3)

(4)

(5)

listed above may have vested, become exercisallleaor exercised since such d

Our options generally vest at a rate of onedthier year over the first three years of the tearyption term. Our options expiring in
2014 and 2015 vested one-third immediately withrémeainder vesting over the following two yearss@lin late 2005, the Company
accelerated the vesting of all then-outstandingpopt In addition, our options accelerate and beconmmediately exercisable in full
upon a change of control of CenturyLink or if tleeipient dies, becomes disabled or reti

Represents the performance-based portion aettected shares granted on March 8, 2010 and3a011. The chart above assumes
that we will perform at “target” levels such th#itgerformance-based shares granted to each naxeedtése will vest fully. See “—
2011 Award” above.

All shares listed under this column with a drdate preceding 2009 are shares of restricted ¢iat generally vest at a rate of 20% per
year during the first five years after their grdate. All shares listed under this column with @2®010 or 2011 grant date are shar
restricted stock that generally vest at a ratenefthird per year during the first three yearsrafiat grant date, except that Mr. Ousley’s
restricted stock granted on October 7, 2011 vesBerember 31, 2012, as described further hengiaddlition, vesting of our restricted
stock accelerates upon a change of control of @gnittk or upon termination of the officer’'s emplogmt as a result of death or
disability, or, if permitted by the Compensationn@uittee, retirement or termination by CenturyLiskbject to certain exceptior

In 2006, Mr. Ewing transferred to his ex-wifgtions entitling her to purchase up to 185,000 Cemi@hares in the aggregate, of which
121,000 options have been exercised as of Decedib@011
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2011 Exercises and Vesting@he following table provides information on Comm®hares acquired by the named officers during 2011
in connection with the exercise of options andwbsting of restricted stock.
Option Exercises and Stock Vested

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of

Value Realizec

Number of ;
Shares Shares Value Realizec

Acquired On Exercise Acquired
Name on Exercise @) on Vesting on Vesting®
Glen F. Post, llI — — 118,77 $ 4,811,341
Karen A. Pucket — — 45,86 1,857,13:
R. Stewart Ewing, J — — 37,667 1,525,55.
James E. Ousle@ — — — —
David D. Cole — — 25,13t 1,017,69:

(1) Based on the closing price of the Common Shargbh@applicable exercise or vesting di
(2) Limited to equity awards granted to Mr. Ousley sn@iryLink since his commencement of service og 16| 2011

Pension Benefits

Amount of Benefits. The following table and discussion summarizessgenbenefits payable to the named officers unjleug
retirement plan qualified under Internal Revenueé&8ection 401(a), which permits most of our emgédsy(including officers) who have
completed at least five years of service to recpamsion benefits upon attaining early or normatement age, and (ii) our nonqualified
supplemental plan, which is designed to pay suppieal retirement benefits to officers in amountsatdo the benefits such officers would
otherwise forego due to federal limitations on cemgation and benefits under qualified plans. Werref these defined benefit plans below
as our Qualified Plan and our Supplemental Plapeetively.

Pension Benefits

Number of
Present
Years Value of Payments During
Credited Accumulated
Name (1) Plan Name Service(?) Benefit 3) Last Fiscal Year
Glen F. Post, llI Qualified Plar 13 $1,431,14! $ =
Supplemental Pla 13 1,488,96! —
Karen A. Pucket Quialified Plar 12 814,84 —
Supplemental Pla 12 556,35: —
R. Stewart Ewing, J Qualified Plar 13 1,509,90 —
Supplemental Pla 13 613,85! —
David D. Cole Quialified Plar 13 1,126,53 —
Supplemental Pla 13 277,90¢ —

(1) James E. Ousley does not participate in eitheQualified Plan or our Supplemental Pl

(2) In accordance with our plans and practicessdtigures correspond to the named officers’ teati@enturyLink and its predecessors,
unless otherwise noted in the discussion be

(3) These figures represent accumulated benefidé Becember 31, 2011 (assuming the executive msranployed by us and begins
receiving retirement benefits at the normal retigatrage of 65), discounted from the normal retireinagie to December 31, 2011 using
discount rates ranging between 5.5% to 6.0%. See 8lttled “Employee Benefits” of the notes to audited financial statements
included inAppendix Efor additional information
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CenturyLink Pension Plans With limited exceptions, we “froze” our Qualifi¢dlan and Supplemental Plan as of December 31,2010
which means that no additional monthly pension benleave accrued under such plans since that(diiteough service after that date
continues to count towards vesting and benefiilglity and a limited transitional benefit contimrsiéo accrue through 2015).

Prior to this freezing of benefit accruals, theraggite amount of a participant’s total monthly pemé&enefit under the Qualified Plan
and Supplemental Plan was equal to the participametars of service since 1999 (up to a maximunOofedars) multiplied by the sum of
(i) 0.5% of his final average pay plus (i) 0.5%hi$ final average pay in excess of his compensatitnject to Social Security taxes, where
“final average pay” was defined as the participaat’erage monthly compensation during the 60 caisecnonth period within his last ten
years of employment in which he received his higbempensation. Effective December 31, 2010, theli@ed Plan and Supplemental PI
were amended to cease all future benefit accrumlenthe above formula (except where a collectawgining agreement provides
otherwise). In lieu of additional accruals undex #bbove-described formula, each affected partitipaccrued benefit as of December 31,
2010 is scheduled to increase 4% per year, comgabadnually through the earlier of December 31528¥1the termination of the
participant’s employment.

Under both of these CenturyLink retirement plarsietage monthly compensation” is determined basdteparticipant’s salary plus
annual cash incentive bonus. Although the pensémefits described above are provided through sepplans, we reserve the right to
transfer benefits from the Supplemental Plan taQhbaelified Plan to the extent allowed under Trepsagulations and other guidance. The
value of benefits transferred to the Qualified Rlaectly offsets the value of benefits in the Sepgental Plan. In 2005, 2006 and 2007, we
transferred pension benefits to the Qualified Pllae,incremental value of which will be payabldhe recipients in the form of enhanced
annuities or supplemental benefits. The enhancedities are not part of the normal retirement bi¢refd were not impacted by the plan
freeze.

The normal form of benefit payment under both &f @enturyLink retirement plans is (i) in the casemmarried participants, a montl
annuity payable for the life of the participantddfi) in the case of married participants, an agally equivalent monthly annuity payable for
the lifetime of the participant and a survivor aitypayable for the lifetime of the spouse uponpheticipant’s death. Participants may elect
optional forms of annuity benefits under each @ad, in the case of the Qualified Plan, an anrthigy guarantees ten years of benefits, all of
which are actuarially equivalent in value to themal form of benefit. The enhanced annuities desdriin the prior paragraph may be paid in
the form of a lump sum, at the participant’s elauti

The normal retirement age is 65 under the Qualifilth and the Supplemental Plan. Participants megive benefits under both of
these plans upon “early retirement,” which is defiras attaining age 55 with five years of servitreder both of these plans, the benefit
payable upon early termination is calculated uridenulas that pay between 60% to 100% of the b&selgenefit and 48% to 92% of the
excess plan benefit, in each case with the lowerstemtage applying to early retirement at age sbpaoportionately higher percentages
applying to early retirement after age 55. For ddal information on early retirement benefitegde see the early retirement provisions of
our pension plans, copies of which are filed with SEC.

Glen Post and Stewart Ewing are currently eligibleearly retirement under the Qualified Plan ang@emental Plan.

Prior to 2008, we maintained a nonqualified supgletal executive retirement plan. In early 2008 wgeahtinued this plan by freezing
future benefit accruals and permitting participantseceive in January 2009 a lump sum distributibthe present value of their accrued plan
benefits. Each of the named officers received glsam payment in January 2009, and none has arain#rg benefits under this plan.

Deferred Compensation

The following table and discussion provides infotimaon our Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, Wiscdesigned to permit officers
to defer a portion of their salary in excess ofah#unts that may be deferred under federal laveignivg qualified 401(k) plans.
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Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

Aggregate
Aggregate Executive CenturyLink Aggregate Balance at
Balance at Contributions Contributions Aggregate Withdrawals/ December 31
December 31 Earnings
in
Name (1) 2010 in 2011(2) in 2011 ) 20114 Distributions 2011
Glen F. Post, llI $1,501,84 $ 216,24. $ 94,50¢ $(35,77() — $1,776,83I
Karen A. Pucket 604,61¢ 83,81 48,89: (7,672 — 729,65(
R. Stewart Ewing, J 489,62: 65,77 38,86( 15,35¢ — 609,61:
David D. Cole 392,11 55,18¢ 23,01¢ (2,950 — 467,36¢

(1) James E. Ousley does not participate in this |

(2) All of these amounts in this column reflect contitibns by the officer of salary paid in 2011 andaeed as 2011 salary compensatic
the Summary Compensation Tat

(3) This column includes our match of the officeststribution under the terms of the plan. We haflkected all of these amounts as 2011
compensation in the column of the Summary Compansagble labele All Other Compensatio”

(4) Adggregate earnings in 2011 include interestidéinds and distributions earned with respect ferded compensation invested by the
officers in the manner described in the text bel

Under our Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, aedaour senior officers may defer up to 25% ofitisalary in excess of the federal
limit on annual contributions to qualified 401(Kaps. For every dollar that participants contribtat¢his plan up to 6% of their excess salary,
we add an amount equal to the total matching pé&agerthen in effect for matching contributions magleis under our qualified 401(k) plan
(which for 2011 equaled the sum of all of the aliti% contributed and half of the next 5% contrdal)t All amounts contributed under this
supplemental plan by the participants or us maybested by the participants in the same broad/afanoney market and mutual funds
offered under our qualified 401(k) plan. Particiflamay change their investments in these fundeyatime. We reserve the right to transfer
benefits from the Supplemental Dollars & Sense Rlavur qualified 401(k) or retirement plans to theéent allowed under Treasury
regulations and other guidance. The value of bengfinsferred to our qualified plans directly effsthe value of benefits in the Suppleme
Dollars & Sense Plan. Participants in the Supplaaiddollars & Sense Plan normally receive payméiheir account balances in a lump
sum once they cease working full-time for us.

Potential Termination Payments

The materials below discuss payments and benkétsour officers are eligible to receive if theyrésign or retire, (ii) are terminated
us, with or without cause, (iii) die or become tisal or (iv) become entitled to termination bersefallowing a change of control of
CenturyLink.

Notwithstanding the information appearing below,)yhould be aware that our officers have agreéalrteit their equity compensation
awards (and profits derived therefrom) if they cetepwith us or engage in other activity harmfubtw interests while employed with us or
within 18 months after termination. Certain othempensation might also be recoverable by us uretéain circumstances after termination
of employment. See “Compensation Discussion andyaisa— Forfeiture of Prior Compensation” for manéormation.

Payments Made Upon All TerminationsRegardless of the manner in which our employesgloyment terminates prior to a chang
control, they are entitled to receive amounts ehdheing their term of employment (subject to tla¢emtial forfeitures discussed above). V
respect to each such terminated employee, suchramimelude his or her:

« salary and unused vacation pay through the daermination, payable immediately in ce
» restricted stock that has ves
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» benefits accrued and vested under our qualifiedsapglemental defined benefit pension plans, watyopits generally occurring
early or normal retirement ay

» benefits held in our qualified and supplementalrasf contribution plans, which the employee is gelhefree to receive at the
time of terminatior

* rights to continued health care benefits to themxtequired by law

Payments Made Upon Voluntary or Involuntary Termitians. In addition to benefits described under the headmmgediately above,
employees terminated by us without cause priorabamge of control are also entitled to:
» exercise all vested options within 190 days oftdrenination datt
* keep all unvested tin-vested restricted stock if approved by our Compams&ommittee

» if the termination qualifies as a layoff, (i) a baseverance payment in the amount described u@ampensation Discussion and
Analysis — Other Benefits — Reduction in Force Bésg (ii) receipt of their annual target incengibbonus, and
(iii) outplacement assistance benet

None of the benefits listed immediately above agaple if the employee resigns or is terminatectéarse, except that resigning employ
are entitled to exercise their vested options wit80 days and employees terminated for cause cegitest the Compensation Committee to
accelerate their unvested time-vested restricmzkgivhich is unlikely to be granted).

Payments Made Upon RetiremenEmployees who retire in conformity with our retirent policies are entitled to:
» exercise all of their options, all of which accalerupon retirement, within three years of thdirement date
» keep all unvested tin-vested restricted stock if approved by our Compims&ommittee
» payment of their annual target incentive bo
» pos-retirement life, health and welfare bene
» all of the benefits described under the hea“— Payments Made Upon All Terminatio”
In addition, an employee who retires from the Conypaill continue to vest in his or her unvestedfpenance-based restricted stock for the

remainder of the applicable performance periothdfemployee takes early retirement, this contiruesting opportunity only applies to a
reduced pro rata number of unvested shares, basée mumber of days he or she was employed dtmmgerformance period.

Payments Made Upon Death or DisabilityJpon death or disability, officers (or their esttare generally entitled to (without
duplication of benefits):

» payments under our disability or life insurancengleas applicabl

» exercise all of their options, all of which accelierupon death or disability, within two ye.
» keep all of their tim-vested restricted stock, whether vested or unve

» payment of their annual target incentive bo

» continued rights to receive (i) life, health andfawe benefits at early or normal retirement agehie event of disabilities of
employees with ten years of prior service, or{@nlth and welfare benefits payable to survivingilele dependents, in the event
of death of employees meeting certain age andcereguirement
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» all of the benefits described under the headingPayments Made Upon All Terminations,” except thijatigon death benefits
under our retirement plans are generally availahlg to surviving spouses and (ii) benefits payablenentally disabled
employees under our nonqualified defined benefiteiment plans may be paid prior to retirement

Payments Made Upon a Change of ConttdlVe have entered into agreements that entitle elobirexecutive officers who are
terminated without cause or resign under certa@itifipd circumstances within certain specified pesifollowing any change in control of
CenturyLink to (i) receive a lump sum cash seveggreyment equal to a multiple of such offisesthnual cash compensation, (ii) receive
officer’'s currently pending bonus, and (iii) contato receive, subject to certain exceptions, tevialfare benefits for certain specified
periods. See “Compensation Discussion and Analysidther Benefits — Change of Control Arrangemeifds’(i) a description of the
benefits under our prior and current change ofrobaigreements and (ii) information on the bengfagable to James E. Ousley under an
employment agreement that we assumed, and subsbgammended, in connection with our acquisitiorSalvvis.

Under CenturyLink’s above-referenced agreemerntshange in control” of CenturyLink would be deemntedccur upon (i) any person
(as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1&@€oming the beneficial owner of 30% or more ef thitstanding Common Shares, (ii) a
majority of our directors being replaced, (iii) summation of certain mergers, substantial asses salsimilar business combinations, or
(iv) approval by the shareholders of a liquidatisrdissolution of CenturyLink. The definition offfange of control” under Mr. Ousley’s
amended employment agreement is substantiallyaimil

The above-referenced agreements provide the beweficribed above if we terminate the officer withcause or the officer resigns
with “good reason,” which we describe further untter heading “Compensation Discussion and Analysi®ther Benefits — Change of
Control Arrangements.” Except as otherwise desdrilo@ler such heading, all of the severance arra@genfior our executives are
substantially similar. We have filed copies or ferof these agreements with the SEC.

In the event of a change in control of CenturyLiolr pre-2011 benefit plans generally provide, agnotier things, that all restrictions
on outstanding restricted stock will lapse andatktanding stock options will become fully exeatite. In addition, participants in the
supplemental defined benefit plan whose serviteriminated within two years of the change in cdniritl receive a cash payment equal to
the present value of their plan benefits (aftevaliog age and service credits of up to three yddhe participant is terminated by us without
cause or resigns with “good reason”), determineaccordance with actuarial assumptions specifigderplan. Certain account balances
under our qualified retirement plans will also yullest upon a change of control of CenturyLink.

Under the terms of our 2011 Equity Incentive Planentives granted thereunder will not vest, agetée become exercisable or be
deemed fully paid unless otherwise provided in@aesste agreement, plan or instrument. We do nehéhto provide in the future for any st
accelerated recognition of benefits upon a chamfgertrol, unless the holder of incentives is akwninated by us without cause or resigns
with good reason.

Estimated Potential Termination PaymentEhe table below provides estimates of the valugagiments and benefits that would
become payable if our current executives namedibelere terminated in the manner described belowarh case based on various
assumptions, the most significant of which are deed in the table’s notes.

As a result of our recent mergers, each of ouriezs named below is currently entitled to seveedpenefits if we terminate the
officer without cause or the officer resigns witiobd reason”. See “Compensation Discussion andyAisal— Other Benefits — Change of
Control Arrangements.”
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Potential Termination Payments

Type of Termination of Employment ()

Termination
Type of Upon a

Termination Change of

Name Payment(?) Retirement (3) Disability Death Control 4
Glen F. Post, Il Annual Bonus $ 1,276,001 $ 1,276,00! $ 1,276,001 $ 1,276,001
Equity Awards® 15,327,83 17,269,63 17,269,63 17,269,63
Pension and Welfai®©) — — — 649,80(
Cash Severanc — — — 6,706,99'
$16,603,83 $18,545,63 $18,545,63 $25,902,43
Karen A. Pucket Annual Bonus $ — $ 818,19 $ 818,19: $ 818,19
Equity Awards® — 6,639,88: 6,639,88. 6,639,88:
Pension and Welfai®) — — — 142,80(
Cash Severand — — — 3,194,42:
$ — $ 7,458,07. $ 7,458,07. $10,795,30
R. Stewart Ewing, J Annual Bonus $ 646,92 $ 646,92: $ 646,92 $ 646,92
Equity Awards®) 4,760,47 5,417,15I 5,417,15I 5,417,15I
Pension and Welfai®) — — — 336,70(
Cash Severan — — — 2,721,67.
$ 5,407,39 $ 6,064,07: $ 6,064,07. $ 9,122,44,
James E. Ousle Annual Bonus $ — $ 605,00( $ 605,00( $ 605,00(
Equity Awards®) 11,394,39 11,394,39 11,394,39 11,394,39
Pension and Welfai® — — — 22,851
Cash Severand — — — 825,00(
$11,394,39 $11,999,39 $11,999,39 $12,847,25
David D. Cole Annual Bonus $ — $ 408,51( $ 408,51( $ 408,51(
Equity Awards®) — 3,778,52! 3,778,52! 3,778,52!
Pension and Welfai® — — — 764,70(
Cash Severan«™ — — — 1,822,94.
$ — $ 4,187,03! $ 4,187,03! $ 6,774,671

(1) All data in the table reflects estimates of theueadf payments and benefits assuming the namezkoffias terminated on December

()

(3)

2011. The closing price of the Common Shares oh date was $37.20. The table reflects only estismat@mounts earned or payable
through or at such date based on various assunsptatual amounts can be determined only at the tifrtermination. If a named
officer voluntarily resigns or is terminated witause, he or she will not be entitled to any spemialccelerated benefits, but will be
entitled to receive various payments or benefits viested before the termination date. The talfleats potential payments based up
physical disability; additional benefits may be ghle in the event of a mental disabili

As further described above, upon terminatioeraployment, the named officers may become entitiedceive certain special,
accelerated or enhanced benefits, including, stibjezertain exceptions, the right to receive paynoé their annual cash incentive
bonus, an acceleration under certain circumstaofcé® vesting of their outstanding equity awarisrent or enhanced pension and
welfare benefits, or cash severance payments.dlie ¢xcludes (i) payments or benefits made underdsbased plans or arrangements
generally available to all salaried full-time emyes and (ii) benefits, awards or amounts thabtfieer was entitled to receive prior to
termination of employmen

Of the named officers, only Messrs. Post anéhBware eligible to retire early under CenturyLisklefined benefit pension plans
described above under the heading “Executive Cosgignm — Pension Benefits.” The amounts reflectedien the “Retirement”
column do not reflect the amount of lifetime angpyiayments payable upon early retirement. Assuraarty retirement as of
December 31, 2011, Messrs. Post and Ewing would baen entitled to monthly annuity payments of apipnately $20,028.51 and
$14,139.16, respectively, over their lifetimes, soohwhich, in the case of Mr. Ewing, may be pagabl his ex-wife under a qualified
domestic relations order. For further informatisee the other footnotes belc
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(4) The information in this column assumes eachethofficer became entitled at December 31, 20thddenefits under CenturyLink’s
agreements in existence on such date describec almger “— Payments Made Upon a Change of Contqodh an involuntary
termination without cause or resignation with “gaedson”. As described further under such headioge of these benefits will accrue
immediately upon a change of control, regardlesshather the officer's employment terminates. All@unts are based on several
assumptions

(5) The information in this row (i) reflects thertedit to the named officer arising out of the aecated vesting of his or her stock options
and restricted stock caused by the terminatiomgdleyment (or, in certain cases, a change of cHntvased upon the intrinsic method
of valuation, (ii) assumes that the Compensatiom@datee would not approve the acceleration of tmed officer’s restricted stock in
the event of an involuntary termination, and @g§sumes that the Compensation Committee would e@pihe acceleration of such
restricted stock in the event of the early retiratid Messrs. Post or Ewing or the retirement of Musley.

(6) The information in this row reflects only theeremental benefits that accrue upon an eventwiitation, and excludes benefits that
were vested on December 31, 2011. For informatiothe present value of the named officers’ accutadlaenefits under our defined
benefit pension plans, see “— Pension Benefits'fan information on the aggregate balances ofdmaed officers’ non-qualified
deferred compensation, see “— Deferred Compensatanindicated above, the named officer would dsoentitled to receive a
distribution of his or her 401(k) benefits and was other broz-based benefit:

(7) The information in this row excludes, in theseaf disability or death, payments made by instgarompanies. For each of Ms. Puckett
and Messrs. Ewing and Cole, this amount includesttelerated payment of the last installment ®bhiher August 23, 2010 deferred
cash retention award, which are described furthdet* Compensation Discussion and Analy— Retention Grant”

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Overview.The table and the discussion below summarizes hewampensated our outside directors in 2011.

2011 Compensation of Outside Directors

Fees Earned o Stock All Other

Name Paid in Cash Awards (1).(2) Compensation (3) Total

Charles L. Bigg$» $ 70,00( $ 100,00( $ 4,70¢ $174,70!
Virginia Boulet 121,50( 100,00( 11,58¢ 233,08!
Peter C. Browr 101,50( 100,00( 10,23¢ 211,73¢
Richard A. Gepharc 79,50( 100,00( 10,23¢ 189,73«
W. Bruce Hank: 134,00( 100,00( 19,76( 253,76(
Gregory J. McCra 108,50( 100,00( 11,58¢ 220,08
C. G. Melville, Jr. 118,50( 100,00( 11,58¢ 230,08t
Edward A. Muellei® 65,50( 100,00( — 165,50(
Fred R. Nichols 109,50( 100,00( 11,58¢ 221,08t
William A. Owens 103,50( 300,00( 14,50¢ 418,00¢
Harvey P. Perr 194,00( 100,00( 16,58¢ 310,58!
Michael J. Robert® 65,00( 100,00( 4,70t 169,70!
Laurie A. Siege 99,00( 100,00( 10,23¢ 209,23
James A. Unrul® 67,50( 100,00( 4,70¢ 172,20!
Joseph R. Zimme 98,50( 100,00( 11,58¢ 210,08t

(1) The amounts shown in this column reflect thevialue of these awards on the date of grant detesd under FASB ASC Topic 718
(formerly SFAS 123(R)). These grants vest overghyrear periods (subject to accelerated vestingitam limited circumstances),
except that Mr. Owens received a grant of $200f608erving as Chairman of the Board that will vestMay 31, 2012. See “— Cash
and Stock Paymen”
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(2) The following table sets forth, for each ougsitirector, the total number of outstanding shafemvested restricted stock and stock
options held by them as of December 31, 2011 (exatuequity awards granted to certain of the irdliails listed below prior to their
commencement of service on our board following@weest merger)

Unvested
Restricted
Stock
Name Stock Options
Charles L. Biggt 2,39¢ —
Virginia Boulet 5,58¢ —
Peter C. Browr 5,41¢ —
Richard A. Gepharc 5,41¢ —
W. Bruce Hank 5,58¢ —
Gregory J. McCra 5,58¢ —
C. G. Melville, Jr. 5,58¢ —
Edward A. Muellel 2,39¢ —
Fred R. Nichols 5,58¢ —
William A. Owens 10,20¢ —
Harvey P. Perr 5,58¢ —
Michael J. Robert 2,39¢ —
Laurie A. Siege 5,41¢ —
James A. Unrul 2,39¢ —
Joseph R. Zimme 5,58¢ 13,661

(3) Includes (i) the amount of dividends paid owested stock (which is a benefit that has beerodistued) and (ii) reimbursements for
the cost of an annual physical examination, ag¥st

Dividends or
Unvested
Restricted Physical Exam
Name Stock Reimbursemen Total

Charles L. Biggs $ 4,70% $ — $ 4,70
Virginia Boulet 11,58¢ — 11,58¢
Peter C. Browr 10,23 — 10,23
Richard A. Gepharc 10,23¢ — 10,23¢
W. Bruce Hank 16,227 3,53: 19,76(
Gregory J. McCra 11,58¢ — 11,58¢
C. G. Melville, Jr. 11,58¢ — 11,58¢
Edward A. Muellel — — —
Fred R. Nichols 11,58¢ — 11,58¢
William A. Owens 14,50¢ — 14,50¢
Harvey P. Perr 11,58t 5,00( 16,58t
Michael J. Robert 4,70¢ — 4,70¢
Laurie A. Siege 10,23¢ — 10,23¢
James A. Unrul 4,70¢ — 4,70¢
Joseph R. Zimme 11,58¢ — 11,58¢

The amounts reflected above for physical ergimbursements include travel expenses and paymetds to compensate the directors
for taxes payable as a result of receiving suahlbarsements. Except as otherwise noted in thisédet the chart above does not ref
(i) reimbursements for travel expenses or (ii) bapefits associated with participating in recreslactivities scheduled during board
retreats. For additional information, <*Compensation Discussion and Analy\— Other Benefit— Perquisite¢”

(4) On April 1, 2011, Messrs. Biggs, Mueller, Roberntsl &nruh ceased serving as directors of Qwest amthenced service on our boa
The term of Messrs. Biggs, Mueller and Unruh wildeat the meeting. S¢Election of Director¢’

In late 2011, the Compensation Committee concluldatdour director compensation lagged the mediampemsation paid to directors
peer companies, based on survey data compiledeb@dimmittee’s independent consultant. Based orddiis, the Board approved increases
in November 2011 in the cash and equity compensaiyable to our outside directors. In early 20th@nagement recommended that they
receive no increases in their compensation, eveugth their compensation was lower than thé50 péifeecompensation levels of peer
executives. In connection with accepting this recmndation, the Board elected to
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defer implementation of the previously-authorizecréases in the outside directors’ cash compemsatiee Board intends to keep this
deferral in place until such time as it determitied it is appropriate to implement the previoualithorized increases in cash compensation.

Cash and Stock Payments

Each director who is not employed by us (whom verr® as outside directors or non-management tirgcis paid an annual fee plus
additional amounts for attending various other daarcommittee meetings. These fees are summabizied:

Current New Rate

Rate M (Deferred) @)
Annual fee $50,00( $ 65,00(
Fee for attending each regular board mee 2,00(¢ 2,00(¢
Fee for attending each special board mee@ 2,50( 2,00(
Fee for attending each committee mee 1,50(C 2,00(¢
Fee for attending separate director education prog 2,50( 2,00(

@ For further information, se*— Overview”

Includes each day of the Bo’s annual planning sessic

Currently, the Chairman of the Board receives seipgintal board fees at the rate of $200,000 perpaable in shares of restricted
stock. The restricted stock issued to the ChairoraMay 31, 2011 vests May 31, 2012, subject tolacagd vesting under certain limited
circumstances. The Chairman’s duties are set fortlur Corporate Governance Guidelines. See “CatpdBovernance.”

Currently, Harvey Perry, in his capacity as nonegti@e Vice Chairman of the Board, receives suppletal board fees at the rate of
$100,000 cash per year. The Vice Chairman’s cudstiés include, among others, (i) assisting thei@man by facilitating communications
among the directors and monitoring the activitiethe Board's committees, (ii) serving at the Chrain’s request on the board of any
company in which we have an investment, (iii) moriitg our strategies and (iv) performing certaie@xive succession functions.

We pay supplemental board fees to the chairs df ehour committees. These annual supplementablfeass are summarized below:

Current New Rate

Rate (1) (Deferred) @
Chair of Audit Committee $20,00( $ 25,00(
Chair of Compensation Committ 10,00( 18,75(
Chair of Nominating Committe 10,00( 15,00(
Chair of Risk Evaluation Committe 10,00( 12,50(

@ For further information, se*— Overview”

During 2011 the Compensation Committee authorizath @utside director to receive shares of ResttiSteck valued at $100,000
(based on the average closing price of the ComnhameS during the 15 trading day period precediegitite of issuance) that vest over a
three-year period. Based on changes approved Bydaed on November 15, 2011, the Compensation Ctierréauthorized in early 2012 a
grant valued at $115,000 that vests after one ypeg@able to each outside director serving on tlyeadieer our 2012 annual meeting.

Other Benefits. Each outside director is entitled to be reimbur@efibr expenses incurred in attending board androdtee meetings,
(i) for expenses incurred in attending directoueation programs and (iii) up to $5,000 per yeattie cost of an annual physical
examination, plus related travel expenses andstimated
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income taxes incurred by the director in connectidth receiving these medical reimbursement paymedntFebruary 2012, we eliminated
the right of each outside director to be reimburfsedhe estimated income taxes incurred by sugkctbr in connection with receiving these
medical reimbursement payments.

Our bylaws require us to indemnify our directord affficers so that they will be free from undue cem about personal liability in
connection with their service to CenturyLink. Wevbaigned agreements with each of those individemhsractually obligating us to provide
these indemnification rights. We also provide owectors with customary directors and officers iliapinsurance.

Directors may use our aircraft in connection witimpany-related business. However, under our atrasafge policy, neither directors
nor their families may use our aircraft for perddnias (except on terms generally available tooflbur employees in connection with a
medical emergency). We have arranged a charteiceghat our outside directors can use at their foosheir personal air travel needs. None
of our directors have used this charter serviceesk007.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative total $twdder return on the Common Shares with the cunveladtal return of the S&P
500 Index and the S&P Integrated Telecommunicatiodex for the period from December 31, 2006 toddeber 31, 2011, in each case

assuming (i) the investment of $100 on Januand@7 2t closing prices on December 31, 2006, ahdefiivestment of dividends.

150,00
—a— CanturyLink
—B— 58P 500 Index
|~ S8P Telecom Index $133.65
E11840 $120.80
1162
£100.00 - _
400,00 $08.76
5647
55000 -+

2007 2008 2008

2010 2011

December 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
CenturyLink $100.0C $ 95.5C $67.2¢ $97.1¢ $133.6¢ $116.2:
S&P 500 Indey 100.0( 105.4¢ 66.47 84.0¢ 96.7¢ 98.7¢

100.0( 118.1( 88.4¢ 94.1: 111.8¢ 120.9(

S&P Telecom Inde®
@ ol
Verizon Communications and Windstream Corporatidre index is publicly available
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Recent Transactions

In exchange for integration consulting serviceslezad to us in 2011, we paid fees of approxim&i2h6,000 to Gephardt Group Labor
Advisory, LLC. Richard A. Gephardt, one of our diters, is the Chief Executive Officer and Presidantd a principal, of Gephardt Group
Labor Advisory, LLC.

During 2011 we paid Michael S. Mueller, a seniortfmlio manager at Savvis, total gross compensatfapproximately $243,585,
consisting of approximately $156,600 in salary,,380 in annual incentive bonuses and restricteckstath a grant date fair value of
$55,685. Mr. Mueller is the son of Edward A. Muglla director of ours since April 1, 2011, and basn an employee of Savvis since
July 21, 2008.

We are one of the largest employers in Monroe, siana and in several of our other markets, anduels, employ personnel related by
birth or marriage throughout our organization. Salef our executive officers or directors have figrmembers employed by us, although,
none of them (other than Michael S. Mueller) eampensation in excess of the $120,000 threshotdatbald require detailed disclosures
under the federal proxy rules.

Review Procedures

Early each year, our director of internal auditritisites to the Audit Committee a written repaostitig our payments to vendors,
including a list of transactions with our directoo#ficers or employees. This annual report perthi¢gsindependent directors to assess and
discuss our related party transactions. Althougtharxe no formal written pre-approval procedure gowe related party transactions, our
CEO typically seeks approval of the board beforgaging in any new related party transaction invajvsignificant sums or risks.

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLI ANCE

The Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires oecetive officers and directors, among others,leodértain beneficial ownership
reports with the Securities and Exchange Commis&doning 2011, (i) William E. Cheek filed late affo4 in connection with vesting of his
restricted shares, (ii) Dennis G. Huber filed late Form 4s in connection with sales of his ComrBtiares, (iii) James E. Ousley filed late a
Form 4 in connection with his October 2011 equitgrg, and (iv) Edward A. Mueller filed an incomm@dtorm 4 that was amended and re-
filed two days late in connection with a sale «f Biommon Shares.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING

Quorum

Our bylaws provide that the presence at the megitingerson or by proxy, of a majority of the oatsing Voting Shares constitutes a
guorum to organize the meeting.

Vote Required to Elect Directors

Our bylaws provide that each of the four directominees will be elected if the number of votes aasavor of the director exceeds the
number of votes withheld with respect to the divecYou may vote “for” all director nominees or hiiold your vote for any one or more of
the director nominees. If any of the four directfaits to receive a majority of the votes casthat meeting, our bylaws will require such
director to tender his or her resignation to theldor its consideration.

Vote Required to Adopt Other Proposals at the Meetig

With respect to all other items submitted to a vthie affirmative vote of the holders of (i) a méip of the outstanding Voting Shares is
required to approve the declassification chartegrmdments, (ii) two-thirds of the Voting Shares prdsn person or represented by proxy and
entitled to vote at the meeting is required to apprthe authorized stock charter amendment anda(imajority of the Voting Shares preser
person or represented by proxy and entitled to &bthe meeting is required to approve each obther items submitted to a vote.
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Effect of Abstentions

Shares as to which the proxy holders have beeruatst to abstain from voting with respect to aaytipular matter will be treated
under the Company’s bylaws as not being cast, ptesaepresented for purposes of such vote. Ybsteation from voting with respect to
the declassification charter amendments will h&agesame effect as a vote against that proposaauBeaall other matters must be approved
by a specified percentage of the votes cast omgddhares present or represented at the meetisignaibns will not affect the outcome of
any such vote. Shareholders abstaining from vatiigoe counted as present for purposes of consiga quorum to organize the meeting.

Effect of Non-Voting

If you properly execute and return a proxy or vgtinstruction card, your shares will be voted ag gpecify. If you are a shareholder of
record and make no specifications on your validlgrsitted proxy card, your shares will be voted aggihe shareholder proposals and in
favor of all other items. If you are a beneficialrer of shares and do not give voting instructimngour broker, bank or nominee, they will
be entitled to vote your shares only to the exspecified below.

Under the rules of the New York Stock Exchangekérs who hold shares in street name for customagsvote in their discretion on
matters considered to be “routine” when they haster@ceived voting instructions from beneficial @ Under these rules, brokers who do
not receive such instructions will be entitled tevin their discretion at the meeting with respgedhe authorized stock charter amendment
and the ratification of the appointment of the ipeledent auditor, but will not be entitled to vateheir discretion with respect to any of the
other matters submitted to a vote. If brokers wbadt receive voting instructions do not, or canegercise discretionary voting power (a
“broker non-vote”) with respect to any matter todomsidered at the meeting, shares that are netdweill be treated as present for purposes
of constituting a quorum to organize the meetingrimi present or cast with respect to considerirap snatter. Broker non-votes with respect
to the declassification charter amendments willehidne same effect as a vote against that propBseduse all other matters to be considered
at the meeting must be approved by a specifiedepeage of the votes cast or Voting Shares presaepoesented at the meeting, broker non-
votes with respect to these matters will not affaetoutcome of the voting.

Voting by Participants in Our Benefit Plans

If you beneficially own any of our Common Sharesviyue of participating in any retirement plan@énturyLink, Embarqg or Qwest,
then you will receive a separate voting instructtand that will enable you to direct the votingtloése shares. This voting instruction card
entitles you, on a confidential basis, to instiihet trustees how to vote the shares allocateduoglan account. The plans require you to act
as a “named fiduciaryvhich requires you to exercise your voting rightsdently and in the interests of all plan particifga Plan participan
who wish to vote should complete and return théngainstruction card in accordance with its instimes. If you elect not to vote the shares
allocated to your accounts, your shares will bedadh the same proportion as voted shares regaegdiolg of the items submitted to a vote at
the meeting. Plan participants that wish to reviblegr voting instructions must contact the trusied follow its procedures.

Cost of Proxy Solicitation

We will pay all expenses of soliciting proxies foe meeting. Proxies may be solicited personailyhil, by telephone or by facsimile
by our directors, officers and employees, who wnilt be additionally compensated therefor. We wdlbaequest persons holding Voting
Shares in their names for others, such as brokarks and other nominees, to forward materialeeo principals and request authority for
the execution of proxies, and we will reimbursenthfer their expenses incurred in connection thetfevile have retained Innisfree M&A
Incorporated, New York, New York, to assist in fwdicitation of proxies, for which we will pay Irsfree fees anticipated to be $15,000 and
will reimburse Innisfree for certain of its out-pécket expenses.
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Other Matters Considered at the Meeting

Management has not timely received any noticealsdtareholder desires to present any matter famaat the meeting in accordance
with our bylaws (which are described below in “OtMatters — Shareholder Nominations and Proposalsigr than the shareholder
proposals described in this proxy statement, awthisrwise unaware of any matter to be consideyeshbreholders at the meeting other than
those matters specified in the accompanying natitke meeting. Our proxy and voting instructiomdsa however, will confer discretionary
voting authority with respect to any other matteattmay properly come before the meeting. It isithention of the persons named therein to
vote in accordance with their best judgment onsmh matter.

Conduct of the Meeting

The Chairman has broad responsibility and legdiaity to conduct the meeting in an orderly andeliymanner. This authority
includes establishing rules for shareholders whehwo address the meeting. Copies of these rulebevavailable at the meeting. The
Chairman may also exercise broad discretion ingeizing shareholders who wish to speak and in deténg the extent of discussion on
each item of business. In light of the number dfibesss items on this year’s agenda and the nesshtdude the meeting within a reasonable
period of time, we cannot assure that every shédehaho wishes to speak on an item of businedswihble to do so.

Postponement or Adjournment of the Meeting

The Chairman may postpone or adjourn the meetiogr Yroxy will still be valid and may be voted héetpostponed or adjourned
meeting. You will still be able to change or revgkeir proxy until it is voted.

OTHER MATTERS
Shareholder Nominations and Proposals

In order to be eligible for inclusion in our 201®pRy materials pursuant to the federal proxy rudes; shareholder proposal to take
action at such meeting must be received by ouresayrby December 11, 2012, and must comply witiliegble federal proxy rules. In
addition, our bylaws require shareholders to furrisiely written notice of their intent to nominagtedirector or bring any other matter before
a shareholders’ meeting, whether or not they wishdlude their proposal in our proxy materialsgbmeral, notice must be received by our
Secretary between November 24, 2012 and Februa3043 and must contain specified information comicg), among other things, the
matters to be brought before such meeting and eoimgethe shareholder proposing such mattersh@fdate of the 2013 annual meeting is
more than 30 days earlier or later than May 23320btice must be received by our Secretary witlirdays of the earlier of the date on
which notice of such meeting is first mailed torgtelders or public disclosure of the meeting dataade.) For additional information on
these procedures, see “Corporate Governance —tBirdomination Process.”

Annual Financial Report

Appendix Bncludes our Annual Financial Report, which is epted from portions of our Annual Report on FormKL@r the year
ended December 31, 2011 that we filed with the Besiand Exchange Commission on February 28, 2Bl2ddition, we have provided
you with a copy of or access to a separate botikkt 2011 Review and CE's Message. Neither of these documents is a patioproxy
soliciting materials.
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You may obtain a copy of our Form 10-K report withaut charge by writing to Stacey W. Goff, SecretaryCenturyLink, Inc., 100
CenturyLink Drive, Monroe, Louisiana 71203, or by \siting our website at www.centurylink.com.

You may view online this proxy statement and relateaterials at www.envisionreports.com/ctl

By Order of the Board of Directors

Mopurloys

Stacey W. Goff
Secretary

Dated: April 10, 2012
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APPENDIX A
to Proxy Statemen

Proposed Declassification
Charter Amendments
If the Declassification Charter Amendments are &elbpSections A, B and C of Article IV of our resta articles of incorporation wot
be amended and restated as follows:*
ARTICLE IV

Directors

A. Number of Directors The business and affairs of this Corporationldf@managed under the direction of the Board oé@ors. Th

number of directors comprising the Board of Direstof this Corporation (exclusive of directors whay be elected by the holders of any
or more series of Preferred Stock voting separpsiigll be-H4tmtess-othermidetermined from time to time by resolution adogigdhe
affirmative votes of both (i) 80% of the directanen in office and (ii) a majority of the ContingiDirectors (as defined in Article V(D)),
voting as a separate group, provided, however hatecrease in the number of directors shall ehdfte term of any incumbent director.

B. Term . All directors elected by shareholders at and afrethe 2012 annual meeting of shareholders shall habloffice until the
next annual meeting of shareholders and until theisuccessors are duly elected and qualified. Direeowhose terms do not expire at
the 2012 annual meeting of shareholders shall hotaffice until the annual meeting for the year in wheh the director’s term expires anc
until their successors are duly elected and qualiid.

C. Vacancies Except as provided in Article 1V(G) hereof, argrancy on the Board (including any vacancy resuifiiom an increase
in the authorized number of directors or from éufa of the shareholders to elect the full numideaushorized directors) may,
notwithstanding any resulting absence of a quortidirectors, be filled only by the Board of Diretdpacting by vote of both (i) a majority
the directors then in office and (ii) a majorityadf the Continuing Directors, voting as a sepagataip, and any director so appointed shall

serve until the next shareholders’ meeting heldHerelection of directors-efthe-elassto-whictshet-have-beenappettadd until his

successor is duly elected and qualified.
* New language is shown in bold face type; removaduage is shown as being strick
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL ANNUAL REPORT
December 31, 2011

The materials included in this Appendix B are eptat from Items 5, 6, 7 and 8 of our Annual ReporForm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011. which we filed with the Seasitéind Exchange Commission on February 28, 20Easklsee the Form -K for
additional information about our business and opfienas.

Information on Our Trading Price and Divider B-3
Selected Financial Da B-4
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior B-6
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemebiaty B-33
Report of Managemel B-33
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing B-34
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing B-35
Consolidated Statements of Operati B-36
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Losg)er B-37
Consolidated Balance She: B-38
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc B-39
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity B-40
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemel B-41

* All references t¢*Note¢” in this Appendix B refer to these Noti
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INFORMATION ON OUR TRADING PRICE AND DIVIDENDS

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange (“NYSE”) and the Berlin Stock Exchange anttdded under the symbol
CTL and CYT, respectively. The following table skigh the high and low reported sales prices @Nl SE along with the quarterly
dividends, for each of the quarters indicated.

Sales prices Dividend per
High Low common shar¢
2011
First quartel $46.7¢ 39.4¢ 72t
Second quarte 43.4¢ 38.6¢ 72t
Third quartel 41.3: 31.7¢ 72t
Fourth quarte 38.01 31.1¢ 72t
2010
First quartel $37.0( 32.9¢ 72%
Second quarte® 36.7: 14.1¢€ 72t
Third quartel 40.0¢ 32.92 72t
Fourth quarte 46.8i 39.1¢ 72t

(1) During the widely-publicized temporary markétrdption that occurred on the afternoon of Mag®10, our common stock
momentarily traded as low as $14.16 in marketsrdtien the NYSE. The opening and closing pricesurfcommon stock on May 6,
2010, were $34.48 and $33.52, respectiv

Common stock dividends during 2011 and 2010 weie ¢@ch quarter.

As described in greater detail in Item 1A of oumWal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecerBhe2011, the declaration and
payment of dividends is at the discretion of ounibof Directors, and will depend upon our finahoésults, cash requirements, future
prospects and other factors deemed relevant bidoard of Directors.

At February 21, 2012, there were approximately Q06 stockholders of record although there wereifsigimtly more beneficial holde
of our common stock. At February 21, 2012, theiokpstock price of our common stock was $39.43.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table of selected consolidated finahdata should be read in conjunction with andcuralified by reference to the
consolidated financial statements and notes thamdahe accompanying “Management’s Discussionfaralysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” in Items 8 and 7, respeltjvaf our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yesrded December 31, 2011.

The table of selected financial data shown belodeisved from our audited consolidated financiatesents. These historical results
are not necessarily indicative of results that gan expect for any future period.

The results of operations include Savvis for pesiafter July 15, 2011, Qwest for periods after Apr2011 and Embarq for periods
after July 1, 2009.

Selected financial information from the consolidastatements of operations data is as follows:

Years Ended December 31(1)
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts
and shares in thousands)

Operating revenue $ 15,35 7,042 4,97¢ 2,60( 2,65¢€
Operating expenst $ 13,32¢ 4,98z 3,741 1,87¢ 1,86:
Operating incom: $ 2,02t 2,06( 1,23: 721 793
Income before income tax exper $ 94¢ 1,531 81: 561 62C
Net income $ 57% 94¢ 647 36€ 41€
Basic earnings per common sh $ 107 3.1: 3.2¢ 3.5¢ 3.7¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 1.07 3.13 3.2¢8 3.52 3.71
Dividends declared per common sh $ 2.9 2.9C 2.8C 2.167¢ .2€
Weighted average basic common shares outstal 532,78( 300,61¢ 198,81 102,26¢ 109,36(
Weighted average diluted common shares outstar 534,12: 301,29 199,05 102,56( 112,78

(1) See Management’s Discussion and Analysis ddiéial Condition and Results of Operations—Refl@perations in Item 7 of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddzemn31, 2011 for a discussion of unusual itemsctiffg the results as of the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2

Selected financial information from the consolidabalance sheets is as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(Dollars in millions)
Net property, plant and equipme $19,43¢ 8,75¢ 9,097 2,89¢  3,10¢
Goodwill $21,72¢ 10,26. 10,25 4,01¢ 4,011
Total asset $56,13¢ 22,03¢ 22,56: 8,25/ 8,18t
Total lon¢-term debt® $21,83¢ 7,32¢ 7,75¢ 3,31  3,01¢
Total stockholdel' equity $20,82% 9,64 9,467 3,16¢  3,41¢

(1) Total long-term debt is the sum of current mieies of long-term debt and long-term debt on comsolidated balance sheets. For total
obligations, see “Management’s Discussion and Asialgf Financial Condition and Results of Operatiefi-uture Contractual
Obligation¢ in Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
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Selected financial information from the consolidbs¢tatements of cash flows is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 4,201 2,04¢ 1,57¢ 853 1,03(
Net cash used in investing activit| (3,647 (859 (679 (389 (619
Net cash used in financing activiti 677 (1,179 (97€¢)  (25%) (402)
Payments for property, plant and equipment andal@®d software (2,417 (864) (755  (287) (326)
The following table presents certain selected cliisi®d operating data as of the following dates:
December 31,
20110 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands)
Broadband subscribe 5,55« 2,34¢  2,18¢ 62€ 541
Access line: 14,58¢ 6,48¢ 7,028 2,028  2,15Z

(1) In connection with our Qwest acquisition on ifr 2011, we acquired approximately 9.0 milli@bephone access lines and

approximately 3.0 million broadband subscrib

(2) In connection with our Embarq acquisition ofyJly 2009, we acquired approximately 5.4 milli@ephone access lines and

approximately 1.5 million broadband subscrib
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Certain statements in this Appendix B constiturviyd-looking statements. See “Special Note ReggrBorward-Looking Statements
in Item 1 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for tear ended December 31, 2011 for factors reldéinigese statements and see “Risk
Factors” in Item 1A of our Annual Report on FormHdor the year ended December 31, 2011 for a dision of certain risk factors
applicable to our business, financial condition eeglilts of operations.

Overview

We are an integrated communications company engag@arily in providing an array of communicatiosesrvices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@umunications services include local and longadise, network access, private line
(including special access), public access, broadilbdata, managed hosting (including cloud hostioglpcation, wireless and video services.
In certain local and regional markets, we also p®Vocal access and fiber transport services topatitive local exchange carriers and
security monitoring. We strive to maintain our @amer relationships by, among other things, bundtingservice offerings to provide our
customers with a complete offering of integratethoainications services.

At December 31, 2011, we operated 14.584 milliazeas lines in 37 states, and served 5.554 millioadband subscribers. During
2011, we updated our methodology for counting extines and broadband subscribers. Our accesmitizodology includes only those
access lines that we use to provide services wrmaitcustomers and excludes lines used solehstand our affiliates. Our methodology also
excludes unbundled loops and includes stand- dormedband subscribers. Our methodology for courdogss lines may not be comparable
to those of other companies.

Our consolidated financial statements include ttemants of CenturyLink, Inc. (“CenturyLink”) andsitajority-owned subsidiaries.
These subsidiaries include SAVVIS, Inc. (“Savvia¥) of July 15, 2011, Qwest Communications Inteomati Inc. (“Qwest”) as of April 1,
2011 and Embarq Corporation (“Embarq”) as of Jylgd09 (See Note 2—Acquisitions). Due to the sigaiit size of these acquisitions,
direct comparisons of our results of operationglieryears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2608ss meaningful than usual. We
discuss below, under “Segment Resultgitain trends that we believe are significantpaf¢hey are not necessarily material to the corad
company.

In the discussion that follows, we refer to theibess that we operated prior to the Qwest acqoisitincluding Embarg’s business) as
“Legacy CenturyLink” and refer to the incrementabmess activities that we now operate as a reétiiie Savvis acquisition as “Legacy
Sawvis” and the Qwest acquisition as “Legacy QwWé&te to the magnitude of our recent acquisitionselation to Legacy CenturyLink
operations, in the combined company variance dgons below we have separately reflected the inspafdboth the Legacy Qwest and
Legacy Sawvvis operations for enhanced visibilittha@gh we actively manage the combined compargutyin our four segments, as discut
further below.
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We have incurred operating expenses related taaguisitions of Savvis in July 2011, Qwest in AR@11 and Embarg in July 2009.
These expenses are reflected in cost of serviakpralucts and selling, general and administragikgenses in our consolidated statements of
operations as summarized below.

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and produc

Integration and other expenses associated withigitqas $ 43 37 —
Severance expenses, accelerated recognition af-blaged awards and
retention compensation associated with acquisi 24 12 6
$ 67 _49 6
Selling, general and administrati\
Expenses incurred to effect acquisitic $ 79 13 65
Integration and other expenses associated withigitqos 172 64 86
Severance expenses, accelerated recognition af-blased awards and
retention compensation associated with acquisi 14¢ 19 114
$ 40C 96 265

This table does not include costs incurred by QweS&avvis prior to being acquired by us. Basedument plans and information, we
estimate that, in relation to our Qwest acquisitiwa will incur approximately $800 million to $1ll@n of operating expenses associated \
transaction and integration costs (which incluggseximately $393 million of the expenses notedva)@nd approximately $200 million of
capital expenditures associated with integratidivisies (which includes approximately $24 milliar capital expenditures incurred through
December 31, 2011).

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accountirigative July 1, 2009, we recorded a one-time, nash@xtraordinary gain that
aggregated approximately $217 million before incdaneexpense ($136 million after-tax). See Note Diseontinuance of Regulatory
Accounting for more information.

For several years prior to 2011, we reported oeraons as a single segment. In connection wittaoquisitions of Savvis on July 15,
2011 and Qwest on April 1, 2011, we have reorgahie business into the following operating segrsient

» Regional market, which consists primarily of providing productsdaservices to residential consumers, small to nmediized
businesses and regional enterprise custor

» Business marke, which consists primarily of providing productsdaservices to enterprise and government custor
* Wholesale markei, which consists primarily of providing productsdaservices to other communications providers;

e Savvis operationsyhich consists primarily of providing hosting anetwork services primarily to business customersiged by
Legacy Sawvis. The business markets segment clyrmot/ides some of the same services as our Sapégrations segment, and
we may reclassify in the future the revenues ameteses associated with those services as part &amvis operations segment.
We will continue to classify those services as pathe business markets segment until we aretatilather integrate Legacy
Sawvis.
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Due to system limitations, it is impracticable &port 2009 segment information using our curregtremnt view. As such, only 2010
financial data has been revised under our new sefgstreicture described above.

We now report financial information separately éaich of these segments; however, our segment iafammdoes not include capital
expenditures, total assets, or certain revenueggpenses that we manage on a centralized basise &sntinue to integrate our recent
acquisitions, we may make further changes to theweassess performance and make decisions alacdtaig resources, which could
change our segment reporting. Our segment reseltsad necessarily indicative of the results ofraiens that our segments would have
achieved had they operated as stand-alone ertitiésg the periods presented. For additional infation about our segments, see Note 13—
Segment Information and “Results of Operations—SagrResults” below.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes the results of camsolidated operations for the years ended DeceBihet011, 2010 and 2009,
presented in a manner that we believe will be ugefuunderstanding the relevant trends affectinglmusiness. Our operating results include
operations of Savvis for periods after July 15, 2@Qwest for periods after April 1, 2011 and Embfamperiods after July 1, 2009.

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions except
per share amounts)

Operating revenue $15,35! 7,04z 4,97¢
Operating expense 13,32¢ 4,98 3,741
Operating incom: 2,02t 2,06( 1,23:
Other income (expens (1,077 (529 (420
Income tax expens 37t 58< 30z
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expe — — 13€
Net income $ 5778 94¢ 647
Employees 49,20( 20,30( 20,20(
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARI

Before extraordinary iter $ 1.07 3.1¢ 2.5t

Extraordinary iter — — .68

Basic and diluted earnings per common sl $ 1.07 3.1¢ 3.28

The lower levels of net income in 2011 were prittyaaitributable to the acquisition of Qwest as @friA1, 2011, which resulted in
substantial acquisition, severance and integraiqrenses, as presented in the table under the Vf@wérsection above. Legacy Savvis’ and
Legacy Qwest’s post-acquisition operations, whigtiided substantial severance and integration esgseand significant acquisition
accounting adjustments to depreciation and amdidiz&xpense based on preliminary valuation eséméee Note 2—Acquisitions and
Note ‘—Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other InthlgiAssets), did not contribute significantly tar @onsolidated net income in
2011. Our current preliminary valuation estimatesuwr recently acquired assets and liabilitiessargject to change as we finalize our
estimates of acquisition date fair value, includingse related to assets under capital leaseshwiny result in material changes to
depreciation expense. Within our Legacy Centurylbnkiness, growth in strategic services revenubagfwve describe further below) did
not fully offset lower revenues from other servieesl products, further contributing to the decreaseonsolidated net income.
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Diluted earnings per common share in 2011 was anhatly lower than the amounts for the correspoggieriods of 2010 and 2009
due to decreases in net income, as well as in@éaske weighted average number of outstandingiwomshares. The increase in
outstanding shares during 2011 was primarily attable to the issuance of 294 million shares imeation with the Qwest acquisition on
April 1, 2011 and the issuance of 14.313 millioar&s in connection with the Savvis acquisition wly 15, 2011.

The following table summarizes our broadband suibsrs and access lines:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Operational metrics
Broadband subscribe 5,554 2,34¢ 2,18¢
Access linet 14,58 6,48¢ 7,02t

During the last several years, we have experiereeghue declines primarily due to declines in agtiegs, intrastate access rates and
minutes of use. Prior to our acquisition, Qwest égperienced similar declines in its revenues. Tigate these declines, we remain focused
on efforts to, among other things:

promote lon~term relationships with our customers through bungdbf integrated service

provide new services, such as video, cloud hostiranaged hosting, colocation services and othdtianal services that may
become available in the future due to advancesdhnrology, wireless spectrum sales by the FCC prarements in our
infrastructure

provide our broadband and premium services to lagnigercentage of our custome
pursue acquisitions of additional communicatiorgpprties if available at attractive pric
increase usage of our networks; i

market our products and services to new custor

Operating Revenues

During 2011, we revised the way we categorize oadpcts and services. We currently categorize oanlyxcts, services and revenues
among the following four categories:

Strategic serviceswhich include primarily private line (includingacial access which we market to business customiers
require dedicated equipment to transmit large artsooidata between sites), broadband, hostingu@irey cloud hosting and
managed hosting), colocation, multi protocol limétshing (“MPLS”) (which is a data networking teabingy that can deliver the
quality of service required to support real-timécecand video), video (including DIRECTV), voiceennternet Protocol
(“VoIP") and Verizon Wireless service

Legacy service, which include primarily local, long-distance, sefied access, public access, integrated servig#aldietwork,
(“ISDN") (which uses regular telephone lines to jsogi voice, video and data applications), and trail wide area network
(“WAN?") services (which allows a local communications nekwo link to networks in remote location:

Data integration, which is telecommunications equipment we sell ihéocated on customers’ premises and relatefépsmnal
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingadnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our government and busicesomers; an

Other revenueswhich consists primarily of USF revenue and surghal
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We have revised our 2010 presentation of our prisdared services revenues to conform to our cunategories for 2011. Due to
system limitations, we have deemed it impracticableport our 2011 revenue by our previous praslaot services, which were as follows:

» Voice,which included our local calling service to resitiaip business and wholesale customers within ocallservice areas,
generally for a fixed monthly charg

transmission services over special circuits andgpeilines and switched digital television servjc

* Network Acces, which included revenues primarily from providimjolesale services to various carriers and cust®mer
connection with the use of our facilities to origie and terminate their interstate and intrastaigevtransmissions as well as
universal support funds and reciprocal compensditam CLECs and wireless service providers;

» Other revenueswhich included revenues from providing (i) fikesnsport, CLEC and security monitoring servicésjdasing,
selling, installing and maintaining customer presmégjuipment and wiring; (iii) providing payphone\sees; (iv) participating in
the publication of local directories; (v) providimgtwork database services and (vi) providing visewices, as well as other new
product and service offering

The following table summarizes our operating revenunder our current revenue categorization:

Years Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2011 2010 CenturyLink Qwest Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Strategic service $ 6,252  2,04¢ 15C 3,572 48z  4,20¢
Legacy service 7,680  4,28¢ (483 3,87¢ — 3,392
Data integratior 537 15¢ (23 40z — 37¢
Other 88(C 547 (24) 357 — 33z
Total operating revenut 15,35 7,04 (380) 8,20¢€ 48:  8,30¢

For comparability purposes, we have included thmér revenue categorization for 2010 and 2009:

Years Ended

December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2010 2009 CenturyLink Embarq Total
(Dollars in millions)
Voice $3,13¢  2,16¢ (77 1,047 97C
Data 1,90¢ 1,20z (28) 73E 707
Network acces 1,08(C 92¢ (96) 24¢ 152
Other 91E 67€ (33 272 23¢
Total operating revenut $7,047 4,974 (239 2,30z 2,06¢

Our operating revenues increased substantiallpii2s compared to 2010 due to our acquisitioigaetis and Qwest. Due to our
acquisition of Embarg on July 1, 2009, our 2010rafieg revenues reflect a full year of Embarq’aifess as opposed to our 2009 operating
revenues, which reflect only six months of Embargsults.
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Total operating revenues increased $8.309 bilio20d11 as compared to 2010 and increased $2.0&bi 2010 as compared to
2009. Our 2011 increase was largely attributabkdécacquisition of Qwest, which contributed tatpkrating revenues (net of intercompany
eliminations) of $8.2 hillion. Legacy CenturyLinkerating revenues decreased $380 million, or 5iA%011 and $234 million, or 4.7%, in
2010 as compared to the prior year period. Thesedses were primarily attributable to declinelegacy services revenues, which reflected
the continuing loss of access lines in our mark&tecember 31, 2011, we had 14.584 million actiess, of which 8.533 million were in
Legacy Qwest’s markets. Access lines in our LedaegturyLink markets declined to 6.051 million atd@mber 31, 2011 from 6.489 million
at December 31, 2010, a decrease of 6.75%, and7@28 million at December 31, 2009, a decrease6d%. We believe the decline in the
number of access lines was primarily due to thpldéement of traditional wireline telephone sersibg other competitive products and
services. We estimate that our access lines Idbbavbetween 5.9% and 6.6% in 2012. Our legacyises revenues were also negatively
impacted in 2011 by the continued migration of oostrs to bundled service offerings at lower effectates. The decreases in our legacy
services revenues were partially offset by higkgenues from strategic services revenues. Broadimaahgrivate line services accounted f
majority of the growth in strategic services revesiun 2010, total operating revenues decreased ®illlon due to the elimination of all
intercompany transactions upon the July 1, 200&oditinuance of regulatory accounting.

We are aggressively marketing our strategic sesviceluding our data hosting services) and datgiation to offset the continuing
declines in our legacy services revenues. We beleny recent acquisitions of Savvis and Qweststtitngthen our ability to achieve this
goal. Further analysis of our operating revenuesdgyment is provided below in “Segment Results.”

Operating Expenses

As discussed in Note 1—Basis of Presentation aman$ary of Significant Accounting Policies, duringl20we changed the definitions
we use to classify expenses as cost of servicepraddicts and selling, general and administraawel, have reclassified prior period amounts
to conform to our new definitions. During 2011, ayerating expenses increased substantially in adsgn to 2010 primarily due to our
acquisition of Qwest and Sawvis. In addition, operating expenses increased substantially in 28 bdmpared to 2009 due to our acquis
of Embarq.

The following tables summarize our operating expsns

Years Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2011 2010 CenturyLink Qwest Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi and amortizatior $ 6,328 2,54/ (4) 3,52t 26z 3,781
Selling, general and administrati 2,97¢ 1,004 60 1,791 12C 1,971
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,02¢ 1,43¢ 72 2,394 12€ 2,597
Total operating expens $13,32¢  4,98¢ 12¢ 7,70¢ 50  8,34<
Years Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2010 2009 CenturyLink Embarq Total
(Dollars in millions)
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi and amortizatior $2,54¢ 1,801 (59 802 743
Selling, general and administrati 1,00¢ 96& (87 12€ 39
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,43¢ 97& (22 481 45¢
Total operating expens $4,98: 3,741 (16€) 1,40¢ 1,241
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The increases in total operating expenses of $&8ddn in 2011 was largely attributable to thelusion of $7.7 billion in post-
acquisition Legacy Qwest operating expenses (niett@fcompany eliminations) in our consolidatedragiag expenses. In addition, the
acquisition of Sawvis on July 15, 2011 increasedconsolidated operating expenses by $508 millkandiscussed in the “overview” section,
our operating expenses for 2011, 2010 and 2008ded substantial severance and integration cdstedeto the Qwest, Savvis and Embarq
acquisitions as well as significant acquisition@eatting adjustments to depreciation and amortinagipense (see Note 2—Acquisitions and
Note :—Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other IntblgiAssets). Excluding the effects of Legacy Qveast Savvis expenses, total
operating expenses in 2011 increased $128 milio2,6%, due primarily to integration costs asseciavith the Qwest acquisition and
increased costs of providing our facilities-basette services to more customers. Total operatipgreses in 2010 (excluding $1.409 billion
of incremental costs associated with operatinggimdarqg properties for a full year in 2010 as coragdo a half year in 2009), decreased
$168 million primarily due to a $104 million redian in operating expenses from the eliminationlbfrdercompany transactions upon the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting and a $8lilomreduction in salaries and benefits.

Cost of services and products for Legacy Centutlyloperations was relatively unchanged in 2011.28dr1, higher costs of services
and products associated with providing our faeitbased video service of $55 million were subgtiynbffset by a $28 million decrease in
salaries and benefits and a $20 million decreaacilities costs associated with the migratioregfacy Embarg long-distance traffic to our
internal networks. Costs of services and produc0il0 (excluding $802 million of incremental costsociated with operating the Embarq
properties for a full year in 2010 as compared balayear in 2009) decreased $59 million primadilye to a reduction in operating expenses
from the elimination of all intercompany transantaipon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting

Legacy CenturyLink selling, general and administeaexpenses increased $60 million, or 6.0%, fdrl28s compared to 2010, while
selling, general and administrative expenses dseck®87 million for 2010 as compared to 2009. Hgreaiods presented, our expenses
include significant transaction, severance andjinatiion expenses related to the Savvis, Qwest amabE] acquisitions (see table in
“Overview” above). Changes in the timing and amafmMwest and Savvis integration expenses resiuitaedt increases in Legacy
CenturyLink selling, general and administrative exges of $164 million in 2011, from the amountstfier comparable periods of 2010. This
increase was partially offset by a decrease ofrli8n in 2011 in operating taxes, which were paiity due to favorable property tax and
transaction tax settlements. In addition, in 20ELhad a decrease of $20 million in compensatioresgs, which were primarily due to
workforce reductions and lower pension expensdingefeneral and administrative expense in 20%0I¢eling $126 million of incremental
costs associated with operating the Embarq prasefdir a full year in 2010 as compared to a hadf ye 2009) decreased $87 million
primarily due to a $32 million reduction in salari@nd benefits, a $17 million decrease in legaiscasd a $15 million reduction in expenses
from the elimination of all intercompany transansalue to the discontinuance of regulatory accagnti

Depreciation and amortization for Legacy Centurkimcreased $72 million, or 5.0%, in 2011 primadiye to higher levels of proper
plant and equipment. Depreciation and amortizatic2010 (excluding $481 million of incremental erpe associated with operating the
Embarq properties for a full year in 2010 as coragdo a half year in 2009) decreased $22 millioa thua $19 million decrease resulting
from a change in certain depreciation rates effecluly 1, 2009 upon the discontinuance of regayacecounting and a $25 million decrease
of certain assets becoming fully depreciated. Thieseeases were partially offset by a $22 millimecréase due to higher levels of plant in
service.
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Other Consolidated Results
The following tables summarize our total other imeo(expense) and income tax expense:

Years Ended

December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2011 2010 CenturyLink Qwes! Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expens $(1,072) (5449 34 48¢ 8 52¢
Other income (expens (5) 15 17 6 ©)] 20
Total other income (expens $(1,077) (529 51 492 5 54¢
Income tax expens $ 37t 58¢ nm nm nm (209¢)
Years Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2010 2009 CenturyLink Embarg Total
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expens $(544) (367) 13 164 177
Other income (expens 15 (53) (25) (43) _(68)
Total other income (expens $(52¢) (420 (12 121 10¢
Income tax expens $ 58¢ 30z nm nm 281

nm—Attributing changes in income tax expense toattguisitions of Savvis, Qwest and Embarq is cansidl not meaningful.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense increased $528 million in 201tarily due to debt assumed in the Qwest acquisémmhincurred subsequent to that
acquisition. See Note 4—Long-term Debt and Crediilfies and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” ®&lfor additional information about
the debt assumed in the Qwest acquisition.

Interest expense for Legacy CenturyLink increasgtirfillion, or 6.3%, in 2011 compared to 2010 at8 #illion, or 3.5%, in 2010
compared to 2009. In 2011, the increase was priynduie to interest on our senior notes with $2dmllaggregate principal that were issue
June 2011 to finance the Savvis acquisition, partidfset by principal repayments made during 2@h@l the first quarter of 2011. In 2010,
interest expense increased primarily due to thexést expense attributable to $4.9 billion of Emtsmindebtedness we assumed in mid 2009.

Other income (expense) reflects certain items ivettly related to our core operations, includiragng and losses from non-operating
asset dispositions and impairments, our sharecoine from our 49% interest in a cellular partngrshiterest income and foreign currency
gains and losses. Other income (expense) for LeGacyuryLink decreased $17 million in 2011, as cared to 2010. This change was
primarily due to $16 million in transaction expessecurred in connection with terminating an unubgdge loan financing commitment
related to the Savvis acquisition (see Note 2—Asitjons). The change from 2009 to 2010 was primatile to the recognition of a
$72 million pre-tax charge for certain debt extiistpment transactions consummated in October 2008Kizh $27 million was incurred by
CenturyLink and $45 million was incurred by Embarq)

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense for the years ended DeceBih@011 and 2010 decreased $208 million and asect $281 million,
respectively, from the amounts for the comparakkr yOur decrease in 2011 was primarily due tocaedse in income before income tax
expense due primarily to the acquisition of Qwexatr 2010 increase was due to increased incomedafoome tax expense due in part to
inclusion of a full year of Embarqg operations inl@0For the years ended December 31, 2011, 201@G0®i our effective income tax
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rate was 39.6%, 38.1% and 37.2%, respectively.2Zl¥id increase was due in part to the effects ahirenondeductible expenses incurred in
connection with our acquisition of Qwest, which vsabstantially offset by the effects of a tax ldvage in one of the states in which we
operate that resulted in recognition of a $14 onilliax benefit in the second quarter of 2011. leitaeh, due to executive compensation
limitations pursuant to the Internal Revenue Cadgortion of the lump sum distributions relatedhe termination of an executive retirement
plan made in the first quarter of 2009 is reflecschon-deductible for income tax purposes andititareased our effective income tax rate.
Certain merger-related costs incurred during 2042009 are also non-deductible for income tax psep and similarly increased our
effective income tax rate. In 2009, such an in@éa®ur effective tax rate was partially offsetdb$7 million reduction to our deferred tax
asset valuation allowance associated with statepetating loss carryforwards. In addition, in 2009 recognized net after-tax benefits of
approximately $16 million primarily related to thecognition of previously unrecognized tax benefiise Note 12—Income Taxes and
“Income Tax Expense” for additional information.

Extraordinary Item

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accountinguly 1, 2009, we recorded a one-time extraordigaiy of approximately
$136 million after-tax. See Note 14—Discontinuant&egulatory Accounting for additional informatioglated to this extraordinary gain.

Segment Results
Segment information is summarized below:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment revenu $ 14,47 6,49¢
Total segment expens 6,53¢ 2,407
Total segment incom $  7,93¢ 4,092
Total margin percentag 55% 63%
Regional markets
Revenue: $ 7,83 4,64(
Expense! 3,39¢ 1,78¢
Income $ 4,43 2,857
Margin percentag 57% 62%
Business market:
Revenue! $ 2,861 26€
Expense! 1,73¢ 12C
Income $  1,12¢ 14€
Margin percentag 39% 55%
Wholesale market:
Revenue: $ 3,29t 1,58¢
Expense! 1,021 50C
Income $ 2,27 1,08¢
Margin percentag 69% 69%
Sawvis operations
Revenue: $ 482 —
Expense! 38C —
Income $ 102 —
Margin percentag 21% —
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The lower levels of margin percentage for regianatkets and business markets in 2011 were primattiijputable to the inclusion of
Qwest’s results beginning April 1, 2011.

For several years prior to 2011, we reported oeraons as a single segment. Due to system limitsatve have not reported our 2009
segment information using our current segmentseakave deemed it impracticable to do so. As siehfdllowing section only includes d¢
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010c@mselidated operating results in the “Result®pérations—Overview” section above
for variance discussions related to our 2009 firadrieformation.

The following table reconciles our total segmeneraies and total segment income presented ab@petating revenues and operating
income reported in our consolidated statementpefations.

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment revenu $ 14,47 6,49¢
Other operating revenu 88( 547
Operating revenues reported in our consolidatadrstents of

operations $ 15,35: 7,042
Total segment incom $ 7,93¢€ 4,092
Other operating revenu 88C 547
Depreciation and amortizatic (4,02¢) (1,439
Other unassigned operating exper (2,765 (1,149
Operating income reported in our consolidated statés of

operations $ 2,02t 2,06(

In connection with the recent reorganization of segments, we also revised the way we categorizeagment revenues and segment
expenses. Our major categories of products andcssrare strategic services, legacy services,idtgration and other, each of which is
described in more detail in “Operating Revenuesvabh We report our segment expenses for regionedate business markets and
wholesale markets as follows:

» Direct expense, which primarily are specific, incremental expens®urred as a direct result of providing serviaed products 1
segment customers, along with selling, generalagimdinistrative expenses that are directly assatiatth specific segment
customers or activities; ar

» Allocated expensg, which are determined by applying activity-basesting and other methodologies to include network
expenses, facilities expenses and other expensbsasuleet, product management and real estatnegp

For Savvis operations, segment expenses incorpibratentire operations of our Savvis subsidiaireduding certain centrally managed
costs that are allocated to our other segment®esidhead costs that are not allocated to our aperating segments. The integration of
certain of these functions for Savvis are stilthie early stages. Consequently, all Savvis opersisegment expenses have been categori.
direct expenses. We intend to refine our expenghadelogy and begin allocating expenses to Saysesaiions as we continue integrating it
among our other segments beginning in 2012.

We do not assign depreciation and amortization es@éo our segments, as the related assets andl egpienditures are centrally-
managed. Other unassigned operating expenses toprigiarily of expenses for centrally-managed adstiative functions (such as finance,
information technology, legal and human resourcasjerance expenses and restructuring expenseesnéxpense is also excluded from
segment results because we manage our financiagatal company basis and have not allocated agsdebt to
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specific segments. In addition, other income (espgdoes not relate to our segment operationssatheiefore excluded from our segment
results. We have recast our 2010 operating relsaked on our hew segment reporting.

We may make further changes to our segment regoatrwe continue to integrate the operations ohbg@west and Legacy Savvis.
For more information on our segment reporting, dete 13—Segment Information.

Regional Markets

The operations of our regional markets segment baea impacted by several significant trends, itialg those described below. The
discussion that follows generally applies to bath lbegacy CenturyLink markets and our Legacy Qwmstkets for periods after the April 1,
2011 acquisition date.

e Strategic servicedNe continue to focus on increasing subscribersiobooadband services in our regional markets sagrire
order to remain competitive, we believe continualigreasing connection speeds is important. Asaltreve continue to invest in
our fiber to the node, or FTTN, deployment, whidlowas for the delivery of higher speed broadbamises. While traditional
ATM-based broadband services are declining, they li@en more than offset by growth in fiber-baseddband services. We
also continue to expand our product offerings idicig facilities-based video services and enhancerauketing efforts as we
compete in a maturing market in which most conssrafready have broadband services. We expect dfifeses will improve our
ability to compete and increase our broadband nga®

» Facilities-based video expenséss we continue to expand our facilities-based videwices we are incurring start-up expenses in
advance of the revenue that this service is expgdotgenerate. Although, over time, we expect thamtrevenue for facilities-based
video services will offset the expenses incurrbd,timing of this revenue growth is uncerte

» Access linesOur voice revenues have been, and we expect tHegamiinue to be, adversely affected by accessliigses. Inten
competition and product substitution continue twaour access line losses. For example, many coeisuare substituting cable
and wireless voice and electronic mail and so@alorking services for traditional voice telecomnmations services. We expect
that these factors will continue to impact our hess. Service bundling and other product promotiassiescribed below, contir
to be some of our responses to offset the losswanues as a result of access line los

» Service bundling and product promotioki¥e offer our customers the ability to bundle muétiproducts and services. These
customers can bundle local services with otheriseswsuch as broadband, video, long-distance aredess. While our video and
wireless services are an important piece of outocosr retention strategy, they do not make a laoygribution to strategic
services revenues. However, we believe customdus Hiae convenience of, and price discounts assatiaith, receiving multipl
services through a single company. While bundleepdiscounts have resulted in lower average resefaneur individual
products, we believe service bundles continue sitipely impact our customer retention. In additiorour bundle discounts, we
also offer limited time promotions on our broadbaedvice for prospective customers who want ouatiband product in their
bundle which further aids our ability to attractiaretain customers and increase usage of our sst

* Operating efficienciedVe continue to evaluate our operating structurefaods. This involves balancing our workforce in
response to our workload requirements, productiwiyrovements and changes in industry, competite@hnological and
regulatory conditions
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The following table summarizes the operating resfuim Legacy CenturyLink and Legacy Qwest for mgional markets segment:

Years Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2011 2010 CenturyLink Qwest Total
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenue
Strategic service $2,53: 1,21z 55 1,26t 1,32(
Legacy service 5,171 3,28¢ (280 2,16z 1,88
Data integratior 12¢ 13¢ (14) 4 (10
Total revenue 7,832 4,64( (239 3,431 3,197
Segment expense
Direct 3,252 1,81¢ 3 1,431 1,43¢
Allocated 14€ (35) (26) 207 181
Total expense 3,39¢ 1,78: (23) 1,63¢ 1,61¢
Segment incom $4,43¢ 2,851 (216) 1,79: 1,57
Segment margin percenta 57% 62%

Segment Incom&he acquisition of Qwest on April 1, 2011 largebntributed to an increase in our regional marketgrsent income of
$1.577 billion for the year ended December 31, 284 tompared to 2010. Our consolidated segmentimaegcentage declined in 2011 as a
result of lower margins in Legacy Qwest marketgrent income for our Legacy CenturyLink operatidesreased $216 million as
compared to 2010 reflecting declines in revenueitevexpenses remained relatively flat.

Segment Revenudsxcluding 2011 revenues attributable to the Qwegtiition, regional markets revenues decrease@ $ffion, or
5.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 as ammuipa 2010. Growth in strategic services revemigsot fully offset a decline in lega
services revenues. The higher amounts of strasegidces revenues are due principally to volumesiages in our facilities- based video
services and increases in the number of broadhavgtsbers, partially offset by the effects of rdigcounts. Increases in MPLS and Ethernet
services volumes also contributed to higher stiategyvices revenues. Legacy services revenuesaks primarily due to declines in local
services associated with access line losses mgdittm competitive pressures.

Segment Expensd®egional markets expenses, exclusive of Legacy Qavgenses, decreased $23 million, or 1.3%, foytze ended
December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010, primar#ytddower marketing and advertising expenses actedsed employee related expense
due to workforce reductions, partially offset bgr@ased costs to provide facilities-based videoices.

Business Market:

The operations of our business markets segmentlieamreimpacted by several significant trends, dhiclg those described below. The
discussion that follows generally applies to bath lbegacy CenturyLink markets and our Legacy Qwmstkets for periods after the April 1,
2011 acquisition date.

» Strategic serviceOur mix of total revenues continues to migrate flegacy services to strategic services as our gtigerand
government customers increasingly demand custongizddntegrated data, Internet and voice servid&esoffer diverse
combinations of emerging technology products amdices such as private line, MPLS, hosting, andP/sérvices. We believe
these services afford our customers more flexybititmanaging their communications needs and enabte improve the
effectiveness and efficiency of their operationshdugh we are experiencing price compression arstrategic services, we
expect overall revenues from these services to ¢
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* Legacy serviceWe face intense competition with respect to ouadggservices and continue to see customers migratiay
from these services and into strategic serviceadtfition, our legacy services revenues have beéma expect they will contint
to be adversely affected by access line los

« Data integrationWe expect both data integration revenue and tlaeeicosts will fluctuate from quarter to quartetlds revenu
stream tends to be more sensitive than other revsimeams to changes in the economy and to chamgpsnding trends of our
federal government custome

* Operating efficienciedVe continue to evaluate our operating structurefaods. This involves balancing our workforce in
response to our productivity improvements whilei@cing operational efficiencies and improving ouogesses through
automation. We also expect our business marketaesgto benefit indirectly from efficiencies in ozcmmpany-wide network
operations

The following table summarizes the operating rasfntim Legacy CenturyLink and Legacy Qwest for business markets segment:

Years Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2011 2010 CenturyLink Qwest Total
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenue
Strategic service $1,341 57 1 1,28 1,28¢
Legacy service 1,11: 19C 9 932 923
Data integratior 407 19 (9) 397 38¢
Total revenue 2,861 _26€ 17 2,612 2,59¢
Segment expense
Direct 764 6 8 75C 75¢
Allocated 972 114 (11) 86< 85¢
Total expense 1,73¢ 12C (©)] 1,61¢ 1,61¢€
Segment incom $1,12¢ 14€ (14) 99¢ 97¢
Segment margin percenta 3% 55%

Segment Incom&he acquisition of Qwest on April 1, 2011 substalitiincreased the scale of our business marketseet, resulting
in an increase in our segment income of $979 millfor the year ended December 31, 2011 as compau2@il0. Our consolidated segment
margin percentage declined in 2011 as a resutiveét margins in Legacy Qwest markets. Legacy Qwpstations accounted for 91.3% of
our 2011 business markets segment revenues arfih 88.Gur segment income.

Segment Revenuésgacy CenturyLink business markets revenues dsede®l?7 million, or 6.4%, for the year ended Decemdi,
2011 as compared to 2010. This decrease primafigated lower revenues from legacy services driweaccess line losses and lower data
integration revenues due to lower sales of datgmation equipment.

Segment Expensdsgacy CenturyLink business markets expenses remagiatively flat for the year ended December2®1,1 as
compared to 2010. However, direct expenses inctlgadmarily due to increased employee related espemesulting from a larger sales fc
and higher customer premise equipment expensdilih, 2vhile allocated expenses decreased due to lnsteork expenses related to cost
optimization efforts.

Wholesale Markets

The operations of our wholesale markets segmentikély be impacted by the recently adopted FC@eowhich will substantially
increase the pace of reductions in the amount @€lsed access revenues we receive, as discusseel iRegulation” section in Item 1 of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddumam
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31, 2011, as well as the significant trends diseddselow. The discussion that follows generallyligggo both our Legacy CenturyLink
markets and our Legacy Qwest markets for perios Hfe April 1, 2011 acquisition date.

« Private line services (including special acceDemand for our private line services continuesitvéase, despite our customers’
optimization of their networks, industry consolidatand technological migration. While we expedéttthese factors will contint
to impact our wholesale markets segment, we ulgipdtelieve the growth in fiber-based special asgsvided to wireless
carriers for backhaul will, over time, offset thectine in copper- based special access providedrébess carriers as they migrate
to Ethernet, and bandwidth consumption grows, alghahe timing and magnitude of this technologiaration is uncertair

* Access and local services revenlOur access and local services revenues have bdemeaaxpect will continue to be, adversely
affected by regulation, technological migratiorgustry consolidation and rate reductions. For exapgmnsumers are substituti
cable, wireless and VolIP services for traditiongite telecommunications services, resulting in iousd access revenue loss. We
expect these factors will continue to adverselyadoipur wholesale markets segmi

» Lonc-distance services revenu&gholesale long-distance revenues continue to dealina result of customer migration to more
technologically advanced services, price compressieclining demand for traditional voice serviessl industry consolidatiol

The following table summarizes the operating resintim Legacy CenturyLink and Legacy Qwest for wholesale markets segment:

Years Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
2011 2010 CenturyLink Qwest Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenue

Strategic service $1,89¢ 78C 94 1,024 1,11¢
Legacy service 1,39¢ 80¢ (199 781 587
Data integratior 1 — — 1 1
Total revenue 3,29¢ 1,58¢ (200 1,80¢ 1,70¢€
Segment expense
Direct 174 13¢ (6) 41 35
Allocated 847 361 61 42k 48€
Total expense 1,021 50C 55 46€ 521
Segment incom $2,27¢ 1,08¢ (15%) 1,34(C 1,18¢
Segment margin percenta 69% 69%

Segment Income

The acquisition of Qwest on April 1, 2011 largefntributed to an increase in our wholesale markegsnent income of $1.185 billion
for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compar2iits. Segment income for our Legacy CenturyLin&rapons decreased $155 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compar2@ll@ primarily reflecting declines in revenuedath periods, as discussed further
below.

Segment Revenudsxcluding 2011 revenues attributable to the Qwegusition, wholesale markets revenues decreased fillion, or

6.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 as aemipa 2010. This decrease reflects substantialiet revenues from legacy services,
partially offset by growth in revenues from strategprvices. The decrease in legacy services r@gerailects ongoing declines in access and
local services volumes and revenues due to theisulzmn of cable, wireless and VolP services faditional voice telecommunications
services. Growth in strategic services revenués\guily relating to private line and special accessrices, partially offset the declines in
legacy services revenues.
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Segment Expensa&holesale markets expenses, exclusive of LegacysQewpenses, increased $55 million, or 11%, foythee ended
December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010. The inchedsgacy CenturyLink wholesale markets expensas pvimarily due to increased
allocated expenses reflecting increased bad depenee. Direct expenses decreased for the yeareasilaof reduced access costs.

Sawvis Operation

The operations of our Savvis operations segmertdmiimpacted by several significant trends, idiolg those described below.

Colocation.Colocation is designed for clients seeking datderespace and power for their server and networkmmgpment
needs. Our data centers provide our clients arthemevorld with a secure, high-powered, purposettadation for their IT
equipment. We anticipate continued pricing pressur¢hese services as wholesale vendors entesritegprise colocation market;
however, we believe that our data center exparsiategy can help mitigate these pricing challen

Managed hostingManaged hosting services provide a fully managédtisa for a customes IT infrastructure and network nee
and include dedicated and cloud hosting servidd#ywand computing storage, consulting and maieggcurity services. We
expect increasing pricing pressure on the managstinig business from competing cloud computingrofégs. However, we
remain focused on growing our managed hosting lessirspecifically in our cloud service offeringswee believe this is a key to
growth. We believe that we have continued to stitegrg our cloud position in the market by addindedéntiating features to our
cloud products

Network servicesNetwork services are comprised of our managed n&taarvices, including managed VPN, hosting area
network and bandwidth services. Segment incoméhfise services has been relatively flat due tangripressures on VPN and
bandwidth services, offset by increases in netvgerkices that support our colocation and managsetingpservice offerings

The following tables summarize the operating rasoltSavvis operations for 2011 after their acdioisidate of July 15, 2011:

Years Ended December 31,

Increase

2011 2010 (Decrease
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic service $ 48¢ — 482
Segment expensi 38C — 38C
Segment incom $ 10z — 10z
Segment margin percenta 21% —

Segment Revenues

Segment revenues for our Savvis operations was $dl8n, which was derived from colocation sengaef $183 million, or 37.9%,
managed hosting services of $182 million, or 37.@#@ network services of $118 million, or 24.4%.

Segment Expenses

Segment expenses attributed to Savvis operatioass@80 million, which were derived primarily fromat of services and products of
$260 million and selling, general and administratxpenses of $120 million.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeaccounting principles that are generally @ted in the United States. The
preparation of these financial statements requir@sagement to make estimates and assumptiondféettthe reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. We have idedtdertain policies and estimates as criticaluokusiness operations and the understanding
of our past or present results of operations rdlti€i) business combinations; (ii) goodwill, custer relationships and other intangible as
(iii) property, plant and equipment; (iv) pensiamdgost-retirement benefits; (v) loss contingeneies litigation reserves; and (vi) income
taxes. These policies and estimates are consideitedl because they had a material impact, oy tieve the potential to have a material
impact, on our consolidated financial statementstz@tause they require significant judgments, aptions or estimates. We believe that the
estimates, judgments and assumptions made whenrggwpfor the items described below are reasondigised on information available at
the time they are made. However, there can be surasce that actual results will not differ fronogle estimates.

Business Combinations

We have accounted for our acquisition of Qwest pnilA, 2011 and Savvis on July 15, 2011 underatguisition method of
accounting, whereby the tangible and separateltiiikgble intangible assets acquired and liab#itesssumed are recognized at their estimatec
fair values at the acquisition date. The portiothef purchase price in excess of the estimated/dhile of the net tangible and separately
identifiable intangible assets acquired represgotgiwill. The recognition of the fair value of assacquired and liabilities assumed in
business combinations involves estimates and judtgii®y our management that may be adjusted dunmgieasurement period, but in no
case beyond one year from the acquisition date fiihealues recorded are made based on managentmf estimates and assumptions. In
arriving at the fair values of assets acquiredlatilities assumed, we consider the following gailg accepted valuation approaches: the
cost approach, income approach and market appr@ashestimates may also include assumptions abrojeqted growth rates, cost of
capital, effective tax rates, tax amortization pési, technology life cycles, the regulatory andlemvironment, and industry and economic
trends. Small changes in the underlying assumptiangmpact the estimates of fair value by matemabunts, which can in turn materially
impact our results of operations.

Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intangilbe Assets

We amortize customer relationships primarily oweeatimated life of 10 years, using either the siffthe-years-digits or straight-line
methods, depending on the type of customer. Outati@ed software, which consists primarily of assebtained from the Qwest acquisition,
is primarily being amortized using the straighelimethod over estimated lives up to seven yeanstoxmately $237 million of our
capitalized software, which represents costs teldgvan integrated billing and customer care systeimeing amortized over a twenty year
period. Tradenames and patents assets predominaetihe sum-of-thgears digits method over an estimated life of fgears. Indefinite life
intangibles are not amortized, but are reviewediaty for potential impairment.

We periodically review the estimated lives and modthused to amortize our other intangible asséis.amount of future amortization
expense may differ materially from current amoudégnending on the results of our periodic reviend aur final determinations of
acquisition date fair value related to Savvis’ wlest’s intangible assets (See Note 2—Acquisitions)

We are subject to testing for impairment of longetl assets (including goodwill, intangible asset$ @ather long-lived assets) based on
applicable accounting guidelines.

We are required to review goodwill recorded in bass combinations for impairment at least annualynore frequently if events or a
change in circumstances indicate that an impairmeyt have occurred. We are required to write-ddvervialue of goodwill only in periods
in which the recorded amount of goodwill exceedsftir value. Our annual measurement date fomtggfoodwill impairment is
September 30. We have managed
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our operations based on four operating segmerg®(ral markets, business markets, wholesale maaketSavvis operations) and consid
these four operating segments to be the appropeiagd for testing goodwill impairment.

We have attributed our goodwill balance to our segimat December 31, 2011 as follows:

(Dollars in millions)

Regional market $ 11,81
Business marke! 5,021
Wholesale market 3,53t
Sawvis operation 1,35
Total goodwiill $ 21,72¢

With the exception of our Savvis segment, our ojiegasegments do not correspond to our legal eatiggnization structure, which
required us to apply significant judgment basedemerous assumptions to attribute our goodwill egrtiain other assets and liabilities to the
operating segments in order to make our annualimmeat assessment. For this assessment, we compeliesegment’s estimated fair value
to the carrying value of the assets that we attilho the segment. If the estimated fair valuéhefreporting unit is greater than the carrying
value, we conclude that no impairment exists. éffdir value of the segment is less than the aagryalue, a second calculation is required in
which the implied fair value of goodwill is compdrto the carrying value of goodwill that we attiibto the segment. Estimating the implied
fair value of goodwill requires further assumpti@m the application of judgment to assess theentifair values of the assets and liabilities
attributable to the segment. If the implied faitueaof goodwill is less than its carrying value pdwill must be written down to its implied fi
value. Small changes in the assumptions underbitingr the valuation methods or the attributiontrods can drive material changes in the
implied fair value of goodwill.

At September 30, 2011, we estimated the fair vafurur regional, business and wholesale marketsrtigg units using an equal
weighting based on a market approach and a disedwatsh flow method. The market approach includesise of comparable multiples of
publicly traded companies whose services are caabpato ours to corroborate discounted cash flaulte. The discounted cash flow
method is based on the present value of projecteld ffows and a terminal value, which represerdgstpected normalized cash flows of the
reporting unit beyond the cash flows from the diseffive-year projection period. The estimated dlshs are discounted using a rate that
represents our weighted average cost of capitathwie determined to be 6.50% as of the measuredaat(which was comprised of a pre-
tax cost of debt of 7.0% and a cost of equity @8). We also reconciled the estimated fair valdfah@reporting units to our market
capitalization as of September 30, 2011 and coerdubat the indicated implied control premium o¥d&as reasonable based on recent
transactions in the market place.

For our Savvis operations, we determined the pieény fair value of the assets acquired and liabdiassumed using various methods,
including an overall discounted cash flow analyssformed for all of Savvis’ operations. As of Sapber 30, 2011, the fair value
assignments were preliminary and could changefgigntly upon finalization of the fair value assigants. Due to the recentness of the
acquisition and the related preliminary valuatiesuits and the lack of any significant adverse &v/grat have occurred to Savvis’ operating
results or our expectations of forecasted opera#nglts utilized in the preliminary valuation sinthe July 15, 2011 acquisition date, we
concluded that the goodwill related to the Savyisrations was not impaired as of September 30,.2011

As of September 30, 2011, based on our analysierpazd with respect to these segments as desaaibevek, we concluded that our
goodwill was not impaired as of that date. Howewasrof that date, the estimated fair value of #gganal markets and wholesale markets
exceeded their carrying value by less than 5%. A&8s point increase in the discount rate usediiranalysis would have caused the
estimated fair values of the regional markets ahdlesale markets goodwill to be less than theiryiiag values and thus would have requi
us to perform the second step of goodwill impairtitesting.
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On October 27, 2011, the FCC adopted the Conne&rigémand Intercarrier Compensation Reform ordes (CAF order”). This order
will reduce the amount of switched access reveneieegognize in our wholesale markets segment ifutiiee. Although other elements of
this order are currently expected to result in fpasimpacts to our overall business, it will ligdiave a material negative impact to our
wholesale markets segment. Because we expectdbe torhave a material negative impact on our wdademarkets segment, we conducted
another assessment of the goodwill attributed eéontholesale markets segment at December 31, 201He Iprocess of re-estimating the fair
value of the wholesale markets segment as a refstiie CAF order, we updated our estimates of ptegkfuture cash flows and we revised
our market multiple assumption. In our most re@stimate, we revised our revenue projections toilsza by 2016 rather than our previous
assumption that revenues would decline in perpgtaitd thus increasing our terminal value. Aftedafjng our fair value estimate of the
wholesale markets segment to reflect revised estsnat revenues, the effects of our market mulsisumption due to changes in our stock
price between September 30, 2011 and Decembe021, the increase in terminal value and the adwffeets of the CAF order, the
estimated fair value of the wholesale markets segmeceeded its attributed carrying value by grretiten 5%. We also evaluated and
concluded that the goodwill attributed to our ottegrorting units was not impaired as of Decembe2811 due to (i) an increase in our
market capitalization since September 30, 201jla(ieduction in our carrying value of equity sirf@eptember 30, 2011 and (iii) the lack of
significant adverse changes in the operating fatsaaf our other segments.

We cannot assure that other adverse conditionsafiltrigger future goodwill impairment testingam impairment charge. A number of
factors, many of which we have no ability to cohtomuld affect our financial condition, operatirgsults and business prospects and could
cause our actual results to differ from the estamand assumptions we employed in our goodwill impent testing. These factors include,
but are not limited to, (i) further weakening iretbverall economy; (ii) a significant decline inr@tiock price and resulting market
capitalization; (iii) changes in the discount rgie) successful efforts by our competitors to gaiarket share in our markets; (v) adverse
changes as a result of regulatory actions; (viyyaificant adverse change in legal factors or mdlverall business climate; (vii) recognition of
a goodwill impairment loss in the financial staterseof a subsidiary that is a component of our mépg units and (viii) additional
information relative to the impact of the CAF ordéfe will continue to monitor certain events thapiact our operations to determine if an
interim assessment of goodwill impairment shoulghedormed prior to the next required testing ddt8eptember 30, 2012.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired in conneatiith our acquisitions was recorded based oraitsvBlue as of its acquisition date.
Substantially all other property, plant and equiptrie stated at original cost less depreciatiomd®els and betterments of plant and
equipment are capitalized while repairs, as wetkagwals of minor items, are charged to operaimense. Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment is provided on the straight line meéthsing class or overall group rates; such avesageal rates range from 2% to 29%.

Normal retirements of property, plant and equipnesatcharged against accumulated depreciation,naittiain or loss recognized.
Other types of property, plant and equipment igestat cost and, when sold or retired, a gain €8 Ie recognized. We depreciate such
property on the straight line method over estimagtice lives ranging from two to 35 years.

We perform annual internal reviews to evaluateréasonableness of depreciable lives for our prgppldnt and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account daisage, replacement history and assumptions deolmology evolution to estimate the
remaining life of our asset base. The changes iirestimates incorporated as a result of our masmnereview did not have a material impact
on the level of our depreciation expense.

Pension and Post-Retirement Benefits

We sponsor several noncontributory defined bepefitsion plans (referred to as our pension plamgubstantially all employees. In
addition to these tax qualified pension plans, i8e anaintain several non-qualified pension plamscégtain eligible highly compensated
employees. We maintain post-retirement benefitpthat provide health care and life insurance benfefr certain eligible retirees.
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Pension and post-retirement health care and Ifierance benefits attributed to eligible employesesvice during the year, as well as
interest on benefit obligations, are accrued ctilyeRension and post-retirement benefit expensesegognized over the period in which the
employee renders service and becomes eligiblectve benefits as determined using the projectéccredit method. Pension prior service
costs and actuarial gains and losses are recogagzedmponents of net periodic expense over thegeagemaining service period of
participating employees expected to receive bend?ibst-retirement healthcare prior service castsexognized as components of net
periodic expense over the average expected ye&uli henefit eligibility for active employees. Rea®tirement actuarial gains or losses are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the aveexgected future working lifetime of active emplege

In computing the pension and post-retirement headtk and life insurance benefits expenses andatliis, the most significant
assumptions we make include discount rate, expeatedf return on plan assets, health care trated and our evaluation of the legal basis
for plan amendments. The plan benefits coveredbgative bargaining agreements as negotiated stittemployees’ unions can also
significantly impact the amount of expense, beraitgations and pension assets that we record.

The discount rate is the rate at which we belieeecauld effectively settle the benefit obligati@ssof the end of the year. We selected
the discount based on a cash flow matching analysigy hypothetical yield curves developed by anay firm from U.S. corporate bonds
rated high quality and projections of the futuredi& payments that constitute the projected béwéfigation for the plans. This process
establishes the uniform discount rate that prodtleesame present value of the estimated futureftigrayments, as is generated by
discounting each year’s benefit payments by a igietapplicable to that year. The spot rates uséuis process are derived from a yield
curve created from yields on the 60th to 90th paiteeof U.S. high quality bonds.

The expected rate of return on plan assets itigpterm rate of return we expect to earn on taaglassets. The rate of return is
determined by the strategic allocation of plan &saed the long-term risk and return forecast fmheasset class. The forecasts for each asse
class are generated primarily from an analysibefdng-term expectations of various third partyestment management organizations. The
expected rate of return on plan assets is revi@medally and revised, as necessary, to reflectgdwim the financial markets and our
investment strategy.

To compute the expected return on pension andrptistment benefit plan assets, we apply an exgaete of return to the fair value
the pension plan assets and to the fair valuesoptst-retirement benefit plan assets adjusteddotribution timing and for projected benefit
payments to be made from the plan assets. Annuddetneolatility for these assets is reflected ia #ubsequent year’s net periodic combined
benefits expense.

Changes in any of the above factors could impaetaing expenses in the consolidated statemermgarhtions as well as the value of
the liability and accumulated other comprehensia®ime of stockholders’ equity on our consolidatalhibce sheets. The expected rate of
return on plan assets is reflected as a reduatiouit pension and post-retirement benefit expdhser assumed expected rates of return for
2011 were 100 basis points lower, our qualifiedsgmmand post-retirement benefit expenses woulé rasreased by $98 million. If our
assumed discount rates for 2011 were 100 basissdoiner, our qualified pension and post-retirenteariefit expenses would have decreased
by $29 million and our projected benefit obligatiwnuld have increased by approximately $1.8 billian increase of 100 basis points in the
initial healthcare cost trend rate would have iase#l our post-retirement benefit expense by $2omidind increased our projected post-
retirement benefit obligation by $70 million.

The trusts for the pension and post-retirementfiissrans hold investments in equities, fixed ime real estate and other assets such
as private equity assets. The assets held by theste are reflected at estimated fair value d3aafember 31, 2011. For additional informar
on our trust investments, see Note 8—Employee Bisrtefour consolidated financial statements iml& of our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Loss Contingencies and Litigation Reserves

We are involved in several material legal procegslias described in more detail in “Legal Procegsliin Item 3 of our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 204d assess potential losses in relation to theseted pending or threatened tax and
legal matters. For matters not related to incomedaif a loss is considered probable and the atrmambe reasonably estimated, we
recognize an expense for the estimated loss. Textemt these estimates are more or less tharcthal diability resulting from the resolution
of these matters, our earnings will be increasedeoreased accordingly. If the differences are nadt@ur consolidated financial statements
could be materially impacted. If a loss is consédereasonably possible, we disclose any detern@regiimate of the loss if material but we
do not recognize any expense for the potential loss

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes includes amountgdarconsequences deferred to future periods. \Wrrdedeferred income tax assets
and liabilities reflecting future tax consequenatgbutable to tax NOLs, tax credit carryforwaedsd differences between the financial
statement carrying value of assets and liabildied the tax bases of those assets and liabildieferred taxes are computed using enacted tax
rates expected to apply in the year in which tlffedinces are expected to affect taxable income.€effect on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rate is recognizeearnings in the period that includes the enactithaie.

The measurement of deferred taxes often involvesxarcise of judgment related to the realizatiotagfbasis. Our deferred tax assets
and liabilities reflect our assessment that tavitjpos taken and the resulting tax basis, are rikety than not to be sustained if they are
audited by taxing authorities. Also, assessingadas that we expect to apply and determining des/when the temporary differences are
expected to affect taxable income requires judgrabott the future apportionment of our income amntiegstates in which we operate. Tt
and other matters involve the exercise of signifigadgment. Any changes in our practices or judgidévolved in the measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities could matsriatipact our financial condition or results of ogigons.

We record deferred income tax assets and lialsilagedescribed above. Valuation allowances arbliesttad when necessary to reduce
deferred income tax assets to amounts that wevieedie= more likely than not to be recovered. Wduata our deferred tax assets quarterly to
determine whether adjustments to our valuationnalace are appropriate. In making this evaluatiomrely on our recent history of pre-tax
earnings, estimated timing of future deductions laewkfits represented by the deferred tax assdtewarforecasts of future earnings, the
latter two of which involve the exercise of sigo#nt judgment. At December 31, 2011, we conclutatit was more likely than not that we
would realize the majority of our deferred tax asskH forecasts of future earnings and the natune estimated timing of future deductions
and benefits change in the future, we may detertiata valuation allowance for certain deferredassets is appropriate, which could
materially impact our financial condition or resudtf operations. See Note 12—Income Taxes for imahdit information.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stassl&oard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaASU”) 2011-08,
Intangible—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwolt fmpairment This update simplifies the goodwill impairmensassment
by allowing a company to first review qualitativactors to determine the likelihood of whether thie ¥alue of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount before applying the two-step godidmipairment test. If it is determined that itrisore likely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is greater than its carrying amotime, company would not be required to perform tin@$tep goodwill impairment test for that
reporting unit. This update is effective for intarand annual goodwill impairment tests performedi&tal years beginning after
December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitteds ®SU, which we adopted during the third quarte2@11, did not have any impact on
our consolidated financial statements.
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In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009R8yenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-DelivdeaBevenue Arrangemeniis
update requires the use of the relative sellingepmethod when allocating revenue in these typasrahgements. This method requires a
vendor to use its best estimate of selling prigeeither vendor specific objective evidence norttipiarty evidence of selling price exists when
evaluating multiple deliverable arrangements. Bémdard update was effective for us on Janua2@11 and we have adopted it
prospectively for revenue arrangements enteredointoaterially modified after January 1, 2011. Té$tsndard update has not had and is not
expected to have a material impact on our condelibiinancial statements since the allocation eéneie has historically been based upor
relative fair value of the elements as determingdeference to vendor specific objective evideniciio value when the elements have been
sold on a stand-alone basis.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

At December 31, 2011, we held cash and cash eguitgabf $128 million and had $1.423 billion avaiéabnder our $1.7 billion
revolving credit facility (referred to as our “Ciie&acility”, which is described further below). 8lxding cash used for acquisitions, we have
generally relied on cash provided by operations@ndCredit Facility to fund our operating and ¢apéxpenditures, make our dividend
payments and repay a portion of our maturing dehbt.operations have historically provided a stalolerce of cash flow that has helped us
meet the needs of the business.

Our acquisition of Qwest on April 1, 2011 and, tiesser extent, Savvis on July 15, 2011, resuitesignificant changes in our
consolidated financial position and our future cesfuirements. At December 31, 2011, our cash asHl equivalents totaled $128 million,
compared to $173 million at December 31, 2010.

At December 31, 2011, we had a working capitalaitedif $496 million, reflecting current liabilitiesf $4.019 billion and current assets
of $3.523 hillion, compared to positive working ttapof $132 million at December 31, 2010. The waoi@ble change in our working capital
position is primarily due to our consolidation ofv€st’'s working capital accounts as well as $480ionilin current maturities of long-term
debt at December 31, 2011. We anticipate that xistieg cash balances and net cash provided byatipgractivities, which were
significantly enhanced by our acquisition of Qwegt| enable us to meet our other current obligasiofund capital expenditures and pay
dividends to our shareholders. We also may drawwrCredit Facility as a source of liquidity if amthen necessary.

We currently expect to continue our current anmiidtiend of $2.90 per common share, subject tcbmard’s discretion.

Debt and Other Financing Arrangements

We have available a four-year $1.7 billion revotyi@redit Facility, which expires in January 201%. td $400 million of the Credit
Facility can be used for letters of credit, whielduces the amount available for other extensiomseafit. Available borrowings under the
Credit Facility are also effectively reduced by amgstanding borrowings under our commercial pgpegram. Our commercial paper
program borrowings are effectively limited to tlesder of $1.5 billion or the total amount availalnheler the Credit Facility. At December 31,
2011, we had $277 million in borrowings and no antswf letters of credit outstanding under the @rédcility, and no amounts outstanding
under our commercial paper program.

The Credit Facility has 21 lenders, with commitnserainging from $2.5 million to $135 million. Undiae Credit Facility, we, and our
indirect subsidiary, Qwest Corporation, (“QC”), muswintain a debt to EBITDA (earnings before ingéréaxes, depreciation and
amortization, as defined in our Credit Facilitylioaof not more than 4:1 and 2.85:1, respectivayyof the last day of each fiscal quarter for
the four quarters then ended. The Credit Facilgp aontains a negative pledge covenant, whichrgdperovides restrictions if we pledge
assets or permit liens on our property, and requhrat any advances under the Credit Facility ralsst be secured
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equally and ratably. The Credit Facility also hasass payment default provision, and the Crediilffaand certain of our debt securities
also have cross acceleration provisions. When ptedgse provisions could have a wider impactaquidity than might otherwise arise from
a default or acceleration of a single debt instmim€o the extent that our EBITDA (as defined i Quedit Facility), is reduced by cash
settlements or judgments, including in respectyfaf the matters discussed in Note 16—CommitmantsContingencies, our debt to
EBITDA ratios under certain debt agreements wilbldeersely affected. This could reduce our finagdiexibility due to potential restrictiol
on incurring additional debt under certain provisi@f our debt agreements or, in certain circunegsncould result in a default under certain
provisions of such agreements.

At December 31, 2011, our long-term debt (includingrent maturities) totaled $21.836 billion, comguhto $7.328 billion outstanding
at December 31, 2010. Substantially all of the $04 billion increase in our debt is attributablette acquisition of Qwest on April 1, 2011
and our recent debt issuances to fund the acquisifi Savvis and the retirement of its credit fiacin July 2011.

Approximately $318 million of our CenturyLink, In8eries L 7.875% notes will mature on August 18,28nd on January 27, 2012,
we called $800 million of Qwest Communications fntgional Inc. 7.500% notes due February 15, 26@hmitting to retire them on
March 1, 2012. Subject to market conditions, weeexpo continue to issue debt securities from tineme in the future to refinance a
substantial portion of our maturing debt. This irtds issuing debt securities of CenturyLink or tigtoour QC subsidiary to refinance its
maturing debt. The availability, interest rate atiger terms of any new borrowings will depend amtitings assigned to us and QC by the
three major credit rating agencies, among othd@ofacFollowing our announcement in April 2011 of agreement to purchase Savvis, one
of these agencies revised its previous outlook®rating of us from stable to negative. We belithie negative outlook could result in a
ratings downgrade if we are unable to reduce oebt'teverage ratio,” while maintaining “free catw” (each as defined by the ratings
agency) over the 12 to 18 months following the tiggaoutlook announcement.

Between the date of our Annual Report on Form 1fekhe year ended December 31, 2011 and the eRB@1d, we currently expect to
reduce our consolidated debt levels by $800 miltm61.300 billion, based on current circumstararg market conditions.

In April 2011, we entered into a $160 million unaoitted revolving letter of credit facility. At Deogber 31, 2011, our outstanding
letters of credit totaled $129 million under théifity.

Future Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our estimated futtostractual obligations at December 31, 2011:

2017 and
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 thereafter Total
(Dollars in millions)

Long-term debt, including current maturities angdital lease

obligations $ 48C 1,717 2,05 1,65¢  2,85¢ 12,79¢ 21,567
Interest on lon-term debt and capital leas® 1,47¢ 1,40¢ 1,313 1,18¢ 1,00: 11,71¢ 18,10:
Operating lease 28C 244 20¢ 17¢ 147 92¢ 1,98¢
Purchase commitmen® 26¢ 114 77 52 47 14¢ 70€
Pos-retirement benefit obligatia 71 71 70 69 12C 1,19¢ 1,59¢
Non-qualified pension obligatior 3 2 2 2 2 22 33
Unrecognized tax benefi®) — — — — — 86 86
Other 4 12 7 5 5 112 14k
Total future contractual obligatiol® $2,58¢ 3,56¢ 3,73¢  3,15(C  4,18( 27,00« 44,22

(1) Interest paid in all years may differ due ttufie refinancing of debt. Interest on our floatiage debt was calculated for all years using
the rates effective at December 31, 2(
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()

(3)

(4)

We have various long-term, non-cancelable pagetcommitments for advertising and promotion sessiincluding advertising and
marketing at sports arenas and other venues amiseWge also have service related commitments wétfous vendors for data
processing, technical and software support serviegsire payments under certain service contraittsavy depending on our actual
usage. In the table above we estimated paymentkdee service contracts based on the level ofcesrwe expect to receiv
Represents the amount of tax and interest wddymay for our unrecognized tax benefits. Of ataltbalance of unrecognized tax
benefits of $111 million and related estimatedries¢ and penalties of $33 million, only $86 milliamuld result in future cash payme
if our tax positions were not upheld. The remairh8@ million is an unrecognized tax benefit in them of a refund claim that, if not
granted, would not result in a cash payment anektbiee is not included in the table above. See N@te-Income Taxes for additional
information. The timing of any payments for our @cwgnized tax benefits cannot be predicted wittagsy; therefore, such amount is
reflected in the*2017 and thereaft’ column in the above tabl

The table does not includ

e our open purchase orders as of December 31, 20EkeTpurchase orders are generally at fair vahtbaee generally cancelable
without penalty:

» other long-term liabilities, such as accruals &gdl matters and other taxes that are not conabehbligations by nature. We
cannot determine with any degree of reliability ylears in which these liabilities might ultimateigttle;

» cash funding requirements for pension benefits Iplay@ certain eligible current and future retird@enefits paid by our qualified
pension plans are paid through trusts. Cash fundiggirements for the trusts are not included is tible as we are not able to
reliably estimate required contributions to thestrDur funding projections are discussed furtledo;

e certain post-retirement benefits payable to cerdigible current and future retirees. Not all of post-retirement benefit
obligation amount is a contractual obligation antiyahe portion that we believe is a contractudigation is reported in the table.
See additional information on our benefits planslate 8—Employee Benefits to our consolidated financialesteents in Iltem 8
our Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

» contract termination fees. These fees are non4iagupayments, the timing and payment of whictany, is uncertain. In the
ordinary course of business and to optimize out sipgcture, we enter into contracts with termsatgethan one year to use the
network facilities of other carriers and to purahasher goods and services. Our contracts to U oarriers’ network facilities
generally have no minimum volume requirements arcdased on an interrelationship of volumes ancbdisted rates. Assuming
we exited these contracts in 2012, the contragtitetion fees would be approximately $819 milliaimder the same assumption,
termination fees for these contracts to purchaselgand services would be $185 million. In the redroourse of business, we
believe the payment of these fees is likely todmate; anc

» potential indemnification obligations to countenes in certain agreements entered into in the aboourse of business. The
nature and terms of these arrangements vary. litiatlyr, we have not incurred significant costs tethto performance under these
types of arrangement

Capital Expenditures

We incur capital expenditures on an ongoing bas@der to enhance and modernize our networks, etergiffectively in our markets

and expand our service offerings. We evaluate abpitpenditure projects based on a variety of faciacluding expected strategic impacts
(such as forecasted revenue growth or productigipense and service impacts) and our expectethretuinvestment. The amount of cap
investment is influenced by, among other thingsaled for our services and products, cash genebgtegerating activities and regulatory
considerations. We estimate our total 2012 capitpenditures to be approximately $2.7 billion to%illion.
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Our capital expenditures continue to be focuseduwrstrategic services such as video, broadbandraméged hosting services. In
2012, we anticipate that our fiber investment, whitludes fiber to the tower, or FTTT, will be dian to that spent in 2011. FTTT is a type
of telecommunications network consisting of fib@tio cables that run from a telecommunication pitevs broadband interconnection poi
to cellular towers. FTTT allows for the deliveryufjher bandwidth services supporting mobile tebbgies than would otherwise generally
be available through a more traditional telecomrmatidbns network.

Pension and Post-retirement Benefit Obligations

We are subject to material obligations under oistirg defined benefit pension plans and other-petitement benefit plans. The
accounting unfunded status as of December 31, @btar defined pension plans and other post-retrrbenefit obligations was
$1.7 billion and $3.2 billion, respectively. Seetdl8—Employee Benefits to our consolidated finalnstaements in Item 8 of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeR@11 for additional information about our penséon other post-retirement benefit
arrangements.

Benefits paid by our pension plans are paid thrauglust. We contributed $587 million during theyended December 31, 2011 to
pension plans and expect to make a contributidassfthan $50 million in 2012. We currently expibett required and voluntary contributic
for 2013 will be approximately $500 million, based current laws and circumstances. The actual ahafwontributions to our plans in 20
and beyond will depend on earnings on investmeiigspunt rates, demographic experience, changdams benefits and funding laws and
regulations.

Certain of our post-retirement health care anditifairance benefits plans are unfunded. Severskthold assets that are used to help
cover the health care costs of certain retireeofA3ecember 31, 2011, the fair value of theset tigsets was $693 million; however, a
portion of these assets is comprised of investmaitksrestricted liquidity. We estimate that thenadiquid assets in the trust will be adequ
to provide continuing reimbursements for coverestetirement health care costs for approximately fears. Thereafter, covered benefits
will be paid either directly by us or from the ttsigs the remaining assets become liquid. Thigprej four year period could be substanti
shorter or longer depending on returns on plantgsthe timing of maturities of illiquid plan asseind future changes in benefits.

Historical Information

The following table summarizes our consolidatechdémsn activities (which include cash flows from&is, Qwest and Embarq after
their respective acquisition dates):

Years Ended December 31,

Increase

2010 2009 (Decrease

(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 4,201 2,04¢ 2,15¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (3,647 (859 2,78¢
Net cash used in financing activiti (577) (1,175 (59¢)

Years Ended December 31,

Increase

2010 2009 (Decrease

(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 2,04t 1,574 471
Net cash used in investing activit| (859) (679 18C
Net cash used in financing activiti (2,17 (97¢€) 19¢
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The increase in our net cash provided by operaatiyities in 2011 is largely attributable to thegaisitions of Qwest and Savvis, wh
contributed net cash provided by operating acésitf approximately $2.1 billion and $90 milliorspectively. Net cash provided by
operating activities in 2010 as compared to 20@geimsed primarily due to 2010 including a full yehoperations of Embarg as compared to
only a half year in 2009. Our consolidated finahstatements in Item 8 in our Annual Report on FAGK for the year ended December 31,
2011 provide information about the components ¢immome and differences between net income andastt provided by operating
activities. For additional information about oureogting results, see “Results of Operations” above.

Net cash used in investing activities included pegta for property, plant and equipment and capgdlisoftware of $2.411 billion in
2011, including $1.329 billion for Qwest and Savyisst-acquisition capital expenditures, compae#864 million in 2010. In addition, we
paid $1.671 billion, net of $61 million cash reasdy for the acquisition of Savvis on July 15, 20C4sh used in investing activities in 2011
was partially offset by cash acquired through tipeilAL, 2011 acquisition of Qwest of $419 milliamet of $5 million cash paid.

Net cash used in financing activities decrease2Dikil primarily due to us receiving net debt prosaacexcess of payments of
approximately $1.1 billion in 2011 and a debt pagtraf $500 million in 2010. In addition, our casiidends paid increased $677 million in
2011 as compared to 2010 primarily as a resuh®igsuance of 308 million common shares in commeetith our acquisitions of Qwest and
Sawvis in 2011. Net cash used in financing acésith 2010 as compared to 2009 increased due3a@&million increase in cash dividends
paid, primarily due to the issuance of 196 millarares issued on July 1, 2011 for the acquisitidinabarg, partially offset with $73 million
in increased proceeds from the issuance of comiteck sinder our equity incentive plans.

On October 4, 2011, our indirect wholly owned sdlasly, Qwest Corporation (“QC"), issued $950 mitliaggregate principal amount
of its 6.75% Notes due 2021 in exchange for netgeds, after deducting underwriting discounts aqeeses, of $927 million. The notes are
senior unsecured obligations of QC and may be raddein whole or in part, at a redemption priceatdqo the greater of their principal
amount or the present value of the remaining ppadcand interest payments discounted at a U.Sslirganterest rate specified in the
indenture agreement plus 50 basis points.

On September 21, 2011, QC issued $575 million agdeeprincipal amount of its 7.50% Notes due 20bd&xichange for net proceeds,
after deducting underwriting discounts and expense$557 million. The notes are senior unsecutddyations of QC and may be redeemed,
in whole or in part, on or after September 15, 28L& redemption price equal to 100% of the prialcgmount redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date. In Oct@0drl, QC used the net proceeds from this offetggther with the $927 million of net
proceeds received on October 4, 2011, from theidebénce described above and available cashdéemethe $1.500 billion aggregate
principal amount of its 8.875% Notes due 2012 anglay all related fees and expenses, which resintad immaterial loss.

On June 16, 2011, we issued unsecured senior wittean aggregate principal amount of $2.0 bill{t&enior Notes”), consisting of
(i) $400 million of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series Be @039, (ii) $350 million of 5.15% Senior NotegriBs R, due 2017 and (iii) $1.250 billi
of 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021. Aftdudeéng underwriting discounts and expenses, weived aggregate net proceeds of
$1.959 hillion in exchange for the Senior Notes. &y redeem the Senior Notes, in whole or in gdrny time at a redemption price equal
to the greater of their principal amount or thespre value of the remaining principal and intepestments discounted at a U.S. Treasury
interest rates plus 50 basis points. We used thproeeeds to fund a portion of our acquisitiorbakvis and repay certain of Savuwigbt (se:
Note z—Acquisitions). In April 2011, we received commitnéetters from two banks to provide up to $2.0idmil in bridge financing for the
Sawvis acquisition. This arrangement was terminateline 2011 in connection with the issuance @f3hnior Notes, resulting in $16 million
in transaction expenses recognized in other incd@xgense), net.
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On June 8, 2011, QC issued approximately $661aniiggregate principal amount of its 7.375% Notes2D51 in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsepenses, of $642 million. The notes are unsdaiségations of QC and may be
redeemed, in whole or in part, on or after Jun2016 at a redemption price equal to 100% of thecgpal amount redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date. QC usedéhproceeds, together with available cash, teaad$825 million aggregate principal
amount of its 7.875% Notes due 2011 and to payeeiees and expenses.

Certain Matters Related to Acquisitions

Qwest’s pre-existing debt obligations consistednarily of debt securities issued by Qwest and tivitscsubsidiaries while Savvis’
remaining debt obligations consist primarily of itapleases, all of which are now included in oansolidated debt balances. The indentures
governing Qwest’s debt securities contain custontamenants that restrict the ability of Qwest ersitibsidiaries from making certain
payments and investments, granting liens and gallirtransferring assets. Based on current circamssts, we do not anticipate that these
covenants will significantly restrict our abilitg manage cash balances or transfer cash betweagasawithin our consolidated group of
companies as needed.

In accounting for the Qwest acquisition, we recdr@avest’s debt securities at their estimated falues, which totaled $12.292 billion
as of April 1, 2011. Our acquisition date fair v@lestimates were based primarily on quoted markeggin active markets and other
observable inputs where quoted market prices watravailable. The fair value of Qwest’s debt sdasiexceeded their stated principal
balances on the acquisition date by $693 milliohiclv is being recognized as a reduction to intezepense over the remaining terms of the
debt, of which $150 million was recognized in 2011.

Other Matters

We have cash management arrangements with ceftairr principal subsidiaries, in which substanfiaftions of the subsidiaries’ cash
is regularly transferred to us in exchange for miaig receivables. In accordance with generally ptsmkaccounting principles, these
receivables are eliminated as intercompany traimsectAlthough we periodically repay these receigalio fund the subsidiaries’ cash
requirements throughout the year, at any giventpnitime we may owe a substantial sum to our slidses under these receivables, whic
not recorded on our consolidated balance sheets.

We also are involved in various legal proceedimgs tould have a material effect on our financ@ipion. See Note 16—Commitment
and Contingencies for the current status of sughllproceedings, including matters involving Qwest.

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes inestemates on our variable rate long-term debt akitigps. We seek to maintain a
favorable mix of fixed and variable rate debt inedifort to limit interest costs and cash flow vdlgt resulting from changes in rates. From
time to time over the past several years, we haed derivative instruments to (i) loak-or swap our exposure to changing or variableres
rates for fixed interest rates or (ii) to swap ghtions to pay fixed interest rates for variableiiest rates; however, at December 31, 2011 we
had no such instruments outstanding. We have éstall policies and procedures for risk assessnmehtree approval, reporting and
monitoring of derivative instrument activities. We not hold or issue derivative financial instruniseior trading or speculative purposes.
Management periodically reviews our exposure terggt rate fluctuations and implements strategiesanage the exposure.
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At December 31, 2011, we have approximately $2illibr (excluding capital lease and other obligasawvith a carrying amount of
$712 million) of longterm debt outstanding, 95% of which bears inteaefiked rates and is therefore not exposed toestaate risk. We h:
$1.049 billion floating rate debt exposed to chanigethe London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR). ¥pbthetical increase of 100 basis
points in LIBOR relative to this debt would decreasir annual pre-tax earnings by $10 million.

With our acquisition of Savvis in July 2011, we Ba&ecome exposed to the risk of fluctuations inféiheign currencies in which its
international operations are denominated, primahig/euro, the British Pound, the Canadian Daile,Japanese Yen and the Singapore
Dollar. As a consolidated entity, the percentageegénues generated and costs incurred that acerdieated in these currencies is
immaterial. We use a sensitivity analysis to estémar exposure to this foreign currency risk, mieiag the change in financial position
arising from hypothetical 10% change in the exclearages of these currencies, relative to the Udlabwith all other variables held
constant. The aggregate potential change in thedhie of assets resulting from a hypothetical I8fange in these exchange rates was
$15 million at December 31, 2011.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methoahalysis presented in the computation of exposoresarket risks. Actual values m
differ materially from those presented above if keticonditions vary from the assumptions used énathalyses performed. These analyses
only incorporate the risk exposures that existddeatember 31, 2011.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide off-balance sheet financing, lifityi or market or credit risk support
and we do not engage in leasing, hedging, or aingitar activities that expose us to any significiailities that are not (i) reflected on the
face of the consolidated financial statements dnénFuture Contractual Obligations table abovéipdiscussed under the heading “Market
Risk” above.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The information in Management’s Discussion and #sial of Financial Condition and Results of Operagio-Market Risk in Item 7 of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended@nber 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by referenc
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Management

The Shareholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

Management has prepared and is responsible fanténgrity and objectivity of our consolidated fir@al statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accoedaith accounting principles generally acceptethnUnited States of America and
necessarily include amounts determined using ostrjpdgments and estimates.

Our consolidated financial statements have beeitealidy KPMG LLP, an independent registered puaticounting firm, who have
expressed their opinion with respect to the fasragthe consolidated financial statements. Thadlitavas conducted in accordance with
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States).

Management is responsible for establishing and faiaimg adequate internal control over financiglaring, a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjadflfinancial reporting and the preparation imfaincial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfieee Under the supervision and with the partiggraof management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the frameworkiimiernal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission (“*COSQ”). Based on our evatumatinder the framework of COSO, management condltiti our internal control
over financial reporting was effective at December2011. The effectiveness of our internal condradr financial reporting at December 31,
2011 has been audited by KPMG LLP, as stated in tlgort which is included herein.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors ismgmsed of independent directors who are not ofioeremployees. The Committee
meets periodically with the external auditors, ingg auditors and management. The Committee corssile independence of the external
auditors and the audit scope and discusses inteon&lol, financial and reporting matters. Both #éx¢ernal and internal auditors have free
access to the Committee.

/sl R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing, J

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officada
Assistant Secretal

February 27, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourinm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiaries @ompany) as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statsmé&operations, comprehensive income, cash flamd stockholders’ equity for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decentheé#(3 1. These consolidated financial statememtshar responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thetgtmlobtain reasonable assurance about whethén#reial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tildasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, ancudts of their operations and their cash flowsefach of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011, based on criteria eskadaliininternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission, and our report datgutdary 27, 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsred the Company’s internal control over financégorting.

/sl KPMG LLP

KPMG LLP
Shreveport, Louisian
February 27, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiarff®® Company) internal control over financial repg as of December 31, 2011,
based on criteria establishedimiernal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageisieasponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanyingeport of Management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on@uwenpany’s internal control over financial reportiogsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagreuch other procedures as we considered necesghgy/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesamssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financékstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companyseds that could have a material effect on then@izé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fingal reporting as of December 31,
2011, based on criteria establishedniternal Control—Integrated Framewoitsued by the COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asadrlger 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consatiddiatements of operations,
comprehensive income, cash flows, and stockholdepgity for each of the years in the three-yeaiopeended December 31, 2011, and our
report dated February 27, 2012 expressed an ufigdadipinion on those consolidated financial staats.

/sl KPMG LLP

KPMG LLP
Shreveport, Louisian
February 27, 201
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi and amortizatior
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total operating expens
OPERATING INCOME
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest expens
Other income (expens
Total other income (expens
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSI
Income tax expens
NET INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEN
Extraordinary item, net of $81 tax (Note :
NET INCOME
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARI
Before extraordinary iter
Extraordinary iter
Basic and diluted earnings per common sl
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDIN(
BASIC
DILUTED

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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Years Ended December 31,

2011

2010

2009

(Dollars in millions, except per share
amounts and shares in thousands)

$ 15,351 7,042 4,97¢
6,32t 2,54¢ 1,801
2,97¢ 1,00¢ 965
4,02¢ 1,43¢ 97t
13,32¢ 4,98z 3,741
2,02t 2,06( 1,23:
(1,079 (544) (367)
(5) 15 (53)
(1,079 (529) (420)
94¢ 1,531 817
37t 582 302
572 94¢ 511
— — 13€
$ 57¢ 94¢ 647
$ 107 3.1¢ 2.5E
— — 68
$  1.07 3.1¢ 3.2t
532,78(  300,61¢  19881:
534,12: 301,29 199,05
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss)tec

NET INCOME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
Items related to employee benefit pla
Change in net actuarial loss, net of $508, $32%{A6) tax
Change in net prior service credit, net of $23afid $7 ta
Auction rate securities marked to market, net gf$— and ‘— tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment and othetrof $2, — and — tax

Other comprehensive (loss) incol
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOMI

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in millions)

$ 57¢ 94¢€ 647

(812) (53) 49
(37) ©) (112)
@ - —
(198 — —
(871) (56) 38

$ (29§ 897 68E
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $145 and
Income tax receivabl
Deferred income taxes, r
Other
Total current asse
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN
Property, plant and equipme
Accumulated depreciatic
Net property, plant and equipme
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill
Customer relationships, n
Other intangible assets, r
Other
Total goodwill and other asse
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Salaries and benefi
Income and other tax¢
Interest
Other
Advance billings and customer depo:
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes, r
Benefit plan obligations, n
Other

Total deferred credits and other liabiliti

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 1€
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY

Preferred stoc—nor-redeemable, $25.00 par value, authorized 2,00@shesued and outstanding 9 and 9 st
Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 800,0@0es, issued and outstanding 618,514 and 304t#t8s

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive i
Retained earning
Total stockholder equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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December 31,

2011

2010

(Dollars in millions
and shares in thousands)

$ 12¢ 172
1,95: 712

27 102

1,02¢ 81

39C 74

3,52¢ 1,14:
29,57 16,32
(10,14 (7,579
19,43¢ 8,75¢
21,72 10,26
8,361 93C

2,23¢ 622

85€ 32¢

33,18 12,14

$  56,13¢ 22,03t
$ 48c 12
1,39¢ 30C

634 15¢

382 124

292 104

25¢ 122

58¢ 19¢

4,01¢ 1,011
21,35t 7,31¢
3,82¢ 2,36¢

4,85¢ 1,30¢

1,25¢ 38¢

9,93i 4,06¢

61¢ 30E

18,90 6,181
(1,01 (141)

2,31¢ 3,30:
20,82 9,647

$  56,13¢ 22,03t
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 57¢ 94¢ 647
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,02¢ 1,43¢ 97t
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expe — — (13€)
Deferred income taxe 39t 132 154
Provision for uncollectible accour 152 91 57
Long-term debt (premium) discount amortizat| (14¢) 1 11
Changes in current assets and current liabili
Accounts receivabl (102) (11¢) (80)
Accounts payabl (58) (96) (32
Accrued income and other tax 31 38 (150
Other current assets and other current liabilites (76) (127) 121
Retirement benefit (68¢) (277) (82
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabi (6) (13 40
Other, ne’ 101 26 49
Net cash provided by operating activit 4,201 2,04¢ 1,57¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment andal@®d software (2,41)) (864) (75%)
Cash paid for Savvis acquisition, net of $61 casjuaed (1,67)) — —
Cash acquired in Qwest acquisition, net of $5 gt 41¢ — —
Cash acquired in Embarg acquisiti — — 77
Other, ne 16 5 D)
Net cash used in investing activit| (3,647 (859) (679)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of I-term debr 4,102 — 644
Payments of lor-term debi (2,989 (500 (825)
Net (payments) borrowings on credit facil (88) 74 (272)
Debt issuance and retirement cc (119 — @)
Dividends paic (1,556 (879) (560
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 10z 13C 57
Repurchase of common sta (32) ()] (16)
Other, ne 9 17 3
Net cash used in financing activiti (577  (1,17%) (976€)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvadnts (22) — —
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (45 11 (82)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 172 162 243
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 12¢ 17z 162
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Income taxes refunded (paid), | $ 1lie (424 (257)
Interest (paid) (net of capitalized interest of $853 and $3 $(1,225) (54¢) (392

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)
COMMON STOCK (represents dollars and sha
Balance at beginning of peric $ 30t 29¢ 10C
Issuance of common stock to acquire Qwest, inclydhares issued in connection with share-base
compensation awar( 294 — —
Issuance of common stock to acquire Savvis, inolydhares issued in connection with share-based
compensation awar( 14 — —
Issuance of common stock to acquire Embarg, inotydhares issued in connection with share-bas
compensation awar( — — 19¢
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestiincentive and benefit pla 6 6 4
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdir — (D
Balance at end of peric 61¢ 30¢ 29¢
ADDITIONAL PAID -IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of peric 6,181 6,02( 45
Issuance of common stock to acquire Qwest, inclpdssumption of she-based compensation awa 11,97 — —
Issuance of common stock to acquire Savvis, inolgidissumption of she-based compensation awa 601 — —
Issuance of common stock to acquire Embarg, inopdssumption of share-based compensation
awards — — 5,87¢
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit pla 97 124 53
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdir (30 (16) (15)
Shar-based compensation and other, 78 53 63
Balance at end of peric 18,90: 6,181 6,02(
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOM
Balance at beginning of peric (147) (85) (123
Other comprehensive (loss) incol (877) (56) 38
Balance at end of peric (1,012 (141) (85)
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of peric 3,30z 3,23: 3,14¢
Net income 572 94¢ 647
Dividends declare (1,556 (879) (560
Balance at end of peric 2,31¢ 3,302 3,23
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $20,82; 9,647 9,467

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencalase Notes to “CenturyLink,” “we,” “us” and “out refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and
its consolidated subsidiaries, including SAVVIS, bnd its consolidated subsidiaries (referred $d'Gavvis”) for periods on or after July 1!
2011, Qwest Communications International Inc. asdonsolidated subsidiaries (referred to as “QWgekir periods on or after April 1,
2011, and Embarqg Corporation and its consolidatedsidiaries (referred to as “Embarq”) for periods@r after July 1, 2009.

(1) Basis of Presentation and Summary of SignificarAccounting Policies
Basis of Presentatiol

We are an integrated communications company engagredrily in providing an array of communicatiosesrvices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@umunications services include local and longadise, network access, private line
(including special access), public access, broadildata, managed hosting (including cloud hostioglgcation, wireless and video services.
In certain local and regional markets, we also ®local access and fiber transport services topatitive local exchange carriers and
security monitoring.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade our accounts and the accounts of our sigrsd over which we exercise
control. These subsidiaries include our acquisiibBAVVIS, Inc. (“Savvis”) on July 15, 2011, Qwesbmmunications International Inc.
(“Qwest™) on April 1, 2011 and Embarq Corporatidgrbarg”) on July 1, 2009 (See Note 2—Acquisitionl) intercompany amounts and
transactions with our consolidated subsidiarieehzen eliminated.

Through June 30, 2009, CenturyLink accounted foragulated telephone operations (except for thpesties acquired from Verizon in
2002) in accordance with the provisions of regulaticcounting under which certain of our assetslatilities were required to be recorded
and, accordingly, reflected in the balance shefetsioregulated entities. On July 1, 2009, we digcied the accounting requirements of
regulatory accounting upon the conversion of sutistly all of our rate-of-return study areas tdéeal price cap regulation. In the third
quarter of 2009, upon the discontinuance of regwyadiccounting, we recorded a noash extraordinary gain in our consolidated statesne
operations of $136 million after-tax. See Note 14isebntinuance of Regulatory Accounting for additibmformation.

Subsequent to the July 1, 2009 discontinuancegoflagory accounting, all intercompany transactianth affiliates have been
eliminated from the consolidated financial stateteeRrior to July 1, 2009, intercompany transacinith regulated affiliates subject to
regulatory accounting were not eliminated in cottioecwith preparing the consolidated financial staénts, as allowed by the provisions of
regulatory accounting. The amount of intercompawenues and costs that were not eliminated retatée first half of 2009 approximated
$114 million.

Our consolidated financial statements reflect clearig the way we present the effects of noncoimiglhterests in certain of our
subsidiaries. To simplify the overall presentatidrour financial statements, we no longer disptayniaterial amounts attributable to
noncontrolling interests as separate items. Irrevised presentation we report: (i) income attabilg to noncontrolling interests in other
income (expense), (ii) equity attributable to namtcolling interests in additional paid-in capitalda(iii) cash flows attributable to
noncontrolling interests in other financing aciest As a result of this change, the amounts we meport as net income correspond to
amounts that we previously reported as net incainduatable to CenturyLink, Inc. This presentatigiange had no effect on earnings per
common share, total equity or the classificationwf cash flows.
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During 2011, we changed the definitions we usddsesify expenses as cost of services and prodadtselling, general and
administrative, and as a result, we reclassifiedipusly reported amounts to conform to the curpemtod presentation. These revisions
resulted in the reclassification of $134 milliorde®49 million from selling, general and adminisiratto cost of services and products for
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respgctet current definitions are as follov

» Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptieci and amortizationqre expenses incurred in providing products andces
to our customers. These expenses include: empi®jated expenses directly attributable to operading) maintaining our netwa
(such as salaries, wages, benefits and profesdiess); facilities expenses (which are third-paetgcommunications expenses we
incur for using other carriersietworks to provide services to our customers)srand utilities expenses; equipment sales expt
(such as data integration and modem expenses$; foosiniversal service funds (“USFilich are federal and state funds tha
established to promote the availability of telecamimations services to all consumers at reasoratueffordable rates, among
other things, and to which we are often requiredaatribute); and other expenses directly relabeautr network and hosting
operations

» Selling, general and administrative expenaesexpenses incurred in selling products and &es\vb our customers, corporate
overhead and other operating expenses. These @gmatude: employee-related expenses (such agesalages, internal
commissions, benefits and professional fees) dyrettributable to selling products or services antployee-related expenses for
administrative functions; marketing and advertisitagces (such as property and other taxes) an¢l égt=rnal commissions; bad
debt expense; and other selling, general and adtrative expense

These expense classifications may not be compat@ali®se of other companies.

We also have reclassified certain other prior geamounts to conform to the current period presemiaincluding the categorization of
our revenues and our segment reporting (see NeteSEgiment Information). These changes had no impatiital revenues, total operating
expenses or net income for any period.

We have reclassified certain prior year balancetshmounts presented in our Annual Report on Fd@+K for the year ended
December 31, 2010. We primarily reclassified $31an from other assets to other intangible assets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policie

Use of EstimatesOur consolidated financial statements are prepgraccordance with U.S. generally accepted adaugiprinciples.
These accounting principles require us to makeatedstimates, judgments and assumptions. We leefiat the estimates, judgments and
assumptions we made when accounting for items attérs such as, but not limited to, investmentsgiterm contracts, customer retention
patterns, allowance for doubtful accounts, dept@siaamortization, asset valuations, internal fatapitalization rates, recoverability of
assets (including deferred tax assets), impairmassgssments, pension, post-retirement and otheepgoyment benefits, taxes, certain
liabilities and other provisions and contingencies reasonable, based on information availableeatite they were made. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions can affect the reportexiats of assets, liabilities and components afidtolder’ equity as of the dates of the
consolidated balance sheets, as well as the repameunts of revenue, expenses and componentsiofloas during the periods presented
in our consolidated statements of operations, onsalidated statements of comprehensive (losshiecand our consolidated statements of
cash flows. We also make estimates in our assessmEpotential losses in relation to threatenegenrding tax and legal matters. See
Note 1-—Income Taxes and Note 16—Commitments and Contitigerior additional information.

For matters not related to income taxes, if ai®s®nsidered probable and the amount can be raeblsoestimated, we recognize an
expense for the estimated loss. If we have thentiatdo recover a portion of the estimated los#rfra third party, we make a separate
assessment of recoverability and reduce the estthiass if recovery is also deemed probable.
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For matters related to income taxes, if the impéen uncertain tax position is more likely than twbe sustained upon audit by the
relevant taxing authority, then we recognize a Eefor the largest amount that is more likely thaot to be sustained. No portion of an
uncertain tax position will be recognized if thespiimn has less than a 50% likelihood of beinganstd. Interest is recognized on the amount
of unrecognized benefit from uncertain tax pos#ion

For all of these and other matters, actual resoltdd differ from our estimates.

Revenue Recognitiowe recognize revenue for services when the relsgedces are provided. Recognition of certain paymse
received in advance of services being providecetisrded until the service is provided. These adegrayments include activation and
installation charges, which we recognize as revewee the expected customer relationship period¢chvianges from eighteen months to
over ten years depending on the service. We ales dests for customer acquisitions. The deferfalustomer acquisition costs is limited to
the amount of revenue deferred on advance paymeasss in excess of advance payments are recosdexpanse in the period such cost:
incurred. Expected customer relationship periodseatimated using historical experience. Terminafges or other fees on existing contracts
that are negotiated in conjunction with new cortsace deferred and recognized over the new cdrigan.

We offer bundle discounts to our customers whoivecgertain groupings of services. These bundleadists are recognized
concurrently with the associated revenues andlkeated to the various services in the bundledraffy based on the estimated selling price
of services included in each bundled combinaticeveRues from installation activities are deferred eecognized as revenue over the
estimated life of the customer relationship. Thete@ssociated with such installation activitigstaithe related amount of deferred revenue,
are deferred and recognized as an operating exjperse¢he same period.

Customer arrangements that include both equipmehsarvices are evaluated to determine whethegléments are separable. If the
elements are deemed separable and separate egrrongsses exist, the revenue associated withedewtent is allocated to each element
based on the relative estimated selling price efséparate elements. We have estimated the spitites of each element by reference to
vendor-specific objective evidence of selling psieghen the elements are sold separately. The revessociated with each element is then
recognized as earned. For example, if we receivedaance payment when we sell equipment and cangjraervice together, we
immediately recognize as revenue the amount aktdct the equipment as long as all the conditionsdvenue recognition have been
satisfied. The portion of the advance payment attedt to the service based upon its relative sefinnge is recognized ratably over the longer
of the contractual period or the expected custaelationship period.

We have periodically transferred optical capacgyeds on our network to other telecommunicationdgcarriers. These transactions
are structured as indefeasible rights of use, contlyrmeferred to as IRUs, which are the exclusigitito use a specified amount of capacity
or fiber for a specified term, typically 20 yeavée account for the cash consideration receivedansters of optical capacity assets and o
of the other elements deliverable under an IRUgasnue ratably over the term of the agreementhive not recognized revenue on any
contemporaneous exchanges of our optical capassigts for other optical capacity assets.

We offer some products and services that are peoMy third-party vendors. We review the relatiopdietween us, the vendor and the
end customer to assess whether revenue shoulgbeea® on a gross or net basis. In assessing whethenue should be reported on a gross
or net basis, we consider whether we act as aipahin the transaction, take title to the produbtsve risk and rewards of ownership and act
as an agent or broker. Based on our agreement©IRBECTV and Verizon Wireless, we offer these seggithrough sales agency
relationships which are reported on a net basis.

For our Savvis operations, we have service levelmdments pursuant to individual client contractthveertain of our clients. To the
extent that such service levels are not achievedeotherwise disputed due to
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performance or service issues or other servicerirggons or conditions, we will estimate the amboicredits to be issued and record a
reduction to revenue, with a corresponding incréaslee allowance for doubtful accounts. In thergwee provide credits or payments to
clients related to service level claims, we maywee such costs through third party insurance ages¢s. Insurance proceeds received under
these agreements are recorded as an offset tmpshywirecorded revenue reductions.

USF, Gross Receipts Taxes and Other Surchatgetetermining whether to include in our revenud arpenses the taxes and
surcharges collected from customers and remittggbv@rnmental authorities, including USF chargaekess use, value added and some excise
taxes, we assess, among other things, whetherantb@primary obligor or principal taxpayer for tlages assessed in each jurisdiction where
we do business. In jurisdictions where we deterritia¢ we are the principal taxpayer, we recordiétxes on a gross basis and include the
our revenue and costs of services and products.

In jurisdictions where we determine that we areatyea collection agent for the government authotitg record the taxes on a net basis
and do not include them in our revenue and costefices and products.

Advertising CostsCosts related to advertising are expensed as eatamd included in selling, general and administatxpenses in
our consolidated statements of operations. Foy¢laes ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009dweartesing expense was $275 million,
$49 million and $25 million, respectively.

Legal CostsIn the normal course of our business, we incursctwshire and retain external legal counsel tosalus on regulatory,
litigation and other matters. We expense theses@ssthe related services are received.

Income TaxedlNe file a consolidated federal income tax returthwaiur eligible subsidiaries. The provision forange taxes consists of
an amount for taxes currently payable, an amourtafoconsequences deferred to future periodssadgnts to our liabilities for uncertain
tax positions and amortization of investment teedis. We record deferred income tax assets ahilitiies reflecting future tax consequences
attributable to tax net operating loss carryforvgafdOLS), tax credit carryforwards and differenbeswveen the financial statement carrying
value of assets and liabilities and the tax bag#sose assets and liabilities. Deferred taxecamputed using enacted tax rates expected to
apply in the year in which the differences are exge to affect taxable income. The effect on defitincome tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rate is recognized in earnings irp#réod that includes the enactment date.

We use the deferral method of accounting for fddev@stment tax credits earned prior to the repéalich credits in 1986. We also
defer certain transitional investment tax credasned after the repeal, as well as investmentredits earned in certain states. We amortize
these credits ratably over the estimated serwes lof the related assets as a credit to our indarexpense in our consolidated statemen
operations.

We establish valuation allowances when necessagdiace deferred income tax assets to the amdattsve believe are more likely
than not to be recovered. A significant portioroaf net deferred tax assets relate to tax berafitbutable to NOLs. Each quarter we
evaluate the need to retain all or a portion ofvlleation allowance on our deferred tax asset®ddember 31, 2011, we concluded that it
was more likely than not that we would realize tiagority of our deferred tax assets. See Note 1Zefire Taxes for additional information.

Cash and Cash EquivalentSash and cash equivalents include highly liquidstments that are readily convertible into cashaedo
subject to significant risk from fluctuations irténest rates. As a result, the value at which eashcash equivalents are reported in our
consolidated financial statements approximates thgivalue. In evaluating investments for claigsifion as cash equivalents, we require that
individual securities have original maturities bfde months or less and that individual investniemiis have dollar-weighted average
maturities of ninety days or less. To preservetahpnd maintain liquidity, we invest with finantiastitutions we deem to be of sound
financial condition and in high quality and relay risk-free investment products. Our cash investnpolicy limits the concentration of
investments with specific financial institutionsamong certain products and includes criteria eelab credit worthiness of any particular
financial institution.
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Book overdrafts occur when checks have been issuedave not been presented to our controlled déglment bank accounts for
payment. Disbursement bank accounts allow us &ydehding of issued checks until the checks aesgmted for payment. Until the issued
checks are presented for payment, the book ovésdied included in accounts payable on our cors@itibalance sheet. This activity is
included in the operating activities section in oansolidated statements of cash flows.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Aat®Accounts Receivable are recognized based upomtlert due from
customers for the services provided or at cospfwchased and other receivables less an allowanamtibtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable reflects our bestrestt of probable losses inherent in our receivpbtéolio determined on the basis of
historical experience, specific allowances for knawoubled accounts and other currently availabldence. We generally consider our
accounts past due if they are outstanding overa38.dDOur collection process varies by the custagment, amount of the receivable, and
our evaluation of the customer’s credit risk. Oastpdue accounts are written off against our alfmeégor doubtful accounts when collection
is considered to be not probable. Any recoveriescobunts previously written off are generally igrui@aed as a reduction in bad debt expense
in the period received. The carrying value of actsueceivable net of the allowance for doubtfulaamts approximates fair value.

Property, Plant and EquipmerRroperty, plant and equipment acquired in conneatitth our acquisitions was recorded based on its
estimated fair value as of its acquisition datespghe estimated value of any associated legaltpntractually required retirement obligations.
Substantially all other property, plant and equiptrie stated at original cost plus the estimatddevaf any associated legally or contractually
required retirement obligations. Property, plard aquipment is depreciated primarily using theigiraline group method. Under the
straight-line group method, assets dedicated teigirg telecommunications services (which comptisemajority of our property, plant and
equipment) that have similar physical charactesstise and expected useful lives are categoniztitbiyear acquired on the basis of equal
life groups for purposes of depreciation and tragkiGenerally, under the straight-line group methaaen an asset is sold or retired, the cost
is deducted from property, plant and equipmentaratged to accumulated depreciation without red¢agnof a gain or loss. A gain or loss
recognized in our consolidated statements of ojpasbnly if a disposal is abnormal or unusual.ded®ld improvements are amortized over
the shorter of the useful lives of the assets erttpected lease term. Expenditures for mainternamgeepairs are expensed as incurred.
Interest is capitalized during the constructiongghaf network and other internal-use capital pitsjdemployee-related costs for construction
of network and other internal use assets are algitatized during the construction phase. Prop@tgnt and equipment supplies used
internally are carried at average cost, excepsifpmificant individual items for which cost is bdsen specific identification.

We perform annual internal reviews to evaluaterédasonableness of the depreciable lives for oyepty, plant and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account aaisage, physical wear and tear, replacement gish@sumptions about technology evolu
and, in certain instances, actuarially determinetb@bilities to estimate the remaining life of asset base. The changes in our estimates
incorporated as a result of our most recent reviidsiot have a material impact on the level of depreciation expense.

We have asset retirement obligations associatddtht legally or contractually required removabkdimited group of property, plant
and equipment assets from leased properties artispesal of certain hazardous materials presemtiirowned properties. When an asset
retirement obligation is identified, usually in as&tion with the acquisition of the asset, we rddbe fair value of the obligation as a
liability. The fair value of the obligation is alsapitalized as property, plant and equipment hed aamortized over the estimated remaining
useful life of the associated asset. Where the vafabligation is not legally binding, the net costremove assets is expensed in the peri
which the costs are actually incurred.

We review long-lived assets, other than goodwill ather intangible assets with indefinite lives, ifopairment whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that the carrying amountb@fssets may not be
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recoverable. For measurement purposes, long-ligseta are grouped with other assets and liabikitiéise lowest level for which identifiable
cash flows are largely independent of the cashdlofwother assets and liabilities, absent a maten@nge in operations. An impairment loss
is recognized only if the carrying amount of theedggroup is not recoverable and exceeds its #irev Recoverability of the asset group t
held and used is measured by comparing the cargyimgunt of the asset group to the estimated ungliged future net cash flows expecte
be generated by the asset group. If the asset 'groapying value is not recoverable, an impairnmghdrge is recognized for the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset group exsé@sdair value. We determine fair values by usincpmbination of comparable market
values and discounted cash flows, as appropriate.

Gooduwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intafhgifissetsintangible assets arising from business combinatisuch as goodwill,
customer relationships, trademarks and tradenaanepitially recorded at fair value. We amortizestomer relationships primarily over an
estimated life of 10 years, using either the surthefyears-digits or straight-line methods, depegdin the type of customer. We amortize
capitalized software using the straight-line metbwdr estimated lives ranging up to seven yearsaamattize our other intangible assets
predominantly using the sum-of-the-years digitshudtover an estimated life of four years. Otheauigible assets not arising from business
combinations are initially recorded at cost. Whibkere are no legal, regulatory, contractual or iotaetors that would reasonably limit the
useful life of an intangible asset, we classify ititangible asset as indefinite-lived and suchrigiiale assets are not amortized.

Internally used software, whether purchased orldgee by us, is capitalized and amortized usingstreightline group method over i
estimated useful life. We have capitalized certaists associated with software such as costs olibgags devoting time to the projects and
external direct costs for materials and servicest€associated with software to be used for iatgrarposes are expensed until the point at
which the project has reached the development sfagesequent additions, modifications or upgradéstérnal-use software are capitalized
only to the extent that they allow the softwarg@ésform a task it previously did not perform. Scte maintenance, data conversion and
training costs are expensed in the period in whiely are incurred. We review the remaining econdiwés of our capitalized software
annually. Capitalized software is included in ottitangible assets, net, in our consolidated baaheets.

Our long-lived intangible assets with indefiniteds are reviewed for impairment annually or wheneweevent occurs or circumstances
change that would indicate an impairment may haweiwed. These assets are carried at historicaifdbeir estimated fair value is greater
than their carrying amounts. However, if their mstied fair value is less than the carrying amootiigr indefinite-lived intangible assets are
reduced to their estimated fair value through apaiiment charge to our consolidated statementp@fadions. In the fourth quarter of 2011,
we completed our annual review and determinedtteatair value of our indefinite-lived intangiblesets exceeded their carrying amounts;
accordingly, no impairment charge was recordedihl2

We are required to review goodwill for impairmentesmst annually, or more frequently if events @hange in circumstances indicate
that an impairment may have occurred. We are reduo write-down the value of goodwill only in paats in which the recorded amount of
goodwill exceeds the fair value. Our annual measerd date for testing goodwill impairment is Septem30. Subsequent to our acquisiti
of Qwest on April 1, 2011 and Savvis on July 151 20ve managed our operations based on four opgratigments (regional markets,
business markets, wholesale markets and Savviatimes) and have considered these four operatigeets to be the appropriate level for
testing goodwill impairment as of September 30,120rior to our acquisition of Qwest, our reportingjts were generally aligned to our five
geographic operating regions, under which we math#ge substantial portion of our operations. Setee—Goodwill, Customer
Relationships and Other Intangible Assets for aafut information.

We periodically review the estimated lives and rodthused to amortize our other intangible asséis.attual amounts of amortization
expense may differ materially from our estimatepeahding on the results of our periodic reviews @undfinal determinations of acquisition
date fair value related to Savvis’ and Qwest’srigible assets. For more information, see Note 2—ufsitions.
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Pension and Post-Retirement Benefit® recognize the overfunded or underfunded stdtosrodefined benefit and post-retirement
plans as an asset or a liability on our balancetsecumulated actuarial gains and losses aremponent of our other comprehensive (loss)
income, which is then included in our accumulatdtepcomprehensive (loss) income. Pension andrptistment benefit expenses are
recognized over the period in which the employeelees service and becomes eligible to receive isn&fe make significant assumptions
(including the discount rate, expected rate ofrretin plan assets and health care trend rategnapating the pension and post-retirement
benefits expense and obligations. See Note 8—Erapl®gnefits.

Foreign CurrencyOur results of operations include foreign subsidgrwhich are translated from the applicable fiamal currency to
the United States dollar using the average excheatge during the reporting period, while assetslabilities are translated at the reporting
date. Resulting gains or losses from translatimgim currency are included in accumulated othemmehensive (loss) income.

Common StockAt December 31, 2011, we had unissued shares dfiG#ink common stock reserved of 43.6 million stwfor
incentive compensation, 4.1 million shares for asitjans, 3.4 million shares for our employee stpckchase plan (‘ESPP”) and 400,000
shares for our dividend reinvestment plan.

Preferred stockHolders of outstanding CenturyLink preferred stack entitled to receive cumulative dividends, reegireferential
distributions equal to $25 per share plus unpariidnds upon CenturyLink’s liquidation and votesasingle class with the holders of
common stock.

Recently Issued Accounting PronouncemédntSeptember 2011, the Financial Accounting Staael&oard (“FASB”) issued
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-08, Intidtes—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwill lonpairment. This upda
simplifies the goodwill impairment assessment gveihg a company to first review qualitative factdo determine the likelihood of whether
the fair value of a reporting unit is less tharncisrying amount before applying the two-step gatidmpairment test. If it is determined that
it is more likely than not that the fair value ofeporting unit is greater than its carrying amoantompany would not be required to perform
the two-step goodwill impairment test for that repay unit. This update is effective for interimdaannual goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Deceniier2011 with early adoption permitted. This ASihjch we adopted during the third
quarter of 2011, did not have any impact on ouisotidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009R8yenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-DelivdeaBevenue Arrangemeniis
update requires the use of the relative sellinggpmethod when allocating revenue in these typasrahgements. This method requires a
vendor to use its best estimate of selling priaeeither vendor specific objective evidence nortipiarty evidence of selling price exists when
evaluating multiple deliverable arrangements. Bémdard update was effective for us on Janua2@11 and we have adopted it
prospectively for revenue arrangements enteredointoaterially modified after January 1, 2011. Té$tsndard update has not had and is not
expected to have a material impact on our congeliiinancial statements since the allocation eéneie has historically been based upor
relative fair value of the elements as determingdeference to vendor specific objective evideniciio value when the elements have been
sold on a stand-alone basis.

(2) Acquisitions
Acquisition of Savvis

On July 15, 2011, we acquired all of the outstagdiommon stock of Sawvis, a provider of cloud hggtinanaged hosting, colocation
and network services in domestic and foreign mark&te believe this acquisition enhances our altititge an information technology parti
with our existing business customers and strengtbenopportunities to attract new business custetinghe future. Each share of Savvis
common stock
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outstanding immediately prior to the acquisitiomeerted into the right to receive $30 per sharesish and 0.2479 shares of CenturyLink
common stock. The aggregate consideration of $2b8B@n consisted of:

e cash payments of $1.732 billia
e the 14.313 million shares of CenturyLink commorcktssued to consummate the acquisit
» the closing stock price of CenturyLink common statkuly 14, 2011 of $38.54; a

» the estimated net value of the pre-combinationipomf certain share-based compensation awardsnasshy CenturyLink of
$98 million, of which $33 million was paid in cas

Upon completing the acquisition, we also paid $64lfion to retire certain pre-existing Savvis deloid accrued interest, and paid
related transaction expenses totaling $15 millidre cash payments required on or about the claftgwere funded using existing cash
balances, which included the net proceeds frondtime 2011 issuance of senior notes with an aggrggeicipal amount of $2.0 billion. See
Note <—Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities, for addi@information about our senior notes.

We have recognized the assets and liabilities w¥iSdased on our preliminary estimates of thequégition date fair values. The
determination of the fair values of the acquireskss and assumed liabilities (and the related hétetion of estimated lives of depreciable
tangible and identifiable intangible assets) reggiBignificant judgment. As such, we have not cetepl our valuation analysis and
calculations in sufficient detail necessary towart the final estimates of the fair value of Sgvassets acquired and liabilities assumed,
along with the related allocations to goodwill anthngible assets. The fair values of certain taleghssets, intangible assets, certain
contingent liabilities and residual goodwill are tlmost significant areas not yet finalized anddfae are subject to change. We expect to
complete our final fair value determinations netahan the second quarter of 2012. Our finalfailue determinations may be significantly
different than those reflected in our consoliddtedncial statements at December 31, 2011.

Based on our preliminary estimate, the aggregatsideration exceeds the aggregate estimated fiaie v the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities by $1.357 billion, which hagbeecognized as goodwill. This goodwill is atttédule to strategic benefits, including
enhanced financial and operational scale and ptahtmarket diversification that we expect toimalNone of the goodwill associated with
this acquisition is deductible for income tax pses.

The following is our preliminary assignment of tiggregate consideration:

July 15, 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Cash, accounts receivable and other current ¢ $ 21¢
Property, plant and equipme 1,33¢
Identifiable intangible asse
Customer relationshiy 794
Other 51
Other noncurrent asse 27
Current liabilities, excluding current maturitieslong-term
debt (129
Current maturities of lor-term debr (38
Long-term debi (840
Deferred credits and other liabiliti (38¢)
Goodwill 1,35
Aggregate consideratic $ 2,38:
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Acquisition of Qwes

On April 1, 2011, we acquired all of the outstamdaommon stock of Qwest, a provider of data, Ireemideo and voice services
nationwide and globally. We entered into this asijigin, among other things, to realize certaintsggir benefits, including enhanced finan:
and operational scale, market diversification awttaged combined networks. As of the acquisitae,dQwest served approximately
9.0 million access lines and approximately 3.0iomllbroadband subscribers across 14 states. Each shQwest common stock outstanding
immediately prior to the acquisition converted itte right to receive 0.1664 shares of Centuryldokimon stock, with cash paid in lieu of
fractional shares. The aggregate considerationdda<273 billion based on:

» the 294 million shares of CenturyLink common stgdued to consummate the acquisiti
» the closing stock price of CenturyLink common statiarch 31, 2011 of $41.5

» the estimated net value of the pre-combinationipomf share- based compensation awards assuméeriyryLink of
$52 million (excluding the value of restricted %tancluded in the number of issued shares speciiele); an

» cash paid in lieu of the issuance of fractionakrskaf $5 million.
We assumed approximately $12.7 billion of long-tefat in connection with our acquisition of Qwest.

We have recognized the assets and liabilities of€Wwased on our preliminary estimates of theiuaitipn date fair values. The
determination of the fair values of the acquireskss and assumed liabilities (and the related ihétetion of estimated lives of depreciable
tangible and identifiable intangible assets) regpiBignificant judgment. As such, we have not cetepl our valuation analysis and
calculations in sufficient detail necessary towart the final estimates of the fair value of QUgeassets acquired and liabilities assumed,
along with the related allocations to goodwill anthngible assets. The fair values of certain taleghssets, intangible assets, certain
contingent liabilities and residual goodwill are tlmost significant areas not yet finalized anddfae are subject to change. We expect to
complete our final fair value determinations netahan the first quarter of 2012. Our final failwe determinations may be significantly
different than those reflected in our consoliddtedncial statements at December 31, 2011.

Based on our preliminary estimate, the aggregatsideration exceeds the aggregate estimated fiaie v the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities by $10.106 billion, which ambhas been recognized as goodwill. This goodwitisbutable to strategic benefits,
including enhanced financial and operational saakeket diversification and leveraged combined oeks that we expect to realize. None of
the goodwill associated with this acquisition isldetible for income tax purposes.

The following is our preliminary assignment of thiggregate consideration:

April 1, 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Cash, accounts receivable and other current ¢ $ 2,12¢
Property, plant and equipme 9,55¢
Identifiable intangible asse
Customer relationshif 7,62¢
Capitalized softwar 1,70z
Other 18¢
Other noncurrent asse 373
Current liabilities, excluding current maturitielong-term
debt (2,42%)
Current maturities of lor-term deb (2,427)
Long-term debt (10,257
Deferred credits and other liabiliti (4,30))
Goodwill 10,10¢
Aggregate consideratic $ 12,27
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Acquisition of Embarqg

On July 1, 2009, we acquired all of the outstanadioagimon stock of Embarg Corporation (“Embarqg”) ravider of data, Internet, video
and voice services. We entered into this acquisi@onong other things, to realize certain stratbgiwefits, including enhanced financial and
operational scale, market diversification and laged combined networks. As of the acquisition datebarq served approximately
5.4 million access lines and approximately 1.5iomllbroadband subscribers across 18 states. Each shEmbarg common stock
outstanding immediately prior to the acquisitiomeerted into the right to receive 1.37 shares oft@gLink common stock, with cash paid
in lieu of fractional shares. The aggregate comatiten of $6.070 billion was based on:

» the 196 million shares of CenturyLink common stgdued to consummate the acquisiti
» the closing stock price of CenturyLink common statkune 30, 2009 of $30.70; &
» the estimated net value of the pre-combinationipomf share- based compensation awards assuméeriyryLink of
approximately $50 million (excluding the value ebtricted stock included in the number of issuedehspecified above
We assumed approximately $4.9 billion of long-tetebt in connection with our acquisition of Embarqg.

In connection the Embarq acquisition, we amendedtbarter to eliminate our time-phase voting stitet which previously entitled
persons who beneficially owned shares of our comstock continuously since May 30, 1987 to ten vpisshare.

We have recognized the assets and liabilities dd&mbased on their acquisition date fair valuesda on our final determination of
fair value in June 2010, the aggregate considera&i@eeds the aggregate estimated fair value afdfeired assets and assumed liabilities by
$6.245 billion, which amount has been recognizegaasiwill. This goodwill is attributable to stratedenefits, including enhanced financial
and operational scale, market diversification awttaged combined networks that we expect to eediimne of the goodwill associated with
this acquisition is deductible for income tax pLsgs.

The following is our assignment of the aggregatesateration:

July 1, 2009
(Dollars in millions)
Cash, accounts receivable and other current ¢ $ 67€
Property, plant and equipme 6,07¢
Identifiable intangible asse
Customer relationshiy 1,09¢
Right of way 26¢
Other 27
Other noncurrent asse 24
Current liabilities, excluding current maturitielong-term
debt (837)
Current maturities of lor-term deb ()
Long-term debt (4,885
Deferred credits and other liabiliti (2,627)
Goodwill 6,24¢
Aggregate consideratic $ 6,07(

In connection with consummating the Embarq acqaisitve amended our charter to (i) eliminate ometphase voting structure, whi
previously entitled persons who beneficially owsédres of our common stock continuously since M3yl987 to ten votes per share, and
(i) increase the authorized number of shares of ou
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common stock from 350 million to 800 million. As amended and restated, our charter provides tohtgere of our common stock is
entitled to one vote per share with respect to eaatier properly submitted to shareholders fortheie, consent, waiver, release or other
action.

References to Acquired Business

In the discussion that follows, we refer to theibess that we operated prior to the Qwest acqoisitincluding Embarg’s business) as
“Legacy CenturyLink” and refer to the incrementakmess activities that we now operate as a re§tite Savvis acquisition and the Qwest
acquisition as “Legacy Savvis” and “Legacy Qwestspectively.

Combined Pro Forma Operating Results (Unaudited)

For the year ended December 31, 2011, CenturyLimsslts of operations included operating reverfnesof intercompany
eliminations) attributable to Qwest and Savvis ®2%billion and $483 million, respectively. The &éuh of Qwest and Savvis post-
acquisition operations did not contribute signifittg to our consolidated net income.

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortita presents the combined results of CenturyLsif ¢he Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions had been consummated as of JanuagAD,

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Operating revenue $ 18,69: 19,43:
Net income 601 29z
Basic earnings per common sh .97 A8
Diluted earnings per common shi .97 A8

This pro forma information reflects certain adjusits to previously reported operating results, isting of primarily:

» decreased operating revenues and expenses duedbintination of deferred revenues and deferre@eses associated with
installation activities and capacity leases thatensssigned no value at the acquisition date améltmination of transactions
among CenturyLink, Qwest and Savvis that are ndvjest to intercompany eliminatio

* increased amortization expense related to idehldimtangible assets, net of decreased depregiakipense to reflect the fair
value of property, plant and equipme

» decreased recognition of retiree benefit expenme®@ivest due to the elimination of unrecognizediagal losses

» decreased interest expense primarily due to theteation of an adjustment to reflect the increafadvalue of long-term debt of
Qwest recognized on the acquisition date;

» the related income tax effec
The pro forma information does not necessarilyefthe actual results of operations had the QamdiSavvis acquisitions been
consummated at January 1, 2010, nor is it necésgaticative of future operating results. The fjwoma information does not give effect to

any potential revenue enhancements, cost synesgi@ber operating efficiencies that could restdtrf the acquisitions (other than those
realized in our historical financial statement&athe respective acquisition dates).
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At December 31, 2011, we had incurred cumulativuesition related expenses, consisting primarilyntégration and severance rele
expenses, of $41 million for Savvis, $393 milliar Qwest, and $459 million for Embarg. The totaloaimt of these expenses recognized in
our costs of services and products and sellingeiggand administrative expenses for years endeemleer 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was
$467 million, $145 million and $271 million, respieely. An additional $16 million consists of traaxdion expenses incurred in connection
with terminating an unused loan financing committmetated to our Savvis acquisition. This amounswat considered an operating activity
and therefore not included as an operating expense.

Qwest incurred cumulative pre-acquisition relatepemses of $71 million, including $36 million inreds prior to being acquired and
$35 million on the date of acquisition. Savvis imed cumulative pre-acquisition related expensek2@million, including $3 million in
periods prior to being acquired and $19 milliontba date of acquisition. These amounts are notd®d in our results of operations.

(3) Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intagible Assets
Goodwill, customer relationships and other intateydssets consisted of the following:

December 31 December 31
2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Goodwill $ 21,72« 10,26
Customer relationships, less accumulated amonizatf $1,337
and $34¢ 8,361 93C
Indefinite-life intangible asset 41¢€ 41¢€
Other intangible assets subject to amortiza
Capitalized software, less accumulated amortizadfon
$441 and $7! 1,622 164
Tradenames and patents, less accumulated amantiz#ti
$73 and $: 19¢ 40
Total other intangible assets, | $  2,23¢ 622

Our goodwill was derived from numerous acquisitisigereby the purchase price exceeded the fair \althee net assets acquired (See
Note —Acquisitions). At December 31, 2011, the net caigyamounts of goodwill, customer relationships atfter intangible assets
included preliminary estimates of $20.710 billianaaresult of our acquisitions of Qwest and Sawds.expect to complete the final
determination of these estimates and related etgirives for amortizable intangible assets norlttan the second quarter of 2012 for Sa
and the first quarter of 2012 for Qwest.

Total amortization expense for intangible assetyéars ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 20081425 billion, $206 million an
$136 million, respectively. The 2011 total includit million related to the Savvis acquisition &id185 billion for the Qwest acquisition
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

We estimate that total amortization expense farigible assets for the years ending December 3P, 2bough 2016 will be as
follows:

(Dollars in millions)

2012 $ 1,65¢€
2013 1,524
2014 1,38¢
2015 1,23¢
2016 1,09(
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Our annual measurement date for testing goodwjtkiimment is September 30. As of December 31, 20&Iattributed our goodwill
balances to our segments as follows:

December 31, 201
(Dollars in millions)

Regional market $ 11,81
Business marke! 5,021
Wholesale markel 3,53¢
Savvis operation 1,35%
Total goodwiill $ 21,72¢

For each segment, we compare its estimated faieual the carrying value of the assets that wibaté to the segment. If the estimated
fair value of the segment is greater than the aagryalue, we conclude that no impairment exidtthé estimated fair value of the segment is
less than the attributed carrying value, a secatzutation is required in which the implied fairlwa of goodwill is compared to the carrying
value goodwill that we attribute to the segmenth& implied fair value of goodwill is less thaa @arrying value, goodwill must be written
down to its implied fair value.

At September 30, 2011, we estimated the fair vafumur regional, business and wholesale marketseats using an equal weighting
based on a market approach and a discounted casimigthod. The market approach includes the useraparable multiples of publicly
traded companies whose services are comparablesdmcorroborate discounted cash flow resulte discounted cash flow method is be
on the present value of projected cash flows atedrainal value, which represents the expected nliwathcash flows of the segment beyond
the cash flows from the discrete projection fivesyperiod. The estimated cash flows were discouftiedach segment using a rate that
represents our weighted average cost of capitathaae determined to be 6.50% as of the measuredasat(which was comprised of a pre-
tax cost of debt of 7.0% and a cost of equity @28).. We also reconciled the estimated fair valifah® segments to our market capitalization
as of September 30, 2011 and concluded that theaied implied control premium of 16% was reasoedizlsed on recent transactions in the
market place. At September 30, 2011, based onralysis performed with respect to these segmendesaribed above, we concluded that
our goodwill was not impaired as of that date.

For our Savvis operations, we determined the pieény fair value of the assets acquired and liabdiassumed using various methods,
including an overall discounted cash flow analyssformed for all of Savvis’ operations. The faalwe assignments are still preliminary and
could change significantly upon finalization of #aér value assignments. Due to the recentnedsecai¢quisition and the related preliminary
valuation results and the lack of any significatterse events that have occurred to Savvis’ opgratisults or our expectations of forecasted
operating results utilized in the preliminary vdloa since the July 15, 2011 acquisition date, weehconcluded that the goodwill related to
the Savvis operations is not impaired.

On October 27, 2011, the FCC adopted the Conne&riémand Intercarrier Compensation Reform ordeis ©rder will reduce the
amount of switched access revenues we recognizeriwholesale markets segment in the future. TIWE Grder was considered to be an
event or change in circumstance that may indidaedn impairment may have occurred. At DecembeR@11, we performed the first step
of the goodwill impairment test to identify a poti@himpairment by comparing the estimated fairueabf the wholesale markets segment:
its attributed carrying amount, including goodwWe concluded the goodwill of this segment is mgpaired and no further testing was
necessary.
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(4) Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt, including unamortized discounts preimiums, at December 31, 2011 and 2010 consi$tedrrowings by
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain of its subsidiarias,follows:

Years Ended December 31,
Interest Rates Maturities 2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)

CenturyLink, Inc.

Senior notes 5.000% - 2012 -
7.875% 2039 $ 4,51¢ 2,51¢
Credit facility 2.550% -
4.500%(* ) 2015 277 36&
Subsidiaries
Qwest
Senior notes 7.125% - 2014 -
8.000% 2018 2,65( —
Debentures 6.875% - 2014 -
7.750% 2043 3,182 —
Other notes 6.500% - 2013 -
8.375% 2051 5,62¢ —
Embarg Corporatio
Senior notes 6.738% - 2013 -
7.995% 2036 4,01z 4,01z
First mortgage bonds 6.875% - 2013 -
8.770% 2025 322 322
Other 6.750% - 2013 -
9.000% 2019 20C 20C
First mortgage notes 2012 -
2.00%- 10.00% 2018 65 83
Capital lease and other obligatic Various Various 712 —
Unamortized premiums (discounts) and other, 26¢ 173
Total lon¢-term debt 21,83¢ 7,32¢
Less current maturitie 480 (12)
Long-term debt, excluding current maturiti $ 21,35¢ 7,31¢€

(*) This range includes the weighted average intemestuo credit facility of 2.74% as of December 3Q12.

Long-Term Debt Acquired

As a result of the acquisition of Qwest on Apri2D11, Qwest's pre-existing debt obligations, whiosisted primarily of debt
securities issued by Qwest Communications Intesnatilnc. and two of its subsidiaries, are nowudeld in our consolidated debt balances.
On the acquisition date, Qwest's debt securitiesstated principal balances totaling $11.598 hillipredominantly fixed contractual interest
rates ranging from 6.5% to 8.875% (weighted averdge63%) and maturities ranging from 2012 to 20&laccounting for the Qwest
acquisition, we recorded Qwest’s debt securitigheit estimated fair values, which totaled $12.6#lkon as of April 1, 2011 (which
included $383 million of capital leases and certatirer obligations). Our acquisition date fair \@akstimates were based primarily on quoted
market prices in active markets and other obseeviaipluts where quoted market prices were not édlaildhe amount by which the fair val
of Qwest debt securities exceeded their stateaipahbalances on the acquisition date of $693ionilis being recognized as a reduction to
interest expense over the remaining terms of theé de

Upon completing the acquisition of Savvis on July 2011, we paid $547 million to retire certain-preésting Savvis debt and accrued
interest, and paid related transaction expensabrngt$15 million. The cash payments required onlmut the closing date were funded using
existing cash balances, which included the netg@ds from the June 16, 2011 issuance of senios mote an aggregate principal amount of
$2.0 billion, as discussed below.
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New Issuance:

On October 4, 2011, our indirect wholly owned sdlasly, Qwest Corporation (“QC'issued $950 million aggregate principal amour
its 6.75% Notes due 2021 in exchange for net paxesfter deducting underwriting discounts and agps, of $927 million. The notes are
senior unsecured obligations of QC and may be reddein whole or in part, at a redemption priceado the greater of their principal
amount or the present value of the remaining ppadcand interest payments discounted at a U.Sslirganterest rate specified in the
indenture agreement plus 50 basis points. In Oct2®&l, QC used the net proceeds from this offetimgether with the $557 million of net
proceeds received on September 21, 2011 from thieistriance described below and available cagkdiEem the $1.500 billion aggregate
principal amount of its 8.875% Notes due 2012 anplay all related fees and expenses, which resintad immaterial loss.

On September 21, 2011, QC issued $575 million agdeeprincipal amount of its 7.50% Notes due 2@bdxchange for net proceeds,
after deducting underwriting discounts and expense$557 million. The notes are senior unsecutddyations of QC and may be redeemed,
in whole or in part, on or after September 15, 28L& redemption price equal to 100% of the primicgmount redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date.

On June 16, 2011, we issued unsecured senior witean aggregate principal amount of $2.0 bill{t&enior Notes”), consisting of
(i) $400 million of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series Be @039, (ii) $350 million of 5.15% Senior NotegriBs R, due 2017 and (iii) $1.250 billi
of 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021. Aftdudeéng underwriting discounts and expenses, weived aggregate net proceeds of
$1.959 hillion in exchange for the Senior Notes. &y redeem the Senior Notes, in whole or in gdrny time at a redemption price equal
to the greater of their principal amount or thespre value of the remaining principal and intepestments discounted at a U.S. Treasury
interest rates plus 50 basis points. We used thproeeeds to fund a portion of our acquisitiorsafvis and repay certain of Savvigbt (se!
Note z—Acquisitions). In April 2011, we received commitniéetters from two banks to provide up to $2.0idmil in bridge financing for the
Sawvis acquisition. This arrangement was terminateldine 2011 in connection with the issuance @f3hbnior Notes resulting in $16 million
in transaction expenses recognized in other ind@xgense), net.

On June 8, 2011, QC issued $661 million aggregateipal amount of its 7.375% Notes due 2051 inhexge for net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and expenses6423$nillion. The notes are unsecured obligation@fand may be redeemed, in whole or
in part, on or after June 1, 2016 at a redemptitgeequal to 100% of the principal amount redeepiad accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date.

In April 2011, we entered into a $160 million unawitted revolving letter of credit facility, whicmebles us to provide letters of credit
under terms that may be more favorable than thodenthe Credit Facility. At December 31, 2011, outstanding letters of credit totaled
$129 million.

In January 2011, we entered into a new four-yeaslwing credit facility with various lenders (th€tedit Facility”). The Credit Facility
initially allowed us to borrow up to $1 billion. Wp consummation of the Qwest acquisition, our beimg capacity under the Credit Facility
increased to $1.7 billion, for the general corpeiairposes of us and our subsidiaries. Up to $40i@mof the Credit Facility can be used 1
letters of credit, which reduce the amount avaddbl other extensions of credit. Interest is essg®n borrowings using the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicabhargin between 0.5% and 2.5% per annum dependirtigeotype of loan and
CenturyLink’s then-current senior unsecured lomgateebt rating. At December 31, 2011, we had $2illfomin borrowings and an
immaterial amount of letters of credit outstandimgler the Credit Facility.

Repayment:

In October 2011, QC used the net proceeds of $3idmfrom the October 4, 2011 issuance, togethigh the $557 million of net
proceeds received from the September 21, 201liskiEnce described above and

B-55



Table of Contents

available cash, to redeem the $1.5 billion aggeepancipal amount of its 8.875% Notes due 2012targhy all related fees and expenses,
which resulted in an immaterial loss.

In June 2011, QC used the net proceeds of $64Bmfllom the June 8, 2011 debt issuance, togetitaravailable cash, to redeem
$825 million aggregate principal amount of its B8/ Notes due 2011 and to pay related fees and sgpewhich resulted in an immaterial
loss.

Aggregate maturities of our long-term debt (exahgdiinamortized premiums, discounts, and other):

(Dollars in millions)

2012 $ 48C
2013 1,713
2014 2,057
2015 1,65¢
2016 2,85¢
2017 and thereaft 12,79¢
Total notes and debentur $ 21,567

Interest Expenst

Interest expense includes interest on long-tern. ddte following table presents the amount of giogsrest expense, net of capitalized
interest:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Interest expense on lo-term debt

Gross interest expen $1,097 557 37C
Capitalized interes (25) (13) (©)]
Total interest expense on lc-term debr $1,072 544 367

Long-Term Debt Covenants

Certain of our loan agreements contain variousictisins, among which are limitations regardingiessce or guarantee of additional
debt or issuance of preferred stock, payment df dasdends, reacquisition or sale of capital stankl other matters. In addition, the transfer
of funds from certain consolidated subsidiarie€#mturyLink is restricted by various loan agreeraeBubsidiaries that have loans from
government agencies and cooperative lending asgwgaor have issued first mortgage bonds, gelyeray not loan or advance any funds
to CenturyLink, but may pay dividends if certaindncial ratios are met. At December 31, 2011, fadun consolidated retained earnings
reflected on the balance sheet were available unateloan agreements for the declaration of divitten

The senior notes of CenturyLink were issued unddndenture dated March 31, 1994. This indentuessdmt contain any financial
covenants, but does include restrictions that lonit ability to (i) incur, issue or create liensonpour property and (ii) consolidate with or
merge into, or transfer or lease all or substdgtall of its assets to, any other party. The irtde& does not contain any provisions that are
impacted by our credit ratings, or that restriet issuance of new securities in the event of amahtlverse change to us.

The indentures governing Qwest’s debt securitiedaio customary covenants that restrict the abilfti)west or its subsidiaries from
incurring additional debt, making certain paymeantd investments, granting
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liens, and selling or transferring assets. We danticipate that these covenants will significaméstrict our ability to manage cash balances
or transfer cash between entities within our cadatéd group of companies as needed.

Since the Qwest parent company has achieved ineestgnade ratings from one of the rating agenonest of the covenants listed
above have been suspended. Under the indenturenjoy¢hese notes, we must repurchase the notesagstain changes of control, which
were not triggered upon the acquisition on Apri2@11. This indenture also contains provisionsfoss acceleration relating to any of our
other debt obligations and the debt obligationswfrestricted subsidiaries in an aggregate amioustcess of $100 million.

Embarg’s senior notes were issued pursuant todentnre dated as of May 17, 2006. While Embareiegally prohibited from
creating liens on its property unless its senides@re secured equally and ratably, Embarqg caecliens on its property without equally :
ratably securing its senior notes so long as the auall indebtedness so secured does not excéddiEmbarg’'s consolidated net tangible
assets. The indenture contains customary evemtsfafilt, none of which are impacted by Embarq’slicnating. The indenture does not
contain any financial covenants or restrictionghanability to issue new securities in accordanith the terms of the indenture.

Several of our other subsidiaries have outstanfilisgmortgage bonds or notes. Each issue of tfiestenortgage bonds or notes are

secured by substantially all of the property, pamd equipment of the issuing subsidiary. Approxatya23% of our property, plant and
equipment is pledged to secure the long-term diettilosidiaries.

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect sidiiary, Qwest Corporation, (“QC”), must maintaidebt to EBITDA (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatiomedised in our Credit Facility) ratio of not motean 4:1 and 2.85:1, respectively, as of the last
day of each fiscal quarter for the four quarteentended. The Credit Facility also contains a negaledge covenant, which generally
provides restrictions if we pledge assets or pelienis on our property, and requires that any adeamnder the Credit Facility must also be
secured equally and ratably. The Credit Facilisodias a cross payment default provision, and thdit-acility and certain of our debt
securities also have cross acceleration provisishBecember 31, 2011, we were in compliance wittlofathe provisions and covenants
contained in our Credit Facility and other debteggnents.

Subsequent Event

On January 27, 2012 we called $800 million of Qw586 notes due February 15, 2014. The principauarnplus all accrued interest
will be redeemed on March 1, 2012 at a redemptiaef 100%.

(5) Accounts Receivable
The following table presents details of our acceupteivable balances:

December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Trade receivable $ 1,60¢ 71€
Earned and unbilled receivabl 34¢ 51
Purchased and other receivak 13¢ 4
Total accounts receivab 2,097 77z
Less: allowance for doubtful accoul (14E) (60)
Accounts receivable, less allowar $ 1,952 71z
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We are exposed to concentrations of credit risknfresidential and business customers within owallservice area, business customers
outside of our local service area and from othlectanmunications service providers. We generallydorequire collateral to secure our
receivable balances. We have agreements with tedlemommunications service providers whereby weeatw bill and collect on their behalf
for services rendered by those providers to outoooisrs within our local service area. We purchaseants receivable from other
telecommunications service providers primarily ameeourse basis and include these amounts in couats receivable balance. We have
experienced any significant loss associated wigsdlpurchased receivables.

The following table presents details of our allow&iior doubtful accounts:

Beginning
Balance Additions Deductions Other Ending Balance
(Dollars in millions)
2011 $ 60 15¢ (68) — 14~
2010 $ 48 91 (79) — 60
2009 $ 16 57 (25) — 48
(6) Property, Plant and Equipment
Net property, plant and equipment is composed ®faHowing:
December 31,
Depreciable
Lives 2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Land N/A  $ 59C 20¢€
Fiber, conduit and other outside pl® 8-45 year 12,42: 8,38:
Central office and other network electron® 3-10 year 9,73( 5,412
Support assei® 5-35 year 6,09( 2,057
Construction in progres® N/A 744 272
Gross property, plant and equipm 29,57. 16,32¢
Accumulated depreciatic (10,149 (7,579
Net property, plant and equipme $19,43¢ 8,75¢

(1) Fiber, conduit and other outside plant consistibefr and metallic cable, conduit, poles and othgrporting structure:

(2) Central office and other network electronicasists of circuit and packet switches, routerg)gnaission electronics and electronics
providing service to customel

(3) Support assets consist of buildings, computersoéimel administrative and support equipmi

(4) Construction in progress includes property of tredoing categories that has not been placed wiceess it is still under constructic

We recorded depreciation expense of $2.601 bilkdn228 billion and $839 million for the years edd@zecember 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

Asset Retirement Obligatior

At December 31, 2011, our asset retirement obbgatbalance was primarily related to estimatedréutosts of removing equipment
from leased properties and estimated future cdgisoperly disposing of asbestos and other hazardwaterials upon remodeling or
demolishing buildings. Asset retirement obligati@ns included in other long-term liabilities on @memsolidated balance sheets.
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As of the Qwest and Savvis acquisition dates, werded liabilities to reflect our preliminary esttes of fair values of Qwest and
Savvis asset retirement obligations. Our fair vastimates were determined using discounted cashrflethods.

The following table provides asset retirement ddtlign activity:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at beginning of ye $ 41 39 —
Accretion expens 9 2 1
Liabilities incurred — — 38
Liabilities assumed in Qwest and Savvis acquis# 124 — —
Liabilities settled and othe 3 — —
Change in estimat (62) — —
Balance at end of ye $ 10¢ 41 39

During 2011, we revised our estimates for the obstmoval of network equipment, asbestos remextiadnd other obligations by
$62 million. These revisions resulted in a reducttibthe asset retirement obligation and offsetteduction to gross property, plant and
equipment.

(7) Severance and Leased Real Estate

Periodically, we have reductions in our workforoel @ave accrued liabilities for related severarmustsc These workforce reductions
resulted primarily from the progression or completof our integration plans, increased competitiressures and reduced workload demands
due to the loss of access lines.

We report severance liabilities within accrued exgaes and other liabilities-salaries and benefimuinconsolidated balance sheets and
report severance expenses in cost of servicesraddqts and selling, general and administrativeeagps in our consolidated statements of
operations. We have not allocated any severanaensepto our regional, business and wholesale nsaskgiments.

In periods prior to our acquisition of Qwest, Qwieatl ceased using certain real estate that it@essrlg under long-term operating
leases. As of the April 1, 2011 acquisition date,recorded liabilities to reflect our preliminarstienates of the fair values of the existing
lease obligations for real estate for which we taased using, net of estimated sublease rentaldafDualue estimates were determined
using discounted cash flow methods. We recogniperese to reflect accretion of the discounted ligdsl and periodically, we adjust the
expense when our actual experience differs fromruotial estimates. We report the current portidhiabilities for ceased-use real estate
leases in accrued expenses and other liabilitidgeport the noncurrent portion in deferred creadlitd other liabilities in our consolidated
balance sheets. We report the related expensedlimgsgeneral and administrative expenses incomsolidated statements of operations. At
December 31, 2011, the current and noncurrentqgrerdf our leased real estate accrual were $2omeind $126 million, respectively. The
remaining lease terms range from 0.1 to 14.0 y&dtl,a weighted average of 9.1 years.
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Changes in our accrued liabilities for severanqeeages and leased real estate were as follows:

Severanci Real Estate
(Dollars in millions)

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 69 —
Accrued to expens 27 —
Payments, ne (78) —
Balance at December 31, 2C 18 —
Accrued to expens 132 6
Liabilities assumed in Qwest acquisiti 20 16¢
Payments, ne (139 (21)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 37 152

Our severance expenses for the year ended Dec&hp2011 also included $12 million of share-bassumensation associated with
the accelerated vesting of stock awards that oedurr connection with workforce reductions relatinghe acquisition of Qwest.

(8) Employee Benefits
Pension, PosRetirement and Other Post-Employment Benefits

We sponsor several defined benefit pension plah&hwin the aggregate cover a substantial portfauo employees including separate
plans for Legacy CenturyLink, Legacy Qwest and Emlemployees. Until such time as we elect to iraegthe Qwest and Embarq benefit
plans with ours, we plan to continue to operatset@ans independently. Pension benefits for ppatits of these plans who are represented
by a collective bargaining agreement are basecdegotiated schedules. All other participants’ pemdienefits are based on each individual
participant’s years of service and compensation.udéea December 31 measurement date for all ons.plia addition to these tax qualified
pension plans, we also maintain non-qualified pmplans for certain former highly compensated eygds. We maintain post-retirement
benefit plans that provide health care and lifeiiaace benefits for certain eligible retirees. W @rovide other post-employment benefits
for eligible former employees.

PensionIn connection with the acquisition of Qwest on Afri2011, we assumed defined benefit pension poasored by Qwest 1
its employees. Based on a valuation analysis, segrdzed a $490 million net liability at April 1021 for the unfunded status of the Qwest
pension plans, reflecting projected benefit oblayzg of $8.3 billion in excess of the $7.8 billitair value of plan assets.

Current funding laws require a company with a aartfall to fund the annual cost of benefits edrimeaddition to a seven-year
amortization of the shortfall. Our funding poliayrfthe pension plan is to make contributions whit dbjective of accumulating sufficient
assets to pay all qualified pension benefits wheschder the terms of the plan. The accountingnd€d status of our qualified pension pl
was $1.7 billion as of December 31, 2011. We exfenotake a contribution of less than $50 millior2B2, based on current laws and
circumstances.

In 2010, to align our benefit structure closerttose offered by our competitors, we froze our LggaenturyLink and Embarg pension
benefit accruals for our non-represented emploge&ecember 31, 2010. Such action resulted inactamh of our benefit obligation of
approximately $110 million and resulted in the gauition of a curtailment gain of approximately $2illion in 2010. Prior to their
acquisition on April 1, 2011, Qwest had frozenpignsion benefit accruals for non-represented ereply

Other Post-Retirement Benefi@ur post-retirement health care plans provide petitement benefits to qualified retirees. The post
retirement health care plans we assumed as patrafcquisitions of Qwest and Embarq provide pestament benefits to qualified retirees
and allows (i) eligible employees retiring before
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certain dates to receive benefits at no or redaeostiand (ii) eligible employees retiring afterte@r dates to receive benefits on a shared cost
basis. The post-retirement health care plans arerghy funded by us and we expect to continue ifupthese post-retirement obligations as
benefits are paid. Our plan uses a December 31uraasnt date.

In connection with the acquisition of Qwest on Afgri2011, we assumed post-retirement benefit pdansisored by Qwest for certain
of its employees. At April 1, 2011, we recognize$i2a5 billion liability for the unfunded status Qfwvest's post-retirement benefit plans,
reflecting estimated accumulated post-retiremenebeobligations of $3.3 billion in excess of @68 million fair value of the plan assets.

No contributions were made to the post-retiremerst$ in 2011 or 2010 and we do not expect to naas@ntribution in 2012.
A change of 100 basis points in the assumed ifiBalth care cost trend rate would have had theviolg effects in 2011:

100 Basis Points Change

Increase (Decrease

(Dollars in millions)

Effect on the aggregate of the service and interest component

of net periodic post-retirement benefit expensatéshents of

operations $ 2 )
Effect on benefit obligation (balance shet 70 (65)

We expect our health care cost trend rate to deereyn 0.5% per year from 7.5% in 2012 to an ultewate of 5.0% in 2018. Our post-
retirement health care expense, for certain ebgildgacy Qwest retirees and certain eligible LedaegturyLink retirees, is capped at a set
dollar amount. Therefore, those health care benbfigations are not subject to increasing headite ¢rends after the effective date of the
caps.

Expected Cash Flow

The pension, non-qualified pension and pesirement health care benefit payments and presamd life insurance premium payme
are paid by us or distributed from plan assets. &gtignated benefit payments provided below aredasectuarial assumptions using the
demographics of the employee and retiree populaiod have been reduced by estimated participatrifwations.

Post-

Retirement
Medicare Part D
Benefit
Pension Plan Plans Subsidy Receipt

(Dollars in millions)
Estimated future benefit paymen

2012 $  1,02¢ 391 (24)
2013 99¢ 38¢€ (26)
2014 08t 37¢ (28)
2015 974 36¢ (30)
2016 96€ 35¢ (32)
20172021 4,62 1,60¢ (189

B-61



Table of Contents

Net Periodic Benefit Expens

The measurement date used to determine pensiofquadified pension and post-retirement health eauek life insurance benefits is
December 31. The actuarial assumptions used to utentipe net periodic benefit expense for our pemsion-qualified pension and post-
retirement benefit plans are based upon informatiailable as of the beginning of the year, asgesl in the following table.

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
2011 2010 2009 20110 2010 2009

Actuarial assumptions at beginning of

year:
Discount rate 5.00%-5.50% 5.50%-6.00% 6.60%-6.90%  5.30% 5.70%-5.80% 6.40%-6.90%
Rate of compensation incree 3.25% 3.50%-4.00% 4.00% N/A N/A N/A
Expected longerm rate of return on pl:

asset: 7.50%-8.00% 8.25%-8.50% 8.25%-8.50%  7.25% 7.25% 8.25%-8.50%
Initial health care cost trend re N/A N/A N/A  8.50% 8.00% 7.00%
Ultimate health care cost trend r N/A N/A N/A  5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Year ultimate trend rate is react N/A N/A N/A 201¢ 201/ 2011

N/A—Not applicable

(1) This column does not consider Qwest’s actuasalimptions for its pension plan as of the begmof the year due to the acquisition

date of April 1, 2011. Qwest had the following aoial assumptions as of April 1, 2011: discount @ft5.40%; expected long-term rate

of return on plan assets 7.50%; and a rate of cosgi®n increase of 3.50¢

(2) This column does not consider Qwest’s actuasalimptions for its posttirement benefit plan as of the beginning ofythar due to tr
acquisition date of April 1, 2011. Qwest had thkofging actuarial assumptions as of April 1, 20diiscount rate of 5.30%; expected
longterm rate of return on plan assets of 7.50%; irlitégalth care cost trend rate of 7.50% and ultinhatdth care trend rate of 5.00%

be reached in 201

Net periodic pension expense, which includes tfexctf of the Qwest acquisition subsequent to Aprt011 and the Embarq acquisit

subsequent to July 1, 2009, included the followdomponents:

Pension Plans

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Service cos $ 7C 61 36
Interest cos 56( 24¢ 13t
Expected return on plan ass (709) (283) (128
Curtailment gair — (22) —
Settlement: 1 — 18
Contractual retirement benef — — 15
Amortization of unrecognized prior service ¢ 2 2 —
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial Ic 13 17 16
Net periodic pension (income) expei@ $ (63 22 92

(1) Includes $58 million of income related to the Qw@sins subsequent to the April 1, 2011 acquisitiate.
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(2) The Legacy Embarq pension plan contains a piavithat grants early retirement benefits foraiarparticipants affected by workforce
reductions. During 2009, we recognized approxinybéb million of additional pension expense relat@these contractual benefi

Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense, winickludes the effects of the Qwest acquisition seghent to April 1, 2011 and the
Embarg acquisition subsequent to July 1, 2009uded the following components:

Post-Retirement Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Service cos $ 18 15 9
Interest cos 152 32 27
Expected return on plan ass (47) (4) ()
Amortization of unrecognized prior service ¢ (2 3 4)
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial Ic — _ 1 e
$ 127 41 _30

Net periodic po:-retirement benefit expen®

(1) Includes $92 million related to the Qwest plansssgjuient to the April 1, 2011 acquisition di

Benefit Obligations
The actuarial assumptions used to compute the tustdus for the plans are based upon informatiailable as of December 31, 2011
and December 31, 2010 and are as follows:

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Actuarial assumptions at end of ye
Discount rate 4.25%-5.10% 5.00%-5.50% 4.60%-4.80% 5.30%
Rate of compensation incree 3.25% 3.25%-4.00% N/A N/A
Initial health care cost trend re N/A N/A 7.25%-8.00% 8.50%
Ultimate health care cost trend r: N/A N/A 5.00% 5.00%
Year ultimate trend rate is react N/A N/A 201¢ 201¢

N/A—Not applicable
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The following table summarizes the change in theefieobligations for the pension and post-retiratrtgenefit plans:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 4,53¢ 4,18 463
Service cos 70 61 36
Interest cos 56C 24¢€ 13t
Plan amendmen 12 4 16
Acquisitions 8,26 — 3,467
Actuarial loss 93C 427 232
Contractual retirement benef — — 15
Curtailment gair — (220 —
Settlement: — — 8
Benefits paid by compar (16) 5) (57)
Benefits paid from plan asse (767) (2717) (133)

Benefit obligation at end of ye $13,59¢ 4,53¢ 4,18:

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in millions)

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 55¢ 582 29:¢
Service cos 18 15 9
Interest cos 152 32 27
Participant contribution 64 14 3
Plan amendmen 31 — —
Acquisitions 3,28¢ — 22¢
Direct subsidy receipt 22 1 —
Actuarial loss (gain 15z (32 58
Benefits paic (352 (59 _(36)

Benefit obligation at end of ye $3,93( _55¢ 582

Our aggregate accumulated benefit obligation d3eaember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $17.499rhii4.509 billion and
$4.042 billion, respectively.

Plan Assets

We maintain plan assets for our pension plans artdio post-retirement benefit plans. The pensian pssets are used for the payment
of pension benefits and certain eligible plan exesn The pogtetirement benefit plan assets are used to paythesle benefits and premiu
on behalf of eligible retirees who are former uniepresented plan participants and to pay cerigjible plan expenses. The expected rate of
return on plan assets is the long-term rate ofmeite expect to earn on the plans’ assets. Theofatgurn is determined by the strategic
allocation of plan assets and the long-term rigk @turn forecast for each asset class. The faet@mseach asset class are generated
primarily from an analysis of the long-term expéictas of various third party investment managenoeganizations. The expected rate of
return on plan assets is reviewed

B-64



Table of Contents

annually and revised, as necessary, to reflectgdsim the financial markets and our investmeamtegyy. The following table summarizes the
change in the fair value of plan assets for thesjpenand post-retirement benefit plans:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 3,732 3,22( 353
Return on plan asse 47¢ 482 474
Acquisitions 7,771 — 2,407
Employer contribution: 587 30C 11¢
Settlement: — — —
Benefits paic (767) (277) (139)
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $11,81¢ 3,732 3,22(

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 54 57 17

Return on plan asse 4 6 6
Acquisitions —

76¢ 33

Employer contribution: 15t 31 34

Participant contribution 64 14 3

Benefits paic (3529 (59 _(36)

Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 69¢ 54 57

Pension PlansOur investment objective for the pension plan asiseto achieve an attractive risk-adjusted retwer time that will
provide for the payment of benefits and minimize tisk of large losses. Our pension plan investratategy is designed to meet this
objective by broadly diversifying plan assets asnasmerous strategies with differing expected retuvolatilities and correlations. The
pension plan assets have target allocations of t83#ierest rate sensitive investments and 47%westments designed to provide higher
expected returns than the interest rate sensiti@siments. Interest rate sensitive investmentadec32% of plan assets targeted primarily to
long-duration investment grade bonds, 10% to higldyand emerging market bonds, 5% to convertibleds and 6% targeted to diversified
strategies, which primarily have exposures to dlgbaernment, corporate and inflation-linked boraiswell as some exposures to global
stocks and commodities. Assets expected to prdvgieer returns than the interest rate sensitivetassclude broadly diversified equity
investments with approximately 15% targeted to $t8cks, 12% to developed market non-U.S. stocls3&f to emerging market stocks.
Approximately 12% is allocated to other private keds investments including funds primarily investegrivate equity, debt and hedge
funds. Real estate investments are targeted atf§flamassets. At the beginning of 2012, our exgabetnnual long-term rate of return on
pension assets is assumed to be 7.5%.

Post-Retirement Benefit Plar®ur investment objective for the post-retirementidig plan assets is to achieve an attractive risk-
adjusted return and minimize the risk of large ésssver the expected life of the assets. Investnisnis managed by broadly diversifying
assets across numerous strategies with differipga®d returns, volatilities and correlations. westment strategy is designed to be
consistent with the investment objective, with jatar focus on providing liquidity for the reimis@ment of our union-represented
employees post-retirement health care costs. Thierptirement benefit plan assets have targetatilmes of 35% to
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equities and 65% to non-equity investments. Spetafiget allocations within these broad categaresallowed to vary to provide liquidity in
order to meet reimbursement requirements. Equitgstments are broadly diversified with exposurpublicly traded U.S., non-U.S. and
emerging market stocks and private equity. Whilenew private equity investments have been madedent years, the percent allocation to
existing private equity investments is expectethtoease in the near term as liquid, publicly tchdtocks are drawn down for the
reimbursement of health care costs. The 65% noityegllocation includes investment grade bondshhigld bonds, convertible bonds,
emerging market debt, real estate, hedge fundsatprdebt and diversified strategies. At the bagimof 2012, our expected annual lotggm
rate of return on post-retirement benefit plan &siseassumed to be 7.5%.

Permitted investment®lan assets are managed consistent with the tasigcset forth by the Employee Retirement Incoraeusity
Act of 1974, as amended, which requires diverdificaof assets and also generally prohibits defipekefit and welfare plans from investing
more than 10% of their assets in securities isbyetie sponsor company. At December 31, 2011, ¢nsipn and post-retirement benefit
plans did not directly own any shares of our commstoick or any of our debt, which is consistent vilitcember 31, 2010.

Derivative instrumentsDerivative instruments are used to reduce riskelsas provide return. The pension and post-retmnbenefit
plans use exchange traded futures to gain expos@guity and Treasury markets consistent withaeagset allocations. Interest rate swaps
are used in the pension plan to reduce risk redatvmeasurement of the benefit obligation, whickeansitive to interest rate changes. Foreign
exchange forward contracts and total return swaepsised primarily to manage currency exposuresiiCdefault swaps are used to manage
credit risk exposures in a cost effective and t@gjenanner relative to transacting with physicaipooate fixed income securities. Options are
currently used to manage interest rate exposunegahto account the implied volatility and currgaicing of the specific underlying market
instrument. Some derivative instruments subjecpthas to counterparty risk. We closely monitor miguparty exposure and mitigate this |
by diversifying the exposure among multiple highdit quality counterparties, requiring collateratldimiting exposure by periodically
settling contracts.

The gross notional exposure of the derivative uratgnts directly held by the plans is shown beloke Motional amount of the
derivatives corresponds to market exposure but doegepresent an actual cash investment.

Gross notional exposure
Post-

Retirement

Benefit

Pension Plar Plans

Year Ended December 31, 2011
Derivative instrument: (Dollars in millions)

Exchang-traded U.S. equity future $ 53t 12

Exchang-traded no-U.S. equity future: 4 —
Exchang-traded Treasury future 1,512 19

Interest rate sway 63% —
Total return swap 11C 51

Credit default swap 201 —
Foreign exchange forwart 63E 23

Options 917 —

Fair Value Measurements:air value is defined as the price that would lxeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin an
orderly transaction between independent and knayelelle parties who are willing and able to tranfacan asset or liability at the
measurement date. We use valuation techniquesnidpdimize the use of observable inputs and minirthizeuse of unobservable inputs when
determining fair value and then we rank the esttailues based on the reliability of the inpusdu®llowing the fair value hierarchy set
forth by the FASB. For additional information oretfair value hierarchy, see Note 11—Fair Value Disare.
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At December 31, 2011, we used the following vahratechniques to measure fair value for assetgelere no changes to these
methodologies during 2011:

» Level I—Assets were valued using the closing price repdrntélde active market in which the individual setyuwas traded

» Level 2—Assets were valued using quoted pricesarkets that are not active, broker dealer quotatinat asset value of shares
held by the plans and other methods by which giliEcant input were observable at the measuremats.

» Level 3—Assets were valued using unobservable smijpuivhich little or no market data exists as régaiby the respective
institutions at the measurement d:

The tables below presents the fair value of plaetasby category and the input levels used to méerthose fair values at
December 31, 2011. It is important to note thatab®et allocations do not include market expodtigsare gained with derivatives.

Fair value of pension plan assets at December 32011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bonds | $ 694 2,20¢ — 2,90(
High yield bonds (b — 541 79 62C
Emerging market bonds ( — 29t — 29t
Convertible bonds (c — 337 — 337
Diversified strategies (¢ — 48¢ — 48¢
U.S. stocks (f 401 944 — 1,34t
Non-U.S. stocks (g 994 45¢ — 1,452
Emerging market stocks ( 10z 13¢€ — 23¢
Private equity (i — — 791 791
Private debt (j — — 461 461
Market neutral hedge funds ( — 62C 18¢ 80¢
Directional hedge funds (I — 26¢ 182 451
Real estate (| — 48 53t 583
Derivatives (m) 12 (5) — 7
Cash equivalents and st-term investments (r 13 1,18: — 1,19¢
Total investment $2,21¢ 7,521 2,237 11,97-
Dividends and interest receival 32
Pending trades receivat 43€
Accrued expense 8
Pending trades payat (620
Total pension plan asse $11,81¢
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Fair value of post-retirement plan assets at Decenelp 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bonds | $ 45 10C — $ 14t
High yield bonds (b — 61 — 61
Emerging market bonds ( — 33 — 33
Convertible bonds (c — 30 — 30
Diversified strategies (¢ — 62 — 62
U.S. stocks (f 64 4 — 68
Non-U.S. stocks (g 62 2 — 64
Emerging market stocks ( — 17 — 17
Private equity (i — — 60 60
Private debt (j — — 8 8
Market neutral hedge funds ( — 67 — 67
Directional hedge funds (I — 20 — 20
Real estate (| — 19 26 45
Cash equivalents and st-term investments (r 5 20 — 25
Total investment $17€ 43t 94 70E
Dividends and interest receival 3
Pending trades receivat 23
Accrued expense (15
Pending trades payat (23
Total pos-retirement plan asse $69:

The tables below presents the fair value of plaetasby category and the input levels used to mé@terthose fair values at
December 31, 2010. It is important to note thatabset allocations do not include market expodtigsare gained with derivatives.
Investments include dividend and interest rece®agbénding trades, trades payable and accrued segqen

Fair value of pension plan assets at December 3010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bonds | $ — 331 — 331
High yield bonds (b — 913 — 913
U.S. stocks (f 1,16¢ 277 — 1,44t
Non-U.S. stocks (g 50¢ — — 50¢
Private equity (i — — 1 1
Private debt (j — — 3 3
Directional hedge funds (I — — 161 161
Real estate (| — — 182 182
Cash equivalents and st-term investments (r 26 — — 26
Other (0) 13 14€ 3 162
Total pension plan asse $ 1,71t 1,667 35C 3,732
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Fair value of postretirement plan assets at December 31, 201(
Level 1 Level Z Level 2 Total
(Dollars in millions)

Fixed income (a)(d $ 35 5 — 40
U.S. stocks (f 5 5 — 10
Cash equivalents and sf-term investments (r 4 — — _ 4
Total pos-retirement plan asse 44 1C — 54

The plans’ assets are invested in various assegaaes utilizing multiple strategies and investimaanagers. For several of the
investments in the tables above and discussed b#tevplans own units in commingled funds and Eahipartnerships that invest in various
types of assets. Interests in commingled fundsale=d using the net asset value (NAV) per ungaxth fund. The NAV reported by the fund
manager is based on the market value of the uridgrigvestments owned by each fund, minus its liiéds, divided by the number of shares
outstanding. Commingled funds held by the plans¢ha be redeemed at NAV within a year of the faiainstatement date are generally
classified as Level 2. Investments in limited parghips represent long-term commitments with affimaturity date, typically ten years.
Valuation inputs for these limited partnership mets are generally based on assumptions andiofbenation not observable in the market
and are classified as Level 3 investments. Thenagsons and valuation methodologies of the priaiegdors, account managers, fund
managers and partnerships are monitored and egdlimtreasonableness. Below is an overview oftset categories, the underlying
strategies and valuation inputs used to value $Beta in the preceding tables:

(@) Investment grade bondspresent investments in fixed income securitieselsas commingled bond funds with
characteristics similar to the Barclays Capital \A§gregate Bond Index. This index is comprisetl 8. Treasury securities, agencies,
corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities, ass&ed securities and commercial mortgage-backadities. Treasury securities are
valued at the bid price reported in the active retik which the security is traded and are clasdiéis Level 1. The valuation inputs of
other investment grade bonds primarily utilize aliable market information and are based on a spebldS. Treasury securities and
consider yields available on comparable securitféssuers with similar credit ratings. The primatyservable inputs include references
to the new issue market for similar securities,sbeondary trading markets and dealer quotes. @ptiusted spread models are utili
to evaluate securities such as asset backed sesuhiat have early redemption features. Theseaitiesiare classified as Level 2. The
commingled funds are valued at NAV based on th&ataralue of the underlying fixed income securitising the same valuation
inputs described above. The commingled funds caredeemed at NAV within a year of the financiatetaent date and are classified
as Level 2.

(b) High yield bondsepresent investments in below investment gradmifincome securities as well as commingled higllyie
bond funds. The valuation inputs for the securipigsarily utilize observable market informationdaare based on a spread to U.S.
Treasury securities and consider yields availahlemmparable securities of issuers with similaditnatings. These securities are
classified as Level 2. The commingled funds areeglat NAV based on the market value of the undweglizigh yield instruments usir
the same valuation inputs described above. Cometiniginds that can be redeemed at NAV within a péé#ne financial statement date
are classified as Level 2. Commingled funds thahoabe redeemed at NAV or that cannot be redeenBAV within a year of the
financial statement date are classified as Level 3.

(c) Emerging market bondgpresent investments in securities issued by govents and other entities located in developing
countries as well as commingled emerging marketfonds. The valuation inputs for the securitigbzet observable market
information and are primarily based on dealer geiotea spread relative to the local government boflese securities are classified as
Level 2. The commingled funds are valued at NAVdoksn the market value of the underlying emergimgket bonds using the same
valuation inputs described above. The commingledi$ican be redeemed at NAV within a year of tharfaial statement date and are
classified as Level 2.
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(d) Convertible bondgrimarily represent investments in corporate debtsties that have features that allow the delbeto
converted into equity securities under certainuitstances. The valuation inputs for the individiaivertible bonds primarily utilize
observable market information including a spread 18. Treasuries and the value and volatility ef timderlying equity security.
Convertible bonds are classified as Level 2.

(e) Diversified strategiesepresent an investment in a commingled fund thatarily has exposures to global government,
corporate and inflation linked bonds, global stoakd commodities. The commingled fund is valuedAY based on the market value
of the underlying investments. The valuation inputize observable market information includingofished prices for exchange traded
securities, bid prices for government bonds, amdagfs and yields available for comparable fixedine securities with similar credit
ratings. This fund can be redeemed at NAV withjrear of the financial statement date and is clessds Level 2.

() U.S. stocksepresent investments in stocks of U.S. based coi@pas well as commingled U.S. stock funds. Tleatimn
inputs for U.S. stocks are based on the last puddigrice reported on the major stock market orclvttie securities are traded and are
classified as Level 1. The commingled funds aree@lat NAV based on the market value of the undeglinvestments using the same
valuation inputs described above. These comminfglieds can be redeemed at NAV within a year of tharfcial statement date and are
classified as Level 2.

(@) Non-U.S. stockeepresent investments in stocks of companies basdeleloped countries outside the U.S. as well as
commingled funds. The valuation inputs for non-ls®cks are based on the last published price teghon the major stock market on
which the securities are traded and are classiféeldevel 1. The commingled funds are valued at Na¥ed on the market value of the
underlying investments using the same valuationtmgescribed above. These commingled funds caedse=med at NAV within a
year of the financial statement date and are ¢ledsas Level 2.

(h) Emerging market stockepresent investments in a registered mutual faaldcammingled funds comprised of stocks of
companies located in developing markets. Registengdial funds are valued at the last publishedepiéported on the major market on
which the mutual funds are traded and are cladgsifgeL evel 1. The commingled funds are valued a¥Mased on the market value of
the underlying investments using the same valuatiputs described previously for individual stockkese commingled funds can be
redeemed at NAV within a year of the financial staént date and are classified as Level 2.

() Private equityrepresents non-public investments in domestic areldn buy out and venture capital funds. Privapeity
funds are structured as limited partnerships aad/alued according to the valuation policy of epaltnership, subject to prevailing
accounting and other regulatory guidelines. Théngaships use valuation methodologies that givesicienation to a range of factors,
including but not limited to the price at which @stments were acquired, the nature of the invessnerarket conditions, trading valt
on comparable public securities, current and ptegeoperating performance, and financing transastsubsequent to the acquisition of
the investments. These valuation methodologiesweva significant degree of judgment. Private eginivestments are classified as
Level 3.

() Private debtepresents non-public investments in distressedemzanine debt funds. Mezzanine debt instrumeptdeint
instruments that are subordinated to other debesand may include embedded equity instrumentsasigvarrants. Private debt funds
are structured as limited partnerships and aresdahiccording to the valuation policy of each paghip, subject to prevailing
accounting and other regulatory guidelines. Theatan of underlying fund investments are baseéhotors including the issuer’s
current and projected credit worthiness, the sgcsiierms, reference to the securities of comparabmpanies, and other market
factors. These valuation methodologies involvegaificant degree of judgment. Private debt investisare classified as Level 3.

(k) Market neutral hedge fundi®ld investments in a diversified mix of instrungtiiat are intended in combination to exhibit
low correlations to market fluctuations. These stugents are typically combined with futures to aghiuncorrelated excess returns
over various market®irectional hedge funds-This
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asset category represents investments that magiegbmewhat higher correlations to market fludtwa than the market neutral hedge
funds. Investments in hedge funds include bothctlirevestments and investments in diversified fuofdfsinds. Hedge Funds are valued
at NAV based on the market value of the underlyimgstments which include publicly traded equity dired income securities and
privately negotiated debt securities. The hedgeduare valued by third party administrators ushegtame valuation inputs previously
described. Hedge funds that can be redeemed atWifkih a year of the financial statement date dasgified as Level 2. Hedge fund
investments that cannot be redeemed at NAV orcamot be redeemed at NAV within a year of therfoial statement date are
classified as Level 3.

() Real estateepresents investments in commingled funds anddahpartnerships that invest in a diversified pitfof real
estate properties. These investments are valugé\dtaccording to the valuation policy of each fumdpartnership, subject to
prevailing accounting and other regulatory guidedinThe valuation inputs of the underlying propgsrire generally based on thparty
appraisals that use comparable sales or a prajestifuture cash flows to determine fair value. Resdate investments that can be
redeemed at NAV within a year of the financial staént date are classified as Level 2. Real estagsiments that cannot be redeemed
at NAV or that cannot be redeemed at NAV withinearyof the financial statement date are classd®tevel 3.

(m) Derivativesinclude the market value of exchange traded futooesracts which are classified as Level 1, as alrivatel
negotiated over-the-counter swaps that are valasddon the change in interest rates or a specéiket index and classified as
Level 2. The market values represent gains or oss# occur due to fluctuations in interest rafl@sign currency exchange rates,
security prices, or other factors.

(n) Cash equivalents and short-term investmegpsesent investments that are used in conjunetittnderivatives positions or
are used to provide liquidity for the payment ofiéfits or other purposes. U.S. Treasury Bills aieied at the bid price reported in the
active market in which the security is traded aredcdassified as Level 1. The valuation inputs thieo securities are based on a sprei
U.S. Treasury Bills, the Federal Funds Rate, ordomninterbank Offered Rate and consider yieldslabks on comparable securities of
issuers with similar credit ratings and are clasgifis Level 2. The commingled funds are valudd/ based on the market value of
the underlying investments using the same valuatiputs described above. These commingled fundbeardeemed at NAV within a
year of the financial statement date and are ¢ladsas Level 2.

(o) Otherrepresents investment in private debt, high yi@dds and net payables and receivables associatedheisecurities.
The valuation of underlying fund investments arsdubon factors including the issuer’s current amojepted credit worthiness, the
security’s terms, reference to the securities ofijgarable companies, and other market factors. TWedsation methodologies involve a
significant degree of judgment. These investmergskssified as Level 3.

Concentrations of Risknvestments, in general, are exposed to variolds,r&ich as significant world events, interest, ratedit, foreig
currency and overall market volatility risk. Thetsks are managed by broadly diversifying assetssscnumerous asset classes and strategie
with differing expected returns, volatilities anorelations. Risk is also broadly diversified asrosimerous market sectors and individual
companies. Financial instruments that potentiallyject the plans to concentrations of counterpasiyconsist principally of investment
contracts with high quality financial institutionBhese investment contracts are typically colldizzd obligations and/or are actively
managed, limiting the amount of counterparty exp@s$o any one financial institution. Although tmwéstments are well diversified, the
value of plan assets could change materially deépgngon the overall market volatility, which cowffect the funded status of the plans.
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The table below presents a rollforward of the pemgilan assets valued using Level 3 inputs:

Balance at December 31, 2009
Net acquisitions (disposition

Actual return on plan asse

(Losses) gains relating to assets sold during dae y

Gains (losses) relating to assets still held at-geal

Balance at December 31, 2010

Net acquisitions (disposition
Actual return on plan asse

(Losses) gains relating to assets sold during dae
(Losses) gains relating to assets still held at-end

Balance at December 31, 2C

Pension Plan Assets Valued Using Level 3 Inputs

Market
Neutral Directional
High Private Private
Yield Hedge Hedge Real
Bonds Equity Debt Fund Funds Estate Other Total
(Dollars in millions)
$ — — — 16C 162 — 32z
1 3 — 9) 2 3 —
— — — 2 2 — —
— — — 8 20 — 28
1 3 — 161 182 3 35C
96 795 452 18 30  31¢ (3 1,87«
(12) 197 13 3 1) 9 — 20¢
(5) (202 | — (7) 26 — (19€)
$ 79 791 461 18¢€ 18¢ 53t — 2,23

The table below presents a rollforward of the gpetitement plan assets valued using Level 3 inputs:

Balance at December 31, 2C
Net acquisition:
Actual return on plan asse

Gains relating to assets sold during the »
(Losses) gains relating to assets still held at-end

Balance at December 31, 2C

Post-Retirement Plan Assets Valued Using Level 3 puits

Private
Private Real
Equity Debt Estate
(Dollars in millions)
$ — — —
55 8 24
33 1 —
_ (29 _ @ _ 2
$ 60 8 26

Total

ke o
D~ DN ~l

Certain gains and losses are allocated betweetsassd during the year and assets still held at-gad based on transactions and
changes in valuations that occurred during the.yHagse allocations also impact our calculationeifacquisitions and dispositions.

At December 31, 2011, the investment program predactual gains on pension and post-retirementasaats of $483 million as
compared to the expected returns of $750 milliorafdifference of $267 million. As of December 2010, the investment program produ
actual gains on pension and post-retirement plseta®f $489 million as compared to the expectedne of $287 million for a difference of
$202 million. The short-term annual returns on m@asets will almost always be different from thpeoted long-term returns and the plans

could experience net gains or losses, due primaritjie volatility occurring in the financial matkeduring any given year.
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Unfunded Status
The following table presents the unfunded statub@fpensions and post-retirement benefit plans:

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2011 2010

(Dollars in millions)

Benefit obligatior $ (13,59¢) (4,539 (3,930 (55¢)
Fair value of plan asse 11,81« 3,732 693 54
Unfunded statu $ (1,789 (802) (3,23)) (504)

Current portion of unfunded stat $ — — (164) —
Non-current portion of unfunded stat $ (1,789 (802) (3,079) (509

The current portion of our post-retirement bengffiigations is recorded on our consolidated balame®ts in accrued expenses and
other current liabilities—other.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Incc—Recognition and Deferrals

The following tables present cumulative items matognized as a component of net periodic beneffisrese as of December 31, 2010,
items recognized as a component of net periodiefitsrexpense, additional items deferred duringl2éd cumulative items not recognized
as a component of net periodic benefits expensé Becember 31, 2011. The items not recognizedasrgonent of net periodic benefits
expense have been recorded on our consolidateddaatheets in accumulated other comprehensive loss:

As of and for the Years Ended December 31,

Recognitior
of Net Net
Periodic Change ir
Benefits
2010 Expense Deferrals AOCI 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) inca
Pension plans
Net actuarial (loss) gai $(18¢) 13 (1,160) (1,147 (1,33
Prior service (cost) bene (19 2 (12 (10 (29
Deferred income tax benefit (expen 80 (5 451 44¢€ 52€
Total pension plan (129 10 (727) (717) (839)
Pos-retirement benefit plan:
Net actuarial (loss) gai (32) — (190 (190 (227)
Prior service benefit (cos 12 2 (32) (33 (22)
Deferred income tax benefit (expen 7 — 85 85 92
Total pos-retirement benefit plar (12 (2 (13¢€) (13¢) (150

Total accumulated other comprehensive (loss)

income $(13¢) 8 (857) (849 (98¢)
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The following table presents estimated items todoegnized in 2012 as a component of net pericgiefit expense of the pension,
non-qualified pension and post-retirement benddihg:

Post-
Pensior Retirement

Plans Plans
(Dollars in millions)

Estimated recognition of net periodic benefit exgeeim 2012

Net actuarial (loss $ (30) —
Prior service (cost ©)] —
Deferred income tax bene 12 —

Estimated net periodic benefit expense to be rexbnd 2012 as a
component of other comprehensive income (| $ (21) —

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemaition Act of 200:

We sponsor post-retirement health care plans ksl benefit options that provide prescriptiongdbenefits that we deem actuarially
equivalent to or exceeding Medicare Part D. We gatze the impact of the federal subsidy receivedkuthe Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 in th&eakation of our post-retirement benefit obligatiand net periodic post-retirement
benefit expense.

Other Benefit Plans

Health Care and Life Insurance. We provide headtie @and life insurance benefits to essentiallpfdiur active employees. We are
largely self-funded for the cost of the health galen. Our health care benefit expenses for cugsloyees were $377 million, $190 million
and $67 million for the years ended December 31120010 and 2009, respectively. Union-represeateployee benefits are based on
negotiated collective bargaining agreements. Engaeyare required to partially fund the health barefits provided by us, in addition to
paying their own out-of-pocket costs. Participatimugn-represented employees contributed $62 mil$&88, million and $9 million
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyicketing union-represented employees contrib®28l million, $17 million and
$4 million for the years ended December 31, 200102and 2009, respectively. Our group life insueaplans are fully insured and the
premiums are paid by us.

401(k) Plan. We sponsor a qualified defined contidn benefit plan covering substantially all off @mployees. Under this plan,
employees may contribute a percentage of theiraroampensation to the plan up to certain maximwsglefined by the plan and by the
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). Currently, we ofiaa percentage of employee contributions in cAsBecember 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, the assets of the plan inclagptoximately 9 million and 4 million shares of @ammon stock, respectively, as a result
of the combination of previous employer match aadipipant directed contributions. We recognizedexnses related to this plan of
$70 million, $17 million and $14 million for the ges ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, resggct

Deferred Compensation Plana/e sponsored non-qualified unfunded deferred cosgu@n plans for various groups that included
certain of our current and former highly compendamployees. Participants in these plans couldheit discretion, invest their deferred
compensation in various investment choices inclydiar common stock. The value of assets and lisslielated to these plans was not
significant.

(9) Share-based Compensation

We maintain programs that allow our Board of Dioest(through its Compensation Committee or our hiecutive Officer as its
delegate) to grant incentives to certain employessour outside directors in any one or a comhonati several forms, including incentive
and non-qualified stock options; stock appreciatights;
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restricted stock awards; restricted stock unitsraatket and performance shares. Stock options giynexpire ten years from the date of
grant. We also offer an ESPP which allows eligiéneployees to purchase our common stock at a 1586utis based on the lower of the
beginning or ending stock price during recurringreionth offering periods.

Acquisitions

Upon the July 15, 2011, closing of our acquisitidrsavvis, and pursuant to the terms of the actijpiisagreement, we assumed certain
obligations under Savvis’ share-based compensati@mgements. Specifically:

» all Savvis stock options outstanding immediatelpmpto the acquisition were vested in full and weoaverted into 2,420,532 ful
vested CenturyLink stock options, a

« all non-vested Savvis restricted stock units ouatditey immediately prior to the acquisition convdrieto an aggregate 1,080,070
nor-vested CenturyLink award

We estimate the aggregate fair value of the assi\Bagdis share-based compensation arrangementsi&asillion, of which
$98 million was attributable to services perfornpeidr to the acquisition date and was includechim ¢ost of the acquisition. The fair value of
CenturyLink shares was determined based on thé&438osing price of our common stock on July 14, 20The remaining $25 million of t
aggregate fair value of the assumed Savvis awaadsattributable to post-acquisition services araking recognized as compensation
expense, net of estimated forfeitures, over theaneimg 1.5 year vesting period.

Upon the April 1, 2011, closing of our acquisitiohQwest, pursuant to the terms of the acquisiéigreement, we assumed certain
obligations under Qwest'’s pre-existing share-bassedpensation arrangements. Specifically:

« all Qwest non-qualified stock options outstandimgriediately prior to the acquisition converted iatbaggregate of 7,198,331
CenturyLink nor-qualified stock options (including 5,562,198 fullgsted options’

» all non-vested shares of Qwest restricted stoc&tantling immediately prior to the acquisition cared into an aggregate of
780,455 no-vested shares of CenturyLink restricted stock,

» all Qwest market-based awards outstanding immdyipteor to the acquisition vested in full and werad out by us through the
issuance of an aggregate of 563,269 shares of Gé&irtlh common stock in April 2011

The aggregate fair value of the assumed Qwest awead $114 million, of which $85 million was attrthble to services performed
prior to the acquisition date and was includechimd¢ost of the acquisition. The fair value of Ceyltink shares was determined based on the
$41.55 closing price of our common stock on Marth2011. We determined the fair value of Qwest's-gaalified stock options, using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model, reflecting skriree interest rate ranging from 0% to 2.13% é&ihefing on the expected life of the
option), an expected dividend yield of 6.98%, apexted term ranging from 0.1 to 4.8 years (depgndimthe option’s remaining contractual
term and exercise price and on historical expeegrand expected volatility ranging from 11.1% 53%6 (based on the expected term and
historical experience). The remaining $29 millidrttee aggregate fair value of the assumed Qwestdsnaas attributable to post-acquisition
period and was included in the cost of the acdaisitwhich is being recognized as compensation esg@enet of estimated forfeitures, over
the remaining vesting periods from 0.1 years toyg4rs.

Upon the July 1, 2009, closing of our acquisitidfembarg, pursuant to the terms of the acquisiéigreement, we assumed certain
obligations under Embarq pre-existing share-basetpensation arrangements. Specifically:

» all Embarqg stock options outstanding immediatelgmiio the acquisition were vested in full and weoaverted into 7.2 million
fully vested CenturyLink stock options, a

» all non-vested Embarq restricted stock units ontiiteg immediately prior to the acquisition convdrieto an aggregate
2.4 million nor-vested CenturyLink award
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The aggregate fair value of the assumed Embargdsweas $99 million, of which $50 million was attrthble to services performed
prior to the acquisition date and was includechimdost of the acquisition. The fair value of Ceyltink shares was determined based on the
$30.70 closing price of our common stock on June2809. We determined the fair value of Embarqg’s-gaalified stock options, using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model, reflecting skriree interest rate ranging from 0.5% to 2.6%p&i&ling on the expected life of the
option), an expected dividend yield of 9.12%, apesmted term ranging from 0.3 to 6.0 years (dependimthe option’s remaining contractual
term and exercise price and on historical expeegrand expected volatility ranging from 27% to 5(08sed on the expected term and
historical experience). The remaining $49 millidrtlee aggregate fair value of the assumed Embaegdswvas attributable to post-
acquisition period and was included in the coghefacquisition, which is being recognized as camp#on expense, net of estimated
forfeitures, over the remaining vesting periods.

Stock Options
The following table summarizes activity involvintpsk option awards for the year ended Decembe2@1]:

Weighted-
Average
Number of Exercise
__Options _ __Price
(in thousands’

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,04( $ 39.0¢
Assumed in Savvis acquisitic 2,421 $ 14.2¢
Assumed in Qwest acquisitic 7,19¢ $ 34.5(
Exercisec (3,072 $ 23.5¢
Forfeited/Expirec (1,199 $ 68.4<

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 10,38¢ $ 31.0¢

Exercisable at December 31, 2( 9,321 $ 29.5¢

The aggregate intrinsic value of our options owidilag and exercisable at December 31, 2011 was8@n and $77 million,
respectively. The weighted average remaining conied term for such options was 4.9 years and daisy respectively.

During 2011, we received net cash proceeds of dl®min connection with our option exercises. Tiag benefit realized from these
exercises was $19 million. The total intrinsic \&bf options exercised for the years ended Dece8the2011, 2010 and 2009 was
$47 million, $28 million and $6 million, respectlye

Restricted Stocl

For awards that contain only service conditionsviesting, we calculate its fair value based onctbsing stock price on the date of

grant. For restricted stock units that contain raadnd performance conditions, the award fair vauwalculated through Monte-Carlo
simulations.

During the second and third quarter of 2011, weigrdh approximately 624,000 shares of restricteckstio certain executive-level
employees as part of our long-term incentive pnograf which approximately 474,000 contained onlgviee conditions and will vest on a
straight-line basis on May 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 remaining awards contain market conditionswitid/est on May 31, 2014. These
shares represent only the target for the awaraels ecipient has the opportunity to ultimatelyeige between 0% and 200% of the target
restricted stock award depending on our total $tedder return for 2011, 2012 and 2013 in relatmihiat of the S&P 500 Index.
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In addition to these awards, during 2011 we graafgatoximately 689,000 shares of restricted stogkrds to certain other key
employees and our outside directors as part oequity compensation and retention programs. Theseds require only service conditions
for vesting.

During the first quarter of 2010, we granted apprately 397,000 shares of restricted stock to aegaecutive-level employees as part
of our long-term incentive program, of which apgroately 198,000 contained only service conditiond will vest on a straight-line basis in
March 15, 2011, 2012 and 2013. The remaining awesd&ain service and market conditions. One hathese awards will vest on March :
2012 based on our two-year total shareholder réarr8010 and 2011 as measured against the taadlsblder return of the companies
comprising the S&P 500 Index. The other half wdkton March 15, 2013 based on our three-yeargbtakholder return for 2010, 2011 and
2012 as measured against the total shareholden retthe companies comprising the S&P 500 IndéresSE shares represent only the target
for the award as each recipient has the opporttoitytimately receive between 0% and 200% of #igdt restricted stock award depending
on our total shareholder return in relation to thfathe S&P 500 Index.

In addition to these awards, during 2010 we graafgatoximately 600,000 shares of restricted stockrds to certain other key
employees and our outside directors as part oéquity compensation and retention programs. Theseds require only service conditions
for vesting.

In anticipation of our acquisition of Qwest, duritig third quarter of 2010, we granted 407,000eshaf restricted stock to certain
executive officers and other key employees asqiaatretention program. The shares of restrictedkstontain only service conditions and
will vest in equal installments on the first, sed@nd third anniversaries of the April 1, 2011 oigdate of the acquisition. As this retention
program was contingent upon the consummation oQtlvest acquisition, we did not begin expensingerasards until the closing of the
acquisition on April 1, 2011.

The following table summarizes activity involvingstricted stock and restricted stock unit awardste year ended December 31,
2011:

Weighted-
Average
Grant Date
Number of
Shares Fair Value
(in thousands’

Non-vested at December 31, 20 2,892 $ 33.6¢
Grantec 1,31: $ 36.1t
Assumed in Savvis acquisitic 1,08( $ 38.5¢
Assumed in Qwest acquisitic 78C $ 41.5¢
Vested (1,780) $ 34.5¢
Forfeited (77) $ 33.9¢

Non-vested at December 31, 20 4,20¢ $ 36.7¢

During 2010, we granted 1.4 million shares of iettd stock at a weighted-average price of $3@&8ing 2009, we granted 820,000
shares of restricted stock at a weighted-averaige pf $27.34, excluding the 2.4 million sharesie&gsin connection with our acquisition of
Embarg. The total fair value of restricted stocktthested during 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $72 m,ld8 million and $45 million,
respectively.

Compensation Expense and Tax Benefit

We recognize compensation expense related to anedfased awards with graded vesting that only haarvice condition on a
straight-line basis over the requisite serviceqbfor the entire award. Total compensation expémsall share-based payment arrangements
for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 an@ @88 $65 million, $38 million and $55 million, pectively. These amounts included
$12 million in
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compensation expense recognized in 2011 and $Zbmrih 2009 for the acceleration of certain awarelsulting from the consummation of
the Qwest and Embarqg acquisitions. Our tax benefibgnized in the income statements for our shased payment arrangements for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 veasifibn, $14 million and $21 million, respectiyelAt December 31, 2011, there w
$96 million of total unrecognized compensation exqeerelated to our share-based payment arrangemadnith we expect to recognize over
a weighted-average period of 1.79 years.

(10) Earnings Per Common Share
Basic and diluted earnings per common share foy¢laes ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009caknd@ated as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions, except per
share amounts, shares in thousands)

Income (Numerator;

Net income before extraordinary ite $ 57% 94¢ 511
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expe — — 13€
Net income 572 94¢ 647
Earnings applicable to n-vested restricted stoc &) (6) 4
Net income applicable to common stock for compubagic earnings pt

common shar 571 94z 645
Net income as adjusted for purposes of computihged earnings per comm

share $ 571 947 642

Shares (Denominator
Weighted average number of shal

Outstanding during peric 534,32( 301,42¢ 199,17
Non-vested restricted stoc (2,209 (1,756 (1,387%)
Non-vested restricted stock un 66¢ 947 1,02¢
Weighted average shares outstanding for computs@gearnings per comm
share 532,78 300,61 198,81.
Incremental common shares attributable to dilusieeurities
Shares issuable under convertible secur 13 13 13
Shares issuable under incentive compensation 1,32¢ 665 231
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of cangpdiiuted earnings pe
common shar 534,12: 301,29° 199,05
Basic earnings per common shg
Before extraordinary iter $ 1.07 3.13 2.5t
Extraordinary iter — — .68
Basic earnings per common sh $ 1.07 3.18 3.28
Diluted earnings per common shs
Before extraordinary iter $ 1.07 3.13 2.5t
Extraordinary iter — — .68
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 1.07 3.13 3.2%
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Our calculations of diluted earnings per commonelexclude shares of common stock that are issuglale exercise of stock options
when the exercise price is greater than the avaragket price of our common stock during the perfagch potentially issuable shares tot
2.4 million, 2.9 million and 4.1 million for 2012010 and 2009, respectively.

(11) Fair Value Disclosure

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eaghvalents, accounts receivable, investments,usts@ayable and long-term debt,
excluding capital lease obligations. The carryingpants of our cash and cash equivalents, accoeoé$vable and accounts payable
approximate their fair values.

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifglin an orderly transaction between
independent and knowledgeable parties who arengillind able to transact for an asset or liabilityhha measurement date. We use valuation
techniques that maximize the use of observabletsngod minimize the use of unobservable inputs vaetarmining fair value and then we
rank the estimated values based on the relialifithe inputs used following the fair value hietarset forth by the FASB.

We determined the fair values of our long-term aptecluding the current portion, based on quotadket prices where available or, if
not available, based on discounted future cashsflosing current market interest rates

The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairummeasurements are defined by the FASB genesaftyllaws:

Input Level Description of Input

Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted market pricestiveamarkets

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices in active markweds are either directly or indirectly observat
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketadexists

The following table presents the carrying amount @stimated fair values of our investment se@gjtwhich are reported in noncur
other assets, and long-term debt, excluding calgiéale obligations, as well as the input levelslusedetermine the fair values:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Input Carrying
Carrying
Level Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(Dollars in millions)
Asset—Investments securitie 3 $ 73 73 — —
Liabilities—Long-term debt excluding capital lease
obligations 2 $21,12¢ 22,05: 7,32¢ 8,007

In connection with the acquisition of Qwest on Afri2011, we acquired auction rate securities niraguin 2033 to 2036 that are not
actively traded in liquid markets. We have desigddhese securities as available for sale andrdioctdy, we report them on our balance
sheet under our “goodwill and other assets—othe€’item at fair value on a recurring basis. Wénessted the fair value of these securities at
December 31, 2011 using a probability-weighted ¢lstr model that considers the coupon rate forstbeurities, probabilities of default and
liquidation prior to maturity, and a discount rammensurate with the creditworthiness of the issligese securities have a cost basis of
$79 million.
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(12) Income Taxes

Income tax expense was as folloy
Federal
Current
Deferred
State
Current
Deferred
Foreign
Current
Deferred

Total income tax expen:

Income tax expense was allocated as follc
Income tax expense in the consolidated stateméinisame:
Attributable to income before extraordinary it
Attributable to extraordinary itel
Stockholder' equity:
Compensation expense for tax purposes in exceanofints recognized
for financial reporting purpose
Tax effect of the change in accumulated other cetmgnsive los

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

$ (49 384 15¢
401 14E 21C
25 67 3
(6) (13) 12

4 _ _

$ 37¢ 582 382

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in millions)

$ 37E 582 302
— — 81
(13) (12) 4
(535) (34) 29

The following is a reconciliation from the statutdederal income tax rate to our effective incowrperate:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(Percentage of pre-tax income)

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lie 1.3% 1.€% 2.C%
Change in tax treatment of Medicare sub: — 0.2% —
Nondeductible acquisition related co 0.€% 0.2% 0.7%
Nondeductible compensation pursuant to executivepamsatior

limitations 0.4% 0.2% 0.2%
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax bene — — (1.5%
Foreign income taxe 0.4% — —
Foreign valuation allowanc 0.8% — —
Other, ne! _0.8% 0.5% 0.1%
Effective income tax rat 39.6% 38.1% 37.2%
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Included in income tax expense for the years efsmEmber 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is $24 milliormnd@ilon and $7 million,
respectively, which related to a portion of ounsaction costs associated with our recent acquisitiThe 2011 and 2010 transaction costs
were primarily related to the acquisition of Qwéte 2009 transaction costs were related to theisitign of Embarq. These costs are
considered non-deductible for income tax purposes.

In 2011, our effective tax rate decreased due®b6amillion reduction to our net deferred tax assdtiation allowance associated with
state operating loss carryforwards. We also recbatheadditional valuation allowance of $8 milliom deferred tax assets that require future
income of a special character to realize the bemdiecause we are not currently forecasting incoh@m appropriate character for these
benefits to be realized, we will continue to maiimia valuation allowance equal to the amount waatdoelieve is more likely than not to be
realized.

The tax effects of temporary differences that gaseto significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)

Deferred tax asse

Pos-retirement and pension benefit cc $ 2,052 51C
Net operating loss carryforwar 2,49; 75
Other employee benefi 11¢€ 45
Other 83€ 11€
Gross deferred tax ass 5,49¢ 74¢€
Less valuation allowanc (27¢) (43
Net deferred tax asse 5,22 703

Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property, plant and equipment, primarily due tordeation

differences (3,647 (1,762
Goodwill and other intangible ass: (4,21%) (1,159
Other (1639 (70

Gross deferred tax liabilitie (8,019) (2,99)
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (2,799 (2,28%)

Of the $2.797 billion and $2.288 billion net def=trtax liability at December 31, 2011 and 2010peetively, $3.823 billion and
$2.369 hillion is reflected as a long-term lialyilénd $1.026 billion and $81 million is reflecteslaanet current deferred tax asset.

In connection with our acquisitions of Savvis oityJib, 2011 and Qwest on April 1, 2011, we recogdinet noncurrent deferred tax
liabilities of approximately $320 million and $58fillion, respectively, which reflects the expectatlre tax effects of certain differences
between the financial reporting carrying amounts &@x bases of Savvis’ and Qwest's assets anditiebi In addition, due to the Qwest
acquisition, we recognized a net current deferaadasset of $271 million, which relates primardycertain accrued liabilities that are
expected to result in future tax deductions. Thesaary differences involve Qwest’s pension anceotbost-retirement benefit obligations as
well as tax effects for acquired intangible assatsperty, plant and equipment and long-term dabtuding the effects of acquisition date
valuation adjustments, for both entities. The refedted tax liability is partially offset by a defed tax asset for expected future tax
deductions relating to Savvis’ and Qwest’s net afieg loss carryforwards.
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At December 31, 2011, we had NOLs of $6.2 billidrunused, the NOLs will expire between 2015 andZ2Mhowever, no significant
amounts expire until 2020. At December 31, 2011 hae $72 million ($47 million net of federal inconax) of state investment tax credit
carryforwards that will expire between 2012 and£202ot utilized. In addition, at December 31, 20&e had $30 million of alternative
minimum tax, or AMT, credits. Our acquisitions ofiv®st and Savvis caused “ownership changes” witlémteaning of Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code. As a result, our abilityde these NOLs is subject to annual limits impdse8ection 382. Despite this, we expec
use substantially all of these NOLs as an offsatreg our future taxable income, although the tgrof that use will depend upon our future
earnings and future tax circumstances.

We establish valuation allowances when necessagdiace the deferred tax assets to amounts we teixpesalize. At December 31,
2011, a valuation allowance of $276 million wasblshed as it is more likely than not that thisoamt of net operating loss carryforwards
will not be utilized prior to expiration.

Based on our consideration of preliminary inforroatiwe recorded valuation allowances of $10 milbard $231 million, respectively
on the acquisition dates for the portion of theuaiel net deferred tax assets that we do not kelgewmore likely than not to be realized. Our
preliminary acquisition date assignment of defeiredme taxes and the related valuation allowaneeabject to adjustment as discussed in
Note —Acquisitions.

The activity of our gross unrecognized tax bendétcluding both interest and any related fedeealefit) during 2011 was as follows:

Unrecognized Tax

Benefits

(Dollars in millions)
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2 $ 311
Assumed in Qwest and Savvis acquisiti 20¢€
Decrease due to the reversal of tax positions takarprior yea (13
Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitati 1)
Settlement: (399
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2 $ 111

Upon the dismissal of our refund appeal in Octd8drl, we recorded a $242 million settlement rel&ethe treatment of universal
service fund receipts of certain subsidiaries aeglin our Embarq acquisition, effectively settlihg issue for the 1990 through 1994 years.
We are currently in the process of dismissing @004-2006) proceedings, due to an agreement i pléith the IRS Chief Counsel’s office.
Dismissal of the Tax Court proceedings will resulan agreed tax deficiency amount for each pefsatice the Tax Court proceedings
involved years that Embarg was owned by SprintinBprill receive the deficiency and the paymenttte IRS will trigger a settlement
obligation under the Tax Sharing agreement withirpburing 2011, Qwest also withdrew their claiassociated with the treatment of
universal services fund receipts resulting in aldidllion settlement decrease in our unrecognizedenefits. Due to Qwest's NOL
carryforward, the settlement of the position resaliin a reduction in our unrecognized tax benefitio cash payment is required.

If we were to prevail on all unrecognized tax bésetcorded on our balance sheet, we would rezegapproximately $118 million
(including interest and net of federal benefit) jethwould lower our effective tax rate.

Our policy is to reflect interest expense assodiatigh unrecognized tax benefits in income tax egee We had accrued interest
(presented before related tax benefits) of apprateig $33 million and $12 million at December 3012 and December 31, 2010,
respectively.
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We file income tax returns, including returns far subsidiaries, with federal, state and locakgligtions. Our uncertain income tax
positions are related to tax years that are cugrenider or remain subject to examination by tHevant taxing authorities.

Beginning with our 2009 tax year, we are subjecrtaual examination by the IRS.

In 2010, Qwest and its subsidiaries filed amenéeiéifal income tax returns for 2006-2007 to makéeptive claims with respect to
items reserved in their audit settlements and teecbitems not addressed in prior audits. Thoserated federal income tax returns are
subject to adjustment in an IRS audit. Additionaily2009, Qwest and its subsidiaries filed amerfdddral income tax returns for 20QR05
to make protective claims with respect to itemeiresd in their audit settlements and to correch&@ot addressed in prior audits. Those
amended federal income tax returns are subjedjtstnent in an IRS audit.

Our open income tax years by major jurisdictionasdollows at December 31, 2011:

Jurisdiction Open tax years

Federal 200&curren

State
Florida 200¢—curren
Louisiana 200&curren
Minnesota 199¢-1999 and 20C-curren
New York 2001-2006 and 20C-curren
North Caroling 200¢€-curren
Oregon 200Zzcurren
Texas 200&--curren
Other state 200%curren

Since the period for assessing additional liabtltyically begins upon the filing of a return, stpossible that certain jurisdictions could
assess tax for years prior to the open tax yeactodied above. Additionally, it is possible that&ia jurisdictions in which we do not believe
we have an income tax filing responsibility, andadingly did not file a return, may attempt toessa liability, or that other jurisdictions to
which we pay taxes may attempt to assert that weanditional taxes.

Based on our current assessment of various fagnatading (i) the potential outcomes of these dngaxaminations, (ii) the expiratic
of statute of limitations for specific jurisdictisn(iii) the negotiated settlement of certain disglissues, and (iv) the administrative practices
of applicable taxing jurisdictions, it is reasonapbssible that the related unrecognized tax benfefi uncertain tax positions previously ta
may decrease by up to $9 million within the neximiénths. The actual amount of such decrease, ifwitlydepend on several future
developments and events, many of which are outsideontrol.

(13) Segment Information

For several years prior to 2011, we reported oeraions as a single segment. However, after ayuisitions of Qwest on April 1,
2011 and Sawvvis on July 15, 2011, we have reorgdronr business into the following operating sedgsien

» Regional market«Consists generally of providing strategic and lggamducts and services to residential consumarall $o
medium-sized businesses and regional enterpriserness. Our strategic products and services offerédese customers include
our private line, broadband, Multi- Protocol LaBstitching (“MPLS”), hosting and video services. Qegacy services offered to
these customers include local and |-distance service

» Business marketConsists generally of providing strategic and lggarducts and services to enterprise and governmen
customers. Our strategic products and serviceseanff® these custome
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include our private line, broadband, MPLS, hosting video services. Our legacy services offerabddee customers include lot
and lon¢-distance service

Wholesale market€onsists generally of providing strategic and lggamducts and services to other communicationsigeos.
Our strategic products and services offered toetltestomers are mainly private line (including s@lesccess) and MPLS. Our
legacy services offered to these customers inamtbeindled network elements (“UNEsthich allow our wholesale customers
use our network or a combination of our network tredr own networks to provide voice and data s®wito their customers,
long-distance and switched access services

Savvis operationgCurrently consists of the entire centrally- managpdrations of our Savvis subsidiaries, which pesihosting
and network services primarily to business custeméren provided by Legacy Savvis. Some of thesécssr are the same as
those provided through our business markets segrmethte future, we may reclassify the revenuesemknses associated with
those business markets services as part of ouiisSapgrations segment. However, until we are abfarther integrate Legacy
Sawvis, we will continue to classify those serviasgart of the business markets segn

We may make further changes to our segment regaatnwve continue to integrate the operations ohbg@west and Legacy Savvis.

In addition, we have revised the way we categavireproducts and services and report our relateghiges. These products and
services are now described as follows:

Strategic serviceswhich include primarily private line (includingscial access), broadband, hosting (including clmgting and
managed hosting), colocation, multi protocol limétshing (“MPLS”) (which is a data networking teabingy that can deliver the
quality of service required to support real-timécecand video), video (including DIRECTV), voiceemdnternet Protocol
(“VoIP") and Verizon Wireless service

Legacy service, which include primarily local, long-distance, sefied access, public access, integrated servigéaldietwork
(“ISDN") (which uses regular telephone lines to jsogi voice, video and data applications), and trawl wide area network
(“WAN?") services (which allows a local communications nekwo link to networks in remote location:

Data integration, which is telecommunications equipment we sell ithéocated on customers’ premises and relatefégpsmnal
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingadnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our government and busiogstomer; ani

Other revenueswhich consists primarily of USF revenue and surghal

We have revised our prior period revenue clasgifioa to conform to our current categories.

Previously, we had categorized our products andces related to revenue as voice, data and netaar&ss. These products and
services were described as follows:

Voice.We offered local calling services to residentiall dusiness customers within our local service ageaerally for a fixed
monthly charge. We offered a number of enhancedeveervices (such as call forwarding, caller idaatiion, conference calling,
voicemail, selective call ringing and call waiting)our local exchange customers for an additiomahthly fee. We also offered
long-distance services to our customers based on eitfagre or pursuant to f-rate calling plans

Data. We derived our data revenues primarily from montelyurring charges for providing broadband accessces, data
transmission services over special circuits andgpeilines and switched digital television servic@sr special access data service
consisted of providing dedicated circuits conner
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other carriers’ networks to their customers’ losasi, wireless carriers’ cell towers to mobile swiiig) centers, or business
customers to our network. Although the traffic hiaddthrough special access facilities may haveunhed voice as well as data,
reported revenues associated with special accatsasevenue:

* Network AccesWe derived our network access revenues primaidiynfproviding wholesale services to various carréard
customers in connection with the use of our faesito originate and terminate their interstate iatiéhstate voice transmissions.
This revenue also included charges for receivingarsal support funds, receiving reciprocal comp¢ios from CLECs and
wireless service providers for terminating theitscan our networks and offering certain networkilities and related services to
CLECs. Our revenues for switched access servigasndied primarily on the level of call volum:

» Other.We derived our other revenues principally by prowdfiber transport, security monitoring servickessing, selling,
installing and maintaining customer premise teletmmications equipment and wiring and providing pgayge services

In connection with the recent reorganization of segments, we also revised the way we categorizeemment revenues and expenses.
Our segment revenues include all revenues fronsiategic services, legacy services and data iaiegras described in more detail above.
We report our segment expenses for regional markesiness markets and wholesale markets as fallows

» Direct expense, which primarily are specific, incremental expens®urred as a direct result of providing serviged products 1
segment customers, along with selling, generalagimdinistrative expenses that are directly assatiatth specific segment
customers or activities; ar

» Allocated expensg, which are determined by applying activity- basedting and other methodologies to include network
expenses, facilities expenses and other expenshsasuleet, product management, and real estaensgs

We do not assign depreciation and amortization esg@¢o our segments, as the related assets ardl eqpenditures are centrally-
managed. Other unassigned operating expensestopnsiarily of expenses for centrally- managed austiative functions (such as finance,
information technology, legal and human resourcesjerance expenses and restructuring expenseednéxpense is also excluded from
segment results because we manage our financiagaal company basis and have not allocated assdebt to specific segments. In
addition, other income (expense) does not relateitcsegment operations and is therefore excluded dur segment results. Our segment
results do not include any intersegment revenwexpenses. Our chief operating decision maker doeseriew assets and capital
expenditures by segment, nor does he include thieatly-managed income and expenses noted ababe icalculation of segment income.

Our operating revenues for our products and ses\goasisted of the following categories for thergesnded December 31, 2011 and
2010:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic service $ 6,254 2,04¢
Legacy service 7,68( 4,28¢
Data integratior 537 15¢
Other 88C 547
Total operating revenut $ 15,35: 7,042

Due to system limitations we have not reported2fl)9 segment information using our current segmantsir 2009 revenues using ¢
current presentation of products and services,eabave deemed it impracticable to
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do so. Our operating revenues for our productssandces consisted of the following categoriesiieryears ended December 31, 2010 and
2009:

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)
Voice $ 3,13¢ 2,16¢
Data 1,90¢ 1,20z
Network acces 1,08( 92¢
Other 91E 67€
Total operating revenut $ 7,047 4,97¢

Other operating revenues include revenue from usalesupport funds which allows us to recover diporf our costs under federal
and state cost recovery mechanisms and certaihages to our customers, including billings for ceguired contributions to several USF
programs. These surcharge billings to our custormerseflected on a gross basis in our statemémgerations (included in both operating
revenues and expenses) and aggregated approxirfid@2ymillion, $115 million and $84 million for theears ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively. We also generate otteating revenues from leasing and subleasisgade in our office buildings,
warehouses and other properties. We centrally-natiegactivities that generate these other opgrativenues and consequently these
revenues are not included in any of our four sedmpresented below.

Segment information for the years ended Decembe2@l1 and 2010 is summarized below:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment revenu $ 14,47 6,49
Total segment expens 6,53¢ 2,40
Total segment incom $ 7,93¢ 4,092
Total margin percentag 55% 63%
Regional markets
Revenue: $ 7,832 4,64(
Expense! 3,39¢ 1,78¢
Income $ 4,43 2,857
Margin percentag 57% 62%
Business market:
Revenue! $ 2,861 26€
Expense! 1,73¢ 12C
Income $ 1,12¢ 14€
Margin percentag 39% 55%
Wholesale market:
Revenue! $ 3,29t 1,58¢
Expense! 1,021 50C
Income $ 2,27 1,08¢
Margin percentag 69% 69%
Sawvis operations
Revenue: $ 48¢ —
Expense! 38C —
Income $ 10% —
Margin percentag 21% —
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The following table reconciles segment income toimeome for the years ended December 31, 2012amha:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment incom $ 7,93¢ 4,092
Other operating revenu 88C 547
Depreciation and amortizatic (4,026¢) (1,439
Other unassigned operating exper (2,76%) (1,145
Other income (expense), r (1,077%) (529
Income tax expens (379 (589
Net income $ b57d 94¢

We do not have any single customer that provideri@n 10% of our total operating revenues. Salisily all of our revenues come
from customers located in the United States.

(14) Discontinuance of Regulatory Accounting

Through June 30, 2009, we accounted for our regaitsiephone operations (except for the propeatigsired from Verizon in 2002)
accordance with the provisions of regulatory actiogrunder which actions by regulators can provisonable assurance of the recognition
of an asset, reduce or eliminate the value of aatasd impose a liability on a regulated entegpi$sich regulatory assets and liabilities were
required to be recorded and, accordingly, refleatdtie balance sheet of entities subject to regolaccounting.

On July 1, 2009, we discontinued the accountingiregnents of regulatory accounting upon the coriwvarsf substantially all of our
rate-of-return study areas to federal price caplegipn (based on the FCC's approval of our petitm convert our study areas to price cap
regulation).

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting rewersed previously established regulatory assetdiabilities. Depreciation rates
of certain assets established by regulatory autesfior our telephone operations subject to regayaaccounting have historically included a
component for removal costs in excess of the reélstdvage value. Notwithstanding the adoption ebaating guidance related to the
accounting for asset retirement obligations, regmeaccounting required us to continue to reftaet accumulated liability for removal costs
in excess of salvage value even though there wisgad obligation to remove the assets. Therefoeedid not adopt the asset retirement
obligation provisions for our telephone operatitms were subject to regulatory accounting. Up@ndiscontinuance of regulatory
accounting, such accumulated liability for remos@asts included in accumulated depreciation was veghand an asset retirement obligation
was established. Upon the discontinuance of regylaccounting, we were required to adjust they@agramounts of property, plant and
equipment only to the extent the assets were iragaas judged in the same manner applicable teegatated enterprises. We did not record
an impairment charge related to the carrying vafue property, plant and equipment of our regudatlephone operations as a result of the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting.
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In the third quarter of 2009, upon the discontirueaof regulatory accounting, we recorded a non-eastaordinary gain in our
consolidated statements of income comprised ofalh@ving components:

Elimination of removal costs embedded in accumdlaiepreciatior
Establishment of asset retirement obliga:

Elimination of other regulatory assets and lialg#

Net extraordinary gain before income tax expe

Income tax expense associated with extraordinary
Extraordinary gain attributable to CenturyLink, i

Basic earnings per common share of extraordinairy
Diluted earnings per common share of extraordigaiy

Gain (loss)
(Dollars in millions)
$ 221

(2
S C)
217

(81)

$ 13
.68

.68

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting rewvised the lives of our property, plant and popgnt to reflect the economic
estimated remaining useful lives of the assetgelmeral, the estimated remaining useful lives ofteilephone property were lengthened as
compared to the lives related to the depreciaesrused that were established by regulatory Atiéiso

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting gliminated certain intercompany transactions vétjulated affiliates that
previously were not eliminated under the applicatib regulatory accounting. This has caused ouratjpg) revenues and operating expenses
to be lower by equivalent amounts beginning inttied quarter of 2009.

(15) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First

Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

Quarter
2011
Operating revenue $1,69¢
Operating incom: 464
Net income 211
Basic earnings per common sh .69
Diluted earnings per common shi .69
2010
Operating revenue $1,80¢
Operating incom: b4k
Net income 258
Basic earnings per common sh .84
Diluted earnings per common shi .84

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

4,40¢ 4,59¢ 4,65: 15,35!
48( 54¢ 53¢ 2,02¢
115 13¢ 10¢ 57:¢

A8 .23 A8 1.07
A8 .23 18 1.07

1,772 1,74¢ 1,722 7,042
52¢ 50¢€ 48€ 2,06(
23¢ 232 22¢ 94¢

7S .7€ .74 3.13
7S 7€ .74 3.1¢

These results include Savvis operations for perdgnning July 15, 2011 and Qwest operations éoiogls beginning April 1, 2011
(See Note 2—Acquisitions).

(16) Commitments and Contingencies

In this section, when we refer to a class actiofpatative” it is because a class has been allelgetnot certified in that matter. Until
and unless a class has been certified by the dbhes not been established that the named dfaingipresent the class of plaintiffs they
purport to represent.
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We have established accrued liabilities for thetenatdescribed below where losses are deemed peodvadh reasonably estimable.

Litigation Matters Relating to CenturyLink and Embg

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fitew lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Netdelecover terminating access
charges for VolP traffic owed under various intencection agreements and tariffs which presently@pmate $34 million. The lawsuits
allege that Sprint Nextel has breached contraatated tariffs, and violated the Federal Commutidces Act by failing to pay these charges.
One lawsuit, filed on behalf of all legacy Embapemating entities, was tried in federal court imgiiia in August 2010 and, in March 201
ruling was issued in our favor and against Spriextdl. We currently expect Sprint Nextel to file@ppeal of this decision. The other lawsuit,
filed on behalf of all Legacy CenturyLink operatiagtities, is pending in federal court in Louisialmathat case, in early 2011 the Court
dismissed certain of CenturyLink’s claims, referader claims to the FCC, and stayed the litigatitie have not deferred revenue related to
these matters as an adverse outcome is not probaddel upon current circumstances.

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarqg Corpoaatj et al., filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statisdriat Court for the
District of Kansas, a group of retirees filed agtive class action lawsuit challenging the decisdmake certain modifications in retiree
benefits programs relating to life insurance, meldicsurance and prescription drug benefits, gdiyezéfective January 1, 2006 and
January 1, 2008 (which, at the time of the modiftaes, was expected to reduce estimated futureresgsefor the subject benefits by more
than $300 million). Defendants include Embarq,aierof its benefit plans, its Employee Benefits @aittee and the individual plan
administrator of certain of its benefits plans. Aidshal defendants include Sprint Nextel and cert#iits benefit plans. The Court certified a
class on certain of plaintiffs’ claims, but rejetigass certification as to other claims. Embard, @er defendants continue to vigorously
contest these claims and charges. On October 14, 2feFulghumlawyers filed a new, related lawsuitbbott et al. v. Sprint Nextel et al.
CenturyLink/Embarqg is not named a defendant indhesuit. InAbbott,approximately 1,800 plaintiffs allege breach otfithry duty in
connection with the changes in retiree benefitsdls are at issue in tieilghumcase. Thébbottplaintiffs are all members of the class that
was certified inFulghumon claims for allegedly vested benefits (Countsd HlI), and theAbbottclaims are similar to thEulghumbreach of
fiduciary duty claim (Count II), on which tHeulghumcourt denied class certification. We have not aedra liability for these matters as it is
premature to determine whether an accrual is weedsand, if so, a reasonable estimate of probidity.

Over 60 years ago, one of our indirect subsidiafiemtel Corporation, acquired entities that mayehavned or operated seven former
plant sites that produced “manufactured gas” uadmocess widely used through the &b0s. Centel has been a subsidiary of Embarq
being spun-off in 2006 from Sprint Nextel, whiclgaged Centel in 1993. None of these plant sitescarrently owned or operated by either
Sprint Nextel, Embarq or their subsidiaries. Oreéhsites, Embarg and the current landowners aringowith the Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA”) pursuant to administrative conserders. Remediation expenditures pursuant to thersrare not expected to be material.
On five sites, including the three sites whereBRA is involved, Centel has entered into agreemeittsother potentially responsible parties
to share remediation costs. Further, Sprint Nehdslagreed to indemnify Embarq for most of any tadiability arising from all seven of
these sites. Based upon current circumstancespwetdexpect this issue to have a material adverpact on our results of operations or
financial condition. We have accrued an amountwebelieve is probable for these matters; howeheramount is not material to our
financial statements.

Litigation Matters Relating to Qwes

The terms and conditions of applicable bylaws,ifteates or articles of incorporation, agreementagplicable law may obligate Qwest
to indemnify its former directors, officers or eropees with respect to certain of the matters desdrbelow, and Qwest has been advancing
legal fees and costs to certain former directdf&ers or employees in connection with certain texast described below.
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On September 29, 2010, the trustees in the Dutckrbptcy proceeding for KPNQwest, N.V. (of which €stwas a major sharehold
filed a lawsuit in district court in Haarlem, thetiierlands, alleging tort and mismanagement claimaer Dutch law. Qwest and Koninklijke
KPN N.V. (“KPN") are defendants in this lawsuit apwith a number of former KPNQwest supervisoryrdaaembers and a former officer
of KPNQwest, some of whom were formerly affiliateidh Qwest. Plaintiffs allege, among other thintdpst defendants’ actions were a cause
of the bankruptcy of KPNQwest, and they seek damé&methe bankruptcy deficit of KPNQwest, whickclaimed to be approximately
€4.200 billion (or approximately $5.4 billion based the exchange rate on December 31, 2011), m@ustety interest. Two lawsuits assert
similar claims were previously filed against Qwast others in federal courts in New Jersey in 28@d Colorado in 2009; those courts
dismissed the lawsuits without prejudice on theugds that the claims should not be litigated inUinéed States.

On September 13, 2006, Cargill Financial Markels,ad Citibank, N.A. filed a lawsuit in the DigttiCourt of Amsterdam, the
Netherlands, against Qwest, KPN, KPN Telecom Baxid other former officers, employees or supervigmgrd members of KPNQwe
some of whom were formerly affiliated with Qweshellawsuit alleges that defendants misrepresenBi(vest’s financial and business
condition in connection with the origination of redit facility and wrongfully allowed KPNQwest t@tvow funds under that facility.
Plaintiffs allege damages of approximately €219iamil(or approximately $284 million based on theleange rate on December 31, 2011).

We have not accrued a liability for the above matées it is premature to determine whether an at@swarranted and, if so, a
reasonable estimate of probable liability. We wilhtinue to defend against the pending KPNQwegalion matters vigorously.

Several putative class actions relating to thealfeton of fiber-optic cable in certain rights-afay were filed against Qwest on behal
landowners on various dates and in various conréddbama, Arizona, California, Colorado, Delawdfirida, Georgia, lllinois (where the
is a federal and a state court case), Indiana, ,|&a&asas, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Miatagdvlississippi, Missouri, Nebraska,
Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Northdliaa, Oklahoma, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennesgeas, Utah, Virginia, an
Washington. For the most part, the complaints ehgk our right to install our fiber-optic cabler@ilroad rights-of-way. The complaints
allege that the railroads own the right-of-way agasement that did not include the right to peusito install our fiber-optic cable in the
right-of-way without the Plaintiffs’ consent. Most the actions purport to be brought on behalftafeswide classes in the named Plaintiffs’
respective states, although two of the currenthydirgg actions purport to be brought on behalf oftiratiate classes. Specifically, the lllinois
state court action purports to be on behalf of tanekrs in lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Michigan, Minsata, Nebraska, Ohio and Wisconsin,
the Indiana state court action purports to be dralbef a national class of landowners. In gendaha,complaints seek damages on theories of
trespass and unjust enrichment, as well as purdaweages. On July 18, 2008, a federal districttdouviassachusetts entered an order
preliminarily approving a settlement of all of thetions described above, except the action peridiignnessee. On September 10, 2009, the
court denied final approval of the settlement amugids that it lacked subject matter jurisdictiom. @ecember 9, 2009, the court issued a
revised ruling that, among other things, deniedoéian for approval as moot and dismissed the méitdiack of subject matter jurisdiction.
The parties are now engaged in negotiating andiZing settlements on a state-by-state basis, ave filed and received final approval of
settlements in Alabama and lllinois federal coant in Tennessee state court. Final approval @lsdben granted in federal court actions in
Idaho and North Dakota, to which Qwest is not aypale have accrued an amount that we believeokghile for these matters; however, the
amount is not material to our financial statements.

Other

From time to time, we are involved in other prodagd incidental to our business, including admmaiste hearings of state public
utility commissions relating primarily to rate makji actions relating to employee claims, variousigaues, occasional grievance hearings
before labor regulatory agencies, patent infringenalegations
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and miscellaneous third party tort actions. Theoute of these other proceedings is not predictatdeever, we do not believe that the
ultimate resolution of these other proceedinggrafonsidering available insurance coverage, valeha material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations or casiws.

Capital Leases

We lease certain facilities and equipment undeiouarcapital lease arrangements. Depreciations#tasinder capital leases is included
in depreciation and amortization expense. Paynmmntapital leases are included in repayments @-term debt, including current maturit
in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

The table below summarizes our capital lease agtivi

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Assets acquired through capital lea $ 69€ — —

Depreciation expens 89 — —

Cash payments towards capital lee 76 — —
December 31 December 31

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Assets included in property, plant and equipn $ 69¢ —
Accumulated depreciatic 91 —

The future minimum payments under capital leased 8®cember 31, 2011 are included in our constddi®dalance sheet as follows:

Future

Minimum
Payments
(Dollars
n
millions)
Capital lease obligation
2012 $ 147
2013 14C
2014 121
2015 89
2016 53
2017 and thereafts 231
Total minimum payment 781
Less: amount representing interest and executsts (165
Present value of minimum payme 61€
Less: current portio (112)
Long-term portion $ 504

Operating Leases

CenturyLink leases various equipment, office ftiedi, retail outlets, switching facilities, and etmetwork sites. These leases, with few
exceptions, provide for renewal options and esicalatthat are either fixed or based on the consymiee index. Any rent abatements, along
with rent escalations, are included in the companiadf rent expense calculated on a straight-lagidover the lease term. The lease term for
most leases includes the initial non-cancelabla f@us any term under renewal options that areoresdsly assured. For the years ended
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December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, our gross rerpanse was $401 million, $174 million and $107ianl We also received sublease
rental income for the year ended December 31, 0$17 million. We did not have any material sukkeaental income for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009.

At December 31, 2011, our future rental commitméot®perating leases were as follows:

Future

Minimum

Payments

(Dqllars

n

millions)

2012 $ 28C
2013 244
2014 20¢
2015 17¢
2016 147
2017 and thereaftt 92¢
Total future minimum paymen() $ 1,98¢

(1) Minimum payments have not been reduced by mininsublease rentals of $119 million due in theriunder non-cancelable
subleases

Purchase Obligation:

We have several commitments primarily for marketsgjvities and support services from a varietyearidors to be used in the ordin
course of business totaling $706 million at Decen®de 2011. Of this amount, we expect to purch@&8$nillion in 2012, $191 million in
2013 through 2014, $99 million in 2015 through 2@b@ $148 million in 2017 and thereafter. Thesewamsdo not represent our entire
anticipated purchases in the future, but represelytthose items for which we are contractually aaitted.

(17) Other Financial Information
Other Current Assets

December 31,

2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
Prepaid expenst $ 24C 41
Other 15C __ 38
Total other current asse $ 39C _ 74

(18) Labor Union Contracts

Over 40% of our employees are members of variougdir@ng units represented by the Communicationskéfs of America and the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. Widieve that relations with our employees contitiube generally good. Approximately
15,000 or 75% of our union-represented employeesuaivject to collective bargaining agreementsekpire throughout 2012.
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(19) Dividends
Our Board of Directors declared the following diefls payable in 2011 and 2010:

Dividend Total

Date Declared Record Date Per Share Amount

(in millions)
November 15, 201 December 6, 20 72t $ 44¢
August 23, 201 September 6, 20: 72E $  44¢
May 18, 2011 June 6, 201 72k $ 43¢
January 24, 201 February 18, 201 72t $ 22z
November 9, 201 December 7, 201 72E $ 22C
August 24, 201( September 7, 20: 728 $ 22C
May 21, 201( June 8, 201 72t $ 22C
February 25, 201 March 9, 201 72k $  21¢

kkkkkkkkkk*

B-93

Payment Date

December 16, 20:
September 16, 20
June 16, 201
February 25, 201
December 20, 20:
September 20, 20.
June 21, 201
March 22, 201



Table of Contents

gIF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE
ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. q

AV
71\
CenturyLink~

Proxy — CENTURYLINK, INC.

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF D IRECTORS

The undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Glen F. Post, Il or Stacey W. Goff, or either of them, proxies for the
undersigned, with full power of substitution, to represent the undersigned and to vote all of the shares of common stock and voting
preferred stock (collectively, the “Voting Shares”) of CenturyLink, Inc. (the “Company”) that the undersigned is entitled to vote at
the annual meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held on May 23, 2012, and at any and all adjournments thereof (the
“Meeting”).

In addition to serving as a Proxy, this card will also serve as instructions to Computershare Investor Services L.L.C. (the “Agent”)
to vote in the manner designated on the reverse side hereof the shares of the Company’s common stock held as of April 4, 2012
in the name of the Agent and credited to any plan account of the undersigned in accordance with the Company’s dividend
reinvestment plan or employee stock purchase plans. Upon timely receipt of this Proxy, properly executed, all of your Voting
Shares, including any held in the name of the Agent, will be voted as specified.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR Items 1 through 4, and AGAINST Items 5(a) through 5(c) listed on the
reverse side hereof. If you properly execute and return this Proxy but fail to provide specific directions with respect to any of the
matters listed on the reverse side, all of your votes will be voted in accordance with these recommendations with respect to such
matters.

(Please See Reverse Side)
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Electronic Voting Instructions
Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!

é‘ r"..’d- Instead of mailing your proxy, you may choose one of the voting
";‘ F methods outlined below to vote your proxy.

VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE BAR.

-
Centu WLI n k Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be received by

1:00 a.m., Central Time, on 5-23-12.

1 IMPORTANT ANNUAL MEETING INFORMATION ]

Vote by Internet
* Go to www.envisionreports.com/ CTL

E « Or scan the QR code with your smartphone
« Follow the steps outlined on the secure website

Vote by telephone

« Call toll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) within the USA, US
territories & Canada on a touch tone telephone

Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in this example. « Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message
Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Proxy Card (1234 5678 9012 345)

g IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE
ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ¢

! Proposals — The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR Items 1 through 4, and AGAINST Items 5(a) through 5(c).

For Against Abstain For Against Abstain

1(a). Approve charter amendment to " " .- 1(b). Approve charter amendment to " " " +

declassify our Board of Directors. increase our authorized shares.
2. Elect four directors. For Withhold For Withhold For Withhold For Withhold

01 - Fred R. Nichols == " 02 - Harvey P. Perry " .- 03 - Laurie A. Siegel .- .- 04 - Joseph R. .- "
Zimmel
For Against Abstain For Against Abstain

3. Ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our .- . . 4. Advisory vote regarding our executive compensation. ==

independent auditor for 2012.
5(a). Shareholder proposal regarding bonus deferrals. .- T T 5(b). Shareholder proposal regarding performance-based == T T

restricted stock.

5(c). Shareholder proposal regarding political .- T T 6. In their discretion to vote upon such other business

contributions reports. as may properly come before the Meeting.
! Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below

Please sign exactly as name appears on the certificate or certificates representing shares to be voted by this proxy. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney,
trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by president or other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in
partnership name by authorized persons.

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box. Signature 2 — Please keep signature within the box.

/ /
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gIF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE
ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. q

AV
71\
CenturyLink~

Voting Instruction Card — CENTURYLINK, INC.

CENTURYLINK DOLLARS & SENSE 401(k) PLAN
CENTURYLINK UNION 401(k) PLAN

The undersigned, acting as a participant and a “named fiduciary” in either of the above-referenced retirement plans (collectively,
the “Plans”), hereby directs The Northern Trust Company (the “Trustee”), as directed trustee of the Plan’s trust (the “Trust”), to
vote at the annual meeting of shareholders of CenturyLink, Inc. (the “Company”) to be held on May 23, 2012, and any and all
adjournments thereof (the “Meeting”), in the manner designated herein, the number of shares of the Company’s common stock
credited to the account of the undersigned maintained under either of the Plans on the matters set forth on the reverse side hereof
and more fully described in the Company’s proxy statement for the Meeting. If no instructions are furnished by the undersigned,
the Trustee will vote unvoted shares and unallocated shares, if any, held in the Trust (collectively, “Undirected Shares”) in the
same proportion as voted shares regarding each of the matters set forth on the reverse side hereof, except as otherwise provided
in accordance with applicable law. Under the Trust, plan participants are deemed to act as “named fiduciaries” to the extent of
their authority to direct the voting of shares held in their accounts and their proportionate share of Undirected Shares.

The undersigned hereby directs the Trustee to authorize the Company’s proxies to vote in their discretion upon such other
business as may properly come before the Meeting.

Upon timely receipt of these instructions, properly executed, the undersigned’s shares will be voted in the manner directed. If the
undersigned properly executes and returns these instructions but fails to provide specific directions with respect to any of the
matters listed on the reverse side hereof, the undersigned’s shares will be voted in accordance with the Board’s recommendations
with respect to such matters.

(Please See Reverse Side)
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Electronic Voting Instructions
Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!

é‘ {ﬁ‘ Instead of mailing your proxy, you may choose one of the voting
?‘ F methods outlined below to vote your proxy.

VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE

CenturyLink~ BAR.

Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be
received by 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on 5-21-12.

E!H E Vote by Internet

« Go to www.envisionreports.com/CTL

| MPORTANT ANNUAL MEETING INFORMATION |

E « Or scan the QR code with your smartphone
« Follow the steps outlined on the secure website

Vote by telephone

« Call toll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) within the USA, US
territories & Canada on a touch tone telephone

Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in this example. Please « Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message
do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Voting Instruction Card (1234 5678 9012 345 )

g IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE
ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ¢

! The Board of Directors of the Company recommends th at you vote FOR Items 1 through 4, and AGAINST Item s 5(a) through 5(c) listed below.

For Against Abstain For Against Abstain

1(a). Approve charter amendment to . . .- 1(b). Approve charter amendment to . . . +

declassify our Board of Directors. increase our authorized shares.
2. Elect four directors. For Withhold For Withhold For Withhold For Withhold

01 - Fred R. Nichols =« . 02 - Harvey P. Perry . .- 03 - Laurie A. Siegel .- .- 04 - Joseph R. .-
Zimmel
For Against Abstain For Against Abstain

3. Ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our .- . . 4. Advisory vote regarding our executive compensation. ==

independent auditor for 2012.
5(a). Shareholder proposal regarding bonus deferrals. .- T T 5(b). Shareholder proposal regarding performance-based == T T

restricted stock.

5(c). Shareholder proposal regarding political " . .
contributions reports.

! Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below

Please sign exactly as name appears on the certificate or certificates representing shares to be voted by this proxy. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney,
trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by president or other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in
partnership name by authorized persons.

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box. Signature 2 — Please keep signature within the box.

/ /




